STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY

COMMISSIONERS MEETING
TUESDAY, MAY 5TH 2015 10:00 A.M.
DISTRICT COURTROOM
26 SOUTH B STREET, VIRGINIA CITY, NEVADA
AGENDA

MARSHALL MCBRIDE ANNE LANGER
CHAIRMAN DISTRICT ATTORNEY
LANCE GILMAN

VICE-CHAIRMAN

JACK MCGUFFEY -  VANESSA STEPHENS
COMMISSIONER CLERK-TREASURER

Members of the Board of County Commissioners also serve as the Board of Fire Commissioners |
for the Storey County Fire Protection District, Storey County Brothel License Board, Storey
County Water and Sewer System Board and the Storey County Liquor and Gaming Board and
during this meeting may convene as any of those boards as indicated on this or a separately posted
agenda.

All items include discussion and possible action to approve, modify, deny, or continue unless
marked otherwise.

1. CALL TO ORDER AT 10:00 A.M.

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

3. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Agenda for May 5, 2015
4. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Minutes for April 7, 2015

CONSENT AGENDA
(All matters listed under the consent agenda are considered routine, and may be acted upon by the
Board of County Commissioners with one action, and without an extensive hearing. Any member of
the Board or any citizen may request that an item be taken from the consent agenda, discussed, and
acted upon separately during this meeting. The Commission Chair reserves the right to limit the time
allotted for each individual to speak. )

5. For possible action approval of Payroll Checks date 04/24/15 for $310,577.04 and accounts
payable checks dated 04/17/15 for $1,070,381.83 and $4,916.17.

1




10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

For possible action approval of update to Storey County Administrative Policies and Procedures
including: Policies 502 Pay Periods and Time Reporting, 503 Overtime Compensation, 504 Rate of
Pay, 507 Scheduled Salary Step Advancement, 601 Holidays, and 602 Annual Leave.

For possible action approval of appointment of Chris Hood as Chairman of the Storey County
Safety Committee.

For possible action approval of the change in meeting date of a regularly scheduled meeting. The
next Commission meeting will be held on Monday, May 18, 2015 at 10:00am. The change in
meeting is required by the Nevada Department of Taxation for the approval of final budgets.

For possible action approval of change in meeting date of a regularly scheduled meeting. The
June 2, 2015 meeting will be held on Monday, June 1, 2015 at 10:00am. The change in meeting is
due to a District Court Jury Trail beginning June 2, 2015.

For possible action approval of Business Licenses First Readings:

a. SOUTHWEST STEEL, LLC - Contractor / 280 Sunpac Ave ~ Henderson (steel erector)

~ b. LEGACY SPECIALTIES, INC. = Contractor / 2567 Nowlin Road #104 ~ Minden (drywall

contractor)

¢. ASPEN DEVELOPMENTS CORP - Contractor / 2340 East Fifth Street ~ Reno (excavation
contractor)

d. COMSTOCK CHRONICLE OF VIRGINIA CITY ~ HB / 2187 Main Street ~ Gold Hill
(newspaper)

e. NOTHING BUT SKULLS VIRGINIA CITY NV - General / 11 North C Street (Retail Sales)
VC

f. REDTALON ENTERPRISES, LLC - HB / 21540 Sazarac Rd (FFL Type 7, Firearms Ré&D)
VCH

g ARNOLD MACHINERY COMPANY - Contractor / 2975 West 2100 South ~ Salt Lake City

END OF CONSENT AGENDA

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approve a cooperative agreement with the State of
Nevada Department of Taxation specifying the dates and procedure for distribution to Storey
County of the Economic Diversification District No. 1 revenues pledged pursuant to Ordinance
No. 14-260 and a Reimbursement Agreement with Tesla.

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approve the Reimbursement Agreement for Storey
County Economic Diversification District No. 1 between Storey County and Tesla.

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approve the Governmental Services Agreement for Storey
County Economic Diversification District No. 1 between Storey County, Storey County Fire
Protection District and Tesla.

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approve second reading of Ordinance 15-263 adding
section 3.50.200 to the Storey County Code providing for a pilot project for granting partial
abatements of permitting fees to participants in a qualified project in Economic Diversification
District No. 1 and providing for other properly related matters.

2




15. DISCUSSION ONLY (No Action - No Public Comment): Committee/Staff Reports including.
16. BOARD COMMENT (No Action - No Public Comment)

17. DISCUSSION ONLY (No Action - No Public Comment): Discussion and direction to staff
regarding legislation or legislative issues proposed by legislators or by other entities permitted
by the Nevada State Legislature to submit bill draft requests, or such legislative issues as may be
deemed by the Chairman or the Board to be of critical significance to Storey County.

18. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:  Approve the “INTERLOCAL CONTRACT FOR
TEMPORARY HOUSING OF JUVENILES AT MURPHY BERNARDINI JUVENILE DETENTION
CENTER,” which would increase the detention fees at such facility from $125 to $350 per day per
juvenile.

19. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Resolution #15-421 declaring May 2015 as.
-Wildfire Awareness Month in Storey County. : ' :

20. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Resolution #15-419 adoption of the Storey
County Hazard Mitigation Plan.

21. DISUCSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Liquor/General License- for Robert and
Nicole Wilkinson, Three GGG Inc., Gold Hill Hotel located at 1540 Main Street, Gold Hill, NV
89440.

22. DISUCSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Liquor/General/ Gaming License for Vincent
Malfitano, Bonanza Casino and Saloon located at 27 C Street, Virginia City, NV 89440.

23. DISUCSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Liquor/General/Gaming License for Vincent
Malfitano, Delta Saloon and Casino located at 18 South C Street, Virginia City, NV 89440.

24. DISUCSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Liquor/Business License for Virginia City
Brewery & Taphouse LLC located at 62 North C Street, Virginia City, NV 89440,

25. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Appeal of brothel work card denial of Katrina Tyson by
the Storey County Sheriff’s Office, pursuant to Storey County Code 5.16.220 (G)

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT AND PLANNING

26. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approve first reading of ordinance 15-264 an application
No. 2014-020 (Continued from 12/02/14) by the Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center, LLC to amend the
text of Storey County Code Title 17 (Zoning Ordinance) by adding Chapter 17.39 I-C Industrial-
Commercial Zone. The intent of the proposed I-C Zone is to provide for certain mixed-use
industrial and commercial uses where found appropriate by the board with recommendation by
the planning commission. Additional information including, but not limited to, reports and the
draft zone text may be obtained from the Planning Department at 775.847.1144 or
planning@storeycounty.org. (Continue item until June 1, 2015 board meeting.}




27. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Application No. 2014-021 (Continued from 12/02/14
meeting) by the Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center, LLC., and Storey County on behalf of The Nature
Conservancy, LLC and the Union Pacific Railroad Company to amend the Official Storey County
Zoning Map. The amendments will apply regulatory zones to approximately 600 acres of land
located in McCarran, Nevada (river District near the Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center) which was in
July of 2014 transferred from Washoe County to Storey County by mean of boundary line
adjustment. Additional information including, but not limited to, reports and maps may be
obtained from the Planning Department at 775.847.1144 or planning@storeycounty.ore,
(Continue item until June 1, 2015 board meeting,)

28. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION, LICENSING BOARD SECOND READINGS:
a. SIGNS ON SIGNS - Contractor / 960 Matley #22 ~ Reno (sign installation)
b. KONE, INC. - Contractor / 3727 Bradview Drive #200 ~ Sacramento (elevator contractor)
¢. SHORE MANAGEMENT & DEV NV, INC. - General / 222 East Sydney Ste. B (const.
mgmt.) TRI
d. ELECTRO SPECTRA, INC. - Contractor / 5490 Wildwood Drive ~ Reno (low voltage
contractor) - : -
GREAT WEST ASPHALT PAVING - Contractor / 133 East Warm Springs ~-Las Vegas
(paving cont.)
HARRIS & HART, INC. - Contractor / 1759 West 1200 South ~ Ogden, UT (hvac contractor)
ALLIED SANITATION SERVICES - Contractor / 830 West Bridge St. ~ Yerington (vacuum
truck) ) ) ' )
IONIX, LLC - General / 3033 Waltham Way, Unit 5 (metal fabrication) location change TRI
RICH DOSS, INC. - General / 201 Wild Horse Canyon Drive (transportation) MCC

®

=

29. PUBLIC COMMENT (No Action)
30. ADJOURNMENT

NOTICE:

* Anyone interested may request personal notice of the meetings.

* Agenda items must be received in writing by 12:00 noon on the Monday of the week preceding
the regular meeting. For information call (775) 847-0969.

* Items may not necessarily be heard in the order that they appear.

* Public Comment will be allowed at the end of each meeting (this comment should be limited
to matters not on the agenda). Public Comment will also be allowed during each item upon
which action will be taken on the agenda (this comment should be limited to the item on the
agenda). Time limits on Public Comment will be at the discretion of the Chairman of the
Board. Please limit your comments to three minutes.

* Storey County recognizes the needs and civil rights of all persons regardless of race, color,
religion, gender, disability, family status, or nation origin.

Notice to persons with disabilities: Members of the public who are disabled and require special
assistance or accommodations at the meeting are requested to notify the Commissioners’ Office in
writing at PO Box 176, Virginia City, Nevada 89440.




In accordance with Federal law and U.S. Department of agriculture policy, this institution is
prohibited from discriminating on the basis of race, color, national origin, sex, religion, age, disability
(Not all prohibited bases apply to all programs.) To file a complaint of discrimination write to USDA,
Director, Office of civil rights, 1400 Independence avenue, S.W., Washington, D.C. 20250-9410 or call
(800) 795-3272 (voice) or 202-6382 (TDD). USDA is an equal opportunity provider, employer, and
lender. The TTY, VCO voice carry over) or HCO hearing carry over) number is 800-326-6868; voice
only 800-326-6868. Check the customer Guide section of your telephone book under Services for
Individuals with a Hearing or Speech Disability.

CERTIFICATION OF POSTING

I, Vanessa Stephens, Clerk to the Board of Commissioners, do hereby certify that I posted, or caused
to be posted, a copy of this agenda at the following locations on or before April 30, 2015; Virginia City
Post Office, Storey County Courthouse, Virginia City Fire Department, Virginia City Highlands Fire
Department and Lockwood Fire Department.

By \,/tlﬂfﬂféi, Mobrphg A,

Vanessa Stephens Clerk-Treasurer




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: May 5, 2015 Estimate of time required: 5 min.

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [X] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Approval of minutes for April 7, 2015

2. Recommended motion: Approve minutes as submitted.

3. Prepared by: Vanessa Stephens
Department: Clerk & Treasurer Telephone: 775 847-0969

4. Staff summary: Minutes are attached.
S. Supporting materials: Attached.

6. Fiscal impact: N/A

Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller
7. Legal review required: N/A
District Attorney
8. Reviewed by:
Department Head Department Name: Clerk & Treasurer

| anty Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved
[l Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued

Sy || S

Agenda Item No.




STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY

COMMISSIONERS MEETING

TUESDAY, APRIL 7T, 2015 10:00 A.M.

DISTRICT COURTROOM
26 SOUTH B STREET, VIRGINIA CITY, NEVADA

MINUTES
MARSHALL MCBRIDE | ANNE LANGER
CHAIRMAN DISTRICT ATTORNEY
LANCE GILMAN
VICE-CHAIRMAN
JACK MCGUFFEY VANESSA STEPHENS
COMMISSIONER CLERK-TREASURER

Roll Call: Chairman McBride, Vice-Chairman Gilman, Commissioner McGuffey, District Attorney
Anne Langer, Clerk/Treasurer Vanessa Stephens, County Manager Pat Whitten, Comptroller Hugh
Gallagher, Public Works Director Mike Nevin, Senior Planner/Administrative Officer Austin
Osborne, Fire Chief Gary Hames, Community Services Director Cherie Nevin, Recorder Jen
Chapman, Special Counsel Bob Morris and Sheriff Gerald Antinoro.

1. CALL TO ORDER AT 10:00 A.M.

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

3. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Agenda for April 7, 2015
Austin Osborne requested to continue items 27 and 28 to May 5, 2015.

Mike Nevin stated that the agenda action report for item 14 incorrectly reads Public Works. The
department should read Community Development.

Motion: Approve Agenda for April 7, 2015 with the continuance of items 27 and 28 to May 5,
2015, Action: Approve Moved by Vice Chair Gilman Seconded by Commissioner
McGuffey Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote (summary: Yes=3)

4. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of minutes for March 3, 2015

Motion: Approve Minutes for March 3, 2015, Action: Approve Moved by Vice Chair Gilman
Seconded by Commissioner McGuffey Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote (summary:
Yes=3)




5. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Minutes for March 17, 2015

Motion: Approve Minutes for March 17, 2015, Action: Approve Moved by Vice Chair
Gilman Seconded by Commissioner McGuffey Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote
(summary: Yes=3)

CONSENT AGENDA
6. For possible action approval of Payroll Checks date 03/09/15 $50,569.84 and $107,181.78, date
03/13/15 for $426,089.72 and date 03/27/15 for $317,398.81. Accounts payable checks date
03/18/15 for $248.51 and 03/20/15 for $1,052,830.24 and $10,913.55.

7. For possible action approval of Interlocal Contract between the State of Nevada Public
Employees” Deferred Compensation Committee and Storey County.

8. For possible action approval of Vincent Malifitano (Delta) General/Liquor/Gaming License
Application.

9. For possible action approval of Robert & Nicole Wilkinson, Gold Hill Hotel General/Liquor
License application.

10. For possible action approval of Business Licenses First Readings:

STEM, LLC dba THE CANVAS CAFE - General / 110 North C Street (restaurant) VC
FLEET TEAM, INC. - General / 1425 Valley Belt Road ~ Cleveland, OH (lease equipment)
MERIDIAN SURVEYING & MAPPING, INC. - 405 Marsh Avenue ~ Reno (land surveyor)
NEXT GENERATION DRYWALL - Contractor / 925 Del Sol Street ~ Sparks (contractor)
ROC-TEK CORPORATION - General / 222 East Sydney (engineering research lab) TRI
ASSOCIATED CRANE - Contractor / 235 London Drive (crane service) TRI
SUPERNAP RENO, LLC - General / 1705 Peru (data ctr temp office) TRI
FLETCHLINE, INC. - Contractor / 5480 Lakeview Road ~ Springfield, TN (rack installation)
T F ROOF SVCS dba AFFORDABLE ROOFING - Contractor / 1250 Ridgeway Ct ~ Reno
DENT B GONE - Home Business / 21760 Clemens Road (mobile service) VCH
k. DANIEL J. CARAVALLO dba VC BLING - HB / 130 South Q Street (internet sales) VC

SIERRA COAST ROOFING, INC. - Contractor / 6015 South Virginia St., ~ Sparks

TR T e pn o

END OF CONSENT AGENDA

Motion: Approve the Consent Agenda, Action: Approve Moved by Vice Chair Gilman
Seconded by Commissioner McGuffey Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote (summary:
Yes=3)

11. DISCUSSION ONLY (No Action - No Public Comment): Committee/Staff Reports including

John Miller, Lockwood/Peri Ranch Park:
e Water has been turned on at Peri Ranch Park.
* National Night Out will be held at Lockwood/Peri Ranch Park in August. Additional
events will be held at this Park.




» Thank you to Mike Nevin for help with the Park.

Merilee Miller, Lockwood Community Center:
¢ Each year during spring break, children of the area are taken on a hike. This year the hike
was through Lagarmasino Canyon.
* An Open House with a catered dinner will be held Sunday, April 12%, from 5PM to 7PM.
Events held at the Center will be show-cased.
* Alot of work has been completed on the Community Center.

Cherie Nevin, Community Qutreach:

¢ Residential dump days are coming up. In Virginia City May st and 24, and in Lockwood
on April 9% through 11th, 16% through 18th, and 234 through 25t.

» Virginia City Senior Center has recently been painted - materials purchased by the
County and labor donated by the Nevada Division of Forestry Eastern Sierra Conservation
Camp, saving thousands of dollars in labor costs. The signs are being refurbished.

¢ A Community Development Block Grant was received for the Lockwood ambulance.

* Funding was not received for the Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center Utility Master Plan.

Mike Nevin, Public Works:

» Process is being made on the completion of crack sealing on Waltham Way. Specifications
are being developed for what needs to be accomplished on the roads County-wide. Crack
sealing will also be completed on some of the streets in town.

* The Courthouse roof project is 99% complete. During Sunday’s wind event, some
material flew off causing damage to a vehicle.

Commissioner McGuffey asked if Mr. Nevin would communicate with the Virginia Highland's ones
and tens Boards regarding road work.

Mr. Nevin has talked with the Boards previously and they have been reluctant to pay for materials.
The chip and cape will be done on County sections in the Highlands - the first mile of Cartwright and
all of Lousetown. This work will be through a contract which has not yet gone to bid.

Austin Osborne, Planning Department:

e Update on SR342. Comstock Mining is doing excavation work down to bedrock and
will begin capping the Silver Hills shaft by back-filling k-rail and putting in I-beams
filled with concrete. Once this is complete, the area will be compacted with aggregate
to the road height and the road can be built. CMI has submitted plans to NDOT for
both phases of the reconstruction.

¢ A planner has been hired for the open p081t10n in the Planning Department.

* BLM has almost completed its Resource Management Plan. Comments regarding BLM
lands and the Master Plan will be accepted by BLM until April 27%., The County’s
position on wind energy to the west of Virginia City has been submitted asking that
BLM exercise a most restrictive alternative in allowing wind energy - the County feels
that the historic district is not an appropriate place for this. The BLM appears to be
leaning towards providing an exclusion for the Comstock Historic District.

* Planning Commission meetings will be held May 7th and May 21st. TRI zoning, Title
17 updates, and a vacation rental in town will be discussed.

3




12.

13.

BOARD COMMENT (No Action - No Public Comment)
None

DISCUSSION ONLY (No Action - No Public Comment): Discussion and direction to staff
regarding legislation or legislative issues proposed by legislators or by other entities permitted
by the Nevada State Legislature to submit bill draft requests, or such legislative issues as may be
deemed by the Chairman or the Board to be of critical significance to Storey County. Specific
bills will include AB 417 and AB 427 which staff has expressed opposition.

Pat Whitten said so far we are not seeing any shifting of funding burdens to the Counties.

Mr. Whitten discussed AB 417. This is a pass by the Sunny Hills group requesting extension of
the boundary line transfer for two more years. It has been clear that there are certain
requirements before the County would ever weigh-in any way other than an opposition. A letter
has been drafted to the Chairman of the Assembly Committee on Government Affairs to kill the
bill. An assurance has been given by the Chairman that this bill will not make it out of that
Committee based on the County’s opposition.

Austin Osborne reviewed AB 427, known as the Comstock Mining Bill. Thank you to members
of the community who brought this to the County’s attention. In AB 427, the jurisdiction -
county, city, etc. - would not be able to impose unreasonable restrictions on mining,.

After lengthy negotiations and meetings, an Ordinance was passed in Storey County creating a
balance between mining interests, the interests of the historic district, and existing land uses in
the County. This Ordinance has not been challenged, allowing small and large scale mining, all
occurring in a historic district, as well as other places, while creating that balance to protect the
area.

Mr. Osborne submitted a letter to the Government Affairs Committee with copies to Senators
Settlemeyer and Wheeler requesting Bill AB 427, be killed. This was done the next day.

Mr. Whitten requested that the Board ask for public comment on Bills AB 417 and AB 427.

Virginia Highlands Resident, Nicole Barde: Thanked Mr. Whitten for the letter regarding
AB 417.

Chair McBride said last year Washoe County had taken a neutral stance on AB 417 and requested
Storey County not to vote it down but rather let it go to term, June 30, 2015. If no action taken by
that date, the bill totally dies. Development in the area in question is not included in the Master
Plan and Highlands residents are not in favor of it.

Ms. Barde asked about SB 81 and understands it relates to water and grants the Water Engineer
broad powers. There is concern in the Highlands about wells. Is the County following this bill
and what is the impact on the County, in particular the Highlands and Mark Twain.




14.

15.

Pat Whitten said SB 81 is on the list of bills being followed. One of the County’s lobbyists, Steve
Walker, is a preeminent water specialist.

Austin Osborne stated one of the elements of SB 81 would be to create an area of risk
management in a place such as the Highlands or Mark Twain, or a water management area. A
Water Engineer can do a lot of things to make sure water is there for people or ranching, farming
uses in the area. The Engineer could require metering of wells and also reduce the 2 acre feet
down. A moratorium could be put on the issuance of well permits until something is done to
change the situation. In the Master Plan process, ideas are being discussed to mitigate future
water problems in the Highlands and Mark Twain.

Mr. Whitten said the County would like to hear from the homeowner associations regarding
these issues.

Comptroller Hugh Gallagher said there are four Bills regarding collective bargaining. One bill
pertains to what the County would have to absorb when someone proceeds with collective
bargaining. Other bills discuss timing and financial stability issues. Some changes will occur.

Mr. Gallagher said the Rangeland Fire Bill will allow ranchers to form an association to fight
rangeland fires. The Secretary of State Portal Bill has been amended to the point where the
County does not have to buy in to all of the requirements that had been in the bill initially. The
Presumptive Eligibility Bill would determine whether or not the State would be required to pay
bills arising from heart-lung issues affecting the fire and sheriff crews.

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Review and possible approval of policy regarding refund
of building permit fees.

Pat Whitten said the plan review and permitting fees, particularly in the Building Department
are closely tied to the International Building Code. This is a “Dillon’s Rule” State and the County
must find ways to be able to provide refunds particularly when there are challenges. This policy
would resolve challenges that may arise.

Mr. Whitten reviewed the proposed policy. The request would be reviewed and recommended
by the Building (Community Development ) Department, the Comptroller’s Office would review,
and approved by the County Manager.

Motion: Approve the policy regarding refund of building of permit fees, Action: Approve
Moved by Vice Chair Gilman Seconded by Commissioner McGuffey Vote: Motion carried by
unanimous vote (summary: Yes=3)

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Selection of David A. Pringle, CPA, LTD as Storey County
auditor for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015.

Hugh Gallagher stated Mr. Pringle, as current auditor, has done an excellent job for many years.
Mr. Gallagher recommends David A. Pringle, CPA, LTD as Storey County auditor for the fiscal
year ending June 30, 2015.




16.

Motion: Approve selection of David A. Pringle, CPA, LTD as Storey County auditor for the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2015, Action: Approve Moved by Vice Chair Gilman Seconded
by Commissioner McGuifey Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote {summary: Yes=3)

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approve first reading of Ordinance 15-263 adding section
3.50.200 to the Storey County Code providing for a pilot project for granting partial abatements
of permitting fees to participants in a qualified project in Economic Diversification District No. 1
and providing for other properly related matters.

Special Counsel Robert Morris presented this item. Certain changes have been agreed to after
discussions with Tesla. The changes are underlined in the staff report, the main difference being
the annual fees. There was also concern on how to cover permitting fees if the construction
lasted longer than expected. A section has been incorporated to cover this issue.

Mr. Morris said this is one of four agreements the County will have with Tesla.

Vice Chair Gilman said this fee structure addresses the first submittal of plans, however Tesla
will re-submit more than one time. Does the fee structure allow for the process of additional fees
as change orders arise?

Pat Whitten answered that additional fees were proposed, but the County has opted to take a
different approach. This is a staff allocation and services will be available for a certain amount.
If applicant slows the system down with re-submittals and changes, it will delay the process.
The right to re-open is included in the Ordinance.

Mr. Morris indicated that when the Ordinance is presented for second reading, it will be a clean
copy with all changes.

TRI property owner, Gregg McKendle: Asked if there is a completion date for Tesla. Has a
traffic impact study been done exploring traffic issues after Tesla is open?

Mr. Whitten replied the contracts being negotiated generally end June 30, 2024, when the
property tax abatements go off schedule. The County is working with NDOT and Tesla to
address potential traffic issues.

Chair McBride indicated the completion date was in 2017.

Virginia Highlands Resident, Nicole Barde: Is it correct the annual fees indicated are what the
County collects and keeps, after the abatement? Is the cost of manpower, processing, etc.,
included?

Mr. Whitten said through the permitting process we will know what amount will be abated. The
County is required to report to the Legislature annually the amounts that are being abated. The
annual fees indicated are what the County will receive. Costs for plan review and permitting are
included. Staffing costs for Station 75, or for more deputies, or anything else are not included.
These costs will be offset by the General Services Agreement.




17.

18.

Motion Approve first reading of Ordinance 15-263 adding section 3.50.200 to the Storey County
Code providing for a pilot project for granting partial abatements of permitting fees to
participants in a qualified project in Economic Diversification District No. 1 and providing for
other properly related matters, Action: Approve Moved by Vice Chair Gilman Seconded by
Commissioner McGuffey Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote (summary: Yes=3)

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of TRI Infrastructure voucher in the amount of
$9,893.50 payable per the Developer Agreement.

Vice-Chairman Gilman recuses himself from discussion and vote on this item.

Hugh Gallagher presented this item. TRI Infrastructure costs are pre-approved by Community
Development Department, and reviewed by the Comptroller and staff as part of the public-
private Developer Agreement. $9,893.50 are reimbursable costs for year ended 2012-13.

Mr. Whitten noted that, per the Chief Financial Officer at TRI, there are no reimbursable expenses
for 2013-14.

Motion: Approve TRI Infrastructure voucher in the amount of $9,893.50 payable per the
Developer Agreement, Action: Approve Moved by Commissioner McGuffey Seconded by
Chair McBride Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote (summary: Yes=2)

Chair McBride called for recess at 11:12am.
Chair McBride reconvened the meeting at 11:23am

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Tentative Budget Hearings for FY 2015/16

Hugh Gallagher reviewed the Tentative Budget for FY 2015/16. Mr. Gallagher said this is the
first time there has been such a changing landscape in the County. There are a few things to be
looked at prior to the final budget next month. There are many items that may or may not occur
for which there is no information. Mr. Gallagher reviewed several situations that may affect the
tinal budget, including outcomes from the Legislature, the County’s withdrawal from
Guaranteed Share, and receipt of the Department of Taxation’s pro forma in May.

e GENERAL FUND REVENUES: Revenues from Ad Valorem taxes represent 70% of the
General Fund revenue budget. 2016 budget is approximately $1,500,000 higher than
current year which represents anticipated increases in building permits relative to the
Industrial Park which will include funds from the Tesla project.

o CLERK/TREASURER: Budget increased $43,000 of which $24,000 is attributed to staff
reclassifications, longevity and health insurance reclassifications. Operating expenses
increased by 518,000 for the State of Nevada mandated record management requirements.

o DISTRICT COURT: District Court Expenses is $54,000 higher than last year due to the
anticipated upgrade of the JAVS courtroom system. There may be some reclassifications
before final budget.

* GENETIC MARKER: Revenues derived from Justice Court and District Court Fees set by
statute. Expenditures range from court room improvements to lab fees.

7




DRUG COURT: Drug Court revenue is accumulated at the time of sentencing and passes
through to the Carson City Alternative Sentencing per order of the District Court Judge.
RECORDER: The Recorder budget increased $32,000 over last year of which $29,000 is
attributed to an additional part time staff to cover additional workload requirements and
staff step increases.

ASSESSOR: Budget increased $80,000 over last year due to the addition of one full time
staff member for additional services in the industrial park. This department will have
some salary decrease allocated to other departments.

Pat Whitten commented that anticipated revenue from Tesla has not been included in this
item as a final agreement has not been reached. However, expenses have been provided
in the budget.

TECHNOLOGY FUND: By statute, the Recorder, Clerk/Treasurer, and Assessor can
charge additional document fees of which the expenditure must benefit Technology.
BUILDINGS AND GROUNDS: These next six funds are under the capable direction of
Mike Nevin. The budget is $45,000 higher than last year’s projection due to $13,000 in
benefit costs and $18,000 due to increased utility fees at the McCarran Government
Complex. 7

POOL AND PARKS: Increased $32,000 over last year mainly due to the assignment of
funds for the maintenance of all parks within Storey County.

SERVICE: Increase of $7,000 mainly due to staff step increases and anticipated operating
supplies. It should be noted that starting with the 2017 fiscal year, there will be a small
service charge for all maintenance work performed to help defray salary and benefit costs.
ROADS: Revenue decreased $37,000 due to possible elimination of transfers from
Equipment Acquisition fund for the payment of Capital Outlay. Expenditures increased
$663,000 over last year due to road improvements throughout the County. Approximately
$500,000 is still available for road repair this year.

19. RECESS TO CONVENE AS STOREY COUNTY WATER AND SEWER BOARD
Chairman McBride called for the recess of the Storey County Board of Commissioners and
convened the Storey County Water and Sewer Board.

20. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Tentative Budget IHearings for FYE 2015/16 for the Water
and Sewer services in Virginia City, Gold Hill and Silver City.

Mr. Gallagher reviewed the budget for the Storey County Water and Sewer System.

WATER SYSTEM: Water charges increased slightly over last year which indicates the last
fee rate change under the five year plan. Expenditures are $56,000 over last year in
anticipation of water purchase increases attributed to the Marlette Lake Water System.
VIRGINIA DIVIDE SEWER: Sewer fees are budged to a $48,000 increase. There are no
additional rate increases projected, however this is one Enterprise Fund where we need to
pay close attention. Expenditures increased $118,000 due to additional capital outlay of
$50,000 and USDA bond payments of $118,000.

In regards to the Sewer budget, Mike Nevin said principal and interest documents from USDA
were received after submitting the tentative budget. There will be a slight adjustment to the

8




21.

USDA line item on the billing. The residential rate to cover the yearly USDA loan obligation
requires that the rate be adjusted $1.93 per month. For commercial, the increase would be $3.17
per month. Mr. Nevin recommends transfer of funds from equipment acquisition to cover half-
cost of the vacuum truck to be split between sewer and roads.

Commissioner McGuffey requested a description of a vacuum truck.

Mr. Nevin explained this is a machine utilized for jetting culverts, pushing all of the material to
the side which can then be scooped out of the way. On the sewer side, it's a suction device. If
there is a break in a line, the sewage can be sucked into the tank.

TRI property owner, Gregg McKindle: Asked whether or not out-sourcing the work would be
less expensive than purchasing, operating and maintaining this equipment.

Chair McBride answered that the County has a service center to maintain the equipment.
Contracting the work out would exceed the expense of purchase and maintenance. No
additional personnel would be added to the current staff to operate this truck.

Motion:  Approve the tentative budget for Storey County Water and Sewer Board,
Action: Approve Moved by: Vice Chair Gilman, Seconded by: Commissioner McGuffey,
Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote (summary: Yes=3).

ADJOURN TO RECONVENE AS THE STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
Chairman McBride adjourned the Storey County Water and Sewer Board and reconvened the
Storey County Board of Commissioners.

22, DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Tentative Budget Hearings for FYE 2015/16

Hugh Gallagher continued with review of the tentative budget:

» USDA: The USDA special revenue fund originated last year for the purpose of the
Wastewater Treatment Plant and purchase of structure engines and fire ambulances. The
Plant will be completed by the end of this fiscal year. By agreement with the USDA, all
payments resulting from loan proceeds for the plant plus payments for 474 Fire District
equipment, must be paid out of this fund.

o COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT: Expenses increased $97,000 over last year due to
increase in staffing for building inspectors and administrative assistant, plus
reclassifications. Increases were deemed necessary due to the increased activity within
Storey County. There were some additional adjustments due to Tesla reimbursements.

» DISTRICT ATTORNEY: Expenditures increased $87,000 over last year due to increased,
anticipated Professional Services related to current and future civil and criminal
proceedings.

e JUSTICE COURT: Justice Court expenses are anticipated to be $7,000, reflecting staff step
increases.

¢ COMMUNICATIONS: Department expenses are anticipated to increase $44,000 over last
year. $26,000 increase is due to a staffing remodel, expected to reduce overtime.
Operational expenses increased $11,000 for building maintenance for his office which is
attached to the jail. Communications is a 24-hour job as is the Sheriff and Fire.

9




IT DEPARTMENT: Budget increased $97,000 mostly resulting in communication
upgrades and necessary computer equipment purchases.

COMPTROLLER: Increased $88,000 over last year. $80,000 will be for one additional full-
time equivalent and staff reclassification. $7,000 for anticipated, outside professional
services.

EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT: Budget is $5,000 over last year. $4,000 is slated for new
computer equipment.

EMERGENCY MITIGATION: This fund was created by Resolution to set aside funds to
pay expenses incurred by the local government to mitigate the effects of an emergency.
COMMUNITY SERVICE: The budget is $114,000 above last year, with the following
increases: Professional Services - $5,000; Youth-Activity Community Chest - $25,000;
Library-Community Chest - $10,000; St. Mary’s Art Center - $12,000; Nevada Ag Extension
$5,000; North Senior Center - $4,000; 4th Ward School - $34,000; Health Care Services-
Community Chest - $31,000; Mark Twain - $15,000. Note the VC Senior Center was
denied an additional $30,000 requested. Last year’s budget was increased by $30,000
mostly for salaries. All maintenance is provided by the County - no reason is seen for an
additional increase at this time. Mr. Gallagher will meet with staff at the Senior Center
prior to the final budget to discuss what is going on.

PARK FUND: This fund will have an infusion of funds from the General Fund as a result
of audit performed on business licenses from 1980 to present. Current balances are:
Virginia City Park - $19,811; VC Highlands Park - $73,387; Mark Twain Park - $36,318;
Lockwood Park - $45,927.

Note, these numbers include penalty interest that was calculated and will be adjusted for
the third quarter financial statements.

SHERIFF: Increased $303,274 over last year. Sheriff wages increased $144,525 and Jail
wages increased $10,790. Operational expenses increased $18,600 in copier lease, training
and lab fees. Note that the Sheriff requested three more vehicles which has been reduced
to two. A decision on this request will be made prior to the final budget. There will be
additional adjustments to include Tesla reimbursements.

23. ADJOURN TO CONVENE AS THE 474 FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT BOARD
Chairman McBride called for the recess of the Storey County Board of Commissioners and
convened the 474 Fire Protection District Board.

24. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Tentative Budget Hearings for FYE 2015/16 for the NRS
474 Fire Protection District.

Hugh Gallagher said the Fire District is now a separate local government, operating still as a
major component of Storey County.

474 Fire revenues increased by $525,000 primarily due to increase in fees and permits and
a Tesla reimbursement of $350,000. Expenses increased by $445,000 as a result of
increased wages through step increases and staff reclassifications. $17,000 in expenses in
the opening of Station 75, increased in the TRI payback of $40,000, and contingency of
$160,000. Note the expenses if staffing Station 75 have not been recorded pending an
agreement with Tesla for reimbursement.

10




Pat Whitten stated reimbursement from Tesla for actual staffing of Station 75 has not been
factored in as this is an item still being negotiated. It is hoped this will be included in the final
budget.

Mr. Gallagher: In prior years, there were two special revenue funds - Fire Operations and
Wildland Fire. These have been consolidated into the 474 Fire District.

+ FIRE EMERGENCY FUND: Must be used for emergencies and may not be used for
operating expenses. NRS 474.510 establishes a threshold of $1 million dollars ~ anything
over this amount must be credited to the Fire Operating Fund. '

o MUTUAL AID: Special Fund within the 474 District was created to account for all
deployments and billings outside the 474 Fire District. It is suggested that portions of the
ending fund balance for future purchases of heavy equipment.

Motion: Approve the Tentative Budget for 474 Fire Protection District, Action: Approve
Moved by: Vice Chair Gilman, Seconded by: Commissioner McGuffey Vote: Passed by
unanimous vote, (Summary: Yes=3)

25. ADJOURN TO RECONVENE AS STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
Chairman McBride adjourned the 474 Fire Protection District Board and reconvened the Storey
County Board of Commissioners.

26. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Tentative Budget Hearings for FYE 2015/16

Hugh Gallagher continued with review of the Tentative Budget:

« COMMISSIONERS: Increased approximately $17,000 over prior budget. Services and
supplies increased $10,000 for additional appropriations for travel and fuel. Capital
Qutlay for replacement of computer equipment is also budgeted.

e ADMINISTRATIVE: Decreased by $2,113,000 over the last year due to the elimination of
transfers to Capital Projects. All other expenses increased by $93,000 as follows:
Professional Services - $57,000; NACO/NNDA - $19,000; Computer Equipment - $5,000;
Insurance Premium - $8,000.

o HEALTH & HUMAN SERVICES: Created within the General Fund to assist with indigent
assistance programs, consumer health and rural child protection. This will be a mandate
from the Legislature.

» PLANNING: Increase of $120,000 of which $70,000 will be used to increase staff to cover
the tremendous workload increase throughout Storey County. Professional services
increased $45,000 in order to complete the 2015 County Master Plan.

Mr. Whitten indicated it is anticipated a sizable portion of the $45,000 will not be expended.

o INDIGENT MEDICAL: Revenues received from the .010 tax rate on Ad Valorem and
Centrally Assessed taxes.

o INDIGENT ACCIDENT: Follows the directive of NRS 244.160. “The boards of county
commissioners shall have power and jurisdiction in their respective counties to take care

11




of and provided for the indigent sick of the county in such a manner only as is or may be
provided by law”.

e CAPITAL PROJECTS: A list of possible projects has been assembled. The list totaled
approximately $7 million dollars in potential projects. It has been suggested those items
that would fall out of the infrastructure list, would be picked up by allocating General
Revenue funds to Capital Projects. The Capital Project fund has been infused from the
General Fund in the amount of $2.5 million dollars.

e INFRASTRUCTURE: This Fund is provided funds from a 1/4 cent optional sales tax for
which the expenditures are allowed under NRS 377. The plan was finalized this year and
expenditures are expected to draw down the ending fund balance.

¢ STABILIZATION: This Special Revenue funds was created by Resolution. Redvenues are
derived from transfers from the General Fund, and expenditures follow NRS 354.6155
guidelines and the balance in the fund must not exceed 10 percent of the expenditures
from the general fund for the previous fiscal year.

e TRI PAYBACK: This Special Revenue Fund was created so the County would not be
“upside down” with its private partner due to expenditures in the Industrial Park and for
the purpose of dedicating funds collected from the park to pay back our Public/Private
Partnership. As of this date, the balance owed is $46,850,563. Each dollar collected from
TRl is put into a fund, an allocated expenditure - per agreement - is deducted from that
and whatever the net is, Storey County is obligated to pay 35% per year.

o VC RAILROAD PROJECT: There has been much debate over the disposition of this fund.
More information regarding disposition will be available prior to the final budget
deadline. Documents have been requested to see what is owed back by the V & T Rail
Commission. Payment was withheld from the V & T Rail Commission in November 2014.
An audit will be completed.

o FEDERAL/STATE GRANTS: This is an in-and-out account.

o CONTINGENCY: Now stands at $365,890, and will be adjusted with the Final Budget.

Virginia Highlands Resident, Nicole Barde: How confident are revenue projections other than
on the Ad Valorem?

Mr. Gallagher expressed disappointment with the Department of Taxation Pro Forma received
March 25%. Tom Gransbury has requested Taxation to provide explanation.

Pat Whitten: 80%. Note, the County still maintains a policy that no one can spend more than
$1,500 in non, re-occurring expenses without approval of the County Manager and Comptroller.

Ms. Barde: How many net new hires are anticipated.
Mr, Whitten: Four, excluding Station 75.

Ms. Barde: The capital and infrastructure budgets lack detail. Requests that the public be
advised of what the budgeted amounts will be spent on by the next budget hearing.

Mr. Whitten: It is difficult in April 2015 to forecast what may be spent in June 2016. A list can be
provided of where the County may focus in the next fiscal year, however all projects will come

12




before the Board for approval. There are projects that the County would like to get to in 2015-16,
but this can change.

Ms. Barde: Regarding the rail project, what are the expenditures of $700,000?

Mr. Whitten: Not sure what this will be spent on, maybe for purchase of the depot. Just because
it's in the budget, does not mean it will be spent.

Ms. Barde: Will the park funds be updated?
Mr. Gallagher: Yes - and included in the next budget.

Ms. Barde: Under Administrative, what part covers the Tourism Director? Will the results of the
salary survey previously requested be presented to the public prior to the final?

Mr. Whitten: Previously the Tourism Director was used for some Administrative duties. This
has changed, but not in enough time to be reflected in the tentative budget. This will not be
included in the final budget. The study is a work in progress and results will be need to be out
prior to May 18 to be in the final.

Ms, Barde: It's a problem if expenses exceed the revenues.

Sheriff Antinoro: The budget presented (to the Board) is not what was prepared. There was
discussion about the potential growth in TRI. We know this is the tentative budget with the final
to come. It’s concerning that we are not quite where we need to be and I'm told to cut certain
items. Let me place the priorities on my budget. Tesla reimbursement to offset costs has been
discussed. My position has been to add another deputy this year and one next year. The budget
figures presented show the inclusion of two deputies this year. The budget does not reflect
moving a part-time person into a full-time administrative position. I was told to take this out.

[ can do away with adding the deputies, but not the administrative position. The department
heads and elected officials are in the position to determine what their needs are. Your focus
should be giving folks what they need.

Chairman McBride replied the Sheriff is receiving a $300,000, a nice increase.

Sheriff Antinoro said the addition of two deputies was included, by request, due to the
development at the north end of the County. They are not necessarily needed. What is needed is
an administrative person.

Vice Chair Gilman asked if the Sheriff would forego two deputies for administrative staff.

Sheriff Antinoro said yes. Ultimately staff will have to be added. Addition of the deputies can
be bumped back. So can addition of the new cars. In the management of the Sheriff's office,

there are certain priorities, and it is his position that the administrative staff is most important.

Vice Chair Gilman appreciates the Sheriff’s approach.

13




County Manager Whitten said this is a “tentative” budget. The Sheriff and I have had a
conversation regarding these matters. The Sheriff was not told that his requests would not be
considered. Producing a budget to go out to the Board and the public, necessitates drawing a
line. There will be, and are, changes to be made. Mr. Whitten feels everything the Sheriff has
asked for can be accomplished. If there is an unfunded mandate regarding body cameras
between now and May 18, we can adjust the final budget. The budget can be opened one more
time after the final is approved to address any last minute, burdensome acts that the Legislature
may apply to the County. In addition, there is a contingency. The issues with the Sheriff’s Office
will be addressed.

Virginia Highlands Resident, Nicole Barde: Highlands residents have the impression they pay
the majority of taxes in Storey County, and complain nothing is received in return. Ms. Barde
researched this issue and found:

» The Highlands does not pay the “lion’s share of taxes”.

» The Highlands are not receiving the investment by the County that other communities
receive. The County provides funds to other communities with funds for Senior and
Community Centers. It is understood that getting the “ones” and “tens” together is a
problem.

e It is suggested that perhaps materials be given to the Highlands to even out the
discrepancy in what is given to other communities versus the Highlands.

Chair McBride:

» The Highlands, along with the other communities, receives police, fire and school services,
and pays their share for the operation of the County. There are limited County roads in
the Highlands - all of the secondary roads are privately owned. The Community Center
in Virginia City was purchased with a grant and donations - not County funds.

Ms. Barde: Just suggesting that the County could give the Highlands $13,000 in materials to do
the roads.

Chair McBride replied this request is not part of this agenda.

County Manager Whitten suggested looking at the budget to see the costs of staffing the
Highlands fire station as an example of what the Highlands is receiving.

TRI property owner, Gregg McKendle: Understands an unfunded mandate. Body cams protect
not just the police officers, but also the County. We need to protect the police force.

Commissioner McGuffey: Seeing a lot of little things in the Sheriff’s budget that could be
addressed. Mr. McGuffey has a list of small items for every department that could be looked at.
Everyone that has a “red” number in their budget, should look at it closer.

Vice-Chairman Gilman: This is a tentative budget, looking at tentative numbers, towards a final
in a couple of months. Mr. Gilman has reviewed every page of the proposed budget, including
explanations from each department, and appreciates the comments received from the
department heads, as well as residents, who chose to participate. A lot of individual and team

14




effort has gone into this budget. Mr. Gilman will be voting yes on the tentative budget, with
reservations.

Mr. Gilman suggested that key personnel in County leadership take another shot at the budget
and make some serious adjustments. He is not asking to start over, but to look at trimming the
huge increase in projected expenditures.

Vice Chair Gilman said he has been made aware of a tendency on the part of local, state and
federal governments to grow and grow, and to add overhead expenses, reducing actual value to
the community. If growth is needed in a certain department because of growth demands in
population or the commercial or industrial base, he believes that growth is very reasonable. If
growth in a department is simply growth because there is more money available in tax revenues,
that is not reasonable. More money available doesn’t mean we have to spend it.

Storey County is on the verge of becoming one of the richest counties. Growth was achieved
because we are a small government, being nimble and agile, avoiding all the bureaucracy which
handicaps most other counties.

Mr. Gilman suggests this budget assumes a 13 percent in revenues which is very speculative.
This is in light of many un-tested assumptions before us. It is troubling that every County
department has increased its budget - some as high as 80%. Are we spending money that we
don’t yet have? He is reminded of 10 years ago when Storey had its first major revenue increase
from growth in the industrial companies in the north part of the county. Budgets and payrolls
were ramped up and then the recession hit. With fat budgets and very little set aside, revenues
dropped and every department had to take drastic steps to avoid going heavily into the red.

The County learned its lessons.

Mr. Gilman believes the County must stay “lean and mean” and has ideas that may or may not
be palatable. The proposed budget shows a projected deficit in the General Fund of over
$600,000 in a year where our revenues are projected to be up 13 percent. Why are we not
planning a surplus budget, or at the least, a minimum balanced budget, in a year which may,
hopefully, be fat on tax and other revenues. It is suggested that every department hold their
budget to a 5 percent growth. The County puts away 5 percent in a savings and/or contingency
funds and lets the residents of the County share in the prosperity of the County by reducing
property taxes somewhere between 1 and 3 percent. This is achievable. Overtime pay is an area
that has been greatly abused in the past. This represents un-regulated increases with spending in
pay and benefits, and is often unnecessary. Overtime should be specifically budgeted by
department. This is an ecasy area to save several hundred thousand dollars without reducing
services.

Mr. Gilman asked to keep the small, successful, limited, local government that we have now.
This is a huge advantage in attracting investment in the County. Smaller, less regulated and
taxing government is a major strength in a new, emerging economy. Mr. Gilman would like to
re-look at the budget. Tesla, as well as Switch, are just starting. Switch has not yet signed a
contract with the County. The projections are un-tested assumptions and he would like to see
caution on the budget.

15




Chairman McBride said there is approximately six weeks between the tentative and the final
budget hearing. If the Legislature does pass something that would affect this budget, it can be re-
opened after that. There is time to review the issues. It is unknown what the Legislature will do.
Any type of legislation that is passed now could have a financial effect on the County. The
budget presented is a good start. There is an ending-fund balance that could be utilized if
needed. Overages in some of the departments are unavoidable with step-increases and longevity
that people are entitled to. It is more difficult to prepare a budget in a year when the legislature
is in session.

Mr. McBride continued that it is the industrial park that is putting pressure on departments to
hire additional personnel with the demand on their offices. Work can be done to trim the budget
but he does not think it can be cut or balanced.

Motion: To approve the Tentative Budget for FY 2015-16, Action: Approve Moved by: Vice
Chair Gilman, Seconded by: Commissioner McGuffey Vote: Motion passed by unanimous
vote Summary: (yes=3).

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT AND PLANNING

27. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approve first reading of ordinance 15-264 an application

28.

No. 2014-020 (Continued from 12/02/14) by the Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center, LLC to amend the
text of Storey County Code Title 17 (Zoning Ordinance) by adding Chapter 17.39 I-C Industrial-
Commercial Zone. The intent of the proposed I-C Zone is to provide for certain mixed-use
industrial and commercial uses where found appropriate by the board with recommendation by
the planning commission. Additional information including, but not limited to, reports and the
draft zone text may be obtained from the Planning Department at 775.847.1144 or
planning@storeycounty.org. (Continue item until May 5, 2015 board meeting.)

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Application No. 2014-021 (Continued from 12/02/14
meeting) by the Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center, LLC., and Storey County on behalf of The Nature
Conservancy, LLC and the Union Pacific Railroad Company to amend the Official Storey County
Zoning Map. The amendments will apply regulatory zones to approximately 600 acres of land
located in McCarran, Nevada (river District near the Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center) which was in
July of 2014 transferred from Washoe County to Storey County by mean of boundary line
adjustment. Additional information including, but not limited to, reports and maps may be
obtained from the Planning Department at 775.847.1144 or planning@storeycounty.org.
(Continue item until May 5, 2015 board meeting.)

29. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION, LICENSING BOARD SECOND READINGS:

a. CCATT, LLC - Contractor / 2000 Corporate Drive ~ Canonsburg, PA (telecommunications)
b. BLUESCOPE CONSTRUCTION, INC. - Contractor / 1540 Genessee Street ~ Kansas City,
MO (contractor)

SMC CONSTRUCTION CO - Contractor / 290 Gentry Way #1 ~ Reno (contractor)

JAMES S, BRYANT, INC. - Contractor / 12360 Westridge Drive ~ Reno (contractor)

SKY SCENES MULTIMEDIA - HB / 1771 Harte Road ~ VCH (consultant)

JJK ENTERPRISES - HB / 222 Musket Road ~ VCH (consultant)

TMW TECHNOLOGIES, LLC - 200 South Virginia Street ~ Reno {operations management)

16

| e Ao




S.W.O.R.D. DESIGN - General / 420 USA Parkway (manufacturing molded products) TRI
MDB TRUCKING, LLC.. - Transportation / 905 East Mustang (trucking co.}) MCC

IONIX, LLC - General / 222 East Sydney (metal fabrication) TRI

RICH DOSS, INC. - General / 201 Wild Horse Canyon Drive (transportation) MCC

e

Motion: To continue items j and k, Action: Approve Moved by: Commissioner McGuffey,
Seconded by: Vice Chair Gilman Vote: Motion passed by unanimous vote, Summary: (Yes=3).

Motion: To approvea, b, ¢, d, e, f, g h,andi, Action: Approve Moved by: Commissioner
McGuffey, Seconded by: Vice Chair Gilman Vote: Motion passed by unanimous vote, Summary:
(Yes=3).

30. PUBLIC COMMENT (No Action}

Hugh Gallagher congratulated and thanked Austin Osborne and Jessie Fain for excellent work
and effort on the budget. All of the issues discussed will be re-visited before the final.

Chairman McBride noted the passing of Robert Miller, a fixture in Virginia City.

31. ADJOURNMENT
The Chair adjourned the meeting at 1:21 P.M.

Respectfully submitted,

17




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: May 5, 2015 Estimate of time required: 0 min

Agenda: Consent [x] Regular agenda [| Public hearing required [ ]

1. For possible action approval of Payroll Checks date 04/24/15 for $310,577.04 and
accounts payable checks dated 04/17/15 for $1,070,381.83 and $4,916.17.

2. Recommended niotion: Approval of claims as submitted.

3. Prepared hy: 'Hugh Gallagher
Department: Comptroller Telephone: 775 847-1006

_ 4. Staff summary: Please find attached the claims _
5. Supporting materials: Atiached

6. Fiscal impact:
Funds Available: NA Fund: NA _NA  Comptroiler

7. Legal review required:
_NA District Attorney

8. Reviewed by:
Department Head Department Name: Comptroller

@&ﬁm‘w Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[1] Approved
[ Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued

F— r—
[S— -

Agenda Item No.




HHUONSTERL

YATTOALINOD

HIANOISSITHROD HANOISSIWHOD NYWEIW¥HD

ST/81/%0

AUYNIWITEE

S

abeg

PSIBUCTSSTWWOD IO parog AJuno) Aaloils syij Aq pesaoxddy

YO LLS'OTE PSBANASTA 12305
¥S° 96882 iZojonpag o3 aIFeuvil 198N IEJQL
1.'¥66°9 re1td dsg ITQ uo pIezy spag safordum Teaog
9% ZB8Z'1TE 31Rodsg 3093Td eofordws Telol
IV CIOT reyoeyp safordug Tejog
SH E£9€°9 fEYDBYD xojodNpad TeIoL
9% 8Z0'9% 'gdldd AO0F I9ISuUeIl ISE[) TRIOL
Junowy aaded # pag # aa
A duz fosun
g8 L 9 § ¥ £ g 1T ‘:ednoxp TrToxARg
i91eg pus-poTIag ST/%2/%0 i93eq oaud Ienbay :addl Troxfeg
ae3s1Bay yoouy 0T:E¥:0T §T/22/v0 ‘uny
WHLSAS TIOWAYd ALNNOD AANOLS ¥0T150¥d :3dey



1

00709
§6° ¢

zB 8LS'E

LS 0%
00°s52¢
00" Z6E’'S

9% 'FIT

TP 66T

00'etr
00T 0FT 8L

5868

00°0¥0°L

00°9gL'8
ST 9L
00°'586°%
TYICL
MDEHD

abeg

o002
S6°2¢C

T9"L59
006t
E%' 9
00" LE
0076%
gV TPT
PL 3E
86°'6T
96°2Z
00°0¢
86°9
LT €T
06°4LT
L6701
L9 ¥ST
00" ¥2¥%
00525
88 ZLE

LE'09
Q0 se
00°'Z6E"S

86°'2Z¢

8%° 18
og-ate
6L"E8
69°9¥%
£5°0T
LL"8

P8 €T
002t
o2y R AR ¥ A

o€ 89
S8 LT

00°00§'S
00°0%5°T

009tL’s
SZroL

00°S86°S

LNOCHY

£53gL
0T9zs

6E9ZL
6L9EL
&E9CTL
SE9TL
6ESCL
6E9ZL
6E3ZL
6€92L
6T9EL
6T9CL
6L9zL
6E9EL
6£92L
GESTL
6E9TL
6E9ZL
6E9ZL
EEOZL

gLIZL
LEYZL
jAATAS

L852L
£6SEL

128l
TESzL
| SATAN
BESZL
8E9ZL
gE9EZL
TESCL
ELSEL

LESZL
LE9TL

09524
09824

0SSgZL
SEITL

ozscl

FSNIL

ST/LT/¥
ST/LL/%

ST/LT/%
ST/LT/¥
ST/LT/Y
ST/LT/®
ST/LT/%
ST/LT/%
ST/LT/¥
ST/LE/Y
ST/LT/V
ST/LI/®
ST/LT/®
ST/LT/¥
ST/LT/%
ST/LT/¥
ST/LI/Y
ST/LT/%
ST/LT/%
ST/LT/¥%

ST/LT/%
ST/LT/%
ST/LT/Y

ST/LL/¥
ST/LT/%

ST/LT/V
ST/LT/¥%
ST/LT/Y
ST/LT/%
ST/LT/%
ST/LT/%®
ST/LT/%
ST/LT/¥%

ST/LT/Y
ST/LT/¥

ST/L1/%
5T/LT/9

ST/LL/?
ST/LT/%

ST/LT/%

ELYG

ST/LT/¥®

# 0/4

2 TI¥dY-9Z HDUWH
ANNETY

TIING HSYHD ¥EZCd
ADYLS0d
dD¥LEQd
DONINHYT

qHAINS 4B ONITIIE TVOITHW
TELOH

TI0

HATLIQAY JLSOVHXE TLA
SAITIAAS DNIILVIZAO
DHNINEYd

DHINIYYEEL

SdIT44NS DNILVIIL0
IOYLS0d

QUCD LXI "0 DT

ZHOWD WEDWd ¥0d SEIYELLVE
ONINIVEL CL TIAYHL
ONINIWHL

THELOH

ET0ZT0-FOSHANI

HONEA STY TAIAILI

YIL¥Id LOON
AVID

HO3
dOHS
d0OHsS

AJaNOvT ¥L LS
A¥ANNYT TL 1S
A¥ANOYT TL IS
SAEA LINVId ¥MS
LSEUILNY A¥MIIVYE

SHITAINS SWA
SEITAdNS SWA

ATHLD EILWLS
Idoddans

LNIVd ¥WOOTd
LSEL DILVLSOUARH

ONINIT SEY

ROILJI¥OSEG EDIICANI

YILSIDIAHE MDIHD
ALNOQD AH¥OLS

SHSTUARFILNE AHYHEA
HYNOogIa ’dEdN=yg

MOYYY ‘S"Iivs

YOLZHR WOISAWY 40 ANYE
IA¥ES EONISUAINODHTIL I3IY
AN 40 DOSSY §,40S5IASSEY

(2D) 0D HONEJ DILSIINY

SEANTTAM OGNV HLIYIH DUV

ONI ODS8TY
ONI M3OT ENIJIY

HONYNIA 4IN0d T TYLIdY)

ONT NON SVDYIV

ONI SHILSAS ¥I¥d aQEINVATY
JTT Eo0UN0S FYNLXEL EWOV
INGAS GIANI'TAD ¥ HYIA D4V
ONI SYEACH BLEYH X3¢
HOINTA

St1/31/%0
STETEd

£2e1I8
2Z6Te

TZ618

¢TeTs
6T6T8
87618

L1618

916T8

ST618
?T6718

ET6T8

ZI6T8

11618
0TETE
606TE
B06TE
HIERON
ADIHD

i 93eg uny
ioN 3xoday



SNOTIYOINAWWOD ATLUVHD 6EETSE
D€ TIE 0% 86T 8Z9EL ST/LT/% "OSIW SEIT4ANS TIYN
06" 2TT BZ9ZL ST/LT/® SHO0T 440D ¥ LIANVIE
XHL-HAYED 8£618
16791 16 91 18Sge ST/LT/% SEXVL J0 INIHWAYAEHAQ
avHd ‘SNYAT LEGTB
T6 LEL'R Z6 LEL’S S59ZL ST/LT/Y OLINFINISIA HAIND UOLISIA
AVTdSIC ¥EQTOd QIIATIEAD 9E618
SL°E SL'g LT9EZL ST/LT/P ANd LHOTAYA ¥FIYE IFATIOL
ATddNs XUYLINYS TVILNID SESTE
107 0% T0°0% £TIZL ST/LT/® HONH
dIHESYANLEYd Q' TTHD PESTE
00-zoe 00" 202 2ESEL ST/LT/% L¥0ddNS AWK
DNI FTIESHD EEGTE
09 cT9'% PL VEE &¥SeZL ST/LL/% ISEIA 3 THNN-HDOA
06" Z6E°T E¥SEL ST/LT/% ISEIA ¥ INO-M4
BS'DTS'T §¥STL ST/LT/Y NN -Md
BE'SLY'T E¥5TL ST/LT/¥ TEAIC ® INO~-MG
ONI ©D IO AATIYA NOSHYD [473%:]
00"SE6'LY 00526 LT zLseL  ST/L1/% I37A OTOE STIYIS LEHYALNT
GNNA DIIENd ANO TYLIdYD TE6T8
EL'tee €L TEE B8SEL ST/LT/% AQ09 ETLIOYHL- 068508
ONI JU08 TYLISYD 0£6TR
78 6E6 81 Z¢ £ZSEL ST/LT/% AFTLIIL AD0LS
66 9€ £ESZL ST/LT/% dWNa -FLETOUI
8% 6¢ £2SZL ST/LI/¥ NYA ¥iL2 IS
79" €6 £ESEL ST/LT/® NYA d1D 48
0% €2 £ZSTL ST/LT/¥ AATYA ¥OSNAS -¥1ZZ90§
61716 £E2SZL ST/LT/® BUALTIE-MA0LS
86°L EEBSEL ST/LT/® YALIII TIO-AD0LS
68°85 £2SeZL ST/LT/% YALTIL UIY -PLET9UA
09 €% £2S2L ST/LT/% OSNES IQFW-90£9508
-0F°T £E5EL ST/LT/® LIJZED dOHS
8% %0T £25TL ST/LT/% NNOD "TTIOLNGCD XU9-78TSHUE
68° TS £ZSEL ST/LT/% WI¥dd A¥A-OVIE TI9-7¥8TGUI
8€' BT €ZSZL ST/LT/% HILALA ~AIOLS
86°'TT £2STL ST/LT/% LANOVEE-PHETSNA
5667 £Z8ZL  ST/LT/v ONILXH H¥IJ-E0LMX
o0F wLT £gszs, SI/L1/¥ YOSNIS IQIU-TI9E9HA
BE'TT £ESEL  ST/LT/% HOLOENNOD ~HETYES MIVHED
b 9€ £TSEL ST/LT/% SUTLITI-AI0LS
66°8 £ESZL ST/LT/Y HILTIS-UDOLS
B6'SY £25ZTL ST/LT/¥ HNODITIS -dOKES
SLYYd OLAY ALID TYLIAYVD 34941
05 9% 05°9% PTIETL ST/LT/¥ HAMIS [ ITIGM
NIWZAQUAWT TTYSENZD NOANWD 82618
00°€£89 00°565 PS9ZL ST/LT/V ST0T '8 "TIVNAY-9Z HIOUWKW
00-88 PSITL ST/LT/%
SIMET LIODS “TIEWYnd LTETE
00708 00° 08 0ESTL ST/LT/% INEWIDONVEEY
4 ATIOW ‘LENEONY 9Z6T8
00°9¢ 00" 9€ ¥8GZL ST/LT/® SEXYL 40 INZHAYJUEAD
FIOONUE ‘HAWISSEH SZETE
6L°8%C 6L B%E 089ZL ST/LT/% STO00EIST
ALLvYd ‘dd€sId PZ6T8
00" 94LS 00°9LS ZEOTL ST/LT/% YIHdO EIVAEY dOL NIW
TYLIOL LNNOWY #SNTHL FLYAQ NOILAI¥OSHAC ADI0ANI HOANTA HITUEN
ADIHO MDEHD
ST/LT/P  HALSIOEA ADHHD ST/9T/%0 ¢ 23wg uny
z  ebeq ALNDOD AHIOLS STEYEd ‘oN axoday




67526 '9¢ PTSTL ST/LL/% STII ONTYHANIONE WIALSAS

ONIYEINIONE I8damM dTEvd 95618
§9°8ET SL° &€ 009ZL ST/LT/% YEINED am¥DT -Sdnd
06°20T 009¢L ST/LT/% YAINTD aMIDT -EEJI0D
0D 5094 HIWAYA 556138
0006 0006 [ 34342 ST/LT/¥® TYDISAH TAD-ZLAE
A¥¥YT 'SHNYAE 75618
z2g 098 T0' #8681 ¥rszL ST/LT/% LNYI00D-869994I
00 06T PPSZL ST/LT/Y WY TOAINOD-S8Z050Td
£9°59 TESTL ST/LT/? YELIWOLINTLOE - 7068508
0102 PFSZL ST/LT/¥ S0¥d HMVIE-$068508
0L°2 ¥HSEL ST/LT/Y dIT0 WO-TI8TSdd
86°L PESEL ST/LT/V SHAVIH-ZPLEQTALYM
86°L PBSZL ST/LT/% SEAYIg-5820507d
66721 PPSEL ST/LT/% ZJEA -ddMS
B0 0EZ PPSZL ST/LT/% TETEA-STTEIUI
86" L ¥FSZL ST/LT/% SEAYII-$TZE908
96°05 YHSTL ST/LT/¥ Xd PPTFEYONUN-FLET UL
5%’ 8§ YHSTL ST/LT/% INIQL ‘TI9g- 58205074
96° 1€ PEGTL ST/LT/¥ Sa¥d M¥g-S068S08
ONI ATddOS OLNY IIOITIH ES6TS
00" &TT DO°SET 909ZL ST/LT/% SAXYL 0 LNIWAYIEIAO
JIHSHINLEYd ATIWYS NOLYE ZS618
CETTYE TE'TPE zZ09EL ST/LT/® YIVdAE 0LOY
I¥dEY ETOTHIA (IIJISUEAIA 15618
GL'TTE 56 6% §65ZL  ST/LI/¥® INIYH ATLYM
S8°0TT LoseL  ST/L1/¥ WHTOOD EAIVM DOIW
06°1S §E5ZL ST/LT/Y HAIYM ANIAQ HO
ONI ¥SN SHOIYQ 056T8
0005 00°0S4 659ZL ST/LT/¥
ONI INIOd NMO¥D | 69518
00" 95¢€ 00°002 859ZL ST/LT/® ST0Z '8 "TI¥dY-9Z HIUWKW
00°98T 9$98L ST/LL/®
¥ OIAYIDO0 'YISZEUED 8¥6T8
00" P¥E 00 P¥E Ls9gL  ST/LT/¥ ¥4 ¥ALSAO -HIDOOD
+ VIOEW SIJEDNOD FALLVEHED LYETR
00'606°8T 00°606°8T PESTL ST/LTI/% € BAAL
ONI 0D4YED 9¥6TE
0008 00°'08 £E9TL ST/LT/% 240 dWOD WY¥H0¥d ENCHA
SNOIIWDINNWHWOD AVMNOD S¥6T8
ST €8 ST €8 £EGTL ST/L1/% SHAYIE ' AAYL ' SHOHS QIAILS
X1ddNS ® SINWIVES ISNOD YYETS
00700 00" 00% 959ZL SI/LT/V STO0Z ‘8 I¥dY-5Z HOUYHW
DTT FITIW aT0oD HDOLEWOD EVET8
no'19e 00" ¥LT 0ZgTL  ST/LT/® HIEYD 0
00 L8 66524 ST/L1/¥ 1EFALS D § TL€ NOISIAHTAL
ONI AL ALINOWHOD MOOLSHOD Z¥618
ZT' ¥6¢E SL°'089 8592L  ST/LT/V AOSTAYEANS T0O0d
£9°0%5 855EL ST/LT/¥
00" %S 8554 ST/LT/Y INZLIIWIELNT
SZ'L0T 85GZL ST/LT/% INSLLINMEINT ¥HLHDIL
05121 6LSZL ST/LI/® T92-%1 QU0
(2A) TTIDINQEHD XNOOLSHOD TP6TI8
00°TIS'T 00°TTS'T TPSEL  ST/LL/¥ ST0E/TE/T-ST0Z/T/T
DNI LSHHD ALINOWHGD [EL3e:
S ZET L2 AAS £09ZL ST/LT/% JOIW SNIWZETD WYS 005
TYLOL THOOWY HSNYHL FLYA # o/d NOIIJIHDSEA FDICANI HOONEA ATEWON
XDEHD MDERD
ST/LT/% HILSIOEW MDOEHD ST/ST/BH¢ ¢ 23eq uny

€ =beg ALNNOD AHHOLS ST¢18d :OoN 3aodey




08'v0C LBI9TL ST/LT/% FTOSNCD NIF JEdHS

96° 0% LBOEZL ST/LT/® ATOSNOD NIH (FHHS

80982 £89ZL ST/LT/% ST0Z TI¥dY L¥T IN
NI LOW Q4ANI NIYINNOW NOXI 0LETS

00°002'T 0ot o0e T 992t  ST/LI/fV¥ SADIAYAS LANHEHINI
ONI aNVEH(YO¥d L0dS LOE 69618

2 SLy ¥LTSE 88924  ST/LT/¥ FAYMTAYE LI

-50'¥6 [4at4) ST/LT/% MRANLEY MNIS-DDIW

ZHTITT Z¥SZL ST/LT/Y MOGNIMN ¥0d §TYIIEIVH-OSMT

ST°18 TSTL ST/LT/V LNTd ¥IM ¥4 STYIITIVH

00°'66 ZPazL ST/LT/% ANIS DLW

88°L8 Z¥SEL ST/LT/® SETINE THOITLEZILS

S5 SE 4892L ST/LT/V HEYMOUYH LI

06°06T Z¥SEL  ST/LT/v SANITE~NHEES0LT

90°82¢ ZHSEL  SU/LL/® SMOANIM-OSKT
HITAYES LICH¥D LOdAEQ SWOH 99618

88°Z6L 88264 Ip92L  ST/LT/® SAITAENS SWH
NIZHIS XAUNIH L9&T8

00°091 007097 £192L  ST/LT/® OOMADOT ONINVATD AIVHD
NHOL 'HEWTIIH 99618

S£°926 SPTLY 0E9ZL ST/LI/% dINDE G¥I-INYId JAMES

06°858 0E9ZL ST/LT/% JINDE 9vI-LINYId UEMIS
Qi INIVW "MIDVd AIddOS dH 59618

8L 606 00°' 0% 9€9EL ST/LT/% SEILITILN

86" ge&¢ 9€9ZL ST/LT/% INZ¥ dd aNGd

08" 0%S 689ZL ST/LT/% q¥Ed ANCd
OTT SINEWISIANI d1D 96718

05 2EE 05°26%2 5Z5ZL ST/LT/¥ S¥H §°'¢
WOL ' AAFESNYID £96T8

BL'ZBEZ 8L EZ8Z 2I%eL  ST/LT/% AESANESIT INIWHSINIYD
£ ADNYN 'NYHED z9618

0T 2LT 0T 24T EVSZL ST/LE/Y NOIS IIXE '5HYE HETIL-DSMT
) HADNITID T9618

00006 00006 ZZ9ZL ST/LT/% HONYHD ETDIEREA
ONI EDNYWIOIYAd X0d 09618

PE96E T 10 €9¢ 6ESTL ST/LT/¥ DI ¥ TSA-MT

£Z°9¢5 6ESTL ST/LT/¥ DEU-MT

0T L6 6ESEL ST/LT/P T8a 3 DFE-MT
DT ADWENE SYALTd 65618

£€°%89'T §5° 8¢ 16984  ST/LT/® DNINIVYEL II O HIMON T¥%

9z 991 0%92L  ST/LT/¥ ANYEO¥d TL IS

TL 428 LESEL  ST/LL/® ay 1ol 00T

8% 502 T95TL ST/LT/% ANYIodd 143d HNTATINg

26°LOT 0P9ZL ST/LT/% ENVACEd ZLT 1§

T2 90T TE9ZL ST/LT/% AIIISC SIITAAHS

06°SLZ LESTL ST/LT/% I¥Ed 008 WID dS M1

0S°ZTT 809TL ST/LT/® SNEWATD W¥S 00§ DOIW

LL ¥HE 0v9zZL ST/LT/% ENYd0dd %L LS
a7 SYTIEaNEHI BSETS

00 S¥T DO'SHT §8%2L  ST/LT/¥ S/M-5820500Td
ONI SSYID 1SYd LYBTE

¥L 296’89 08 LIT'T 9ESTL ST/LT/® ro¥d IYaAs FAYD

0SS LPBE veszh  ST/LT/% TIYM DNINIVIEY » LOT Did

L S6LST S08€EL ST/LT/® TYNII ST0Z HOUWW HOYEN

85786911 S09ZL ST/LT/% 1DELCHd EOYNIVED FTIW XIS

05'LLS Z69ZL SE/LTI/® TIYH SMINIYLIEY/NTYMIAIS

TYIOL LNQOWY HSNVHEL TIYT ¥ 0/a NOILEI¥2SHI HOIOANI HOANTA YIIHNAN
MOHHD : ADIHD
ST/LT/¥ WHMLISTOHAY ADHHD ST/9T/%0 * @31eq uny

¥  abeg ALNNOD AFEOLS STETES 1ON 3Ixodey




g

T0°PaT

007056 "%

8Z'GLO'T

00" 88¢

LT 0BY T

0Z'685°¢€
92" ¥5¥
00°000°T
6€° 8002
00 00L'E
20721
00009 '8
00" 2z¢
00" %2
SLT6E

S0°Sgc

T8 ¥90°T

¥8°TES
THLOL
AIEHD

afbeg

86708

L9 Z¢
SE°86
66722

00°00T'2
00°058"E
28°L09
9L LT
00'8BE

L T8
LD T4
¢y ens
LT 0TI
LE" PV
2C' el
28 8¢
Qe 08
€E6°LE
“66°¢
LT STIS
LZ'98¢
~00'SEZ

0% 685°¢
S2'vs¥
00°000°T
6E°80%'Z
00°00L'6
€021
00*gov’g
00792t
(IR 44
SL'BE

66 "BET
T6"9LT
-58°'08T
¥Z'S99

00762
LS 0LE

LNAOWY

L¥32L

IBSEL
v6SEL
9%¥9ZL

ovszL
obSzL

€58cL
255EL

LLSEL

5Z52L
SZSEL
SZ5CL
SESCh
svaci
S¥SeL
ERacI4A
SksZL
FOSEL
(A4
Z692L
STSTL
5Z292L

65924
¥vaci
9TSEL
099¢L
vL9ZL
1892ZL
EPacL
ZrazL
ZBSZL
£8SCTL
T5SeL
TS5¢L
T&5¢2L
Sg9cL

S89ZL
S89zZL

#5NL

ST/LT/¥

SI/LT/%
ST/LT/®
ST/LT/v

ST/LT/%
ST/LT/%

ST/LL/%
ST/LT/%

ST/LT/¥
S1/L1/%
ST/LT/%
ST/LT/®
ST/LT/F
ST/L1/%
ST/LT/®
ST/LT/%
ST/LL/%
ST/LT/¥
SE/LT/V
ST/LT/Y
ST/LT/Y
ST/LT/Y
ST/LT/%
ST/LT/P
ST/LT/¥
ST/L1/%
ST/LL/e
ST/LT/¥
ST/LT/®
ST/LT/%
ST/LT/%
ST/LT/Y
ST/LT/%
ST/LT/%
ST/LT/%
ST/LT/%
ST/LT/%
ST/LT/¥
ZLYA

ST/LL/%

# ofd

aTIng ISVHS "IZ0d

SAEX
SAEN HOLIMS-NJIISO0LT
XM H00T4

¥aos
TS

NYA UEINED ¥§
9PTEOXE YRINED WS

SEJOTHANY TTCHAYd

03d HEMY¥Ed €
SHANIANI ‘SHEVYL ‘SHITIOL
SIITd40S FDIJJ0
FOLYINDTED

SNAd

SII17d40NS IDIIJ0
SNHEd 'Sadvo IS
T9T6TLE8 OM dD
0L5%S06

T00XMgEd
QANANLIY

‘52300 QIE 'HUOM

SUIVAEY ddd

$T0T

MYID NOOTYS 3W IqYW TIAHG

STANYd VYNITIY

ddd

UIVdId dWNd THNA
SHXVL LNINATdHAAO
SEXVL 40 ILNIFWAYIUIAO
VILAYILE-8EEE9YL

dWYIZ ONIENL ‘TdNod-TLY
LLPP0CAS LIUEYED -TLY
1II dH ass

dvd "EN¥EdS
YESTTEW €102 EDIZJIC

HOLIATED8HEA EDICANT

YELSIOHEY HOEHD
ALNNOQD AZEQLS

SI¥Yd MONEL ® OLOY ¥d¥N

SYTMIUYH HS0OHANNOH

I IHFE0Y SIMACK

OLNHWYHIVYS 40 FUIL NVDIOW

ST LOHEIIT HOAYNOW

NI SNOILNTOS EDISIO QUIEW
YEEYS ¥ IQ SICIADUIW
SESTHIHIING NIANIWW
LESYEIYH *YIHLMOT

OT1 SINZAE EATd ArndIT
FIWAYL 2 A¥IYT ‘WALSET

NI SHEDIANES FNIT ZOYNONTT
SNOS ¥ SII¥AD N 2

7 ONIHWOTd SM¥E4 ¥ 1T
YANIT % HAFSOL ‘YHAZET

NHOLD 'AVES

o1 440

T HDUN0S TLT

FOONEA

ST/9T/80 ¢

88618

LBETE

gge1R

S86T8

¥86T8

€86T8
Z867T8
186718
08618
6LETE
8LET8
LLETS
9LETE
SLETB
vLETE

ELETE

ZLETR

TLETE

FHEWNN
ADFHD

a3eq uny

STETEd ioN 3xodex




05721 955EL ST/LT/¥® ONITYCLINCKH ATINC-d4Y

05729 T9S2L ST/LT/% 484 NOLING DINW ATHLY
007 5L 8T9ZL ST/LT/% ONIYOLINCH
00°08E PEYEL ST/LT/% HSNOH D IDEANI TYANNY
ONI SEJIAEA NOILOILO¥S 800E8
00 99T 00991 z99ZL ST/L1/% ST0Z '8 TINdY-9T HOUYW
d OTIEDNY ‘' ININIdd Loozg
0T 868'T 0T g68 T 1098L  ST/LLI/® SYD 'I¥D ANY SYOSNIS SYO¥
ANYAWOD % SATMONN AITaad 200€8
00" 9RS 00°' 985 188z ST/L1/¥ STOZ ‘€ AWH - 9 TIdd¥
OTT YWIUHKW INOJAINO SO0E8
80097 80° 051 8%9ZL ST/LT/% S# ¥EDS/INVUALE
IS ¥ SOIHdYY¥O 2AIS FHI NO Y0028
08 89E 08°'85¢ 8¥STL ST/LT/¥ HIX440 MWD
DT 'I04IC YIVA FLISIAOQ £00E8
T6 TLL'Y L6 €9T SGSEL ST/LT/% SYAMOE/AINDT 2
96°LTT SSSEL ST/LT/% X0d ¥ UDHD/ATHOYTIVD
-€2°1 S582L ST/LT/%
907 0EP'T §S52L ST/LT/% NOISSIWHCD DMNINNY
ST°TS S55ZL ST/LL/% INVHS d0LS ¥a
ONI VINGOJITYO J0 TILXEN Z00E8
¥T 6ES'E PL'6EG E 8ESZL ST/LT/% DA STOZ AWYN¥LERd
dASY AINNOD IVANA YAYAIN 10028
£6°58T £€6°68T 6TGZL ST/LT/% QELIETICN §3E
ONI dDIAYAS TTYDHT WAVAHEN 00028
00'00T 00°00T T6SCL ST/LI/¥® LNOYD ' NYEY  STEANY * X¥IN0
¥0d NOLLITYOD VAVAIN 66618
00" 0S 0005 £882L ST/LT/® HOYYW F3Jd TYVIH0d ATINOW
{oNa) aLT HTE YAVAEN 86613
o0 oe 00 Q€ FE9EL  ST/LT1/%
YIINSYANL AEN LE6TE
96" 6T 9661 LZGTL ST/LT/% YANIAYD AIYDITEW 33
YILNED TYNOIDEY Tvdand AEN 96618
S6°ET S6' €T 989ZL ST/LT/¥ TELYL
TISNAOD FAILWISIDET AEN SE6T8
T%°Z¢ 1% 2 SLIEL ST/LT/¥
NOIIVXYI LdEd AAN V6618
SLTSBT'T SLTSBT'T 68524 ST/LT/% SLNINAHADNTA
ALTAYS DITANd 1430 AEN £6618
PETVES ¥E P69 9LGZL ST/LT/% NOIIONACYd ISd
ALFAYS D2I1€dnd d0 LJIHT AEN 26618
0% 19g’9 0% 19¢8'9 9952L ST/LL/% HOLWIW XLNNCD ST0Z HES
SHDYNOSEY NYWOH 1430 AN T66TE
0T 'L¥L'EEE €0 0L57SZE LTSTL ST/LT/% STFI NOIL¥INGOd
LO'PER 9TSCL ST/LT/¥% ASEY NIWAY L¥N0D LOINLSIA
0081w £6%zL  ST/LT/®
00 SET E69ZL ST/LT/¥
00" st £692L  ST/LI/¥
007001 €65%L ST/LT/¥
00 0ge EEBTL ST/LT/%
00 S6E’'E £69¢L ST/LT/%
METIOYLINOD AEN 066T8
¥ 6856 6L LSV £552L ST/LT/® FHIVM HIUYH
59°'T€T'S £952L ST/LT/% MALYN G324
SANNO¥DH ¥ HATI NIHAY AFN 68518
69 %TT TL €€ L¥9ZL ST/LT/® q1I0d ASYHD JEZO0A
TELOL LNAOWY #SNVUL aLva # 0/d NOILdIHDSEd HITOANT YOANIA FHGWNN
MDEHD MDEHD

mﬁ\ﬁﬁ\wmmamHmmmmummu ST/9T/%0 ¢ @3eq uny
9 abeg ALNNOD AE¥OLS gTETEd foN 3zodey




L

0066
T6'LTE'S
et L8
0T €€T
¥8°01S
SV £Z8 ET
00'€LE
v8 CTTL
8%°8TT
L2865
ge’ L
00 Q0E’€
00 6LT
L9'029'¢
co-o0s5e
TYLOL
ADEHD
afeg

PERRA:AN
00’66

0609
00°ZLT'9
T0°s8

S¥ "
68" ¥
8672
66 ¥
96°'T
60'S
€9°L
AN A
§5°'S
29°T
Ce'T
g€ e
6T 1
G6E'EE
LE'¥
88°¢2
t8'1
£€8'T
9tT”

0T €cg

-83" 951
057499

ST E£Z8ET
00" €LE

¥5°¢¢
0E" 069

8P 81T

00" e8%
CETERT

(AN

00'008°1T
00°005'T

00°6LE

19°61%'T
90° 102

007021

LNOOWY

LBSTL
¥852L

9692l
969EL
9692ZL

LEZ9ZL
LZ9ZL
LTOCL
LE9EZL
LESEL
LTICL
LZIZL
LEITL
LZ2TL
LZoCL
LTOTL
Leoet
LESCL
LTZEL
LE2ZL
LZSZL
LTSTL
LEIZL
LZI9ZL

6¥32CL

£992L
E92CL

19
¥9GZL

8gsZL
82524

geseL

[4:3-449
[A AN

08SE4L

6Z52ZL
6Z492ZL

SEITL

9FseL
9vszL

vESTL

H#SNTAL

ST/L1/%
ST/LEST

ST/LTI/Y
ST/L1/%
ST/LT/®

ST/LT/%
ST/LT/%
ST/LT/¥
ST/LT/%
ST/LT1/%
ST/L1/%
ST/L1/¥%
ST/LT/®
ST/LT/¥%
ST/LT/%
ST/LT/®
ST/LT/¥®
ST/LT/%
ST/LT/%
ST/LT/%
ST/LE/Y
ST/LT/Y
ST/LT/Y
ST/LT/P

ST/LT/¥

ST/LT/¥
ST/LT/%

ST/LT/Y
ST/LT/%

ST/Li/%
ST/LT/%

ST/LT/¥®

ST/LT/¥
ST/LT/%

ST/LT/%

ST/LT/¥
ST/L1/%

ST/L1/%

ST/LT/¥
ST/LT/V

ST/LT/%
IZL¥d

ST/LT/%

# o/d

YELSIDEY XD
ALNNOD AEMOLS

5419 10dIEd TIIH J7T09

ST0Z '8 TINAY-9Z HOUVH
400 2960-L¥%8
SNOILVOINNWWOSZ~EZTP9-TST
Q&L3A  00SL-LP8

SN NNYIE

LI

{dA) EYIZ

MENOISS IWHCO

wa

HOLYISIA TYELNED
VOSSESSY
INANGOTIATT ALINOWWOD
(oA) HEIH
GOOMADOT/FHTA
NIWIY/¥aTIOELAN0D
JATHAHS

ar

JIIHIRS

SHIOM DITANd

(oA} BYIA
ATTLODIY

AYITO

IAL ¥ONW 0D

SHITA4NS SWH

LLEGSEHANTI LIQHAED

aN0Idg
"INYIYM NUEd GOLT

WREOD XOUaww
TEINEC ZEEILEYT

groocg

LIFILE O WWOD-EIILOD
TO-9L9ZND HILLOTL SID

SEXYL 40 INFWAYIHIAO

ST0Z TIMAY WYHO0Ud
9102 TIday

AYE¥E ¥ALYM Ad JISAYO

I '¥DI¥AY
d ADINGOY

DONIYOLINOW 5S4 IS
NOILdI¥DSEA FITOANI

SH2

d00¥D YIAEW YAYAAN vH¥FIS

NATIY NVI¥E ’JIYOHS

ONI SHOIAYAS 'TYE0TS DdS

aTm NI SHOIA¥NES TVH0TD JdES

ONI GDddny

ONI ALTVIDHAS HOHVL ONEY
OTT SEINLNAA I ONEN

NI ONISVOSANYT NITED ONEY

NI HIIT QUVANVLIS HONVITIY

WSSITEH 'qHdy

(¥3) ONI 0D NWONOW AWY

TIYANYYE VIV TTYD

ONI SEIDHLTILS avH

TAYH WYN0

INTFWEUILEN ATdWE OITdNd

HOANEA

ST/8T/%0

€2Z0Z8

Zgoes

TECES

0zZoTs

6T0EZ8

grges
LTOZ8

9T0Z8

ST0L8

¥InZ8

£T028

ZT028

1T0Z8e

oT0Z8

60028

HIGRON
ADEHD
23ed uny

STETEd ‘ON axodex




LNAWIAOEAWT TYHENED IHL ov0Z8

8L'ST BL'GT SESEL ST/LT/¥ SHAIL-SB5S9CTINE
¥OdYCD SYWOHL-ITYNIZY EHL 6E£0E8
0S°LEL 05T LEL 622ZL  ST/LT/¥ NOISHEA 'ILLOE NID WID
ADNEOY SOLNY dHL BEDER
05" L8T 06 L8T LPSZL ST/LT/% INIZWEDONYH WIVID 00YPDS
SSEYAXEIN XIWL LEDZB
ST EFT ST EFT 965EL ST/LT/¥% dans Jqiv LsdId
ONI ‘SDILSIO0T ADYANAS 9£028
0825’1 0S§'LET 8999ZL ST/LL/¥
00°S2E'T 899CL ST/LT/¥ ST0Z '8 TI¥dY-9% HOUVK
SISTHAHIING X¥Ed NS SEQEZB
00°259°'2 00°289°'¢g LLIZL ST/LT/¥ SLIY ZAYYDdN AgANEND
TYOIAIN HIARALS PEQER
0% SE€ 0% GEE ZI9ZL ST/LT/% AESENGSIA INIWHS I NIYD
Od& MOTOAOM ¥ NAHAILS ££0Z8
007 0%E 00°0%€ 869TL ST/LT/% INIVH % TYMENZH
DT DNILENNYW d¥DUVLS ZE0E8
6E°EIL'Z 29° 95 L99ZL ST/L1/¥
z9° 95 895EL ST/LT/¥
€' 09 895ZL ST/LT/¥%
ET 6TT g95zL ST/LT/% 18 2 TLE
9€° €8T 89SEL  ST/LT/%
2% 80T 895EL  ST/L1/¥
£5°8T¥% BIGEL ST/LT/%
23°9% 8952L ST/LT/¥
ZT'6TT B9GZL ST/LT/%
20 LYE 8957L ST/LT/¥
ZT'BTT 895ZL ST/LT/¥
Z1 81T 89524 ST/LT/®
60621 895¢L ST/LT/®
ZT 61T 895ZL SI/LI/®
96" FET 89524 ST/LT/v
96" ¥Z1T 89524 ST/LT/®
96 %21 895ZL ST/LT/¥
9E€" €87 L99EL ST/LT/® YILNID ¥OLISIA
96" F2T 8952L ST/LT/%
WALSAS ¥EIYM 0D IS TEQZ®
52°8%2 ST 8% LSSEL ST/LT/® GCOCH ‘NOTIIA
44TYHHES 0D IS 0E0Z8
9T LLE'VTF 9T LLE ' ¥TY BISZL ST/Ll/% AIATHDEY XYWL AL¥EICUd
LOIEISIA TOOHDS 0D 1§ 6Z0Z8
L8 ¥E LB ¥E 619CL ST/LT/% S¥EAMOL
dT RONLOEGE ININdS BEOES
ST LOL'T ST LOL'T 595EL SI/LT/¥ LEQA40S HEOUVH
ONI SEDIAWHAS ALITILN €45 LZ0E8
007 L¥LT 007501 999gL ST/LT/¥ SAUYD SNH SUEWHW a¥g
go-oes 999ZL ST/LT/% MOTOD dTIod IYL 000§
00062 EEETAA ST/LT/¥ SC¥YD I¥d MOv¥d HSYI4
007004 G09EL ST/LT/% NOIS ¥EINED JOINIS DA
00°Z¢ 06922 ST/L1/% SUEYS SWIL
¥Ed DT SHIMLENANI MIITS 9Z0Z8
00°00T 00°00T ST9ZL ST/LT/® song
ONI 'TOMINOD ILSHd YaudIs S20Z8
98- €€ 88°2Z¢ PSEEL ST/LT/v STU-AFA LINA QF IIOL 00T
02 YFMOd DIJALDVS YIUFIS veoze
TS Z9L
TELOL INNOWY #SNVHL H21¥d # 0/d NOILAI¥DSIAd FITOANI JOUNIA SEIWAN
ADFHO ADEHD
ST/LT/% WILSIDEY ADEHD ST/9T/%0 : 83eq uny

8 abed ALNNCD AEHOLS STETEd ‘ON 3x0day




€8 T8EL'0L0'T TYLOL SUDEHD

z8' 18T 00941 0LSZL ST/LT/Y ddI4 AT0d 00% XV/€
96 ‘21 Z2592L ST/LT/¥ SEITAAAS ONILYYEA0
~FTCL TS9TL ST/LT/® OWaKW LITTED
02 AUddNS YAYARN NYALSHAM 05028
00922 00°908 TLSEZL ST/LT/® SOITOS ‘OMLIM'HA 'I¥54d ' 20
00702 TLEEL  ST/LT/¥® WHOAITOD TY.IOL
491 TYLNAWNONIANE NUZLSIM 670E8
00062 007052 L6STL  ST/LL/¥® LSAL HONa
AITJIJ0 SIITUAHS OO HOHSWM 8%DZ8
00°006'1 00'0EE'T SLSETL  ST/LTI/¥ dAAYO dFAG
00°0LS ¥89ZL ST/LT/% AT 0Z000WIPY
054 € IWEE0N ‘3ENIVM Lyoze
00 TI8'T 00'S¥T 9L9ZL ST/LT/% SEHONOT 21K
00°999°T 9LIZL ST/LT/% SEDIA¥ES ISIAE0T
SELYIDOSSY ¥ HENTYM 9v0zZe
00°'082°T 00'0682°T T59ZL ST/LT/% I¥0ddNS ¥EIINOIOA
J3A SANWIHOIH VINIDEIA ShoLs
D0°99€°T 50 0ST CLYTL ST/LT/%
0o 9TET E€LIEL ST/LT/% STI0Z '8 TINdY -92 HOUVN
ONI S¥00L ALID YINIDEIA ¥Y0ES
000052 00 00s’E TLseTL SI/L1/¥ LY0ddNS ONILINIY
HTIADEOLON ALID VINIDEIA £¥0Z8
00 08T 0009 Tzeze ST/LT/F XO€ Y04 ddd TYONNY
00 oEE BLSZL ST/LT/F 91/ - ST/€
1DA)  HOIAJOLS0d €0 TY0Z8
00508 00508 1LseL ST/LT/¥% JHEAQY 9T/ST € 40 T IWd
NCD SMITMOE SALYLIS JILIND 19028
88 52T £2°€6 6952L ST/LT/% UI- N¥Ad SOLT
§9°g¢€T 695ZL ST/Li/% S/M- oMEd §OLT
TYLOL INNOWY HENYHL qIYA # 0/a NOIIJIYOSTI FDIOANI FOANTA HAFANN
AOEHD ADEHD
ST/LT/% HELSIDEY MOEHD ST/9T/%0 F3eq uny

&  sbeg ALNNOD ABMOLS STETEd :oN 3aodsy




T

LT 9T6'¥

LT 9T6'®

TYLOL
quyd

abeg

68765
LETETT
00*8ET'T
00° 5S¢
LT 0L
0D’ 5L
TLOLPT
66' 12
0T ERE
LA 13
66761
21° 88T
¥ LE
L9 6ET
S0°9L
8Z°6
85" vve
86 EFT
65 LTT
TE°0E
00708
00526
ac'gTE
00°5¢€
L6799
6E0EZT
0059
00 09

LNOGIHY

aiva

HENOISSIWWOD

NOIIVZIHOHLOV ONY MITASY 40 INIZNIDAETTMONADYE

[Ph'ad
0%
0¥y
[vh-44
0%y
344
0re
[did
6E¥
1344
¥
844
T¢¥
192
1544
(444
BEY
BEY
Sbet
9%%T
oFFT
BEP
2Ed
LE®
[4-44
9EY
R4
9E¥

#SNYEL

ST/LT/%
ST/LT/®
ST/LT/¥
ST/LT/%
ST/LT/%
ST/LT/Y
ST/LT/%
ST/LT/¥
ST/LT/P
ST/LT/%
ST/LT/%
ST/LT/Y
ST/LT/%
ST/Lt/%
ST/LT/Y
ST/LT/¥
ST/LT/V
ST/LT/%
ST/LI/%
ST/LT/%
ST/LT/Y
ST/LT/%
ST/LT/®
ST/LT/¥
ST/LT/%
ST/LT/%
ST/LT/Y
ST/LT/%

ALYq

ONIJAIHS VWY

DI DUO ' ANALNNODATHOLS
LSISEY FUOWIY MSHIATHH
XUELIVE San

1sd 0§

780 LI

5d171ddNS FIXAI0

MEN Z¥ELIL¥d sdn
ONINIVHL S3yIM0d

qJ0L5 X7

ESVIS0d E0I440 SFE

¥ CLSEY SAINTAINS/STOOL
DNILEEW DIT/DIY "Tana
J0 DHY SdITddng "oIId0
0L NOILVMOLSTY/ALLETYd
NOYUAE OWL/M ONILIAW
AOOUL ENI¥E IHL
EP9TERS

8479 ¥IVd SIJAIENEY

/¥ DNILEEW 2¥4ATs ONTd

HIODSCHED TN -d MM

LAOOW d¥gdI

avdvd ¥04 HONOQT LNIDOA
QETIINTD W

SAWYLE TOVLS0d

HILNES GMHOT - LANSEINI
HILE D § TLE -~IEANJYEINI

NOIIJI¥UDEEA

ANVIAJT-8ST6
HONVAQ~ETET62809
¥896T8TS
TO-T¥960T~09¢E
£T6¥989¢€%

LZEILLGET

HNYIa-p00T
ANVEd-£555€0

STTIEE0

ZNYId-£9Z8T0

£09#aI SNYAL
BTLIESSL " ' "HGI SNVHML
TZEOEZEL" " "HUI SNWHL
BTZE99TE" * " #AT SHWEL
LTLISIPX" " "HdI SNWHL
SADNHAVLE
OD0HPAELETYH- YILITAS
TSEIC WOLSND-VILEYNS
200 QY FNYOESO
SEIQdY LEVE HANJOHSO
NMYTH FNIOES50

aTACH DSCUDIH-NIAHNK
WOO " CLLOLOS-NIAHNK
STATANYD SAEYW WA
LADOION WL

§dSn -NIAEN'D

LLY -NIAZN'D

LI¥ ~NIAEN'D

LNEWAYd CHYD TYIDHEWWOD =HNO STIEM

+TB3ICL PIeD#

# HOTOANT I430-GNOND

YALSTOET qQuUV¥D HSWHOUN

ALNOCGD AEUCLS

AOaNEA

ST/9t/%0
Ls08vSdd

0s

AIENOIN
od

83eq uny
ON JIoday



Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 05/05/15 Estimate of time required: 10 min.

Agenda: Consent [x] Regular agenda[] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Discussion/Possible Action. Update to Storcy County Administrative Policies and Procedures
including: Policies 502 Pay Periods and Time Reporting, 503 Overtime Compensation, 504 Rate
of Pay, 507 Scheduled Salary Step Advancement, 601 Holidays, and 602 Annual Leave,

2. Recommended motion: Based on the recommendation by staff and in conformance with the Storey
County Administrative Policies and Procedures, 1 {(Commissioner) motion to approve the
amendments to Storey County Administrative Policies 502 Pay Periods and Time Reporting, 503
Overtime Compensation, 504 Compensation, 507 Scheduled Salary Step Advancement, 601
Holidays, and 602 Annual Leave.

3. Prepared by: Austin Osborne
Department: Human Resources Telephone: 847-0968
4, Staff summary: The purpose of the Storey County Administrative Policies and Procedures is to
establish authority to implement the personnel program on a consistent basis. The
Policies and Procedures require that review and necessary updates occur every five

years.

5. Supporting materials: Enclosures: draft policy chapters 502, 503, 504, 507, 601, and 602

6. Fiscal impact: None on local government,

Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller

7. Legal review required:

District Attorney

Department Name:

M‘cy Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved [
[ Denied [

Approved with Modifications
Continued

e ]

Agenda Item No,

Page 1 of 15




Enclosures: Draft policies 502, 503, 504, 507. 601, and 602

STOREY COUNTY ADMINISTRATIVE NUMBER 502

POLICIES AND PROCEDURES EFFECTIVE DATE: 11-10-08
REVISED: 05/05/15
AUTHORITY: BOC

COUNTY MANAGER: PAT
SUBJECT: Pay Periods and Time Reporting

1. PURPOSE

Establishing Pay Period Establishing a pay period with documentation of recorded of hours
worked and/or leave time taken by employees is necessary to provide an accurate basis for
preparing paychecks, to assure compliance with federal and state law, and to maintain an effective
and efficient cost accounting system. (For payroll purposes, non-exempt employees covered by the
Fair Labor Standards Act (FLSA) must report all time spent performing work.)

2. POLICY
2.1  Pay Periods and Paydays

Employees are paid bi-weekly on Friday. Paychecks are deposited into the employee’s bank
account via automated direct-deposit. The Comptroller’s Office will provide each employee a
paystub at the end of each pay period. The employee may choose to opt out of automated direct-
deposit by submitting a letter to the Comptroller’s Office requesting not to participate in direct-
deposit service. The employee opting out of direct-deposit or otherwise receiving a physical
paycheck may pick up his/her paycheck at the Clerk-Treasurer’s Office after 12:00 p.m. Ifa
payday falls on a holiday, employees are paid on the preceding work day.

2.2 Hours Worked
Non-exempt employees will be paid for all hours worked. Hours worked include, but are not
limited to:

a. Time worked before or after the normally assigned shift, or any other irregular hours, even
if the employee volunteers his/her time. GUIDELINE: Periods of six minutes or less are
not considered overtime unless they occur regularly. (This provision does not apply to
employees who are performing volunteer work which is unrelated to their normal job
functions.)

b. Rest periods of 20 minutes or less.

c. Travel time that occurs during an employee’s normally scheduled work hours, including
regular days off, holidays, etc.

d. Hours spent at lectures and training activities, unless attendance is completely voluntary.

e. Hours spent serving as volunteer ambulance, fire, or law enforcement personnel for an
emergency response during normally scheduled work hours.

2.3  Position Designations — Exempt or Non-Exempt

Page 1 of 14




All positions are designated as “exempt” or “non-exempt” according to federal and state laws and
regulations. For cost accounting and billing purposes, Storey County requires exempt employees
in certain positions, regardless of exempt or non-exempt status, to account for hours worked.

2.4 Responsibility for Exempt or Non-Exempt Designation

The Personnel Director/Administrative Officer will examine and evaluate position descriptions and
duties performed for all positions to determine the designation of the position as exempt or non-
exempt. Departments will notify the Personnel Director/Administrative Officer when the duties of
a position have substantially changed in order to ensure an accurate designation.

2.5  Responsibility for Exempt or Non-Exempt Designation

Employees are responsible for accurately completing their own timesheets. Supervisors shall not
alter or adjust the hours that an employee reports on his/her timesheet. If the supervisor believes

the employee has completed his/her timesheet in error, the supervisor shall discuss the issue with
the employee.

a. All non-exempt employees will record all hours worked and all leave time taken, whether
paid or unpaid, and the type of leave taken (e.g., sick leave, annual leave, compensatory
time) on the timesheet.

b. All exempt employees in positions which require an accounting of hours worked will enter
their hours worked for each project. They shall record all leave taken in whole day
increments on the timesheet.

q&aﬁe%{%ﬂ%%w&ﬁd-sub{mpe&%hew&ﬂmﬁl—lewshpfeﬁ% Exempt employees in posmons
not required to account for hours worked will record only those hours off for sick leave or
annual leave in whole day increments. Except as permitted by the Family and Medical
Leave Act FMLA (including intermittent FMLA leave), exempt employees may not be
charged for absences of [ess than whole day increments,

RESPONSIBILITY FOR REVIEW: The County Personnel Director and/or Administrative
Officer will review this policy every 5 years or sooner as necessary.

STOREY COUNTY ADMINISTRATIVE NUMBER 503

POLICIES AND PROCEDURES EFFECTIVE DATE: 11-10-08
REVISED: 4-05-11/05/05/15
AUTHORITY: BOC

COUNTY MANAGER: PAT

SUBJECT: Overtime Compensation

1. PURPOSE: Provide Guidelines for Eligible for Overtime
2. POLICY:

2.1 Non-Exempt Employees

Page 2 of 14




a. Except for employees whose hours are established by a collective bargaining agreement,
employees in positions designated as “non-exempt” will be eligible for overtime
compensation for hours worked in excess of ten hours in any one workday or hours
worked over for-(4H-rene{H 40 in one workweek, if employee has requested and
been approved for variable workday as provided in NRS 281.100.3.b.2.

b. Per NRS 281106 and the Fair Labor Standards Act (FLSA), employees working as
firefighters, police officers, jailers/corrections officers, sheriff’s deputies, or nurses, with
a formalized policy or agreement with the employer, may work longer workweeks or
workdays.

1. Hespitals Employers of and nurses may agree in-writing to a 14-day work period
and overtime is compensation earned after 80 hours during that work period.

2. Employers of police officers, jailers/corrections officers, or sheriff’s deputies may
establish in-writing a work period of 171 hours within a 28-day period.

3. Employers of firefighters may establish in-writing a work period of 212 hours
within a 28-day period.

4. For police officers, jailers/corrections officers, sheriff’s deputies, and firefighters,
these work periods must be established as regularly occurring and by an
affirmative statement by the employer that such a work period is being established.

5. If the work period for nurses is not agreed to, or if the work period for police
officers, jailers/corrections officers, sheriff’s deputies, or firefighters is not
established, these employees are thes subject to overtime compensation after ten
hours in a workday or 40 hours in a workweek per NRS 281.100;-0r-40-hoursina

wotkoweek per NRS 281100 and the Fair Labor Standards Act (FLSA).

c. All overtime hours must be specifically authorized in advance by the employee’s
Elected Official, Dept. Head or Supervisor. Overtime will be compensated at ene-and
ene-ha-53 1.5 times the employee’s regular rate of pay. An employee’s regular rate
includes all payments made by the employer to the employee. Examples of payments to
be included are on-call pay, shift differential, hazatd duty pay, and longevity pay.

d. Time paid but not worked, such as sick leave, holidays, and annual leave, does not count
toward hours worked for the purpose of computing overtime hours.

e. Firefighters and law enforcement personnel are governed by different overtime
requirements. Refer to departmental policy, applicable collective bargaining agreement,
and the Fair Labor Standards Act (FLSA).

CAUTION: Paramedics serving in the dual capacity of paramedic/firefighter must meet
certain requirements to be covered by the Fair Labor Standards Act (FLSA) 207(k)
overtime exemption. To qualify, the paramedic/firefighter must:

» Be employed by an organized fire department or fire protection district;
» Be trained in fire suppression and protection;
» Have the legal authority and responsibility to engage in fire suppression, to
include the prevention, control and extinguishing of fires, and;
» Perform activities which are required for the prevention, control or
extinguishment of fires.
Absent these requirements, a paramedic must be paid overtime subject to the rules for
non-exempt employees as outlined above.

2.2 Exempt Employees

Page 3 of 14




Generally, exempt employees are hired with the understanding that they are responsible for
accomplishing the duties required for their assigned position. It is ewthe employer’s policy to
comply with all aspects of the FLSA including #s salary-basis requirements. Therefore, making
any deductions from the salaries of exempt employees which are not allowed by law is by policy
prohibited.

Consistent with the FLSA and NRS 281100, employees in exempt positions are not required to be
paid for overtime worked. Eligibility for overtime is based upon the duties and responsibilities of
each individual employee. Subject to certain exceptions set forth in the regulations, an exempt
employee will be paid the full salary for any work week in which the employee performs any
work, regardless of the number of days or hours worked. Exempt employees will not need to be
paid for any work week in which they perform no work, unless the employee is on approved paid
leave,

a. Deductions from pay will be made when an exempt employee does not have or use paid
leave and is absent from work for one or more full days for personal reasons. The
deduction will be made in accordance with Storey County’s vacation annual leave and sick
leave policies. Deductions in pay, including from sick or annual leave balances, shall not
be made for partial day or hour-by-hour absences, except for eligible employees utilizing
intermittent leave under the Family Medical Leave Act (FMLA), Deductions will also be
made to offset amounts employees receive as jury or witness fees, or for military pay; or
for unpaid disciplinary suspensions of one or more full days imposed in good faith for
workplace conduct rule infractions. Storey County will pro rate an employee’s salary
based upon the days worked during the initial and terminal pay period of employment.

b. Exempt employees are generally expected to be available to perform their job duties during
normal business hours (ssualy-generally 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m., Mondays through
Fridays). It is expected that in order for exempt employees to complete their assigned work
from time to time, it will be necessary that they work beyond the normal work days and
business hours of the employer. If, however, an exempt employee is working well beyond
a forty-{403 40 hour work week on a regular recurring basis, the Personnel
Director/Administrative Officer may examine staffing levels and the employee’s work
habits and procedures.

2.3 “Safe Harbor”

The Personnel Director/Administrative Officer will classify employees as exempt or non-exempt;
in accordance with the previsions-efthe Fair Labor Standards Act (FLSA) and applicablestate taw
NRS. If an employee feels s/he is improperly classified, s/he should request a review of the
position classification from Personnel Director and/or Administrative Officer. An investigation
will be conducted on a timely basis and employer will act to correct any errors as soon as
practicable. The employer will not make improper deductions of pay from any employee,
regardless of exempt or non-exempt status. Improper deductions should be reported to the
Comptroller and the Personnel Director/Administrative Officer. The complaint will be
investigated and employer will act to reimburse the employee as required by the FLSA if an error
is found. The employer will continuously make a good faith commitment to comply with all
provisions of the FLSA and state-}aws NRS and intends this policy of correction to satisfy the
“safe harbor” provisions of the FL.SA regulations, as amended effective August 23, 2004,

If a non-exempt employee feels s/he has been improperly paid for overtime under the FLSA or
state law, it is the responsibility of the employee to seek correction by reporting any error to the
Elected Official, Dept. Head or Supervisor. An investigation will be conducted on a timely basis
and employer will act to correct any errors as soon as practicable.

Page 4 of 14




RESPONSIBILITY FOR REVIEW: The County Personnel Director and/or Administrative
Officer will review this policy every 5 years or sooner as necessary.

STOREY COUNTY ADMINISTRATIVE NUMBER 504

POLICIES AND PROCEDURES EFFECTIVE DATE: 11-10-08
REVISED: 05/05/15
AUTHORITY: BOC

COUNTY MANAGER; PAT
SUBJECT: Rates of Pay

1. PURPOSE: To establish a policy on rates of pay.
2, POLICY:
2.1  Compensation Plan

Each regular position will be assigned to a class and pay grade in the compensation plan.
Assignment to a pay grade will be based on the relative level and complexity of the duties,
responsibilities, and authority of the job. The Personnel Director and/or Administrative Officer
shall determine the salary ranges based on these considerations:

Rates paid by the employer for comparable work;

Internal relationships of other job classes in the same or similar occupation;
Rates paid by other employers for comparable work;

Other financial commitments of the employer; and

Funds available to the employer for salaries.

N

The Personnel Director and/or Administrative Officer may adjust the minimum and maximum for
each salary range periodically as changes in any of the factors listed above occur or to recruit and
retain qualified employees for each job.

2.2 Hiring Rate of Pay

The normal hiring rate is the first step of the pay range for the position’s classification. The
Personnel Director and/or Administrative Officer may authorize advanced step appointments in
accordance with Section 2.3,

23 Advanced Step Hire

Fairness and equity in the administration of the compensation plan wiil be maintained when
making advanced step hires. The Personnel Director and/or Administrative Officer may authorize
advanced step appointments when all of the {ollowing circumstances exist:

a. The applicant’s qualifications indicate that s/he will perform at a level commensurate with
the requested step;

b. Based on the applicant’s current or most recent salary, an advanced step hire is required for
the applicant to accept the position {The employer will not consider salaries paid more than
twelve12} 12 months prior to the job offer.);

¢. Other applicants with similar qualifications not requiring an advanced level salary are
unavailable; and

d. Funds are available in the hiring department’s budget to pay the higher rate.

Page 5 of 14




2.4 Flat Rate Salaries

Certain job classes may be assigned to flat rates of pay in the compensation plan. Employees in
classes assigned to a flat rate of pay are not eligible for step increases.

25 Casual Worker Rate of Pay

The employer will pay casual workers at the rate of pay established for the same work when
performed by regular employees, or as appropriate for the type of work performed. Students
receiving school credit for work may be paid at a rate established by the Personne!l Director and/or
Administrative Officer for student interns. The Personnel Director and/or Administrative Officer
may adjust the-rates-rate of pay annually consistent with general-salary the procedures for merit
rate of pay increases granted-for regular employees performing similar work.

2.6 Salary on Promotion, Transfer, Demotion, Reclassification, and Reallocation

a. Except as may otherwise be provided by a collective bargaining agreement, a regular
employee who is promoted to a new classification will move to that step in the range for
the new class which provides atleastanappreximateno less than five 5 percent (5%} pay
increase, not to exceed the top step in the range for the new class. A promoted employee’s
salary shall not be less than the starting pay of the salary range for the new position. A
promoted employee’s adjusted pay shall be affective the first day that the employee accepts
the new position in writing.

b. Reclassification to a class with a higher salary range is a promotion.

¢. Reallocation of an existing class:

1. to ahigher salary range is NOT a promotion. An employee it a class that is
reallocated to a higher salary range shall be placed at a step closest to his/her
current salary that does not provide a decrease.

2. to a lower salary range shall be placed at the step closest to the employee’s current
salary that does not provide a decrease. If the employee’s salary exceeds the top
salary of the lower pay range. (refer to Y-Rate in section 2.7)

2.7 Y-Rate

The employer may pay an employee, who is reduced to a lower class as a result of reclassification
or reorganization not associated with layofT or discipline and not the result of employee action or
request, at his/her current rate of pay which is above the top step of the range or between steps of
the range. Similarly, an employee in a class which has its salary adjusted to a lower rate may also
be paid at a rate of pay above the top step of the range. This rate shall be known as a “Y-Rate.”
At the discretion of the employer, assignment to such a rate of pay is available to employees who
are fully qualified to perform the work of the lower paid class.

An employee who is at a Y-rate above the top step of the range for the new (lower) class shall
continue to receive the Y-rate while employed in the new class until a change in the rate of pay for
the employee’s new class causes the top step of the new class to be equal to or greater than the
employee’s Y-rate.

An employee who is at a Y-rate which is between the steps of the range for the new (lower) class
shall continue to receive the Y-rate until a change in the rate of pay for the employee causes the
rate for the step in the range to which the employee is entitled to exceed his/her current rate of pay.

RESPONSIBILITY FOR REVIEW: The County Personnel Director and/or Administrative
Officer will review this policy every 5 years or sooner as necessary.

Page 6 of 14




STOREY COUNTY ADMINISTRATIVE . NUMBER 507

POLICIES AND PROCEDURES EFFECTIVE DATE: 11-10-08
REVISED: 08-02-11/05-05-15
AUTHORITY: BOC

COUNTY MANAGER: PAT
SUBJECT: Scheduled Salary Step Advancement

1. PURPOSE

To establish a pelicy on scheduled salary step advancement er and the withholding of
advancement.

2. POLICY
2.1 Step Advancement Authorized

a. An employee who is currently not paid at the top step of the salary range for his/her class
is normally eligible for step advancement on his/her anniversary date. Raises in salary
resulting from step advancements are based on longevity and satisfactory performance,
and are not automatic, Step advancements may be granted only upon a finding by the
Elected Official, Dept. Head, Supervisor or County Manager that the employee meets all
of the performance requirements of the position and complies with all of the employer’s
rules, regulations, and policies. An employee who is determined to be eligible for step
advancements shall move to a-higher the next highest step within the salary grade range.

b. Salary step advancements are administered by the Elected Official, Dept. Head,
Supervisor, or County Manager subject to the eenfirmation validation of the Personnel
Director and/or Administrative Officer that there is adequate documentation that all
requirements have been met. Peer evaluations shall not be considered in evaluating an
employee’s performance for purposes of this policy.

¢. The Board of County Commissioners has authority per NRS 245.045 and NRS 4.040 to
establish the salaries of all appeintive appointed county and elected officers and
employees by the enactment of a resolution.

d. If a Performance Evaluation is not done within 30 day of the of anniversary date it shall
be considered a satisfactory performance evaluation and the Personnel
Director/Administrative Office shall authorize a step advancement retroactive to the
employee’s anniversary date.

2.2 Anniversary Date/Step Advancement

a. The date on which an employee becomes eligible for consideration for step advancement
is known as the anniversary date. When approved in writing, step advancements will
become effective at the beginning of the pay period in which the employee’s anniversary
date occurs.

b. A promotion and reclassification to a class with a higher salary range shall establish a
new anniversary date.

¢. A demotion or reclassification to a class with a lower salary range shall not establish a
new anniversary date.

2.3  Withholding of Step Advancement
Page 7 of 14




a. Job Performance. When the Elected Official, Dept. Head, Supervisor or County
Manager has determined that the job performance of an employee is less than
satisfactory or below expectations, the step advancement shall be withheld. The
employee’s performance shall be documented, in writing, and state the reason(s) upon
which the decision was based, and a prescribed remedy, such as that in a collective
bargaining agreement, to improve the employee’s performance and a copy of the
documentation provided to the employee by the Elected Official, Dept. Head,
Supervisor or County Manager.

The Personnel Director and/or Administrative Officer may approve step advancement
at the beginning of any pay period upon finding that the employee now meets the
qualifications for advancement, if within 90 days of the original anniversary date. The
employee’s anniversary date shall be adjusted to the date on which the step
advancement is actually granted. If step advancement is not granted in the interim, the
employee shall be considered for step advancement on the next anniversary date.

b. Unpaid Leave of Absence. An employee’s eligibility for consideration for step
advancement shall be delayed by temporary layoffs or unpaid leaves of absence in

excess of fifteen 5} 15 working days during the #wekee-(323 12 month period
following the employee’s last step advancement. The employee’s anniversary date

shall be adjusted by the total number of days on unpaid leave.
2.4  Flat Rate Salaries and Wages
Certain job elasses classifications may be assigned to flat rates of pay in the compensation plan.
Employees in elasses classifications assigned to a flat rate of pay are not eligible for step increases.

RESPONSIBILITY FOR REVIEW: The County Personnel Director and/or Administrative
Officer will review this policy every S years or sooner as necessary.

STOREY COUNTY ADMINISTRATIVE NUMBER 601

POLICIES AND PROCEDURES EFFECTIVE DATE: 11-18-08
REVISED: 08/02/11-05/05/15
AUTHORITY: BOC

COUNTY MANAGER: PAT

SUBJECT: Holidays

1. PURPOSE
To designate recognized holidays and legibility for holiday pay.
2. POLICY

The established annual leave year is the calendar year, January 1¥ through December 31st, each
year.

2.1 Recognized Holidays
Recognized Holidays, in accordance with NRS 236, shall be as follows:

# New Year's Day (January Ist)
* Martin Luther King's Day (Third Monday in January)
Page 8 of 14




President's Day (Third Monday in February)
Memorial Day (Last Monday in May)
Independence Day (July 4th)
Labor Day (First Monday in September)
Nevada Day (Last Friday in October)
Veteran's Day (November 11th)
Thanksgiving Day (Fourth Thursday in November)
Day after Thanksgiving (Friday following the Fourth Thursday in November)
Christmas Day (December 25th)
Any day that may be appointed by the President of the United States for public fast,
Thanksgiving, or as a legal observed holiday, except Columbus Day.
One floating holiday per calendar year to be pre-approved by the supervisor.
a. If a holiday falls on a Saturday, the preceding Friday becomes the observed holiday,

b. If a holiday falls on a Sunday, the following Monday becomes the observed
holiday.

2.2  Holiday Compensation

Each regular full-time non-¢xempt employee shall receive holiday compensation. The holiday
compensation shall be equivalent to the employee's regularly scheduled shift - 8, 10, or 12 hours,
If the employee is scheduled for six twelve hour shifts, and one eight hour shift, the holiday
compensation will be twelve hours.

a. Holidays worked, Non-exempt employees required to work their regularly scheduled shift on
a recognized holiday shall receive regular pay plus an additional payment of holiday
compensation computed at time and one-half (1.5) the straight-time for the regularly
scheduled shift.

b. Holidays worked - overtime. Non-exempt employees required to work overtime on a
recognized holiday shall receive overtime compensation computed at 1.5 of regular rate of
pay for the overtime worked.

c. Holidays not worked. Non-exempt employees who are not required to work on a recognized
holiday shall receive holiday compensation equivalent to one regularly scheduled shift.

a. Except for employees in the communications series, if a non-exempt employee’s
regularly scheduled day off falls on a recognized holiday, the employee will be
granted one shift off with pay during the workweek of the holiday. The day of that
workweek to be taken off is subject to scheduling and upon mutual agreement of
the employee and the supervisor.

b. Ifthe regularly scheduled day off of a non-exempt communications series employee
falls on a recognized holiday, the employee may elect to take one regularly
scheduled shift off in the same workweek in lieu of holiday pay, as mutually agreed
between the employee and supervisor.

d. Compensation for regular pari-time employees. Regular part-time non-exempt employees
shall receive holiday compensation based on their regularly scheduled shift.

¢. Pay status. In order to receive holiday compensation, an employee must be in pay status
immediately before and after the holiday.
Page 90of 14




2.3  Holiday Accrual
Holiday leave shall not be accrued except as may be provided by a collective bargaining
agreement.

RESPONSIBILITY FOR REVIEW: The County Personnel Director and/or Administrative
Officer will review this policy every 5 years or sooner as necessary.

Page 10 of 14




STOREY COUNTY ADMINISTRATIVE NUMBER 602

POLICIES AND PROCEDURES EFFECTIVE DATE: 11-18-08
REVISED: 08/02/11-05/05/15
AUTHORITY: BOC

COUNTY MANAGER: PAT

SUBJECT: Annual Leave

1. PURPOSE
To provide policy and procedures regarding annual leave eligibility and usage.

2. POLICY
The established annual feave year is the calendar year, January 1¥ through December 31* each
year.

2.1 Annual Leave Accrual

. N
3 7 o

- incidi il  periods.

Page 11 of 14




a.

d.

Regular employees continually scheduled to work an average of 21 hours or more per
week will accrue annual leave. Employees do not accrue annual leave for overtime
hours worked.

Regular part-time employees wheregularly-work-bwenty- (20} -hours-ormoreperweek

will earn accrue annual leave on a pro-rate basis.
Accrual of annual leave for eligible employees is as follows:

e Date of hire to 5 years = (1.0577 per hour on paid status
o Following 3 years of employment = (.0769 per hour on paid status

Except as noted, all accrual rates are expressed in terms of fractions of an hour earned
for every regularly scheduled hour worked on paid leave. Annual leave is not accrued
for any other hours. Annual leave is accumulated to the employee on a biweekly basis
coinciding with pay periods.

Annual leave credits shall be accrued for each pay period the employee is in full pay
status for a major portion of his/her regularly scheduled biweekly hours. Annual leave
is not accrued during leave of absence without pay. Hours of annual leave shall be
accumulated, provided that no employee may accumulate earned annual leave in
excess of 240 hours in a calendar year.

2.2  Annual Leave Use and Payout

a.

Not more than 240 hours of annual leave hours may be taken within any calendar
year, subject to staffing requirements. An employee shall be paid at his/her regular
hourly rate for each hour of annual leave time taken. Annual leave taken during a
biweekly period shall be charged before annual leave earned during that pay period is
credited.

Holidays as defined by Policy 601 occurring within the annual leave period will not
be counted against annual leave hours. An employee becoming ill while on annual
leave shall have leave charged to accrued sick leave upon request and upon
presentation of proper documentation.

Annual leave preferences shall be granted in order of seniority. For purposes of this
section, seniority is determined by the provisions of Policy 801.

Employees shall request annual leave by providing a minimum of 14 calendar days of
notice to the supervisor or department head. An exception to this 14 day requirement
may be granted by the supervisor or his/her designee after considering the
circumstances that warrant such exception and the convenience and conventionality
of the department.

If an employee on or before October 15th requests annual leave in-writing and his/her
request is denied for any reason at any time, the employee is entitled to payment for
any annual leave in excess of 240 hours that s/he requested to take and which s/he
would otherwise forfeit as the result of the denial of his/her request. The payment for
the employee's unused annual leave is capped at 60 hours per calendar year and must
be made to him/her no later than January 31st.

Page 12 of 14




f.  Anemployee becoming ill while on annual leave shall have leave taken while ill
charged to sick leave upon request and upon presentation of proper documentation.

2.3  Annual Leave Compensation at and After Termination

a. Employees voluntarily separated from employment shall lose all rights for computing
prior service upon re-employment by the employer.

b. Employees involuntarily terminated from employment shall be compensated at their
regular hourly rate for the total number of annual leave hours accrued, subject to the
employer’s limitations.

Page 13 of 14




RESPONSIBILITY FOR REVIEW: The County Personnel Director and/or Administrative
Officer will review this policy every 5 years or sooner as necessary.

Page 14 of 14




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 5 ( 5 { 15 Estimate of time required: 0 - 5

Agenda: Consent [x] Regularagenda[] Public hearing required [ )

1. Title: Business License First Readings

2. Recommended motion; None required (if approved as part of the Consent Agenda)
I move to approve all first readings (if removed from consent agenda by request)

3. Prepared by: Stacey Bucchianeri
Department: Community Development Telephone: 847-0966
4. Staff summary: First readings of submitted business license applications are normally

approved on the consent agenda. The applications are then submitted at the next
Commissioners’ meeting for approval.

5. Supporting materials: See attached Agenda Letter

6. Fiscal impact: None
Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller

7. Legal review required: None
District Attomey

8. Reviewed by:
x__ Department Department Name: Community Development

—_—

@(Qﬁmﬁy Manager Other agency review:;

9. Board action:
[] Approved
[] Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued

—r—
e

Agenda Item No.




Storey County Community Bevelopment
Buginess

P O Box 526 « Virginia City NV 89440 « (775) 847-0966 - Fax (775) 847-0935 - buslic@storeycounty.org

To: Vanessa Stephens, Clerk’s Office April 27, 2015
Pat Whitten, County Manager Via email
Fr: Stacey Bucchianeri

Please add the following item(s) to the May 5, 2015, COMMISSIONERS Consent Agenda:

LICENSING BOARD
FIRST READINGS:

QEREPAR>

ec.

SOUTHWEST STEEL, LL.C — Contractor / 280 Sunpac Ave ~ Henderson (steel erector)

LEGACY SPECIALTIES, INC. — Contractor / 2567 Nowlin Road #104 ~ Minden (drywall contractor)
ASPEN DEVELOPMENTS CORP — Contractor / 2340 East Fifth Street ~ Reno (excavation contractor)
COMSTOCK CHRONICLE OF VIRGINIA CITY — HB /2187 Main Street ~ Gold Hill {(newspaper)
NOTHING BUT SKULLS VIRGINIA CITY NV — General / 11 North C Street (Retail Sales) VC
REDTALON ENTERPRISES, LLC ~ HB /21540 Sazarac Rd (FFL Type 7, Firearms R&D)  VCH
ARNOLD MACHINERY COMPANY — Contractor / 2975 West 2100 South ~ Salt Lake City

Inspection Required

Chris Hood, Building Dept. Gary Hames, Fire Dept. Sheriff’s Office
Austin Osborne, Planning Dept. Patty Blakely, Fire Dept. Assessor’s Office
Dean Haymore, Economic Dev. Fritz Klingler, Fire Dept.




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: May 5, 2015 : Estimate of time required: 10 min.

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [X] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Discussion and possible action to approve a cooperative agreement with the State of
Nevada Department of Taxation specifying the dates and procedure for distribution to Storey County
of the Economic Diversification District No. 1 revenues pledged pursuant to Ordinance No. 14-260
and a Reimbursement Agreement with Tesla.

2. Recommended motion: I move to approve the agreement between Storey County and the State of
Nevada Department of Taxation specifying the dates and procedure for distribution to Storey County
of the Economic Diversification District No. 1 revenues pledged pursuant to Ordinance No. 14-260
and a Reimbursement Agreement with Tesla.

3. Prepared by: Bill Maddox and Robert Morris, outside counsel
Department: District Attorney’s Office Tel: 847-0964

4, Staff summary:

This cooperative agreement requires the Nevada Department of Taxation to administer and
enforce all provisions of Storey County Code chapter 3.50 pertaining to the collection of all sales
and use taxes pledged to Tesla pursuant to section 3.50.050 of the chapter. This matter was on the
Board’s on March 5, 2015, but was continued so it could be considered at the same time as the
Governmental Services Agreement with Tesla.

(Continued on next page.)

5. Supporting materials: The Cooperative Agreement between Storey County and Nevada Dept. of
Taxation for Economic Diversification District No. 1 (FESLA)

6. Fiscal impact: None
7. Legal review required: Yes District Attorney

8. Reviewed by:
Department Head Department Name: Commissioner’s Office

County Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[1 Approved [] Approved with Modifications
[] Denied [] Continued

Agenda [tem No.




4. Staff summary continued:

The agreement further requires Storey County to notify the Nevada Department of
Taxation of each participant that is located within and remits taxes generated within District No. 1
and is further required to notify the Department any time a Participant ceases doing business in
District No. 1.

The agreement requires the Nevada Department of Taxation to distribute to Storey County,
on a monthly basts, an amount equal to one hundred percent (100%) of the sales and use taxes
pledged to Tesla pursuant to section 3.50.050 of the Ordinance as permitted by S.B. 1, 28" Special
Sess. (Nev. 2014) (Economic Diversification Act). With each distribution, the Nevada Department
of Taxation must provide the Storey County Comptroller with a monthly statement setting forth
the amount collected. Distributions by the Nevada Department of Taxation to Storey County
pursuant to this Agreement will cease on June 30, 2034.

In the agreement, Storey County agrees that the Nevada Department of Taxation has the
power to make all necessary rules and regulations and prescribe all necessary forms or other
requirements for the purpose of making the administration of the Ordinance effective. [further,
Storey County agrees that the Nevada Department of Taxation has all the powers, duties, and
responsibilities as provided by Storey County Code chapter 3.50 and all other State laws pertaining
to the collection of sales and use taxes.




COOPERATIVE AGREEMENT
BETWEEN STOREY COUNTY AND NEVADA DEPARTMENT OF TAXATION FOR
ECONOMIC DIVERSIFICATION DISTRICT NO. 1 (TESLA})

This Cooperative Agreement (the “Agreement”)is made and entered into as of this 5™ day
of May, 2015, to be refroactive to October 17, 2014 (the “Effective Date™), by and between
Storey County, Nevada, a political subdivision of the State of Nevada and the State of Nevada
Department of Taxation (the “Department™), collectively the “Parties.”

RECITALS

Whereas, Storey County, through its Board of County Commissioners, and consistent
with S.B. 1, 28" Special Sess. (Nev. 2014) known here as the Economic Diversification Act, has
established the Storey County Economic Diversification District No. 1 (Tesla) (“District No. 17)
by enacting Ordinance No. 14-260, adding chapter 3.50 to the Storey County Code (the
“Ordinance™) effective upon passage and execution of a Governmental Services Agreement
pursuant to sec. 3.50.110 of the Ordinance; and

Whereas, the Economic Diversification Act further provides that after the adoption of the
Ordinance creating District No. 1, Storey County must enter into an agreement with the
Department specifying the dates and procedure for distribution to Storey County of the District
No. 1 Revenues pledged pursuant to the Ordinance and the Reimbursement Agreement with
Tesla.

Now therefore, in consideration of the premises set forth above and the mutual covenants
and promises set forth in this Agreement, and for other good and valuable consideration, the
receipt and sufficiency of which is acknowledged, Storey County and the Department agree as
follows:

1. The Department shall administer and enforce all provisions of Storey County Code
chapter 3.50 pertaining to the collection of all sales and use taxes pledged to Tesla pursuant to
section 3.50.050 of the chapter.

2. Storey County will notify the Department, using a notice which is substantially in the
form attached hereto as Exhibit A, of each Participant, as that term is defined in chapter 3.50,
that is located within and remits sales/use taxes generated within District No, 1. These taxes
must be administered in accordance with this Agreement. Storey County will further notify the
Department any time the County receives information that a Participant ceases doing business in
District No. 1, using a notice substantially in the form attached hereto as Exhibit B.

3. The Department shall distribute to Storey County, on a monthly basis, an amount equal
to one hundred percent (100%) of the sales and use taxes pledged to Tesla pursuant to section
3.50.050 of the Ordinance as permitted by the Economic Diversification Act. With each
distribution, the Department shall provide the Storey County Comptroller with a monthly
statement setting forth the amount collected. Distributions by the Department to Storey County

Execution Copy




pursuant to this Agreement shall cease on June 30, 2035.

4. Storey County agrees that the Department shall have the power to make all necessary
rules and regulations and prescribe all necessary forms or other requirements for the purpose of
making the adminisiration of the Ordinance effective.

5. The Department has all the powers, duties, and responsibilities as provided by Storey
County Code chapter 3.50 and all other State laws pertaining to the collection of sales and use
taxes.

6. If any term or provision of this Agreement is deemed to be invalid or
unenforceable to any extent, the remainder of this Agreement will not be affected, and each
remaining term and provision of this Agreement will be valid and be enforced to the fullest
extent permitted by law.

7. No waiver of any breach of any covenant or provision contained in this Agreement will
be deemed a waiver of any preceding or succeeding breach thereof or of any other covenant or
provision contained herein. No extension of time for performance of any obligation or act will
be deemed an extension of the time for performance of any other obligation or act except those
of the waiving Party, which will be extended by a period of time equal to the period of the delay.

8. Neither of the Parties may assign any of the rights or delegate any of the duties of this
Agreement without the express written consent of the other Party and Tesla Motors, Inc. as the
intended third-party beneficiary of this Agreement.

9. Except as otherwise expressly provided, this Agreement (including all Exhibits
attached hereto) constitutes the entire contract between the Parties hereto and may not be
modified except by an instrument in writing signed by the Parties.

10. The Parties expressly agree that this Agreement will be governed by, interpreted
under, and construed and enforced in accordance with the laws of the State of Nevada. Any
action to enforce this Agreement must be filed in the First Judicial District Court of the State of
Nevada.

11. This Agreement may be executed on one or more counterparts, each of which shall be

regarded as an original and all of which shall constitute the same Agreement.

SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS

Execution Copy




IN WITNESS WHEREQOF, cach of the Parties has caused this Agreement
executed on its behalf by an authorized representative.

STOREY COUNTY

Dated this _ day of May, 2015.

By:

Marshall McBride, Chair

Storey County Board of County Commissioners
APPROVED AS TO FORM:
By:

County District Attorney

DEPARTMENT OF TAXATION

Dated this ___ day of May, 2015.

By:

Deonne E. Contine

Executive Director

Nevada Department of Taxation
APPROVED AS TO FORM:
By:

Deputy Attorney General

Executicn Copy

to be duly




EXHIBIT A

NOTICE TO DEPARTMENT OF TAXATION

Name of Business: (the "Business")

Business Address:

Department of Taxation Identification Number for Business:

Storey County hereby notifies the Department of Taxation that the Business is located within the
Storey County Economic Diversification District No. 1 (Tesla) ("District No. 1") and is a
Participant in the Project. The Business remits sales and use tax revenues generated within the
District, other than the amount for which the Business has received an abatement, and such
revenues shall be administered in accordance with the Cooperative Agreement between Storey
County and Nevada Department of Taxation for Economic Diversification District No. 1 {Tesla)
dated as of May 5, 2015, retroactive to October 17, 2014.

STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA

By:

Printed Name and Title Date

Execution Copy




Exhibit B

NOTICE TO DEPARTMENT OF TAXATION

Name of business: (the "Business")

Business address:

Department of Taxation Identification Number for business:

Storey County notifies the Department of Taxation that the Business is no longer a Participant in
the Project in the Storey County Economic Diversification District No. 1 (Tesla).

STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA

By:

Printed name and title Date

Execution Copy




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: May 5, 2015 Estimate of time required: 10 min.

Agenda: Consent { ] Regular agenda [X] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Discussion and possible action to approve the Reimbursement Agreement for Storey
County Economic Diversification District No. 1 between Storey County and Tesla.

2. Recommended meotion: I move to approve the Reimbursement Agreement for Storey County
Economic Diversification District No. 1 between Storey County and Tesla.

3. Prepared by: Robert Morris, outside counsel
Department: District Attorney’s Office Tel: 847-0964

4, Staff summary:

The Economic Diversification Act, S.B. 1, 28" Special Sess. {(Nev. 2014) allows Storey
County to create an economic diversification district to provide economic development incentives
and pledge an amount equal to the proceeds of all the sales and use taxes as reimbursement
payments for the costs incurred by the lead participant. The Board has passed Ordinance 14-260
creating the Storey County Economic Diversification District No. 1. Ordinance 14-260 is not
effective until Storey County enters an agreement with one or more owners of property in the district
to defray in whole or in part the cost of local government services.

(Continued on next page.)

5. Supporting materials: Reimbursement Agreement

6. Fiscal impact: None

7. Legal review required: Yes ___ District Attorney

8. Reviewed by:
Department Head Department Name: Commissioner’s Office

Q}U\ﬁ’cﬁuﬂty Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved
[] Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued

T r—

Agenda Item No.




4. Staff summary continued:

The Economic Diversification Act, section 33 and Storey County Code section 3.50.090,
authorize the governing body to enter into a reimbursement agreement with the lead participant in
a qualified project to reimburse the costs of acquiring, improving or equipping the project from the
sales and use tax collected in the District. These reimbursements are secured by a pledge of, and
payable from, any money pledged by Story County Code section 3.50.050. The State of Nevada
Department of Taxation pursuant to the Cooperative Agreement with Storey County will distribute
100% of the sales and use tax collected in the District to Storey County, which will in tum
reimburse Tesla for audited claims submitted to the county.




REIMBURSEMENT AGREEMENT
for Storey County Economic Diversification District No. 1 (Tesla)

between Storey County and Tesla

This Reimbursement Agreement (the “Agreement”), is made and entered into as of this
___day of May, 2015, to be retroactive to October 17, 2014 (“Effective Date™) by and between
TESLA MOTORS, INC., a Delaware corporation, having offices at Electric Avenue, Sparks,
Nevada 89434 (“Tesla” or “Lead Participant”), and STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA, a political
subdivision of the State of Nevada. Tesla and Storey County are referred to collectively as the
“Parties.”

RECITALS

Whereas, pursuant to S.B. 1, 28™ Special Sess. (Nev. 2014), (the “Economic
Diversification Act”), Storey County has the power to create an economic diversification district
for the development of property within the jurisdiction of Storey County for the purpose of
acquiring, improving, equipping, and developing a qualified project; and

Whereas on November 12, 2014, the Board of County Commissioners of Storey County,
Nevada (the “Board”) first publicly read Ordinance No. 14-260, the Economic Diversification
District Creation Ordinance (the “Ordinance”); and

Whereas on December 2, 2014, the Board adopted the Ordinance creating Storey County
Economic Diversification District No. 1 (Tesla) in Storey County, Nevada (“District No. 17}, to
be effective upon passage and execution of a Governmental Services Agreement pursuant to sec.
3.50.110 of the Ordinance, The Ordinance sets forth District No. 1°s boundaries, as well as a
general description of Tesla’s battery manufacturing facility within District No. 1 (the “Project™).

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises set forth above and the mutual
covenants and promises set forth in this Agreement, and for other good and valuable
consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is acknowledged, the Parties agree as follows:

1. Term. This Agreement will remain in effect from the Effective Date set forth above
until June 30, 2033, the statutory date for termination of District No. 1, unless sooner terminated
under the provisions of this Agreement (the “Term™).

2. Project,

(a) The Ordinance irrevocably pledges an amount equal to the proceeds of all sales and
use taxes imposed on or owed by each participant, as that term is defined in the Economic
Diversification Act {a “Participant™), in the Project with regard to tangible personal property
purchased for use in District No. 1, or stored, used or otherwise consumed in District No. 1 by a
Participant in a transaction occurring after October 17, 2014 which is subject to sales and/or use
tax in Storey County, other than the amount of any local sales and use taxes for which a
Participant has received an abatement pursuant to an Economic Diversification Act application
approved by the Governor’s Office of Economic Development (“District No. I Revenues™).
Storey County shall use all District No. | Revenues as Monthly Reimbursement Payments (as
defined in section 7 of this Agreement) to reimburse the Lead Participant for all costs incurred
by, on behalf of, or for the benefit of the Lead Participant by a Participant in District No. 1 after

1
Draft 4-13-2015




October 17, 2014 in connection with acquiring, improving, equipping, or developing or any
combination thereof, the Project within District No. 1 as well as related reasonable interest and
financing costs as permitted by the Economic Diversification Act (collectively, “Project Costs™).
Specifically, Project Costs shall include, without limitation, any of the following costs of any
Participant in District No. 1 (without mentioning minor details) incurred after October 17, 2014:

i. Any real property acquisition, site preparation, infrastructure and building
construction, and real property improvements, together with any and all costs incurred in
acquiring, operating or maintaining machinery, equipment, and other items of tangible personal
property necessary, useful or desirable in connection with the Project;

ii. Costs of the Project including, but not limited to, expenses for architects,
engineers, attorneys and other consultants and other costs of the Project; and

iii. Any other costs currently allowed under the Nevada statutes, including, but
not limited to, any additional expenses qualified under the Economic Diversification Act.

(b) Project Costs include, without limitation, eligible costs incurred by any Participants
added to the Project after the Effective Date of this Agreement,

{c) All contractors and subcontractors selected by Tesla to acquire, improve, equip, or
develop the Project must be properly licensed in accordance with the laws of the State of
Nevada, as applicable.

3. Pledge.

(a) Reimbursement Payments Secured. Any and all Reimbursement Payments shall
be secured by a pledge of, and shall be payable from, any and all money pledged and received by
Storey County from the Nevada Department of Taxation pursuant to the Economic
Diversification Act with respect to District No. 1.

(b) Pledge of District No. 1 Revenues. Storey County hereby irrevocably pledges
the District No. 1 Revenues to the Lead Participant. Such pledge is intended to convey the
District No. 1 Revenues to the Lead Participant absolutely.

(c) Additional Pledges Prohibited. Storey County covenants that it shall not make any
pledge of District No. 1 Revenues to any party other than the Lead Participant.

4. Indemnification. To the extent permitted by law, Tesla agrees to protect, indemnify,
defend and hold Storey County, its respective officers, employees, consultants and agents and
each of them (the “Indemnitees™) harmless from and against any and all claims, causes of action
or liability (collectively, the “Losses”, and each a “Loss”) which any of the Indemnitees may
suffer or which may be sought against or recovered or obtained from any of the Indemnitees as a
result of or by reason of or arising out of breach of this Agreement. Notwithstanding anything to
the contrary contained herein, Tesla’s liability under this indemnity shall not apply to any Loss
arising from the negligent or willful misconduct of an Indemnitee nor to any incidental, punitive,
exemplary, indirect or consequential damages, or lost revenue. This covenant shall survive
termination of this Agreement for whatever reason.

5. Cooperation; conflict.
(a) Cooperation. Storey County staff will work cooperatively with Tesla to assist in
coordinating the expeditious processing and consideration of all necessary permits, entitlements

2
Draft 4-13-2015




and approvals for construction and operation of the Project. Tesla acknowledges that the
execution of this Agreement by Storey County does not limit in any manner the discretion of
Storey County in the approval process, and does not relieve Tesla from the obligation to obtain
all necessary permits, entitlements and approvals for the construction and operation of the
Project.

(b) Conflict. Any conflict between the provisions of this Agreement and any present or
tuture lawful exercise of Storey County’s police powers shall be resolved in favor of the latter.
Subject to the right of Storey County’s police powers, in the event of a conflict between this
Agreement and any ordinance of general applicability (so long as the ordinance was not
intentionally designed to avoid any obligations of Storey County under this Agreement) such
conflict shall be resolved in favor of the ordinance.

6. Computation of reimbursement amount.

(a) Tesla shall only be entitled to be reimbursed for actual Project Costs incurred by, on
behalf of, or for the benefit of the Lead Participant by a Participant in connection with the
Project. The actual Project Costs of the Project shall be certified by Tesla monthly and must be
submitted to Storey County for review and approval. Storey County must cause an independent
auditor, mutually agreed to by the Parties, to review the submissions for accuracy and eligibility,
the cost of review to be paid by the Lead Participant.

(b) Storey County’s Comptroller shall calculate the Monthly Reimbursement Payment
pursuant to section 7 for each month during the Term of this Agreement.

(c) The total of all Monthly Reimbursement Payments shall not exceed the actual Project
Costs or the District No. 1 Revenues whichever is less.

7. Monthly Reimbursement Payments.

(a) During the Term, provided that no Event of Default, as defined in section 10 of this
Agreement, has arisen that remains uncured beyond any applicable notice and cure periods,
Storey County shall make monthly payments of the District No. 1 Revenues to Tesla for Project
Costs in an amount equal to the lesser of the aggregate amount of Project Costs incurred but not
yet reimbursed or the amount of District No. 1 Revenues received by Storey County but not yet
disbursed for the Project (the “Monthly Reimbursement Payments™).

(b) Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, with respect to the Monthly
Reimbursement Payments, subject to Storey County’s receipt of monthly distributions and
quarterly reports from the Nevada Department of Taxation (the “Department”), the Storey
County Comptroller shall cause all payments to be paid to Tesla on a monthly basis no later than
fifteen (15) days after the date on which such distributions from the Department are received by
Storey County. If any payment date falls on a Saturday, Sunday or state or federal holiday, such
payment will be made on, or by, the first business day following the scheduled payment date.

(c) Tesla shall notify the Department and Storey County of all Participants in the Project
and shall use reasonable efforts to cause all Participants within the Project to register with the
Department and Storey County and comply with sales and use tax accounting practices and
procedures for Participants within District No. 1. Tesla shall also notify the Department and
Storey County in the event that a Participant loses its status as a Participant in the Project.
Storey County shall not have any obligation to pay Tesla for any sales and use tax not reported,
underreported or misreported to the Department by any Participant within District No. 1.

Draft 4-13-2015




(d) In order to ensure that all District No. 1 Revenues generated during the construction
phase of the Project are correctly remitted to the Department, Tesla shall use reasonable efforts
to cause all contractors and subcontractors working on behalf of any Participant in the
construction of the Project to file monthly sales and/or use t{ax returns with the Department
which correctly report and remit District No. 1 Revenues.

(e) In order to ensure that all District No. 1 Revenues generated by the Project are
correctly remitted to the Department, Tesla shall use reasonable efforts to cause all Participants
in the Project to file monthly sales and/or use tax returns with the Department which correctly
report and remit District No. | Revenues.

(f) Tesla acknowledges that this Agreement is not secured by or payable from the general
fund of Storey County, the power of Storey County to levy ad valorem property taxes, or any
source other than any money pledged pursuant to the Economic Diversification Act and the
Ordinance and distributed to Storey County with respect to District No. 1, or any combination
thereof. This Agreement shall never become a general obligation of Storey County or a charge
against its general credit or taxing powers, or a debt of Storey County for purposes of any
limitation on indebtedness.

(g) Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, Storey County shall not make any
Monthly Retmbursement Payments if Storey County obtains an opinion from independent bond
counsel stating that its applicability would impair an existing contract for the sale of bonds that
were issued before September 11, 2014, the effective date of the Economic Diversification Act.

(h) Tesla shall provide to the Board a copy of the annual report and audit prepared
pursuant to the Economic Diversification Act at the same time the annual report and audit is
submitted to the State of Nevada.

8. Conditions precedent to payment. Storey County’s obligation to pay Monthly
Reimbursement Payments and any other amount accrued pursuant to this Agreement is
subject to satisfaction of all of the following conditions:

(a) Annual Report. Tesla has filed the report required by section 7(h) of this Agreement.

(b) Default. No Event of Default has arisen and remained uncured beyond any applicable
notice and cure period under this Agreement.

(¢) Storey County shall have received District No. 1 Revenues from the Department in
an amount which is sufficient to make the Monthly Reimbursement Payment.

(d) All predicate reports have been received by Storey County and the Department.
9. Maintenance of, access to, and audit of records.

(a) Records. Tesla’s books, documents, papers and records specifically relating to the
Project and this Agreement must be open to inspection and subject to audit, examination,
excerpts and (ransactions, during working hours by Storey County or its duly authorized
representatives. Upon reasonable written notice and request, Tesla shall make these records and
documents available for audit and inspection to Storey County, at Storey County’s office, at all
reasonable times, without charge, and must allow Storey County to make copies of the
documents (at no expense to Tesla).

(b) Retention of records. Tesla shall maintain all records and documents relating to the
Project (including copies of all original documents delivered to Storey County) for five years
after the expiration or earlier termination of this Agreement. Records to be retained include all

4
Draft 4-13-2015




books and other evidence bearing on Project Costs under this Agreement. If approved by Storey
County, photographs, microphotographs or other authentic reproductions may be maintained
instead of original records and documents.

(c) Public records law. Tesla acknowledges and agrees that, subject to the limitations and
protections of the Economic Diversification Act, all records, documents, drawings, plans,
specifications and other materials in Storey County’s possession, including materials submitted
by Tesla, are subject to the provisions of the Nevada Public Records Law (NRS 239.005 ef seq.).
Tesla shall be solely responsible for all determinations made by it under such law, and for clearly
and prominently marking each and every page or sheet of materials with “Trade Secret”,
“Proprietary” or “Confidential” as it determines to be appropriate. Tesla is advised to contact
legal counsel and the Storey County District Attorney concerning such law and its application to
Tesla.

(d) Reports. Upon request, Tesla shall provide to Storey County such information as may
be reasonably required by Storey County to fulfill its annual public reporting obligations as
required pursuant to the Ordinance.

10. Defaults and remedies. The following shall constitute an Event of Default by Tesla
under this Agreement:

(a) Any representation, covenant or warranty contained in this Agreement or in any
financial statement, certificate or report submitted to Storey County in connection with this
Agreement which proves to have been incorrect in any material and adverse respect when made
and continues to be materially adverse to Storey County after expiration of the cure period set
forth below; or

(b) A court having jurisdiction has made or entered any decree or order (1) adjudging
Tesla to be bankrupt or insolvent, (2) approving as properly filed a petition secking
reorganization of Tesla or seeking any arrangement for Tesla under the bankruptcy law or any
other applicable debtor's relief law or statute of the United States or any state or other
jurisdiction, (3) appointing a receiver, trustee, liguidator, or assignee of Tesla in bankruptcy or
insolvency or for any of its properties, or (4) directing the winding up or liquidation of Tesla; or

(c) Tesla shall have assigned its assets for the benefit of its creditors (other than pursuant
to a security instrument) or suffered a sequestration or attachment of or execution on any
substantial part of its property, unless the property so assigned, sequestered, attached or executed
upon shall have been returned or released within sixty (60) days after such event; or

(d) Any material violation of a material provision of this Agreement, which remains
uncured within the time set forth below; or

(e) Tesla, as lead participant in the Project, is determined to be in default of that certain
Agreement for Tax Abatements and Incentives, effective October 17, 2014, between it and the
State of Nevada, acting through the Governor’s Office of Economic Development, and all
appeals have been exhausted or the time period for such appeals has lapsed.

Upon the occurrence of an Event of Default hereunder, Storey County shall first notify

Tesla in writing of its purported breach or failure, giving Tesla sixty (60) days from receipt of
such notice to cure or, if cure cannot be accomplished within sixty (60) days, to commence to
cure such breach, failure or act. In the event Tesla does not then so cure, or commence to cure,
within sixty (60) days, Storey County shall have the right to terminate this Agreement and pursue
all rights and remedies available in law and in equity.

3
Draft 4-13-2015




11. Remedies Cumulative. The rights and remedies of the Parties under this Agreement
are cumulative, and the exercise or failure to exercise one or more of these rights or remedies by
cither Party will not preclude the exercise by it, at the same time or different times, of any right
or remedy for the same default or any other default.

12. Prohibition on Assignment or Transfer. Except as provided below, Tesla shall not
directly or indirectly, voluntarily, involuntarily or by operation of law make or attempt any total
or partial sale, transfer, conveyance, assignment or hypothecation (collectively “Transfer”) of the
whole or any part of this Agreement without the prior written approval of Storey County, which
will not be unreasonably withheld or delayed. Any such attempt to Transfer this Agreement
without Storey County’s consent will be null and void and will confer no rights or privileges
upon the purported assignee and will constitute an Event of Default. Notwithstanding the
foregoing, Tesla’s rights hereunder with respect to the Project may be transferred to (i) any
affiliate of Tesla; or (ii) any person or entity to whom Tesla’s rights with respect to the Project
are transferred in compliance with the transfer/assignment provisions of any applicable
agreement between Tesla and Storey County.

13. Survival. The provisions of sections 4 and 9 of this Agreement shall survive the
termination or expiration of this Agreement for whatever reason.

14, No Third-party Rights. The Parties expressly disclaim the creation of any right in
any third party whatsoever under this Agreement. There are no third-party beneficiaries.

15. Notices. All notices and other communications to be given by either Party may be
given in writing, depositing the same in the United States mail, postage prepaid and addressed to
the appropriate Party as follows:

To Tesla: Tesla Motors, Inc.
Electric Avenue
Sparks, Nevada 89434
Attn;
Phone:

With Copy to: Alex B. Leath
Bradley Arant Boult Cummings LLP
1819 Fifth Avenue North
Birmingham, Alabama 35203
Phone: (205) 521-8899

To Storey County: Attn: County Manager
Storey County
P.O. Box 176
6

Draft 4-13-2015




Virginia City, NV 89440
Phone: (775) 847-0968
Fax: (775) 847-0949

Any Party may change its address for notice by written notice to the other Party at any time.

16. Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed on one or more counterparts, each
of which shall be regarded as an original and all of which shall constitute the same Agreement.

17. Severability. If any section, subsection, clause, phrase, or word of this Agreement is
for any reason held invalid, unenforceable or unconstitutional by any court of competent
jurisdiction, such section, subsection, clause, phrase, or word shall be deemed a separate, distinct
and independent provision and such holding shall not negatively affect the validity of the
remaining portions of this Agreement.

18. Applicable law. This Agreement shall be interpreted and enforced under the laws of
the State of Nevada. Jurisdiction for all matters triable before a state court shall be in the First
Judicial District Court of the State of Nevada.

19. Amendment. Tesla and Storey County agree to mutually consider reasonable
requests for amendments to this Agreement that may be made by any of the Parties hereto,
provided the requests are consistent with this Agreement and would not substantially alter the
basic business terms included herein. Only the Board is authorized to execute any amendments
to this Agreement on behalf of Storey County. Any alteration, change or modification of or to
this Agreement, in order to become effective, will be made in writing and in each instance signed
on behalf of each Party. No purported oral amendment to this Agreement shall be valid.

20. Miscellaneous. Paragraph headings are for convenience only and do not effect, limit
or modify the content of the provisions of this Agreement. Use of the masculine, feminine, or
neuter shall not limit the application of any provision of this Agreement, but each such gender is
deemed to include all other gender cases, just as the singular includes the plural, and the plural
the singular.

21. Entire agreement. This Agreement is the entire Agreement of the Parties and
supersedes all prior negotiations whether written or oral.

In witness whereof, the parties have executed this Agreement the day and year first
written above.

SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS

Draft 4-13-2015




TESLA: STOREY COUNTY:

TESLA MOTORS, INC. STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
By: By:
Name: Marshall McBride, Chair
ATTEST:
By:
Storey County Clerk

APPROVED AS TO FORM

By:

District Attorney’s Office

Draft 4-13-2015




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: May 5, 2015 Estimate of time required: 30 min.

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [X] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Discussion and possible action to approve the Governmental Services Agreement for Storey
County Economic Diversification District No. 1 between Storey County, Storey County Fire
Protection District and Tesla.

2. Recommended motion: Being Developed

3. Prepared by: Robert Morﬁs, outside counsel Pat Whitten, County Manager
Department: District Attorney’s & Commissioner’s Office Tel: 847-0964/847-0968

4. Staff summary:

This Governmental Services Agreement was under negotiation at the time of the agenda
being closed. There may be alternatives presented or additional changes to the document that
will be discussed at the meeting. Staff and counsel will endeavor to provide the Commission
and the Public with as much advance knowledge and opportunity to review may be
practicable.

5. Supporting materials: Governmental Services Agreement
6. Fiscal impact: The agreement will provide additional revenue for governmental services.
7. Legal review required: Ycs District Attorney

8. Reviewed by:
Department Head Department Name: Commissioner’s Office

(“%s*,_~€otinty Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved
[] Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued

—r—
| N E—

Agenda Item No.




GOVERNMENTAL SERVICES AGREEMENT
for Storey County Economic Diversification District No. 1 (Tesla)

between Storey County, Storey County Fire Protection District, and Tesla

This Governmental Services Agreement (the “Agreement”) is made and entered into as of
this ___ day of May, 2015, to be retroactive to October 17, 2014 (the “Effective Date”) by and
among TESLA MOTORS, INC., a Delaware corporation, having offices at Electric Avenue,
Sparks, Nevada 89434 (“Tesla” or “Lead Participant”), STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA a
political subdivision of the State of Nevada (the “County”) and the STOREY COUNTY FIRE
PROTECTION DISTRICT, a political subdivision of the State of Nevada (the “Fire District”).
Tesla and the County and the Fire District are referred to as the “Parties.”

RECITALS

Whereas, pursuant to S.B. 1, 28th (2014) Special Session of the Nevada
Legislature, (the “Economic Diversification Act”), the County has the power to create an
economic diversification district for the development of property within the jurisdiction of the
County for the purpose of acquiring, improving, equipping, and developing a qualified project;
and

Whereas, pursuant to the Economic Diversification Act, section 35, the County
may enter info an agreement with an owner of any interest in property located within an
economic diversification district, pursuant to which that owner would agree to make payments to
the County or other local government that provides services within the economic diversification
district, to defray in whole or in part the cost of providing governmental services within the
district; and

Whereas, pursuant to the Economic Diversification Act, section 31, the Board of
County Commissioners of Storey County, Nevada (the “Board™) has adopted Ordinance No. 14-
260, the Economic Diversification District Creation Ordinance (the “Ordinance”) creating Storey
County Economic Diversification District No. 1 (Tesla) in Storey County, Nevada (the
“District”) which becomes effective on approval and execution of this Agreement; and

Whereas the County and the Fire District will provide governmental services
within the District including, but not limited to, fire protection, sheriff, assessor and emergency
medical; and

Whereas, the Parties all acknowledge that, as a result of the abatement of sales and
usc tax and property tax that the County would normally receive to pay for governmental
services within the district, there is a resulting budgetary difficulty facing the County and the
Fire District in providing governmental services within the District; and

Whereas, Tesla, as the Lead Participant in the District, desires to assist the County
by making payments to the County intended to enable the County and the Fire District to provide
governmental services in the District during this period of budgetary difficulty; and

Whereas, in an effort to address the situation just described and to fulfiil the
Economic Diversification Act, Section 35, Tesla, together with the County and the Fire District,

Draft 4-27-15 1




all desire to set forth the terms pursuant which Tesla will make payments to the County to defray
in whole or in part the cost of providing the governmental services within the District during the
term of this Agreement.

Now, therefore, in consideration of the premises set forth above and the mutual
covenants set forth in this Agreement, and for other good and valuable consideration, the receipt
and sufficiency of which is acknowledged, the Parties agree as follows:

1. Term. This Agreement will remain in effect (the “Term”) from the Effective Date until
June 30™ 2024, unless sooner terminated under the provisions of this Agreement.

2. Governmental services to be provided. The County and Fire District, including, as
applicable, such divisions of the County as the sheriff’s office, the assessor’s office, emergency
management and fire protection and emergency medical services units, shall provide the
following “Governmental Services” to the standard and in the quantities described in this
Agreement, and in any cvent, at a service level not less than provided by the County to other
commercial enterprises located within the County (the “Base Level of Services™).

Governmental Services means the following services, as more particularly described on
Exhibit A to this Agreement, which will be provided by the County and Fire District, as
applicable, within and throughout the District for the benefit of all Participants in the District:

Sheriff services,

- Fire protection and emergency medical services,
- Assessor and tax appraisal services,

- Road maintenance and clearing services on County-owned roads with public
access, and

- Administrative assistance within the recording office, community
development office, Sheriff's office, District Attorney’s office, and
emergency management office.

3. Compliance with Base Levels of Services.

(a) In the absence of extenuating circumstances and subject to the factors described
elsewhere in this Section 3, the County and Fire District agree to provide the Base Level of
Services for each of the Governmental Services throughout the Term of this Agreement.

(b)  The Base Level of Services assumes an average level of demand and activity, and
the Parties recognize that Governmental Services provided on any particular day or period may
vary based upon special circumstances. However, the expectation is that the County and Fire
District will perform cach of the Governmental Services at no less than the Base Level of
Service, except as otherwise provided herein.

(c) The Base Level of Services may be adjusted to reflect new methodologies and
policies, provided that the basic intent of this Agreement is maintained in any adjustment.

Draft 4-27-15 2




(d}  In the event of extreme emergency, as declared by the Chairman of Board of
County Commissioners or the Governor of the State of Nevada, Governmental Services may be
temporarily suspended in all or part of the District, to the extent required by such emergency.
The Parties acknowledge that such circumstances are likely to be highly unusual and temporary
in nature.

4. Computation of Governmental Services Amount. Each year during the term of this
Agreement, Tesla, as an owner of a property interest within the District, agrees to pay the
amount determined pursuant to Section 5 below to defray, in whole or in part, the costs of the
Governmental Services provided by the County and Fire District in the District. The Parties
agree the amounts to be paid by Tesla will be used primarily by the County and Fire District to
provide Governmental Services in the District.

5. Payment for Governmental Services. Tesla agrees to pay the following annual
amounts, based upon a June 30™ fiscal year, to the County to defray, in whole or in part, the cost
of the Governmental Services provided in the District by the County and Fire District during the
term of this Agreement:

Annual Fee
2016 $ 881,203
2017 $ 947,390
2018 $ 964,004

Projected Annual Fee
2019 $ 385,463
2020 $ 418,061
2021 $ 424,773
2022 $ 515,324
2023 $ 523,061
2024 $ 532,164

The costs of necessary equipment, including the principal and interest costs the Fire
District incurs by purchasing and equipping a quintuple combination pumper fire service
apparatus (“Quint”} valued at approximately $750,000 upon acquisition, will be included by the
Fire District each year in its budget for providing Governmental Services in the District.
Anticipated terms for the Quint are annual payments in the amount of $96,166 based on an
annual percentage rate of 2.99% amortized over a 9-year term. The actual amount included for
the Quint by the Fire District each year in its budget will be determined based on final
acquisition price and loan terms.

On or about April 1, 2018 and again on or about April 1, 2021, the Parties agree to meet
to re-determine Tesla’s annual fee payments to the County to defray, in whole or in part, the cost

Draft 4-27-15 3




of the Governmental Services provided in the District by the County and the Fire District during
the next succeeding three years of the term of this Agreement (County Fiscal Years ending in
2019-2021 and 2022-2024).

The amount of Tesla payments under this Section 5 shall be initially re-determined using
the average of two equally weighted factors measured as of February 28, 2018 and again as of
February 28, 2021.

(1) The District’s proportionate share of the total occupancy, measured through full-time
equivalent (“FTE") headcount, of the Tahoe Reno Industrial Center.

(2) The District’s proportionate share of the total assessed value of all real and personal
property located in the Tahoe Reno Industrial Center,

Factor (1) above shall be determined using FTE employment data obtained by the County
from County business license filings.

Factor (2) above shall be determined using the assessed value found on the County
property tax rolls.

The Parties will then adjust the amount of the payments determined using the preceding
calculation by taking into account such other factors as they consider relevant in determining the
Participant’s fair share of the costs of providing Governmental Services in the District.

Other factors which the Parties must consider in this re-determination include, without
limitation: (i) the Fire District and the County’s current budgetary condition and their resulting
ability to provide Governmental Services in the District without financial assistance from Tesla;
(i1) the incremental development that has occurred in the Tahoe Reno Industrial Center since the
Effective Date of this Agreement; (iii) the resulting impact this incremental development has had
on County and Fire District revenues; (iv) any increase in the level of Governmental Services
provided in the District that is agreed upon by the Parties; (v) Tesla’s historical usage of
Governmental Services in the District; (vi) Tesla’s proportionate share of the total square footage
under roof in the Tahoe Reno Industrial Center; and (vii} an assessment of the financial impact of
the District on the provision of local governmental services, including, without limitation,
services for police protection and fire protection in the County. Tesla understands that if
budgetary conditions within the District continue in years beyond 2018, Tesla will be asked to
continue making payments at levels above the actual factored amount. The County understands
that Tesla is under no obligation to make payments above the factored amount.

Exhibit B to this agreement contains the methodology and calculations for the projected
annual fees in this Section 5 and an example illustrating the application of the methodology.

Tesla shall pay in advance each annual amount provided for in this Section 5. Such
payments shall be made to the County on behalf of the Fire District and the County is
responsible for the disbursement of funds to the Fire District as appropriate. Such payments
shall be made in four equal installments on a quarterly basis (July 1, October 1, January 1, and
April 1).

6. Cooperation, non-exclusivity, conflict.

(a) The County and Fire District agree to cooperate and work together to provide Tesla
with the Governmental Services in the District. The Governmental Services provided by the
County and Fire District are for health, safety and welfare of the residents and businesses of the

Draft 4-27-15 4




County and payments under this agreement do not give Tesla any exclusive rights to the
Governmental Services provided.

(b) Conflict. Any conflict between the provisions of this Agreement and any present or
future lawful exercise of the County’s police powers shall be resolved in favor of the latter.

7. Public Records Law. Tesla acknowledges and agrees that, subject to the limitations
and protections of the Economic Diversification Act, all records, documents, drawings, plans,
specifications and other materials in the County’s possession, including materials submitted by
Tesla, are subject to the provisions of the Nevada Public Records Law (NRS 239.005 ef seq.).
Tesla shall be solely responsible for all determinations made by it under such law, and for clearly
and prominently marking each and every page or sheet of materials with “Trade Secret”,
“Proprietary” or “Confidential” as it determines to be appropriate.

8. Defaults and remedies.
The following shall constitute an Event of Default by Tesla under this Agreement:

(a) Any representation, covenant or warranty contained in this Agreement which proves
to have been incorrect in any material and adverse respect when made and continues to be
materially adverse to the County after expiration of the cure period set forth below; or

(b) A court having jurisdiction has made or entered any decree or order (1) adjudging
Tesla to be bankrupt or insolvent, (2) approving as properly filed a petition seeking
reorganization of Tesla or seeking any arrangement for Tesla under the bankruptcy law or any
other applicable debtor's relief law or statute of the United States or any state or other
jurisdiction, (3) appointing a receiver, trustee, liquidator, or assignee of the Tesla in bankruptcy
or insolvency or for any of its properties, or (4) directing the winding up or liquidation of Tesla;
or

(c) Tesla shall have assigned its assets for the benefit of its creditors (other than pursuant
to a security instrument) or suffered a sequestration or attachment of or execution on any
substantial part of its property, unless the property so assigned, sequestered, attached or executed
upon shall have been returned or released within sixty (60) days after such event; or

(d) Any violation of a material provision of this Agreement, which remains uncured
within the time set forth below.

Upon the occurrence of an Event of Default hereunder, the County shall first notify Tesla
in writing of its purported breach or failure, giving Tesla sixty (60) days from receipt of such
notice to cure or, if cure cannot be accomplished within sixty (60) days, to commence to cure
such breach, failure or act. In the event Tesla does not then so cure, or commence to cure, within
sixty (60) days, the County shall have the right to terminate this Agreement and pursue all rights
and remedies available in law and in equity.

9. Remedies Cumulative. The rights and remedies of the Parties under this Agreement
are cumulative, and the exercise or failure to exercise one or more of these rights or remedies by
either Party will not preclude the exercise by it, at the same time or different times, of any right
or remedy for the same default or any other default.

10. No Waiver. No failure or delay by either Party in asserting any of its rights or
remedies hereunder shall operate as a waiver of any default or of any such right or remedy, nor
deprive such Party of its right to institute and maintain any action or proceeding which it may
deem necessary to protect, assert or enforce any such rights or remedies. Without limiting the

Drafi 4-27-15 5




generality of the foregoing, the failure or delay by either Party in providing a notice of default
shall not constitute a waiver of any default.

11. Prohibition on Assignment or Transfer. Except as provided below, Tesla shall not
directly or indirectly, voluntarily, involuntarily or by operation of law make or attempt any total
or partial sale, transfer, conveyance, assignment or hypothecation (collectively “Transfer™) of the
whole or any part of this Agreement without the prior written approval of the County, which will
not be unreasonably withheld or delayed. Any such attempt to Transfer this Agreement without
the County’s consent will be null and void and will confer no rights or privileges upon the
purported assignee and will constitute an Event of Default. Notwithstanding the foregoing,
Tesla’s rights hereunder with respect to the Governmental Services may be transferred to (i) any
affiliate of Tesla; or (ii) any person or entity to whom the Tesla’s rights with respect to the
Gigafactory Project are transferred in compliance with the transfer/assignment provisions of any
applicable agreement between Tesla and the County.

12. No Third-party Rights. The Parties expressly disclaim the creation of any right in
any third party whatsoever under this Agreement, except those third parties that are also
Participants in the District. There are no third-party beneficiaries other than the Participants in
the District. Each participant in the District is deemed to be a third party beneficiary of this
Agreement.

13. Notices. All notices and other communications to be given by either Party may be
given in writing, depositing the same in the United States mail, postage prepaid and addressed to
the appropriate Party as follows:

To Tesla: Tesla Motors, Inc.
Electric Avenue
Sparks, Nevada 89434
Attn:
Phone:

With Copy to: Alex B. Leath
Bradley Arant Boult Cummings LLP
1819 Fifth Avenue North
Birmingham, Alabama 35203
Phone: (205) 521-8899

To the County: Attn: County Manager
Storey County
P.O.Box 176
Virginia City, NV 89440
Phone: (775) 847-0968

Any Party may change its address for notice by written notice to the other Party at any time.,

14. Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed on one or more counterparts, cach
of which shall be regarded as an original and all of which shall constitute the same Agreement.

Draft 4-27-15 6




15. Severability. If any section, subsection, clause, phrase, or word of this Agreement is
for any reason held invalid, unenforceable or unconstitutional by any court of competent
jurisdiction, such section, subsection, clause, phrase, or word shall be deemed a separate, distinct
and independent provision and such holding shall not negatively affect the validity of the
remaining portions of this Agreement.

16. Applicable law. This Agreement shall be interpreted and enforced under the laws of
the State of Nevada. Jurisdiction for all matters triable before a state court shall be in the First
Judicial District Court of the State of Nevada.

17. Amendment. Tesla, the County and the Fire District agree to mutually consider
reasonable requests for amendments to this Agreement (including any of the Exhibits hereto) that
may be made by any of the Parties hereto, provided the requests are consistent with this
Agreement and would not substantially alter the basic business terms mncluded herein. Only the
Board is authorized to execute any amendments to this Agreement on behalf of the County. Any
alteration, change or modification of or to this Agreement, in order to become effective, will be
made in writing and in each instance signed on behalf of each Party. No purported oral
amendment to this Agreement shall be valid.

18. Miscellaneous. Paragraph headings are for convenience only and do not effect, limit
or modify the content of the provisions of this Agreement. Use of the masculine, feminine, or
neuter shall not limit the application of any provision of this Agreement, but each such gender is
deemed to include all other gender cases, just as the singular includes the plural, and the plural
the singular.

19. Challenge to District. The County and Fire District hereby covenant not to provide
any challenge to the existence, organization or validity of the District, and further agree not to
amend the Ordinance without the prior written consent of Tesla, and hereby agree to provide
reasonable assistance to Tesla in defense of any such challenge by a third party.

20. Dispute Resolution. In the event that any dispute arises between the Parties for any
reason under or arising out of this Agreement, the Parties shall promptly meet to discuss the
dispute and work in good faith through fair dealing to seek a resolution. In the event that the
dispute is not resolved within the earlier of (i) thirty days from the date of such meeting or (ii)
sixty (60) days from the date of a Party’s request for such meeting to discuss the dispute, the
Parties will attempt to mediate the dispute using a professional mediator agreeable to both Parties
with business representatives present for at least one session. In the event the dispute is not
resolved through mediation, either Party may request to have the matter submitted to arbitration
by giving written notice to the other Party to such effect. Immediately upon the giving of such
notice, the Parties will attempt to select an arbitrator agreeable to both Parties. If the Parties
agree upon an arbitrator, the dispute shall be arbitrated and the proceedings shall be governed by
the rules and regulations established by the arbitrator. The location of the arbitration shall be in
the County unless otherwise agreed by the Parties, and shall be governed by the laws of the State
of Nevada. All decisions by the arbitrator(s) so chosen shall be final and binding upon both
Parties and may be enforced by either Party in a court of competent jurisdiction. To the extent
possible, the Party found to be at fault shall pay the cost of any such mediation or arbitration. If
the Parties cannot agree upon an arbitrator, the dispute shall be submitted to the First District
Court of the State of Nevada. The procedures specified herein shall be the sole and exclusive
procedures for the resolution of disputes between the Parties arising out of or relating to this
Agreement; however, either Party may at any time seek a preliminary injunction or other

Draft 4-27-15 7




preliminary judicial relief from the appropriate court or other jurisdictions as the circumstances
require to prevent irreparable or immediate damage. Nothing contained herein, shall restrict
either Party’s right to seek monetary damages in addition to or independent of injunctive relief.
Despite such action, the Parties will continue to participate in good faith in the procedures
specified herein, which shall survive any termination of this Agreement,

21. Entire agreement. This Agreement is the entire Agreement of the Parties and
supersedes all prior negotiations whether written or oral.

In witness whereof, the Parties have executed this Agreement the day and year first above
written.

TESLA: THE COUNTY AND FIRE DISTRICT
TESLA MOTORS, INC. STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
By: By:

Marshall McBride, Chair
Board of County Commissioners
Board of Fire Commissioners

Name:

ATTEST:

By:

County Clerk

APPROVED AS TO FORM

By:

District Attorney’s Office

Draft 4-27-15 8




EXHIBIT A

Governmental Services

In consideration of the annual payment by Tesla for governmental services set out in this
Agreement the County and the Fire District will provide the following services:

1. The Fire District will statf and operate a fire department at Storey County Fire Station
No. 75 during the term of this Agreement to the following minimum standards:

a.

Provide 6 full-time firefighter/paramedic (minimum) staffing level, with 2
personnel working 48 hours on duty followed by 96 hours off duty;

Maintain a minimum of 3 of the 6 personnel at a paramedic level certification,
which equates to at least 1 paramedic working for 48 hours on duty followed by
96 hours off duty;

Fire District will maintain this level of staffing unless an emergency exists as
declared by the Board of Fire Commissioners;

Fire District is responsible for providing adequate and appropriate training for all
fire fighter, EMS and paramedic personnel at their own expense;

Fire District will maintain one ALS equipped ambulance;
Fire District will maintain a Type I and/or Type Il engine at this fire station;

Fire District will be responsible to purchase and maintain all customary and usual
EMS gear as is provided in comparable fire departments/districts; and,

Fire District will strive to maintain at all times an ISO Public Protection
Classification Rating of 3 or less for fire suppression services.

2. Storey County will provide sheriff services for the District.

3. Storey County will provide emergency management services on an as-needed basis for
the District,

4. Storey County will provide the following administrative functions for the District:

a. Recording, assessor and appraiser services for real and personal property.

Draft 4-27-15




EXHIBIT B
Re-determination of Annual Fee Payments

The Projected Annual Payments in Section 5 were determined utilizing the following
assumptions and methodologies. Assume the following facts all as of February 28, 2018: The
total occupancy in the District 1s 1,500 people. The total occupancy in the Tahoe Reno Industrial
Center is 7,000 people. The total assessed value of all real and personal property located in the
District is $350 Million. The total assessed value of all real and personal property located in the
Tahoe Reno Industrial Center is $639.8 Million. Assume the following facts all as of February
28, 2021: The total occupancy in the District is 2,500 people. The total occupancy in the Tahoe
Reno Industrial Center is 10,000 people. The total assessed value of all real and personal
property located in the District is $700 Million. The total assessed value of all real and personal
property located in the Tahoe Reno Industrial Center is $1.062 Billion.

The projected budgets for providing Governmental Services in the District by the County
and the Fire District are:

Fiscal Year ending in 2019: $1,012,603
Fiscal Year ending in 2020: $1,098,237
Fiscal Year ending in 2021: $1,115,868
Fiscal Year ending in 2022: $1,133,852
Fiscal Year ending in 2023: $1,152,196
Fiscal Year ending in 2024: $1,170,906

Factor calculations are as follows:

2018

Occupancy factor - 21.43% (1,500/7,000)

Property factor - 54.70% ($350 Million/$639.8 Million)
Payment factor - 38.07% (76.13/2)

2021

Occupancy factor - 25% (2,500/10,000}

Property factor - 65.9% ($700 Million/$1.062 Billion)
Payment factor - 45.45% (90.9/2)

The initial calculation of Tesla’s payments to the County under this Section 5 would be
as follows:

Draft 4-27-15

For the Fiscal Year ending in 2019:
For the Fiscal Year ending in 2020:
For the Fiscal Year ending in 2021:
For the Fiscal Year ending in 2022:
For the Fiscal Year ending in 2023:
For the Fiscal Year ending in 2024:

10

$385,463 (38.07% of $1,012,603)
$418,061 (38.07% of $1,098,237)
$424,773 (38.07% of $1,115,868)
$515,324 (45.45% of $1,133,852)
$523,661 (45.45% of $1,152,196)
$532,164 (45.45% of $1,170,906)




The initial amounts above will then be adjusted by the Parties by taking into account
other factors in determining the Participant’s fair share of the costs of providing Governmental
Services in the District.

For example, suppose that subsequent development in the Tahoe Reno Industrial Center
has generated significant additional revenue to the County by Fiscal year 2019. Suppose further
that this additional revenue has improved the County’s financial position to the point that the
County can fund $750,000 of the $1,012,603 budget for Fiscal Year 2019. Assuming no other
factors suggest otherwise, Tesla’s payment to the County for Fiscal Year 2019 would be reduced
from $385,463 to $262,603.

Draft 4-27-15 11




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: May 5, 2015 Estimate of time required: 10 min.

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [] Public hearing required [X]

1. Title: Discussion and possible action to approve second reading of Ordinance 15-263 adding
section 3.50.200 to the Storey County Code providing for a pilot project for granting partial
abatements of permitting fees to participants in a qualified project in Economic Diversification
District No. 1 and providing for other properly related matters.

2. Recommended motion: I move to approve Ordinance 15-263.

3. Prepared by: Robert Morris, outside counsel
Department: District Attorney’s Office Tel: 847-0964

4. Staff summary:

S.B. 1, 28™ Special Sess. (Nev. 2014) allows Storey County to create an economic
diversification district and pledge an amount equal to the proceeds of all the sales and use taxes as
reimbursement payments for the costs incurred by the lead participant. The Board has passed
Ordinance 14-260 creating the Storey County Economic Diversification District No. 1. Ordinance
14-260 is not effective until Storey County enters an agreement with one or more owners of property
in the district to defray in whole or in part the cost of local government services,

Ongoing discussions on this ordinance resulted in changes so that staff asked that the board
reintroduce the amended ordinance on its April 7" meeting. The ordinance is now ready for
approval.

(Continued on next page.)

3. Supporting materials: Ordinance 15-263

6. Fiscal impact: None

7. Legal review required: Yes District Attorney
8. Reviewed by:
Depayggment Head Department Name: Commissioner’s Office
County Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved
[] Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued

—r—
bmsad bemmad

Agenda [tem No.




4. Staff summary continued:

The Economic Diversification Act or 8. B. 1, section 18, authorizes the governing body of
a county to grant to one or more of the participants in a qualified project an abatement of all or any
percentage of the amount of certain permitting fees and licensing fees imposed by the county if the
board provides by ordinance for a pilot project for the abatement of the fees.

The board may grant this abatement of certain fees for the purpose of encouraging local
economic development. After discussions, Tesla and county staff have agreed that the partial
abatements contained in Ordinance No. 15-263 will encourage local development. This partial
abatement is for ten years and covers the building official and fire district permitting, plan reviews,
and mspections for the Tesla factory project.




Ordinance No, 15-263

Summary

An ordinance providing for a pilot project for granting partial abatements of permitting or
licensing fees that the county is authorized to impose or charge pursuant to chapter 244 of NRS
to participants in a qualified project in an Economic Diversification District.

Title

An ordinance adding section 3.50.200 to the Storey County Code providing for
a pilot project for granting partial abatements of permitting or licensing fees to
participants in a qualified project in an Economic Diversification District and providing for
other properly related matters.

The Board of County Commissioners of the County of Storey, State of Nevada, does ordain:
SECTIONTI:

3.50.200 Title.
This ordinance is known as the “Permitting Fee Abatement Ordinance”.

3.50.210 Determinations of the board.

The board has determined that it intends to encourage local economic development by
granting to any participant in a qualified project in an Economic Diversification District an
abatement of all or any percentage of the amount of any permitting fee or licensing fee which the
county is authorized to impose or charge pursuant to chapter 244 of NRS.

3.50.220 Definitions.
The definitions contained in the Economic Diversification Act and the Economic
Diversification District are incorporated into and are adopted for use in this chapter.

3.50.230 Creation of the pilot project.

The board, for the purposes of encouraging local economic development, creates this pilot
project for granting partial abatements of permits, plan reviews, and inspection fees. The board
may determine, to the best of its ability, the amount of the abatement based on the anticipated
local economic development that the qualified project would bring to the county.

3.50.240 Abatement of fees.

A. The board finds that Tesla Motors, Inc. (“Tesla™) is a participant in a qualified project
within the county’s Economic Diversification District No. 1. The board has determined to grant
an abatement of permitting fees it is authorized to impose pursuant to chapter 244 of NRS for a
ten year period for building official and fire district permitting, plan reviews, and inspections for

Draft 5-5-2015




the factory project by fixing the following annual fees for each of the following fiscal years
ending June 30th:

Fiscal Year Ending June 30" Annual Fee
2015 $556,268
2016 $587,419
2017 $620,315
2018 $655,053
2019 $230,579
2020 $243,491
2021 $257,126
2022 $271,525
2023 $286,731
2024 $302,788

B. These fees are to be assessed on a fiscal year beginning on July 1, 2014,

C. The fees must be paid in advance on a quarterly basis (July 1, October 1, January 1, and
April 1.

D. These fee payments do not include payments by Tesla for additional plan reviews and
inspections that are performed by outside contractors.

E. During any year of the term of this abatement, the county may increase the annual fee
charged to Tesla during such year, with Tesla’s prior consent and approval, upon a showing by
the county to Tesla that the permitting, plan review and inspection activities required by Tesla
during such year have placed an extraordinary burden on county personnel.

F. Any abatement of fees by the County does not limit in any manner the discretion of the
County in the permitting approval process, and does not relieve the participant from the
obligation to obtain all necessary permits, entitlements and approvals for the construction of any
Project.

3.50.250 Annual report.

The board, if it grants an abatement pursuant to this chapter, must submit an annual report to
the governor and to the director of the Legislative Counsel Bureau for transmittal to the
legislature that includes for the immediately preceding fiscal year:

A. The number of qualified projects located within the jurisdiction of the board for which a
certificate of eligibility for transferable tax credits was approved.

B. The number and dollar amounts of the abatements granted by the board.

C. The number of persons within the jurisdiction of the board that were employed by each
participant in a qualified project and the amount of wages paid those persons.

Proposed on , 2015,

by Commissioner

Passed on , 2015,

Draft 5-5-2015




Vote: Ayes  Commissioners

Nays Commissioners
Absent Commissioners
Marshall McBride, Chair
Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Attest:

Vanessa Stephens
Clerk & Treasurer, Storey County

This ordinance will become effective on

Draft 5-5-2015 3




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: May 5, 2015 Estimate of time required: 15 min.

Agenda: Consent [ | Regular agenda [X] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: For Possible Action to approve the “INTERLOCAL CONTRACT FOR TEMPORARY
HOUSING OF JUVENILES AT MURPHY BERNARDINI JUVENILE DETENTION CENTER,”
which would increase the detention fees at such facility from $125 to $350 per day per juvenile.

2. Recommended motion: 1 move to approve the Interlocal Contract for Temporary Housing of
Juveniles at the Murphy Bernardini Juvenile Detention Center, which increases the detention fees at
such facility from $125 to $350 per day per juvenile.

3. Prepared by: Ben Bianchi
Department: Carson City Juvenile Detention Services Tel:

4. Staff summary:

Detention services at Carson City’s Murphy Bernardini Regional Juvenile Justice Center
(Center) include housing, feeding, and supervising detained youth, while providing schooling, and
intervention programs. Detained youth there also participate in recreational programming. The
Center extends its detention facility and services to juveniles from other local counties and
government agencies. The Center’s operating costs are extensive.

(Continued on next page.)

5. Supporting materials:  Interlocal Contract
Juvenile Probation Bed Counts by Jurisdiction

6. Fiseal impact: None
7. Legal review required: Yes District Attorney

8. Reviewed by:
-Department Head Department Name: Commissioner’s Office

QMounty Manager Other agency review:

5. Board action:
[] Approved
[] Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued

[ B |
[ S -

Agenda item No.




4. Staff summary continued:

The last increase for detention services provided by the Center, operated by Carson City Juvenile
Detention Services, was in September 2011, when the fee was raised from $110 per day to $125
per day — per juvenile. The daily population of this co-ed juvenile detention Center fluctuates
daily and is unpredictable. The daily cost, if the Center was at capacity (16 beds) 365 days per
year, would be $230.00 per day per juvenile. The actual daily cost per bed day at the Center is
much higher, because the average daily population is well below 16. At this time the Carson City
Juvenile Detention Services proposes to raise the rate from $125 per day per juvenile to $350 per
day per juvenile, which would facilitate the provision of reasonable compensation to Carson City
in light of the Center’s operating costs.




INTERLOCAL CONTRACT FOR TEMPORARY HOUSING OF JUVENILES
AT MURPHY BERNARDINI JUVENILE DETENTION CENTER
This Interlocal Contract for Temporary Housing of Juveniles at Murphy Bernardini
Juvenile Detention Center (hereinafter “Contract”), made and entered into this _ day of

, 20__, by and between Carson City, a consolidated municipality and

political subdivision of the State of Nevada (hereinafter “Carson City”) and __Storey

County , a political subdivision of the State of Nevada, hereinafter

referred to as “Agency”. The term “Parties” shall be a reference to both Carson City and

Agency.

WITNESSETH

WHEREAS, pursuant to Chapter 277.180 of the Nevada Revised Statutes, Carson City
may enter into interlocal contracts with other governmental entities to provide services; and

WHEREAS, Carson City owns and operates the Murphy Bernardini Juvenile Justice
Center (hereinafter “Center” or “Facility”), a juvenile holding facility for the First Judicial District
Court located in Carson City, Nevada, equipped for housing juvenile detainees; and

WHEREAS, it is often necessary for Agency to temporarily house juveniles under the
jurisdiction and care of Agency in Carson City; and

WHEREAS, Carson City is willing to allow juveniles under the jurisdiction and care of
Agency to be temporarily detained and housed at the Center under the terms and conditions
herein stated;

NOW THEREFORE, the Parties hereby agree as follows:

1. Carson City, will allow male and female juveniles under the jurisdiction, care or control
of Agency (hereinafter “Agency juvenile(s)”} to be temporarily detained and housed in
the Center and will provide such juveniles with meals and services as provided for other
juveniles of Carson City and will treat all such juveniles in the same manner as other
juveniles housed in said Facility, in accordance with the rules and regulations of the

Center.




2.

Carson City reserves the right to refuse admittance of any Agency juvenile.

Carson City reserves the right to require Agency to promptly remove any Agency
juvenile and the Agency agrees to remove such juvenile immediately upon the request
of Carson City.

Neither Carson City nor Agency shall discriminate as to children placed in the care of the
Center because of race, color, creed or national origin.

Agency is responsible for commitment costs incurred by or because of an Agency
juvenile which include, but are not limited to, medical/psychological evaluations,
transportation, medical care and expenses, physical examinations, prescription
medications and any other costs associated therewith.

Agency shall inform the Center’s Juvenile Services Program Coordinator and/or the Chief
Juvenile Probation Officer of any known or suspected special problem or problems of an
Agency’s juvenile prior to delivering such juvenile to the Facility. Staff at the Center may
refuse to accept any Agency juvenile.

Agency acknowledges that it is responsible for any damages to the Center or Facility
caused by an Agency juvenile. Agency understands that any Agency juvenile placed in
the Center must follow the rules of the Center. Furthermore, Agency’s staff must
comply with all policies of the Center including, but not limited to, safety, security,
transportation, and restraints.

Agency agrees, at no cost to Carson City, to indemnify, hold harmless and defend, not
excluding Carson City’s right to participate, from and against all liability, claims, actions,
damages, losses, and expenses, including, without limitations, reasonable attorney fees
and costs, arising out of any negligent, willful or unlawful act or omission of the Agency,
its officers, agents or employees, or any Agency juvenile.

Nothing contained in this Contract shall be construed to create a partnership, joint
venture, employer-employee or principal agent relationship, or any other relationship
whatsoever between the Parties, other than the fact that they are Parties hereto.
Moreover, nothing contained herein or resulting from this Contract shall create any

liability for Carson City whatsoever with respect to any indebtedness, liability or




10.

11.

12,

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

obligation of Agency or any purported third party.

The Agency, including the Agency juveniles and any employee, agent, or representative
of the Agency, shall not be considered an employee, agent or representative of Carson
City.

Agency agrees to pay Carson City $350 per day for each of the Agency’s juveniles
housed or detained in the Center. A day is defined as three (3) hours or more in
detention within a twenty-four hour period of time beginning at 12:00 a.m. and ending
at 12:00 a.m. on the following day. Agency agrees to reimburse Carson City for the cost
of care of each Agency juvenile and for the payment of ali bills and costs incurred by or
because of such juvenile while he or she is housed in the Center. Agency agrees to pay
medical expenses incurred by or because of an Agency juvenile while housed in the
Center.

Unless otherwise expressly agreed, Carson City will have no responsibility to pick up or
deliver any Agency juvenile to any person.

Carson City agrees to bill Agency on a monthly basis for the costs associated with
detention, housing and care of each Agency juvenile. Agency agrees to pay each bill
within thirty (30} days of the statement date.

Agency agrees to employ a twenty-four (24) hour “on-call” agent or court officer in the
event assistance is needed with an Agency juvenile housed in the Center.

Either Party may terminate this Contract by giving the other Party (30) days written
notice. The notice period begins from the date of mailing. Notice shall be addressed to:
Chief Juvenile Probation Officer, Carson City Juvenile Probation Department, 740 South
Saliman Road, Carson City, Nevada, 89701.

Any waiver of breach of any term or condition of this Contract shall not be considered as
a future waiver of any Contract term or condition.

If any provision contained in this Contract is held to be unenforceable by a court of law
or equity, this Contract shall be construed as if such provision did not exist and the
unenforceability of such provision shall not be held to render any of the remaining

provisions of this Contract unenforceable.




18.

19.

20.

21.

22.

23.

24,

The Parties hereto represent and warrant that the person executing this Contract on
behalf of each Party has full power and authority to enter into this Contract.

This Contract and the rights and obligations of the Parties hereto shall be governed by,
and construed according to, the laws of the State of Nevada.

This Contract is intended as a complete and exclusive statement of the promises,
representations, negotiations, discussions, and other contracts that may have been
made in connection with the subject matter hereof.

Unless otherwise expressly authorized by the terms of this Contract, no modification or
amendment to this Contract shall be binding upon the Parties uniess the same is in
writing and signed by the respective Parties hereto.

The Contract is effective on the day and year first above, written and shall be effective
for a period of one year and will automatically be extended for additional one periods
unless terminated by either Party.

it is acknowledged that the cost of maintaining the Center is expected to increase and
that the monetary sums specified herein may be subject to increases proportionate to
such actual increase in expenses. Carson City may increase its fees addressed herein
upon notice to Agency and such increase shall become effective upon the providing of
such notice.

In witness whereof, the Parties hereto have caused this Contract to be signed and

intend to be legally bound hereby.




CARSON CITY
A consolidated municipality

By:

Robert Crowell, Mayor

ATTEST:

Susan Merriwether, CLERK/RECORDER

_Storey County

By:

Marshall McBride, Chairman

ATTEST:

Vanessa Stephens, Clerk/Treasurer




CONTRACTS

Name

Advise Ltr.
Sent

Date Sent Date Recvd.

Sent to
Mayor/Clerk

Approved

Lyon County

Mineral

County

Esmeralda/Nye

County

Churchill

County

Storey County

DCFS

Youth Parole




67E‘S00°TS papuadxl aLA STOZ/VTOT «

00'00Z'vS | 00'00S'TS v18¢ 14514 [4* 16€¢ 00'€E8Y'36T'TS
00°0S€S 00°SCTS T0S¢ EET T L9E¢C 00'SETTTETS |
00°0G£°LSS | 00°ST9°0CS 14314 LES 591 CEQT 00'ECCTVE'TS

00'0S0‘EPS |00°SLE'STS 01Lc SLT €71 (AN 14 00'9TT I8P TS




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: May 5, 2015 Estimate of time required: 10-15 minutes

Agenda: Consent[] Regular agenda [X] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Resolution #15-421 declaring May
2015 as Wildfire Awareness Month in Storey County.

2. Recommended motion: [ move to approve Resolution #15-421 declaring May 2015 as
Wildfire Awareness Month in Storey County.

3. Prepared by: Patty Blakely/Cherie Nevin

Department: Fire & Community Services Telephone: 847-0986

4. Staff summary: Public safety and community organizations join together to
celebrate Nevada Wildfire Awareness Month all throughout May, 2015. With the
message of “Improve Your Odds-Prepare for Wildfire!" we want to stress that with
advance preparation, homes can greatly improve their ability to survive a wildfire and
families can evacuate safely ahead of damaging and deadly fires.

Working together to create Fire Adapted Communities in both urban and rural areas,

your local, state and federal fire service professionals can provide suggestions,

guidance and tips to prepare yourselves before the hot, dry days of summer arrive.

Storey County has support Nevada Wildfire Awareness Month and encourages you to issue this
resolution and encourage residents to take steps to improve your odds of surviving a wildland fire.

5. Supporting materials: Resolution #15-421
6. Fiscal impact: NONE
Funds Available: Fund: _ Comptroller
7. Legal review required:
____ District Attorney

8. Reviewed by:
9"“3 Department Head Department Name: Fire Department

QML,Geﬂmty Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved
[1 Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continue

[ s B |
[ S -

Agenda Item No.




RESOLUTION #15-421

STOREY COUNTY RESOLUTION IN SUPPORT OF
NEVADA WILDFIRE AWARENESS MONTH - MAY 2015

Whereas, wildfire significantly impacts Nevada’s environmental, economic and
social well-being; and

Whereas, residents of Nevada’s fire-prone communities need to accept
responsibility for living in high fire-hazard areas; and

Whereas, residents must be encouraged to move from the expectation of being
protected from wildfire to the understanding that they must be prepared to survive
wildfire; and

Whereas, to do so, they will need to acquire the knowledge and skills to prepare
their homes to survive wildfire and take to action before the wildfire occurs; and

Whereas, residents that implement appropriate pre-fire activities improve the
survivability of their homes during wildfire;

Therefore be it resolved, that the Storey County Board of County Commissioners
supports the month of May, 2015 as Nevada Wildfire Awareness Month and this
year's theme “improve Your Odds — Prepare for Wildfire” as a means for
education and a call for residents of Storey County to take action to reduce the
wildfire threat to their homes and help their community move toward becoming a
Fire Adapted Community.

Passed, Approved and Adopted this 5" day of May, 2015, by the Storey County
Board of County Commissioners.

Attest:

Vanessa Stephens Marshall McBride
Storey County Clerk-Treasurer Storey County Commissioner Chairman




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: May 5, 2015 Estimate of time required: 10 minutes

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [X] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Resolution 15-419 adoption of the Storey County
Hazard Mitigation Plan.

2. Recommended motion: I move to approve Resolution 15-419 adopting the Storey County
Hazard Mitigation Plan as presented.

3. Prepared by: Joe Curtis
Department: Emergency Management Telephone: 775-847-0986

4. Staff summary: With four Federal declarations in the last ten years, Storey County recognizes the
consequences of disasters and the need to reduce the impacts of natural and human-caused hazards. County
officials also know that with careful selection, mitigation actions in the form of projects and programs can
become long-term, cost effective means for reducing the impact of natural and human-caused hazards.
Applying this knowledge, the Storey County Hazard Mitigation Planning Task Force prepared the Storey
County, Nevada, Hazard Mitigation Plan. With the support of various County officials, the State of
Nevada, and the United State Department of Homeland Security/Federal Emergency Management Agency
(FEMA), this plan is the result of 12 months’ worth of work through the Local Emergency Planning
Committee to create a hazard mitigation plan that will guide the County toward greater disaster resistance in
full harmony with the character and needs of the community and region. The Storey County, Nevada
Hazard Mitigation Plan has been updated in compliance with Section 322 of the Robert T. Stafford Disaster
Relief and Emergency Assistance Act. Since the first plan was adopted in 2006, many mitigation actions
have been completed and the status of actions from the 2010 plan is contained in Appendix F. This updated
plan identifies on-going and new hazard mitigation actions intended to eliminate or reduce the effects of
future disasters throughout the County.

3. Supporting materials: Storey County Hazard Mitigation Plan

FEMA Approval Letter
Resolution
6. Fiscal impact: NONE
Funds Available: Fund: __ Comptroller
7. Legal review required:
ML District Attorney
8. Reviewed by:
epartment Head Department Name: Emergency Management
M County Manager Other agency review:
9. Board action:
[] Approved [1] Approved with Modifications
[] Denied [] Confinued

Agenda Item No.




Resolution #15-419

WHEREAS STOREY COUNTY has historically experienced severe damage from natural and
human-caused hazards such as flooding, wildfire, drought, thunderstorms/high winds, and
hazardous materials incidents on many occasions in the past century, resulting in loss of property
and life, economic hardship, and threats to public health and safety,

WHEREAS the STOREY COUNTY Hazard Mitigation Plan (the Plan) has been developed after
more than one year of research and work by Storey County Office of Emergency Management in
association and cooperation with the Storey County Planning Team for the reduction of hazard
risk to the community;

WHEREAS the Plan specifically addresses hazard mitigation strategies and plan maintenance
procedures for STOREY COUNTY;

WHEREAS the Plan recommends several hazard mitigation actions/projects that will provide
mitigation for specific natural and human caused hazards that impact STOREY COUNTY with
the effect of protecting people and property from loss associated with those hazards;

WHEREAS a public meeting was held to present the Plan for comment and review as required
by law;

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED
by the STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS, that:
1. The Plan is hereby Adopted as an official plan of STOREY COUNTY

2. The respective officials identified in the mitigation strategy of the Plan are hereby directed to
pursue implementation of the recommended actions assigned to them.

3. Future revisions and Plan maintenance required by the Disaster Mitigation Act of 2000 and
FEMA, are hereby adopted as a part of this resolution for a period of five (5) years from the
date of this resolution.

4. An annual report on the progress of the implementation elements of the Plan shall be
presented to the, Local Emergency Planning Commission by October 31% of each calendar
year.

PASSED by the Storey County Board of County Commissioners this 5th day of May 2015.

Commission Chair, Marshall McBride Date

Commissioner, Lance Gilman Date

Commissioner, Jack McGuffey Date




U.S. Deparimen( of iTomeland Security
1111 Broadway, Suite 1200
Oakland, CA. 94607-4052

FEMA

December 10, 2014

Joe Curtis

Storey County Emergency Manager
Storey County, NV

PO Bex 603

Virginia City, NV 89440

Dear Mr. Curtis:

We have completed our review of the Storey County Hazard Mitigation Plan, and have
determined that this plan is eligible for final approval pending its adoption by Storey County.

Formal adoption documentation must be submitted to the Regional office by the Jurisdictions
within one calendar year of the date of this letter, or the entire plan must be updated and
resubmitted for review. We will approve the plan upon receipt of the documentation of formal
adoption.

If you have any questions regarding the planning or review processes, please contact Phillip
Wang, Hazard Mitigation Planning Specialist at (510) 627-7753, or by email at

phillip.wang@fema.dhs.gov.

Sincerely,

ivision Director
Mitigation Division

FEMA Region IX

oc! '
Debbie M. Tanaka, State Hazard Mitigation Officer
Karen1. Johnson, Nevada Division of Emergency Management

www.fema.gov




azard Mitigation Plan

Storey County
2015




TABLE OF CONTENTS

EXECULIVE SUIMIMATY c...oveeiitirirsrssssisnstossssssssassnnassnsssrssssesessssesssssssesenssssssssssssssssesseresessssssseses ES-1
Section 1 Official Record of AdOPHON......uuroivrreireine e essessssesesestesssssessssses 1-1
1.1 Disaster Mitigation Act 0f 2000 .....c.oooouiveuieeeeieeeeeeeee e, 1-1

1.2 Adoption by the Local Governing Body and Supporting Document ...... 1-1

Section 2 BACKGrOUNT ... snssecnsescs s e ssessserasssseesssssssssasssesesess s essns 241
2.1 Plan Purpose and AUtHOIILY ....cceivceeiiiitecsee e 2-1

2.2 Stafford Act Grant Programs ...........coovcuoviveeeeoreeeeeeeeeeseeeeeeeoeseesoo, 2-1

2.3 Plan Organization..........coeieeeceneeisee e 2-2

Section 3 ComMUNILY DESCHIPHON.....cccrirence e resiiss st seese s sssssss e sares s sasesrenessseses 3-1
3.1 History, Location, and Geography.........c...ccvoeueereeeeeeeeerressoseseoeersoonn, 3-1

3.2 GOVEIIMIENL . ...oiiveiitceriiss ettt e e ee e, 3-2

3.3 DemOgraphiCs ..ottt e en oo 3-3

3.4 Land Use and Development Trends.........ccoovoeveereeeeeeeesoeeeeeeeeeeoe. 3-4

Section 4 Planning ProCess .o ssssessesesssssssesssns frerisns e s 41
4.1 Overview of Planning PrOCESS ..t eeee e eeee oo 4-1

4.2 Hazard Mitigation Planning Committee ............ocoveveeeveererreeroroooora) 4-3

4.2.1 Formation of the Planning Committee...........ococovovvveremoeeeeeonn, 4.3

4.2.2 Planning Committee Meetings & Monthly Progress................. 4-4

4.2.3 Plans, Studies, Reports and Technical Information..................... 4-6

4.3 Public INVOIVEMENT ....voveeieiieieieieeeee et 4-6

4.4 Incorporation of Existing Plans and Other Relevant Information ......... 4.7

Section 5 RISK ASSESSMENE .....cvuuiirisciciecsnsrssin s ss e sssssss s seseeseesseseserssssssseessssones 541
5.1 Hazard identification and Screening..............ococevveeevvevvvmreeoseseeee, 5-1

52 Hazard Profile ... 5-5

52,1 Avalanche ..o 5-6

5.2.2  Caving Ground (Mine Collapse)........ccoeveeveereoveseeeoeeeersn, 5-8

5.2.3  DIOUGHE ..ot et 5-9

524 EarthquaKe .....ccoooieiecieneien e 5-12

5.2.5  EPIAEmiC ...ocicviiceiiinineiceniets e, 5-16

5.2,0  FIOOG ...ttt et 5-21

5.277 Hazardous Materials EVents ...........occooevveeeerreeeeese. 5-25

5.2.8  Severe Weather ... 5-28

52,9 TEITOTISI c..vicereirieteieieetec et 5-32

5.2.10 Wildland FIre .....c.ocoeviorimeeniieicesieee oo, 5-38

Section 6 ASSEEINVENLOTY wuu.eciriirccs s e ssss bt eeesesess st et s ees e e 6-1




TABLE OF CONTENTS

Section 7

Section 8

Section 9

Section 10

6.1 ASSEL INVENTOTY .oviiiiiiiieieinnini ettt et et 6-1

6.1.1 Population and Building Stock .......ccccccoveeereeeoreoreeeeeesoeee. 6-1

6.1.2  Critical Facilities and Infrastructure ............ocoooveeeoveeeveiee 6-2
6.2 MEthOdOLOZY .o.eeiieiiriiieterceteeecie et 6-3
6.3 Data Limitations & Future Development ..........ocoovvevveeveroeeeoooeo, 6-3

6.3.1 Future Development.........ooiveeeeeerieeeeeoreeeeeeeeeeeeeeeoeoeen, 6-4
0.4 EXposure ANalySiS ....ooccoooieriiiieeeceeeeeeecee et 6-4

6.4.1 Earthquake ......cccovmmmumeeiriiieeiiiieeeeeeee e e, 6-10

6.4.2  Flash FI00d.......ccoveiimmiiiiiieince e oo, 6-10

6.4.3  Riverine Flood ....ccccovimeoiiirieeeeceeceeeeeee oo, 6-11

0.4.4  Severe WINter StOIM.....cevciuvivvveeeiercees e 6-11

0.4.5  WIlABITE ..coiiiecieceet e 6-11
6.5  Repetitive Loss PrOPErties .o i eee e 6-12
Capability ASSESSMENt........ccveererivinrernrississssssisss s ssessssesseseesesserssesbesssesseee s senne 71
7.1 Legal and Regulatory Capabilifies..........coeveveeerovvereeeeeeeeeeeoo, 7-1
7.2 Administrative and Technical CapabilitieS..........oooveeveovoeeeooon, 7-2
7.3 Financial Capabilities......oociviuieiiieieeceieeieeeree oo 7-3
7.4 Current Mitigation Capabilities .........covuevecveereeeeeeesceeeoeeeoe) 7-4
Mitigation SHAtegY ... st sssesenees 8-1
8.1 Mitigation Goals and ObJECHVES ........ocuuvvvee oo, 8-1
8.2 identifying Mitigation ACHONS. .....evcvveeceireeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeooeeooooen, 8-2
8.3 Evaluating and prioritizing mitigation Action ........o.oeevoovovoeoo, 8-6
8.4  implementing a mitigation action PIan ........o.ocovevoeeeveeoeooooo 8-7
Plan Maintenance.........immmmsisiisss e sssssssssressssssessss 91
9.1 Monitoring, Evaluating, and Updating the HMP......oovovooeeooooeeo 9-1
9.2 Implementation through Existing Planning Mechanisms........................ 9-2
9.3 Continued Public InVOIVEMENL ....oo....voveeeeeeeeeieeee oo 9-3
REFEIENCES.....u. ettt et em et se et st 10-1




List of Tahles, Figures and Appendices

Tables
Table 3-1
Table 4-1
Table 4-2
Table 5-1
Tabie 5-2
Table 5-3
Table 5-4
Table 5-5
Table 5-6
Table 5-7
Table 5-8
Table 5-9
Table 5-10
Table 5-11
Table 5-12
Table 6-1
Table 6-2
Table 6-3
Table 6-4
Table 6-5
Table 7-1
Table 7-2
Table 7-3
Table 7-4
Table 8-1
Table 8-2
Table 8-3
Table 8-4

Figures

Figure 5-1
Figure 5-2
Figure 5-3

County Employers

Plan Outline & Update Efforts

Hazard Mitigation Planning Committee

Identification and Screening of Hazards

Vulnerability Ratings Rubric

Hazard Extent Classification

Hazards Rating

Droughts in Nevada

Probability of Earthquakes

Historic Occurrences of Epidemics Registered in Nevada
Historical Floods

Hazardous Material Release

Hazardous Chemical Agents Potentially Used in Terrorist Attack
Identified Hate Groups and Patriot Groups, Nevada

Wildfire Assessment Summary

Estimated Population and Building Inventory

Critical Facilities and Infrastructure

Potential Hazard Vulnerability Assessment — Population and Buildings
Potential Hazard Vulnerability Assessment — Critical Facilities
Potential Hazard Vulnerability Assessment — Infrastructure
Legal and Regulatory Resources Available for Hazard Mitigation
Administrative and Technical Resources for Hazard Mitigation
County Fiscal Capability for Hazard Mitigation

Local Mitigation Capability Assessment

Mitigation Goals

Mitigation Goals and Potential Actions

STAPLE+E Evaluation Criteria for Mitigation Actions

Action Plan Matrix

Drought Monitor
Historic Earthquakes
Major Faults in County




List of Tahles, Figures and Appendices

Figure 5-4 Comstock Fault

Figure 5-5 Percentage of Visits for Influenza-like Iflness
Figure 5-6 State Where Person Infected w/E.coli 2009
Figure 5-7 Fire History Map

Appendices
Appendix A Adoption Resolution
Appendix B Figures

Figure B-1 ...oooeiiiieieeeeeseevee e Location & Populated Areas
Figure B-2 ...t Zoning/Land Ownership
FIGUIE B-3 1ottt ettt Flood Map
FIGUIe B-4 oot Dry Lighting/Wildland Fire Risk
FIGUIE B3 oottt ettt e Wildfire Fuel Map
FIGUIE B-6 ..ottt Wildfire History Map

Appendix C  Public Information

Appendix D Meetings Agenda & Handouts

Appendix E  Plan Maintenance Documents

Appendix F Mitigation Goals & Actions from Previous Plan




List of Acronyms

BLM
PW
CIA
CDC
cfs
CFR
County
DHS
DMA 2000
DOJ
DOT
EHS
EMPG
EOC
EPA
EPCRA
FEMA
FBI
GIS

HAZUS-MH

HMGP
HMP
InSAR
JAVMA
LEPC

MMI
mph
NDEM
NDEP
NDF
NDOT
NERMP
NFIP

United States Bureau of Land Management

Public Works

Central Intelligence Agency

Center for Disease Control

cubic feet per second

Code of Federal Regulations

Storey County

Department of Homeland Security

Disaster Mitigation Act of 2000

Department of Justice

United States Department of Transportation

Extremely Hazardous Substance

Emergency Management Planning Grant

Emergency Operation Center

United States Environmental Protection Agency
Emergency Planning and Community Right to Know Act
Federal Emergency Management Agency

Federal Bureau of Investigation

Geographic Information System

(abbreviation for HAZards United States) is a geographic information

system-based natural hazard loss estimation software package developed
and freely distributed by the Federal Emergency Management Agency

Hazard Mitigation Grant Program

Hazard Mitigation Plan

Interferometric Synthetic Aperture Radar
Journal of the Federal Coordinator for Meteorology
Local Emergency Planning Committee
Magnitude

Modified Mercalli Intensity

miles per hour

Nevada Division of Emergency Management
Nevada Division of Environmental Protection
Nevada Division of Forestry

Nevada Department of Transportation
Nevada Earthquake Risk Mitigation Plan

National Flood Insurance Program




List of Acronyms

NBMG
NPS
NRC
NWS
OFCM
PDM
POC
SERC
SFHA
SHMO
SPWB
Stafford Act
State
SR
UBC
UNR
URM
URS
USC
USDA
USEPA
USFS
USGS
WMD

Nevada Bureau of Mines & Geology

National Park Service

National Response Center

National Weather Service

Office of the Federal Coordinator for Meteorology
Pre-Disaster Mitigation

Point of Contact

State Emergency Response Commission
Special Flood Hazard Arca

State Hazard Mitigatibn Officer

State Public Works Board

Robert T. Stafford Disaster Relief and Emergency Assistance Act
State of Nevada

State Route

Uniform Building Code

University of Nevada Reno

Unreinforced Masonry Buildings

URS Corporation

United States Code

US Department of Agriculture

United States Environmental Protection Agency
United States Forest Service

United States Geological Survey

Weapons of Mass Destruction




Executive Summary

Across the United States, natural and human-caused disasters have led to increasing levels of
death, injury, property damage, and interruption of business and government services. The toll
on families and individuals can be immense and damaged businesses cannot contribute to the
economy. The time, money and effort to respond to and recover from these emergencies or
disasters divert public resources and attention from other important programs and problems.
With four Federal declarations in the last ten years, Storey County, Nevada, recognizes the
consequences of disasters and the need to reduce the impacts of natural and human-caused
hazards.

The elected and appointed officials of the County also know that with careful selection,
mitigation actions in the form of projects and programs can become long-term, cost effective
means for reducing the impact of natural and human-caused hazards. Applying this knowledge,
the Storey County Hazard Mitigation Planning Task Force prepared the Storey County, Nevada,
Hazard Mitigation Plan. With the support of various County officials, the State of Nevada, and
the United State Department of Homeland Security/Federal Emergency Management Agency
(FEMA), this plan is the result of several months worth of work to create a hazard mitigation
plan that will guide the County toward greater disaster resistance in full harmony with the
character and needs of the community and region.

People and property in the County are at risk from a variety of hazards that have the potential for
causing widespread loss of life and damage to property, infrastructure, and the environment. The
purpose of hazard mitigation is to implement actions that eliminate the risk from hazards, or
reduce the severity of the effects of hazards on people and property. Mitigation is any sustained
action taken to reduce or eliminate long-term risk to life and property from a hazard event.
Mitigation encourages long-term reduction of hazard vulnerability. The goal of mitigation is to
save lives and reduce property damage. Mitigation can reduce the enormous cost of disasters to
property owners and all levels of government. In addition, mitigation can protect critical
community facilities, reduce exposure to liability and minimize community disruption.
Preparcdness, response, and recovery measures support the concept of mitigation and may
directly support identified mitigation actions.

The Storey County, Nevada Hazard Mitigation Plan has been updated in compliance with
Section 322 of the Robert T. Stafford Disaster Relief and Emergency Assistance Act (Stafford
Act or the Act), 42 U.S.C. 5165, enacted under Sec. 104 the Disaster Mitigation Act of 2000
(DMA 2000), Public Law 106-390 of October 30, 2000. Since the first plan was adopted in 2006,
many mitigation actions have been completed and the status of actions from the 2010 plan are
contained in Appendix F. This updated plan identifies on-going and new hazard mitigation
actions intended to eliminate or reduce the effects of future disasters throughout the County.




SECTIONONE Official Record of Adoption

This section provides an overview of the Disaster Mitigation Act of 2000 (DMA 2000; Public
Law 106-390), the adoption of the updated Storey County, Nevada, Hazard Mitigation Plan
(HMP) by the local governing body, and supporting documentation for the adoption.

11 DISASTER MITIGATION ACT OF 2000

The DMA 2000 was passed by Congress to emphasize the need for mitigation planning to reduce
vulnerability to natural and human-caused hazards. The DMA 2000 amended the Robert T.
Stafford Disaster Relief and Emergency Assistance Act (Stafford Act; 42 United States Code
[USC] 5121-5206 [2008]) by repealing the act’s previous Mitigation Planning section (409) and
replacing it with a new Mitigation Planning section (322). In addition, Section 322 provides the
legal basis for the Federal Emergency Management Agency’s (FEMA'’s) mitigation plan
requirements for mitigation grant assistance.

To implement the DMA 2000 planning requirements, the Federal Emergency Management
Agency (FEMA) published an Interim Final Rule in the Federal Register on F ebruary 26, 2002.
This rule (44 Code of Federal Regulations [CFR] Part 201) established the mitigation planning
requirements for states, tribes, and local communities. The planning requirements are described
in detail in Section 2 and identified in their appropriate sections throughout this Plan. In addition,
a crosswalk documenting compliance with 44 CFR is included as Appendix E.

1.2 ADOPTION BY THE LOCAL GOVERNING BODY AND SUPPORTING
DOCUMENT

The requirements for the adoption of an HMP by the local governing body, as stipulated in the
DMA 2000 and its implementing regulations, are described below.

Storey County, to be referred to as Storey County or the County throughout this plan, is the sole
jurisdiction represented in this HMP. There are no other political subdivisions within Storey
County. This HMP meets the requirements of Section 409 of the Stafford Act and Section 322
of the DMA 2000.

The local governing body of Storey County (Storey County Commissioners) has adopted this
HMP. The signed resolution is provided in Appendix A.

1-1




SECTIONTWO Background

This section provides an overview of the County’s HMP. This includes a review of the purpose
and authority of the HMP and a description of the document.

2.1 PLAN PURPOSE AND AUTHORITY

The DMA 2000, also referred to as the 2000 Stafford Act amendments, was approved by
Congress on October 10, 2000. On October 30, 2000, the President signed the bill into law,
creating Public Law 106-390. The purposes of the DMA 2000 are to amend the Stafford Act,
establish a national program for pre-disaster mitigation, and streamline administration of disaster
relief.

The HMP meets the requirements of the DMA 2000, which calls for all communities to prepare
hazard mitigation plans. By preparing this HMP, the County is eligible to receive Federal
mitigation funding after disasters and to apply for mitigation grants before disasters strike. This
HMP starts an ongoing process to evaluate the risks different types of hazards pose to the
County, and to engage the County and the community in dialogue to identify the steps that are
most important in reducing these risks. This constant focus on planning for disasters will make
the County, including its residents, property, infrastructure, and the environment, much safer.

The local hazard mitigation planning requirements encourage agencies at all levels, local
residents, businesses, and the non-profit sector to participate in the mitigation planning and
implementation process. This broad public participation enables the development of mitigation
actions that are supported by these various stakeholders and reflect the needs of the entire
community.,

States are required to coordinate with local governments in the formation of hazard mitigation
strategies, and the local strategies combined with initiatives at the state level form the basis for
the State Mitigation Plan. The information contained in HMPs helps states to identify technical
assistance needs and prioritize project funding. Furthermore, as communities prepare their plans,
states can continually improve the level of detail and comprehensiveness of statewide risk
assessments.

For FEMA’s Pre-Disaster Mitigation (PDM) grant program and Hazard Mitigation Grant
Program (HMGP), a local jurisdiction must have an approved HMP to be eligible for PDM and
HMGP funding for a Presidentially declared disaster after November 1, 2004. Plans approved
any time after November 1, 2004, will allow communities to be eligible to receive PDM and
HMGP project grants,

Adoption by the local governing body demonstrates the jurisdiction’s commitment to fulfilling
the mitigation goals and objectives outlined in the HMP. Adoption legitimizes the updated HMP
and authorizes responsible agencies to execute their responsibilities. The resolution adopting this
HMP is included in Appendix A.

2.2 STAFFORD ACT GRANT PROGRAMS

The following grant programs require a State, tribe, or local entity to have a FEMA-approved
State or Local Mitigation Plan.

2-1




SECTIONT WO Background

Hazard Mitigation Grant Program (HHMGP): HMGP provides grants to State, tribes, and local
entities to implement long-term hazard mitigation measures after a major disaster declaration.
The purpose of the HMGP is to reduce the loss of life and property as a result of natural disasters
and to enable mitigation measures to be implemented during the immediate recovery from
disaster. Projects must provide a long-term solution to a problem: for example, elevation of a
home to reduce the risk of flood damages as opposed to buying sandbags and pumps to fight the
flood. In addition, a project’s potential savings must be more than the cost of implementing the
project. Funds may be used to protect either public or private property or to purchase property
that has been subjected to, or is in danger of, repetitive damage. The amount of funding available
for the HMGP under a particular disaster declaration is limited. The program may provide a State
or tribe with up to 20 percent of the total disaster grants awarded by FEMA. The cost-share for
this grant is 75/25 percent (Federal/non-Federal).

Pre-Disaster Mitigation (PDM) Program: PDM provides funds to State, tribes, and local
entities, including universities, for hazard-mitigation planning and the implementation of
mitigation projects before a disaster event. PDM grants are awarded on a nationally competitive
basis. Like HMGP funding, a PDM project’s potential savings must be more than the cost of
implementing the project. In addition, funds may be used to protect either public or private
property or to purchase property that has been subjected to, or is in danger of, repetitive damage.
Congress appropriates the total amount of PDM funding available on an annual basis. The cost-
share for this grant is 75/25 percent (Federal/non-Federal).

Flood Mitigation Assistance (FMA): The FMA program provides funds on an annual basis so
that measures can be taken to reduce or climinate risk of flood damage to buildings insured under
the National Flood Insurance Program (NFIP). FMA provides up to 75% Federal funding for a
mitigation activity grant and/or up to 90% Federal funding for a mitigation activity grant
containing a repetitive loss strategy.

Repetitive Flood Claims (RFC): The RFC program provides funds on an annual basis to
reduce the risk of flood damage to individual properties insured under the NFIP that have had
one or more claim payments for flood damages. RFC provides up to 100% Federal funding for
eligible projects in communities that qualify for the program.

Severe Repetitive Loss (SRL): The SRL program provides funds on an annual basis to reduce
the risk of flood damage to residential structures insured under the NFIP that have had one or
more claim payments for flood damages. SRL provides up to 75% Federal funding for eligible
projects in communities that qualify for the program.

2.3 PLAN ORGANIZATION
The remainder of this HMP consists of the following sections.
o Section 3 - Community Description

Section 3 provides a general history and background of the County and historical trends for
population, demographic and economic conditions that have shaped the area. Trends in land use
and development are also discussed.

2-2




SECTIONT WO Background

. Section 4 - Planning Process

Section 4 describes the planning process, identifies Planning Committee members, and the key
stakeholders within the community and surrounding region. In addition, this section documents
public outreach activities and the review and incorporation of relevant plans, reports, and other
appropriate information.

. Section 5 - Risk Assessment

Section 5 describes the process through which the Planning Committee identified and compiled
relevant data on all potential natural hazards that threaten the County and the immediately
surrounding area. Information collected includes historical data on natural hazard events that
have occurred in and around the County and how these events impacted residents and their

property.

The descriptions of natural hazards that could affect the County are based on historical
occurrences and best available data from agencies such as FEMA, the U.S. Geological Survey
(USGS), and the National Weather Service (NWS). Detailed hazard profiles include information
on the frequency, magnitude, location, and impact of each hazard as well as probabilities for
future hazard events.

. Section 6 - Vulnerability Analysis

Section 6 identifies potentially vulnerable assets such as people, housing units, critical facilities,
infrastructure and lifelines, hazardous materials facilities, and commercial facilities. These data
were compiled by assessing the potential impacts from each hazard using GIS and FEMA’s
natural hazards loss estimation model, HAZUS-MH. The resulting information identifies the full
range of hazards that the County could face and potential social impacts, damages, and economic
losses.

. Section 7 - Capability Assessment

Although not required by the DMA 2000, Section 7 provides an overview of the County’s
resources in the following areas for addressing hazard mitigation activities:

¢ Legal and regulatory resources

* Administrative and technical: The staff, personnel, and department resources available to
expedite the actions identified in the mitigation strategy

* Fiscal: The financial resources to implement the mitigation strategy

. Section 8- Goals, Objectives & Actions - Mitigation Strategy

As Section 8 describes, the Planning Committee developed a list of mitigation goals, objectives,
and actions based upon the findings of the risk assessment and the capability assessment, Based
upon these goals and objectives, the Planning Committee reviewed and prioritized a
comprehensive range of appropriate mitigation actions to address the risks facing the
community. Such measures include preventive actions, property protection techniques, natural
resource protection strategies, structural projects, emergency services, and public information
and awareness activities.

2-3




SECTIONT WO Background

) Section 9 - Plan Maintenance Process

Section 9 describes the Planning Committee’s formal plan maintenance process to ensure that the
HMP remains an active and applicable document. The process includes monitoring, evaluating,
and updating the HMP; implementation through existing planning mechanisms; and continued
public involvement.

* Section 10 - References
Section 10 lists the reference materials used to prepare this HMP.
. Appendices

The appendices include the Adoption Resolution, Maps, Planning Committee Meetings, and
Public Involvement process.

2-4




SECTIONTHREE Community Description

This section describes the history, location, and geography of the County as well as its
government, demographic information, and current land use and development trends. The
demographics and land use development trends sections where updated.

3.1 HISTORY, LOCATION, AND GEOGRAPHY

As shown in Figure C-1 (Appendix C), Storey County is in northwestern Nevada, approximately
14 miles east of Reno, 237 miles east of San Francisco, and 441 miles northwest of Las Vegas.
The County is bordered on the west and north by Washoe County, Nevada, and on the east and
south by Lyon County, Nevada. The Truckee River Basin and Carson River Basin along with
associated streams are the primary drainage systems within Storey County. The major
transportation route to Virginia City, Storey County seat, is State Route 341, intersecting U.S.
395 near Reno via Geiger Grade and U.S. 50, southwest in Carson City. Interstate 80 (I-80) is 23
miles to the northwest in Reno. With 264 square miles of total land area, Storey County accounts
for less than one-quarter of 1 percent of the State’s total land area. This makes Storey County the
second-smallest county in Nevada. Storey County was created in 1861 and named for Captain
Edward Farris Storey, who was killed in 1860 in the Pyramid Lake Indian War. Although it is
among the smallest counties in the State, it was the most populous county in Nevada when it was
established in 1861.

The attraction to Storey County started in 1859 when miners discovered the largest deposit ever
found of gold and silver in Virginia City, called the Comstock Lode. Between 1859 and 1878
the Comstock Lode yielded about $400 million in silver and gold. Mining has continued since
then to the present but certainly nowhere near the yiclds of its heyday in the late 1800’s. . In the
fall of 1859, Virginia City had a population of between 200 to 300 people. After the Comstock
Lode discovery in early 1860, approximately 10,000 people moved to the area. The peak
population for the Virginia City/Gold Hill area was in 1875 topping at around 25,000 people.
The political ramifications of this significant economic and population escalation resulted in the
creation of the Nevada Territory, carved from the Utah Territory, by President Buchanan on
March 2, 1861. Between 2000 and 2010, the county grew 18 percent from 3,399 to 4,010
residents. The 2010 Census indicates that Virginia City has a population of 1,049, Gold Hill
222, Virginia City Highlands 1,233 Lockwood/River District 1,289 and Mark Twain 750,

Beginning with the Comstock Lode, many historic events have occurred in this area, one of
which was the arrival in late 1861 of Samuel Clemens, who worked as a reporter for the
Territorial Enterprise for 21 months, and left as Mark Twain. Occurring in 1862 in the Virginia
City area was the organization of the San Francisco Stock Exchange Board, the first mining
exchange in the United States. The old Geiger Grade Toll Road, which was constructed to link
Virginia City with immigrant trails and supply routes crossing the Truckee River, created the site
that would become Reno in 1868. Long after the gold and silver rush became a memory, Storey
County continues to attract more than 1.6 million tourists annually. Complementing its mining
history and established tourism draw, Storey County’s growing industrial sector has begun to
play an equally important role in strengthening its future economic outlook.

Storey County, the second smallest Nevada county, has built a reputation on always doing things
big—one of the biggest gold and silver discoveries in history and now, as of 2008 home of the
United State’s largest industrial park, the Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center (TRI). This 107,000-acre

3-1




SECTIONTHREE Community Description

center, located east of Sparks off of Interstate 80, has an 80-million-square-foot industrial-space
capacity. Numerous and varied commercial companies have already located there and more are
choosing the locale. Also located in the TRI area are three sophisticated power plants: NV
Energy, Barrick Mines, and Naniwa (a power plant that provides additional power support
during peak hours). Applications have been submitted to the County to develop an oil refinery
on site as well as several bio fuels facilities to include solid waste, medical waste, and others.
With completion of development in 2017, the TRI Center will bring an estimated additional
16,000 people into Storey County each day. See Section 3.4 for development trends.

As could be expected with the extent of mining in the area, the major geophysical feature of the
County is its mountainous topography. At an elevation of 6,200 feet, Virginia City, the County
seat, is located on the steep eastern slope of Mt. Davidson which has an elevation from 7,838 to
4,000. The majority of the land developed over the past 40 years has been on the perimeter of the
County, primarily in the level areas adjacent to Lyon County and along the riparian zone of the
Truckee River. The Tahoe Reno Industrial Center (TRIC) is a massive 107,000 acre park that
encompasses a developable 30,000 acre industrial complex with pre-approved industrial and
manufacturing uses. The build out of phase 2 of 3 is nearly complete. Although a considerable
amount of developable land exists in the interior of the County, the mountainous terrain and lack
of adequate road networks have combined to restrict development. As such, the development
trend of the past 40 years is being encouraged to continue.

3.2 GOVERNMENT

The Storey County Board of Commissioners consists of three elected members. Each
Commissioner is required to reside in one of three districts, which are equaily divided among the
County’s population based on the census. Storey County does not have any incorporated
jurisdictions. Population districts, such as the one described above regarding the members of the
Board of Commissioners, serve a variety of means. For example, the County Master Plan
identifies four population districts for their planning purposes and the Nevada Division of Water
Resources identifies five. As the County continues to grow and the infrastructure expands the
population districts will expand and develop as well and at some point will require an official
delineation of the population districts within Storey County. Currently each Commissioner is
elected by all residents of the County to serve a 4-year term and to discuss and determine all
issues on a countywide basis. The Board of Commissioners meets each first and third Tuesday of
the month and holds additional meetings when necessary. As the County’s governing board, the
Commission has vast responsibilities spanning from budgeting to policy enactment and
enforcement. Below are some of the many services the Storey County Commissioners provide to
the residents and businesses of the County:

* Approve all County department budgets and monitor their performance
¢ Set the tax rate countywide, as well as water and sewer rates in Virgmia City and Gold Hill

¢ Establish and monitor the policies and ordinances that run the County government

3-2




SECTIONTHREE

Community Description

Key Officials
Commissioner 1
Commissioner 2

Commissioner 3

County Departments/Divisions

Assessor

Clerk/Treasurer
Commissioners/Hluman Resources
Communications

Community Services

Comptroller

District Attorney

3.3 DEMOGRAPHICS

Administrative Officer

Assessor

Clerk/Treasurer

Communications Director
Community Services Qfficer
Community Development Director
Comptroller

County Manager

Emergency Management
Fire Protection District
Information Technology
Justice Court

Planning

Public Works

Recorder

District Attorney
Emergency Mgr.
Fire Chief

IT Director

Justice of the Peace
Public Works
Recorder

Sheriff

Sheriff’s Department

According to the Nevada State Demographer, the County’s population is estimated at 4,123 in
2011. This was near the 2006 population estimate of 4,132 and a 21 percent increase from the
2000 US Census population of 3,399. The Nevada State Demographer estimates the county will
grow at a rate of 4.0% annually over the next 20 years, This is well below the state average
however duc to the economic decline in Nevada since 2008 population is expected to be flat for
the next few years. In addition to those living in Virginia City an estimated 1,000,000 people for

visit for tourism each year.

Approximately 20 percent of the total population was under 18 years, 60 percent was between 18
and 54 years, and 20 percent was 55+ years and over. The County’s nonfarm employment was

2,879 persons in 2011 (NV Department of Employment,
http.//www.nevadaworkforce.com/admin/uploadedPublications/3 069 2011 E&P Final.pdf)




SECTIONTHREE Community Description

with an average annual wage of $43,403. The economic base of the County primarily consists of
Trade, Transportation and Utilities and manufacturing due to the large industrial complex near
180 in the northern part of the county. See below for the largest employers in the County. The
median household income is $59,386 and the median value of owner-occupied housing unit is
$215,200 according to the US Census Bureau.

Storey County's Largest Employers are as follows:
Table 3-1: County Employers

Employer ' " Town . 1 Industry - Number of Employees
Intellisource LLC McCarran General Warehousing 800-900
Wal-Mart Stores Inc. McCarran General Warghousing 600-700
Zulily, Inc. McCarran General Warehousing 300-400
Petsmart Inc. McCarran General Warehousing 200-299
Chewy.com McCarran General Warehousing 100-200
Ebay Commerce McCarran General Warehousing 150-200
James Mardie Building Products | McCarran General Warehousing 150-200
First National Collection Bureau | McCarran - General Warehousing 175-200
Quidsi, Inc. {Diapers.com) McCarran General Warehousing 100-200
Storey County Virginia City Government 50-100

3.4 LAND USE AND DEVELOPMENT TRENDS

The majority of the land developed in Storey County during the past 40 years has been on the
perimeter of the County, primarily in the level areas adjacent to Lyon County and along the
riparian zone of the Truckee River. Storey County’s Master Plan examines the development of
four primary population areas:

* Virginia City/Gold Hill: This area is located in the mountainous southwest section of the
County. The development of this area can be directly atiributed to the discovery of the
Comstock Lode and is a major tourist attraction; specifically, this is the location of the largest
historic district within the State of Nevada and one of the largest historic districts in the
nation. Small scale mining has begun in the last 2 years in this area.

¢ Virginia Highlands: Located 5 miles north of Virginia City, this is a mountainous residential
subdivision of one-, ten-, and forty-acre parcels, with primarily upscale housing. There is
currently no commercial development in this area.

¢ Mark Twain: Located 6 miles due east of Virginia City, this is a residential subdivision
consisting primarily of manufactured homes. The terrain is relatively level.

* The River District: This district stretches about 25 miles along the south bank of the
Truckee River and makes up the northern boundary of the County. It has a mixed land use of

3-4




SECTIONTHREE Community Description

residential, agricultural, recreational, industrial, and commercial development and is divided
into 3 areas:

1. McCarran - Reno-Tahoe-Industrial Park - Industrial Center has a total of 30,000
developable acres. Businesses in this area currently employ approximately 8 to 10
thousand. There are currently two petroleum plants for refining and cracking or
cleaning old product. A jet fuel producer is currently under construction of their
refinery for processing solid waste. TESLA is under construction with a 5 year plan
for a 6 million square feet battery manufacturing facility which will add six thousand
workers. Current predictions are for 20 thousand workers at TRI by 2020.

2. Lockwood — Primarily a residential community with 1033 residents according to the
2010 census. There is a hay processing plant located in the area.

3. Painted Rock — A residential community with approximately 20 residential structures
on more than one acre each.

All of the districts are within 1 or 2 miles of the County boundary; none are in the interior. With
few exceptions, all of the population of the County is located in these four districts.

Unlike most of Nevada, where 87 percent is managed by Federal agencies, more than 90 percent
of Storey County is privately owned.

State Route 439 known as USA Parkway, which will connect Interstate 80 to US Highway 50 in
2017, will provide access from McCarran, where the TRI Development area is located, proceeds
south to the County line with Lyon County in the area of the Ramsey/Weeks cutoff in Silver
Springs. This new road will have multiple benefits—the most important benefit being direct
access for emergency workers to traverse their response area north/south or to quickly reach
wildfires occurring within the interior of the County. The secondary benefit will eliminate the
current commute route through Reno for many of the workers in the TRI Development making
the development only 15 minutes away from the residential communities along the Hi ghway 50.

3-5




SECTIONFOUR Planning Process

This section provides an overview of the planning process; identifies Planning Committee
members, and key stakeholders; documents public outreach efforts; and summarizes the review
and incorporation of existing plans, studies, and reports used in the development of this HMP.
Additional information regarding the Planning Committee and public outreach efforts is
provided in Appendices C and D.

The requirements for the planning process, as stipulated in the DMA 2000 and its implementing
regulations, are described below.

4.1 OVERVIEW OF PLANNING PROCESS

The first step in the planning update process was to establish a Planning Committee composed of
existing County agencies. Joe Curtis, Emergency Manager and Cherie Nevin, served as the
primary Points of Contact (POC) for the County and the public. Karen Johnson functioned as
project leader for the update process.

The County assisted by the State of Nevada, Hazard Mitigation Officer updated this HMP. Each
section of the previous HMP plan was reviewed for content and the committee revised every
section of the plan. The plan was re-drafted into a new outline to better assist the State Hazard
Mitigation Officer in the review process. All NV state plans are requested to be in this new
outline.

During the 5 years since the previous plan was adopted, plan maintenance performed during the
4t year through the Storey County Local Emergency Planning Committee. All information on

4-1




SECTIONFOUR Planning Process

mitigation action accomplishments and new public input was derived during the planning
process. With this new plan, the plan maintenance section has been revised to include forms and
the SHMO has developed an exercise for local plan maintenance which will correct omissions.

The following table provides the new section format and provides details on the update.

Table 4-1. Plan Outline and Update Effort

lan Sectic ) ff hat Changec
Section 1 - Official Minor Revision The process for plan adoption remains the same but the update provides a
Record of Adoption discussion of this process. Section 1 and 2 of the 2008 plan were switched.
Section 2 - Background Minor Revision The plan organization sections were modified to reflect current plan.
Section 3 — Community Minor Revisions This section was updated to include new land use map and expanded to
Descripfion include land use and development trends to address new requirements.
Section 4 — Planning Major Revisions This section details the current plan’s planning process. Public and
Process stakeholders outreach efforts
Section 5 - Hazard Moderate Revisions . The individual hazard sections were reformatted to the new outline and
Analysis then provided to the committee member with expertise to update history and

revise as needed. New Hazus information was used for the earthquake
hazard and new FIRM maps were used for flood hazard,

Section 6 — Vulnerabifity | Moderate Revisions New analysis of residentfal, non residential and critical facilities based on

Analysis mapping efforts tied to hazards was included. Identified URMs included.
Future development was included. The team used this section to prioritize
projects.
Section 7 ~ Capability Minor Revisions A local mitigation capability assessment was included and a section on
Assessment NFIP was included o address requirements.
Section 8 - Mitigation Major Revisions The goals and actions were reviewed and progress was included, actions
Strategy deleted, and actions added. The prioritization process was expanded to
include the STAPLE+E process to better evaluate and priorifize actions.
Section 9 - Plan Minor Revision SHMO maintenance exercise included.
Maintenance
Section 10 - Reference New This section was added for future plan update reference.

Once the Planning Committee was formed, the following five-step planning process took place
during the 12-month period from January 2014 to October 2014,

* Organize resources: The Planning Committee identified resources, including County staff,
agencies, and local community members, which could provide technical expertise and
historical information needed in the development of the HIMP.

* Assess risks: The Planning Committee identified the hazards specific to the County, and
developed the risk assessment for the thirteen identified hazards. The Planning Committee
reviewed the risk assessment, including the vulnerability analysis, prior to and during the
development of the mitigation strategy.

* Assess capabilities: The Planning Committee reviewed current administrative and technical,
legal and regulatory, and fiscal capabilities to determine whether existing provisions and
requirements adequately address relevant hazards.

* Develop a mitigation strategy: After reviewing the risks posed by each hazard, the Planning
Committee worked to develop a comprehensive range of potential mitigation goals,

4.2




SEGTIONFOUR Planning Process

objectives, and actions. Subsequently, the Planning Committee identified and prioritized the
actions to be implemented.

¢ Monitor progress: The Planning Committee developed an implementation process to ensure
the success of an ongoing program to minimize hazard impacts to the County.

42  HAZARD MITIGATION PLANNING COMMITTEE

4.2.1 Formation of the Pianning Committee

As previously noted, the planning process began in January 2013. Cherie Nevin with the
County’s Emergency Management department, utilized the Local Emergency Planning
Committee (LEPC) as the advisory body, known as the Planning Committee, which included
staff from relevant County agencies and community organizations. The Planning Committee
members are listed in Table 4-2. The Planning Committee meetings are described in section
4.2.2. Meeting minutes are provided in Appendix C.

Table 4-2. Storey County Hazard Mitigation Planning Committee

epartmen rticipatio

Co-Chair of the Committee, chaired meetings, provided
evaluation and information on the following sections,
Chair: Joe Curtis Emergency Management risk assessment, vulnerability analysis, mitigation
strategies, plan maintenance, provided public outreach

Attended meetings, reviewed drafts and provided input




SECTIONFOUR

Planning Process

Cherie Nevin

Community Services

Co-Chair of the Committee, chaired meetings, provided
update, evaluation and information on the following
sections, planning, hazard profiles, vulnerability
analysis, risk assessment, rniigation strategies, plan
maintenance

Attended meetings, reviewed drafts and provided input

Gary Hames

Fire Chief

Provided evaluation and information on the following
sections, wildfire, vulnerability analysis, risk
assessment, mitigation strategies, plan maintenance

Attended meetings, reviewed drafts and provided input

Pat Whitten

County Manager

Provided evaluation and information on the following
sections, flood, vulnerability analysis, risk assessment,
mitigation strategies, plan maintenance

Attended meetings, reviewed drafts and provided input

Jenna Damon

NV Division of Water Resources,
Fleod Plain Management

Provided evaluation and information on the following
sections, flood, vulnerability analysis, risk assessment,
mitigation strategies

Attended meetings, reviewed drafts and provided input

Gary Johnson

UNR, NBMG

Provided evaluation and information on the following
sections, earthquake, vulnerability analysis, risk
assessment, mitigation strategies, plan maintenance

Attended meetings, reviewed drafts and provided input

Karen Johnscn

NV Division of Emergency
Management

Provided information on tools, guidance, plan outline,
state hazards, mitigation strategies, plan maintenance

Attended meetings, reviewed drafts and provided input

Eric Schmidt

Douglas County GIS

Provided information on GIS inciuding flood mapping.
Attended meetings, reviewed drafts and provided input

Dean Haymore

Director of Community
Development/Building/Floodplain
Manager

Provided information on flood & community
Attended meetings, reviewed drafts and provided input

John Haskins

Comstock Mining

Provided public input
Attended meetings, reviewed drafts and provided input

Provided public input

ick Vasque Walmart . S
Ric quez Attended meetings, reviewed drafts and provided input
Joe Fording NDE Provided inforrT]ation orT fire and mitigation st.rategly
Attended meetings, reviewed drafts and provided input
Bill Moline NDF Provided information orf fire and mitigation strateg'y
Attended meetings, reviewed drafts and provided input
Provided information on county roads, utilities and
Mike Nevin County Public Works buildings, vulnerability analysis, mitigation strategy

Attended meetings, reviewed drafts and provided input

422

. January 2013

Planning Committee Meetings & Monthly Progress

During the kick-off meeting, at the Walmart Distribution Center, the Committee discussed the
objectives of the DMA 2000, the hazard mitigation planning process, the public outreach

4-4




SECTIONFOUR Planning Process

process, and the steps involved in updating the HMP and achieving the County’s goals. The
planning process was discussed including the purpose of the plan and the plan tasks, goals and
actions. The Commiitee completed the Incorporation of Existing Plans/Study Table to identify
all the plans/studies available (as shown in section 4.4). Members received a copy of the 2008
HMP. A review of the County and State identified hazards was used as a starting point to
complete a hazard identification table. The exercise identified the specific hazards that the
Planning Committee wanted to address in the HMP. The Planning Committee used the hazards
identified and completed a Hazard Profiling Worksheet. The exercise used group averaging to
prioritize the hazards into high, medium and low categories. The Committee reviewed the 2008
HMP’s actions and provided input as to status. See Appendix D for agenda, handouts and
minutes.

) April 2013

The Committee met in Virginia City and discussed the results of the hazard rating exercise and
determined hazard ratings for the plan. Leads for the hazards were determined. The Committee
reviewed the Hazard Mitigation Questionnaire for public input (see Appendix C). Sce Appendix
D for agenda, handouts and sign in sheet.

. July 2013

The Committee met in Lockwood and discussed the update to the Earthquake hazard profile
including historical earthquakes and mitigation action status and new actions. See Appendix D
for agenda, handouts and sign in sheet.

. January 2014

The Committee met in Lockwood and discussed the Community section and the Hazardous
Materials & Severe Weather profiles. Critical facilities were discussed. Chris Smalicomb of
NOAA gave a briefing on drought. Mitigation actions for these sections were also discussed.

o April 2014

The Committee met in Virginia City and Jenna Damon gave a presentation on Flood profile and
mitigation actions and Karen Johnson provided the Wildfire profile and mitigation actions.
Maps were provided to committee for review. '

. July 2014

Presented the Committee with the initial analysis of the vulnerability assessment, describing
which assets were analyzed and how values were estimated. The Planning Committee reviewed
goals and actions and drafted new actions. Planning Committee used STAPLE+E form to
prioritize actions, See Appendix D for meeting handouts. With the information from the
prioritization process the Planning Committee selected the top actions they felt were feasible and
realistic to be completed during this iteration of the HMP. With this information they completed
the Mitigation Action mairix.

4-5




SECTIONFOUR Planning Process

) September 2014

The Committee reviewed the maintenance section. The completed plan was distributed to the
Planning Committee for their review.

. October 2014

The plan was provided to the NV State Hazard Mitigation Officer for review and submission to
FEMA.

423 Plans, Studies, Reports and Technical Information

The Committee felt that the information available was of high quality. The Division of Water
Resources, the Truckee River Flood Project and the NV Division of Forestry provided mapping
of flood and wildfire risk. The URM structures were mapped and included in this update,

4.3 PUBLIC INVOLVEMENT

The public was invited to participate in the planning committee meetings and meeting agenda
were posted. Additionally, a questionnaire was distributed at community events to residents, a
press release was issued and letters to stakeholders for their participation. From this outreach a
large amount of input and review was provided.

Questionnaire

The County distributed the hazard mitigation questionnaires during the National Night Out event
on August 6, 2013, to the public. This provided very few responses and the next update should
review ways to improve public involvement. The questionnaire can be found in Appendix D.

Public Awareness

All committee planning meeting agendas were posted as required by the Nevada Open Meeting
Law and the public was welcome and invited to attend.

Letters to Stakeholders and Neighboring Communities

The County emailed notification regarding the update of the HMP to the following entities:
* FEMA - Did not attend but will review the plan.

e State NDEM, NDOT, NDWR, NDF, UNR NBMG - Participated in the planning effort.
* State Assembly & Senate Representative — Did not participate.

» Counties of Carson City, Churchill, Lyon, Pershing and Washoe— Did not participate but
their HM plans were reviewed for hazard information.

¢ National Weather Service — Attended, provided input and review.

All but FEMA, State Assembly and Senate Representative, and neighboring counties
participated. FEMA will be sent the plan for review. Mapping was provided by the Douglas
County GIS group through a county agreement for mapping services. The neighboring counties

4-6




SECTIONFOUR Planning Process

were aware of the planning effort and offered to provide answers to specific questions. No
questions were requested of them during the planning effort.

4.4 INCORPORATION OF EXISTING PLANS AND OTHER RELEVANT
INFORMATION

During the planning process, the Planning Committee reviewed and incorporated information
from existing plans, studies, reports, and technical reports into the HMP. A synopsis of the
sources used follows.

* Storey County Master Plan, 1999: The Land-Use Element provides information on existing
land use and future development trends.

s Storey County Zoning Plan 2012; Land-Use Element provides information on future land
use and provides flood plain zoning.

» Storey County Historical Structure Study 2011: This plan provides information on
historically significant structures including the Courthouse.

* Storey County Building Code IBC 2003: Storey plans to adopt the 2009 IBC in July of
2013.

» Storey County Comprehensive Flood Control Plan 2011, This plan provides information on
flooding locations and specific mitigation recommendations.

* State of Nevada Hazard Mitigation Plan, October 2010: This plan, prepared by the State of
Nevada, was used to ensure that the County’s LHMP was consistent with the State’s plan.

* Flood Insurance Study, Storey County, Nevada, Unincorporated Areas, Revised 2010,
FEMA Community Number — 320033 This study provides historical and detailed
information regarding flood hazards throughout Storey County and was useful when
developing the flood-hazard profile and flood-mitigation strategy.

* Nevada Community Wildfire Risk/Hazard Assessment Project, Storey County,
January 2005: This report was prepared specifically for the communities within Storey
County, Nevada, identified in the 2001 Federal Register list of communities that are located
in the vicinity of Federal lands most vulnerable to the threat of wildfire.

» Hazardous Materials Emergency Response Plan 2012:
The following FEMA guides were also consulted for general information on the HMP process:

» How-To Guide #1: Getting Started: Building Support For Mitigation Planning (FEMA
2002¢)

* How-To Guide #2: Understanding Your Risks — Identifying Hazards and Estimating Loss
Potential (FEMA 2001)

* How-To Guide #3: Developing the Mitigation Plan: Identifying Mitigation Actions and
Implementing Strategies (FEMA 2003a)

* How-To Guide #4: Bringing the Plan to Life: Implementing the Hazard Mitigation Plan
(FEMA 2003b)

4-7




SECTIONFOUR Planning Process

A complete list of the sources consulted is provided in Section 10, Reference

4-8




SECTIONFIVE Hazard Analysis

A hazard analysis includes the identification and screening of each hazard and subsequent
profiling of each hazard. Hazard identification is the process of recognizing the natural and
human-caused events that threaten an area. Natural hazards result from unexpected or
uncontrollable natural events of sufficient magnitude. Human-caused hazards result from human
activity and include technological hazards and terrorism. Technological hazards are generally
accidental or result from events with unintended consequences, for example, an accidental
hazardous materials release. Terrorism is defined as the calculated use of violence or thereat of
violence to attain goals that are political, religious, or ideological in nature.

Even though a particular hazard may not have occurred in recent history in the study area, all
hazards that may potentially affect the study area are included in the screening process. The
hazards that are unlikely to occur or for which the risk of damage is accepted as being very low,
are eliminated from consideration.

All identified hazards will be profiled by describing hazards in terms of their nature, history,
magnitude, frequency, location, and probability. Hazards are identified through the collection of
historical and anecdotal information, review of existing plans and studies, and preparation of
hazard maps of the study area. Hazard maps are used to determine the geographic extent of the
hazards and define the approximate boundaries of the areas at risk.

5.1 HAZARD IDENTIFICATION AND SCREENING

The requirements for hazard identification, as stipulated in DMA 2000 and its tmplementing
regulations, are described below.

The first step of the hazard analysis is the identification and screening of hazards, as shown in
Table 5-1. During the first HMP meeting, the Planning Committee reviewed the current HMP
and the State’s identified hazards from the State of Nevada Hazard Mitigation Plan and identified
16 possible hazards (14 natural hazards and 2 human-caused hazards).

3-1




SECTIONFIVE

Hazard Rnalysis

Table 5-1. Identification and Screening of Hazards

planation’ =

No historical record of this hazard in the County

Avalanche Yes No however except on roads.
Statewide drought dectarations were issued in
Drought ves No 2002 and 2004,
Earthquake Ves No geveral active faulf zones pass through the
ounty.
I This hazard was addressed in the State Multi-
Epidemic Yes No Hazard Mitigation Plan,
Expansive Soils No No historical record of this tazard in the County
Exfreme Heat No No historical record of this hazard in the County
Flood {Including Dam/Levee Yes Flash floods and other flood events ocour
Failure) regularly during thunderstorms.
The County has an industrial park and Highway
80 that pass through the county however
. Committee determined to only profile hazard. No
Hazardous Material Event Yes No vulnerability analysis was included. As the
industrial park is located miles from any
residential area.
Infestations No No recorded damages
This was previously titied Caving Ground and the
Land Subsidence & Ground Failure Yes No mines under Virginia City have a possibility of
collapse.
Storey is susceptible to severe weather, Previous
Severe Weather Yes No events have caused damage to property.
Snow/lce/Windstorm/Hail Windsterm and Hail where included in this section
for this update.
Seiche No No recent historic events have occurred.
Tornado No No historic events have occurred.
No significant historic events have occurred in the
Volcano No County. The Planning Committee determined not
to include this hazard.
This hazard was included but Committee only
WMD / Terrorism Yes No profiled hazard. No vulnerability analysis was
included.
The ferrain, vegetation, and weather conditions in
Wildland Fire Yes No the region are favorable for the ignition and rapid

spread of wildland fires.

Assigning Vulnerability Ratings

During a Committee meeting the members were tasked to prioritize the hazards by their total
impact in the community. An exercise requiring the committee to complete a form which
tabulated their ratings of each hazard was accomplished. The exercise formula took into account
the historical occurrence of each respective hazard, the potential area of impact when the disaster
does occur, and the magnitude. Please see Table 5-2 below for scoring criteria,

5-2




SECTIONFIVE Hazard Analysis

It is important to note that hazards of the same magnitude and the same frequency can occur in
similar sized areas; however, the overall impact to the areas would be different because of
population densities and property values in the areas impacted.

Table 5-2, Vulnerability Ratings Rubric

Lowest 1 Insured Loss 1-3 Days Community Community
2 Local 4-7 Days City/Town City / Town
3 State 8-14 Days County County
4 Federal Emergency |15-20 Days State State
Highest 5 Federal Disaster 20 + Days Federal Federal
Lowest 1 10+ years 1-5% damaged visory
2 6-3 years 8-10% Considered further Plan
3 1-5 years 11-25% Prompt Action
4 2-12 monthsg 26-35% lmmediate Action
Highest 5 0-30 days 36-50% Utmost immediacy

The Committee referenced the NV DEM historical records, RCI plans and HAZUS runs from
Nevada Bureau of Mines and Geology (NBMG) for scientific data that was used for magnitude,
economic and frequency scores based on historical frequencies and / or projected probabilities of
the hazards identified.

Upon obtaining total scores for each hazard, the team utilized the scores to analyze and prioritize
the hazards to focus upon during the profiling, vulnerability assessment and mitigation planning,
Table 5-3 is a summary of the hazards scoring results of the members present at the meeting,

Hail & thunderstorm, severe winter storm, and severe windstorm were combined for profiling
purposes.

The Planning Committee determined that eleven hazards pose a threat to the County: drought,
carthquakes, epidemic, floods, hazardous materials events, land subsidence, severe weather,
terrorism/WMD, volcano, wildland fires. The Planning Committee decided to include the
frequency and magnitude ranking in the table below in addition to the total score from the
exercise fo better demonstrate the hazards impact on the county.

Table 5-3: Hazard Extent Classification

Hazard Type : e Countywide -
Natural | Frequency- __Magnitude | * Average Scoré
Avalanche Low Low Very Low {11)
Caving (Mine) & ground

failure Moderate Low Moderate (17)
Drought Low Low Low (14)




SECTIONFIVE Hazard Analysis

Table 5-3: Hazard Extent Classification

Hazard Type Countywide

_Natural Frequency Magnitude Average Score

Earthquakes Low High Moderate (19)

Epidemic Low Low Low (14)

Flood (Includes dam . . :

failure, canal/ditch failure) High High High (26)

Severe Weather Overall - Moderate (20
Hail & thunderstorm . 12 - Low
Winter storm High Low 22— Moderate
Windstorm 21 - Moderate

Wildfire High High High (31)

H_uman'Caused

Hazmat Moderate Low Low (21)

Terrorism Low High Low (22)

Although Hazmat and Terrorism scored a medium overall the Planning Committee determined
through discussion that the magnitude from an incident is historically so low they rated this
hazard as low. The remaining hazards excluded through the screening process were considered
to pose no threat to life and property in the County due to the low likelihood of occurrence or the
low probability that life and property would be significantly affected. Should the risk from these
hazards increase in the future, the HMP can be updated to incorporate a vulnerability analyses
for these hazards.

The Planning Committee determined through discussion that Avalanche, Epidemic, Hazmat,
Mine caving and Terrorism will have a Hazard Profile developed but will not be carried through
to the Risk Assessment or Mitigation Strategy, as currently and historically they occurred in
unpopulated areas or has little to no impact, measureable magnitude, or feasible mitigation
actions. Terrorism would not be carried through to the Risk Assessment or Mitigation Strategy
since there are other planning mechanisms that better deal with planning for Terrorism.

The County’s Hazard Rating results generally correspond with ratings determined in the State of
Nevada Standard Hazard Mitigation Plan.

5-4




SECTIONFIVE Hazard Analysis

Table 5-4: Hazard Rankin_g

High Risk Moderate Risk - LowRisk - Very Low Risk -
Mine Caving/
Earthquake
Floqo q Land subsidence Dr.ough't Avalanche
Wildfire Severe Weather Epidemic
Terrorism Hazardous - Materials

5.2 HAZARD PROFILE

The requirements for hazard profile, as stipulated in the DMA 2000 and its implementing
regulations, are described below.

The specific hazards selected by the Planning Committee for profiling have been examined in a
methodical manner based on the following factors:

¢ Nature

e History

» Location of future events

o Extent of future events

e Probability of future events

The hazards profiled for the County are presented in Section 5.2 hazards in alphabetical order.
The order of presentation does not signify the level of importance or risk. Low hazards were not
profiled.

5-5




SECTIONFIVE Hazard Analysis

5.21 Avalanche

5.2.1.1 Nature

An avalanche is a mass of snow sliding down a mountainside. An avalanche occurs when
gravitational pull exceeds the bonding strength of the snow cover. There are four factors that
contribute to an avalanche; a steep slope, a snow cover, a weak layer in the snow cover, and a
trigger. About 90 percent of all avalanches start on slopes of the 30-45 degrees; about 98 percent
of all avalanches occur on slopes of 25-50 degrees. Avalanches release most often on slopes
above timberline, such as gullies, roads cuts, and small openings in the trees. Avalanches can
also occur on small slopes well below timberline, such as gullies, road cuts, and small openings
in the trees. Very dense trees can anchor the snow to steep slopes and prevent avalanches from
starting; however, avalanches can release and travel through a moderately dense forest.

The vast majority of avalanches occur during and shortly after winter storms, during the winter
and spring months between January and April. The most avalanche-prone months are in order,
February, March, and January. The avalanche danger increases with major snowstorms and
periods of thaw. Duration of avalanche impacts is generally one to three days or less.

5.2.1.2 History

There are oral accounts of two avalanche events in the Geiger Grade area occurring
approximately 50 to 100 years ago and of one in Virginia City within the past 5 years. The
avalanche in Virginia City was described as moving a multi-thousand gallon water tank about
300 feet vertically down the hill to a nearby residence landing atop a privately owned garage.
There were no injuries or fatalities reported in any of the three events. No additional events could
be found in focal or national data bases.

§.21.3  Location, Extent, and Probability of Future Events

There are several factors that influence avalanche conditions and locations, with the main ones
being slope angle, slope aspect, and terrain. Other factors include slope shape, vegetation cover,
elevation, and path history. Avalanches usually oceur on slopes 35 to 60 degrees; Virginia City is
located on the eastern slope of Mt. Davidson, where the slope is at approximately 30 to 35
degrees. The sides of the Geiger Grade slope between Reno and Virginia City are approximately
45 or more degrees. An avalanche can occur on slopes of 25 to 35 degrees. At slope angles
above 70 degrees, the snow tends to slough off and does not have the opportunity to accumulate.
Avalanches can occur outside the optimum slope angle range, but are not as common.

Slope aspect, also termed orientation, describes the direction a slope faces with respect to the
wind and sun. Leeward slopes (slopes facing away from wind and snow) loaded by wind-
transported snow are problematic because the wind-deposited snow increases the stress and
enhances slab formation. Intense direct sunlight can weaken and lubricate the bonds between the
snow grains, weakening the snowpack. Shaded slopes are also potentially unstable because the
weak layers may be held for a longer time in an unstable state. Where Virginia City is located on

5-6




SECTIONFIVE Hazard Analysis

the eastern portion of Mt. Davidson is not considered a leeward slope but faces the east catching
the daily rising sunlight.

The local terrain features determine an avalanche’s path. The path has three parts: the starting
zone, the track, and the run-out zone. The starting zone is where the snow breaks loose and starts
sliding. It is generally near the top of a canyon, bowl, ridge, etc., with steep slopes between 25
and 50 degrees. Snowfall is usually significant in this area.

Most avalanches in a given path are relatively small and frequent, affecting only a small portion
of the potential path area. Occasionally, much larger avalanches release which extend nearly to
the observed limits of the path. These larger events are usually referred to as “10-year” events
but in reality, reflect an order of magnitude return period between 3 years and 30 years. On rare
occasions, exceptionally large avalanches occur that extend well beyond the established
boundaries of the paths. These avalanches often referred to as “100-year” avalanches, are likely
to affect all or most of the potential path area.

Avalanches usually occur on slopes 35 to 60 degrees and can occur on slopes of 25 to 35
degrees. The slope of Virginia City (30 to 35 degrees) indicates it is possible for an avalanche to
occur there. The Geiger Grade slope (approximately 5 degrees) is significantly less likely to
occur with any regularity. A design avalanche is defined as an avalanche occurring within an
order of magnitude range between 30 years and 300 years. Statistically, design avalanches have a
1 percent probability of occurring during any given year, but could occur in consecutive years or
many yeats apart.

5-7




SEGTIONFIVE Hazard Analysis

5.2.2  Caving Ground (Mine Collapse)

5221 Nature

The area around abandoned mine openings and open pits can be weak and cave-in without
waming. Cave-ins are obviously dangerous. Areas that are likely to cave-in are often hard to
detect. A minor disturbance, such as vibrations caused by walking or speaking, may cause a
cave-in,

The top of a mine shaft is especially dangerous. The rock at the surface is often decomposed and
timbers may be decayed or missing; therefore walking anywhere near a shaft opening should be
avoided. The whole area is often ready and waiting to slide into the shaft, which can be hundreds
of feet deep.

5.2.2.2  History

Through oral history there is community knowledge of two significant events where mine shafts
that were filled during the 1920s significantly caved leaving large holes in the ground at two
separate school locations the first in 1991 at Gallagher Elementary School and then around 1994-
95 at the Virginia City High School. Additional caving events occurred along highways
requiring the roads to be closed for repairs to be completed. The first occurred around 2000 and
the second in 2006 with additional damage in 2015 along Highway 342 in lower Gold Hill about
% mile north of the county line; all events were as a result of flood waters or heavy rains
collapsing previously covered mine shafts.

The Nevada Division of Minerals advises they manage and collect data regarding abandoned
mine hazards throughout the State. However, due to budgetary restraints their data base is
maintained using an antiquated system and remains in a constant state of flux. They
acknowledge their data base is sorely out-dated and that they have not been able to inventory all
abandoned mine hazards in Storey County partly because they do not have access to events
occurring on private property. Additionally, they do not specifically inventory events regarding
subsidence or collapse of abandoned mine shafts such as the events described above.

5.22.3  Location, Extent, and Probability of Future Events

The Comstock Lode was the largest gold and silver deposit ever discovered in the State of
Nevada and is Jocated beneath Virginia City as well as extending below the interior of the
County. By the late 1800s the Comstock Lode had ebbed. Then in the 1920s, with an
abundance of abandoned mines and cars, it became common practice to fill the shafts of inactive
mines with wrecked vehicles and other large discarded items. Over the last century filled shafts
have settled or support timbers have collapsed causing a multitude of hazards to include sink
holes. 1994 saw another gold boom with Nevada producing approximately 64% of the U.S.
production and 10% of the total world gold production (Nevada Division of Minerals, 1994;
Price and others, 1995). Abandoned mines are located not only throughout the State of Nevada
but there is a high concentration in and surrounding the Virginia City and Gold Hill areas. The
deepest shafts of these mines measure 3,300 feet below the shaft’s collar. The Nevada Division

3-8




SECTIONFIVE Hazard Rnalysis

of Minerals has inventoried 175 abandoned mine hazard locations between 1989 and June 10,
2009 in Storey County. Each of the 175 sites are provided with an individual identification
number and includes the geo-address, rank for each hazard to include degree and type, as well as
providing details of the mine visibility. All sites include a detailed description of the status of
the hazard at the time of the inspection. There are approximately an additional 30 more category
descriptions for each hazard site. Although the data collected on each hazard site is extensive,
the Nevada Division of Minerals states they have only a portion of the estimated sites
inventoried. With the mining history past and present so densely concentrated in the Virginia
City and Gold Hill areas abandoned mines are acknowledged to be a current hazard and one that
will persist well into the future. Without an in-depth study not only in Storey County but
throughout the State of Nevada the extent of the risk to life and property has not yet been fully
defined but can only be speculated upon considering the deepest of the known shafts are
measured at 3,300 feet.

523 Drought

5231 Nature

Drought is a temporary but recurrent feature of climate that occurs virtually everywhere,
including in regions that normally receive little rainfall. Characteristics of drought can vary
significantly from one region to another and, partly due to differences in impact, there are scores
of definitions. Drought is often described simply as a period of deficient precipitation, usually
lasting a season or more, resulting in extensive damage to agricultural crops with consequential
economic losses. Water shortages can result for some activities, groups, or environmental
sectors.

The onset and end of a drought are difficult to determine, and in contrast with quick and intense
natural hazards such as tornadoes, the impact of drought is more of a slower “creeping hazard”
and may be spread over a larger geographic area. The impact of a particular drought depends on
numerous factors including duration, intensity, and geographic extent as well as regional water
supply demands by humans and vegetation.

The negative effects of drought increase with duration. Lower than normal reservoir or river
levels can impact recreational opportunities, fire suppression activities, and anima) habitat.
Patterns of human consumption can also be altered. Non-irrigated croplands are most susceptible
to precipitation shortage. Rangeland and irrigated agricultural crops may not respond to moisture
shortage as rapidly, however yield during periods of drought can be substantially lower. During
periods of severe drought, lower moisture in plant and forest fuels create an increased potential
for devastating wildfires. An increase in insect infestation can be a particularly damaging impact
from severe drought conditions.

The U.8. Drought Monitor product utilizes several indices along with data retrieved from various
organizations and personnel directly involved in the field to create a graphical assessment of
drought conditions. The five drought intensities or classifications offered by the authors of this
product are: DO Abnormally Dry, D1 Moderate Drought, D2 Severe Drought, D3 Extreme

5-9




SECTIONETVE Hazard Analysis

Drought and D4 Exceptional Drought. The National Weather Service in Reno will issue Drought
Information Statements and brief water resource partners during periods of drought.

5.23.2 History

Increased wildfire risk, water shortages and an anomalous insect infestation have all been
attributed to recent droughts. Storey County has experienced 6 drought periods of Drought
Monitor classification D1 or higher since 2000, including the current drought. Maximum
intensity of these droughts ranged from severe (D2) to extreme (D3) and averaged 16 months in
duration. The longest drought in the period of record was from January 2007 to October 2010 —
45 months. The last two droughts have been the longest and most extreme since 2000. There is
no regular pattern to drought occurrences in the county, though there have been long periods
without drought, most notably the wet years of 2005-2006. It should be noted the ongoing
drought starting in 2012 has resulted in a USDA Drought Disaster Area Declaration for much of
Nevada. Storey County is considered a “Contiguous County” in this declaration.

Following is a list of recent drought periods extracted from data supplied by the U.S. Drought
Monitot.

Table 5-5: Droughts in Nevada

Drought Period Duration of Drought Maximum Intensity
3 April 2001 — 19 Mar 2002 11 months Extreme (D3}
28 May 2002 — 24 Dec 2002 7 months Severe (D2)
11 Feb 2003 — 30 Dec 2003 10 months Severe (D2)
13 Apr 2004 — 18 Jan 2005 9 months Extreme (D3)
23 Jan 2007 — 12 Oct 2010 45 months Extreme (D3)
3 Jan 2012 — ongoing 16 months Extreme (D3)

5.2.3.3  Location, Extent, and Probability of Future Events

Droughts are a naturally-occurring cyclical part of the climate and Storey County is highly
susceptible to periods of dry conditions and drought. Based on recent cycles, Storey County can
expect highly varying degrees and durations of drought to occur. The recently released
Southwest Climate Assessment report indicated that drought severity has increased across the
Southwest U.S,, including Nevada, and that the trend is likely to continue.

5-10




SECTIONFIVE Hazard Analysis

Figure 5-1 Nevada Drought Severity

March 15, 2011 March 11, 2014

Statistics type: | ®  Traditional (D0-D4, D1-D4, ete} | ¢ Categorical (DO, D1, etc.)

L) 34 [)4
3/15/2011 89.83 10.17 0 0 0 0
3/11/2014 0 100 99.32 72.05 3346 §.37

http://droughtmonitor.unl.edu/MapsAndData/WeeklvComparison.aspx

5-11




SECTIONFIVE Hazard Analysis

5.24 Earthquake

5.24.1 Nature

An earthquake is a sudden motion or trembling caused by a release of strain accumulated within
or along the edge of the earth’s tectonic plates. The effects of an earthquake can be felt far
beyond the site of its occurrence. Earthquakes usually occur without warning and, after justa
few seconds, can cause massive damage and extensive casualties. The most common effect of
earthquakes is ground motion, or the vibration or shaking of the ground during an earthquake.

The severity of ground motion generally increases with the amount of energy released and
decreases with distance from the fault or epicenter of the earthquake. Ground motion causes
waves in the earth’s interior, also known as seismic waves, and along the earth’s surface, known
as surface waves. There are two kinds of seismic waves. P (primary) waves are longitudinal or
compressional waves similar in character to sound waves that cause back-and-forth oscillation
along the direction of travel (vertical motion). S (secondary) waves, also known as shear waves,
are slower than P waves and cause structures to vibrate from side to side (horizontal motion),
There are also two kinds of surface waves: Raleigh waves and Love waves. These waves travel
more slowly and typically are significantly less damaging than seismic waves.

In addition to ground motion, several secondary hazards can occur from earthquakes, such as
surface faulting. Surface faulting is the differential movement of two sides of a fault at the
earth’s surface. Displacement along faults, both in terms of length and width, varies but can be
significant (e.g., up to 20 feet), as can the length of the surface rupture (e.g., up to 200 miles).
Surface faulting can cause severe damage to linear structures including railways, highways,
pipelines, and tunnels,

Earthquake-related ground failure due to liquefaction is another secondary hazard, Liquefaction
occurs when seismic waves pass through saturated granular soil, distorting its granular structure
and causing some of the empty spaces between granules to collapse. Porewater pressure may
also increase sufficiently to cause the soil to behave like a fluid for a brief period and cause
deformations. Liquefaction causes lateral spreads (horizontal movements of commeonly 10 to 15
feet, but up to 100 feet), flow failures (massive flows of soil, typically hundreds of feet, but up to
12 miles), and loss of bearing strength (soil deformations causing structures to settle or tip).
Liquefaction can cause severe damage to property,

The effects of earthquake waves at the surface can be measured using the Modified Mercalli
Intensity (MMI) Scale, which consists of arbitrary rankings based on observed effects, or the
Richter Magnitude Scale, a mathematical basis that expresses the effects of an event in
magnitude (M).

5.24.2 History

Nevada is ranked third in the states having the highest number of large earthquakes. The Sierra
Nevada-Great Basin seismic belt includes earthquakes along the eastern side of the Sierra
Nevada and appears to be a northern continuation of the Eastern California seismic belt. The

5-12




SECTIONFIVE Hazard Analysis

Central Nevada seismic belt, shown on the map below, which trends north-south in the west-
central part of the state, includes the largest historic earthquakes in Nevada in the 20™ century.
the County sits within both belts.

The figure below provides the historical earthquakes in the County.

Figure 5-2

5.24.3  Location, Extent, and Probability of Future Events

The location of damage from an earthquake would have the greatest impact in Virginia City with the
highest population density and historical structures many of which are unreinforced masonry. The
figure below provides a map of the major faults in the County. The map in Appendix B, Figure B-6
shows greater detail of the fault lines in the County.

5-13




SECGTIONFIVE Hazard Analysis

Figure 5-3: Major Faults Storey County

{’I} Active faults occur nearly
everywhere in Nevada,
including Storey County.

Source: NBMG 2010 http://www.nbmeg . unr.edw/Pubs/m/m167/m167.pdf
Figure 5-4 Comstock Fault

The Comstock Fault, along which the Comstock Lode formed
14 million years ago, has moved during the last 1.8 milion years
and is therefore an earthaprake hazard.

e
CONETOR, —
LODE "
i:. Aoy o =
Pt Wirgiries CEao =
[ o
L et Shatt . Biek e DU i

b 1 G0
o

ki

by hudscn C’.as.m Gargtde :zmi He-n. 22‘9439;‘,
1124800 soale

5-14




SECTIONFIVE Hazard Analysis

The Nevada Earthquake Safety Council, in part through the services of the Nevada Bureau of
Mines and Geology (NGMG) and the Nevada Seismological laboratory, provides assistance of
Earthquake risk assessment and earthquake mitigation activities for the State of Nevada. The
Hazard Mitigation Steering Committee will utilize the Nevada Earthquake Risk Mitigation Plan
(NERMP) for consideration in identifying Storey County Policy and mitigation Strategies.

The Executive Summary of the NERMP states that Nevada is earthquake country, ranking third
in the nation in the mumber of major earthquakes. Since the 1850s, 62 earthquakes have occurred
in Nevada that have had potentially destructive magnitudes of 5.5 (Richter Scale) or greater.
Nevada is a national leader in population growth, and the risk of harm and loss from earthquakes
increases proportionally with population and development. We can expect earthquakes to
continue to occur in Nevada and some of these will strike our growing urban centers and
communities,

“The occurrence rates of major historical earthquakes in western Nevada produced 1 % to 7

times higher probabilities of having a major earthquake than estimates based on instrumental
seismicity and geological data sets.” NBMG Open-File Report 03-3, Nevada Bureau of Mines
and Geology, 2009. The extent & probability for the entire County is shown in the figure below
was provided by the Nevada Bureau of Mines & Geology and is the probability of earthquakes of
various magnitudes occurring within 50 years within 50 kilometers.

Table 5-6: Earthquake Probability

abilit
. 3rd highest
V.lrg] ma >0 12-15 in the state
City of NV

Source: Bureau of Mines & Geology, UNR, Estimated Losses from Earthquakes Near NV Communities, 2009

5-15




SECTIONFIVE Hazard Analysis

525 Epidemic

5251 Nature

A disease is a pathological (unhealthy or ilf) condition of a living organism or part of the
organism that is characterized by an identifiable group of symptoms or signs. Disease can affect
any living organism, including people, animals, and plants. Disease can both directly (via
infection) and indirectly (via secondary impacts) harm these living things. Some infections can
cause disease in both people and animals. The major concern here is an epidemic, a disease that
affects an unexpected number of people or sentinel animals at one time. (Note: an epidemic can
result from even one case of illness if that illness is unheard of in the affected population, i.e.,
smallpox)

Of great concern for human health are infectious diseases caused by the entry and growth of
microorganisms in man. Most, but not all, infectious diseases are communicable. They can be
spread by coming into direct contact with someone infected with the disease, someone in a
carrier state who is not sick at the time, or another living organism that carries the pathogen.
Disease-producing organisms can also be spread by indirect contact with something a contagious
person or other carrier has touched and contaminated, like a tissue or doorknob, or another
medium (e.g., water, air, food).

According to the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC), during the first half of the
twentieth century, optimism grew as steady progress was made against infectious diseases in
humans via improved water quality and sanitation, antibiotics, and inoculations (October 1998).
The incidences and severity of infectious diseases such as tuberculosis, typhoid fever, smallpox,
polio, whooping cough, and diphtheria were all significantly reduced during this period. This
optimism proved premature, however, for a variety of reasons, including the following:
antibiotics began to lose their effectiveness against infectious disease (e.g., Staphylococcus
aureus); new strains of influenza emerged in China and spread rapidly around the globe; sexually
transmitted diseases resurged; new diseases were identified in the U.S. and elsewhere (c.g.,
Legionnaires’s disease, Lyme disease, toxic shock syndrome, and Ebola hemorrhagic fever);
acquired immunodeficiency syndrome (AIDS) appeared; and tuberculosis (including multidrug-
resistant strains) reemerged (CDC, October 1998).

In a 1992 report titled Emerging Infections: Microbial Threats to Health in the United States, the
Institute of Medicine (IOM) identified the growing links between U.S. and international health,
and concluded that emerging infections are a major and growing threat to U.S. health. An
emerging infectious disease is one that has newly appeared in a population or that has been
known for some time, but is rapidly increasing in incidence or geographical range. Emerging
infectious diseases are a product of modern demographic and environmental conditions, such as
global travel, globalization and centralized processing of the food supply, population growth and
increased urbanization.

In response to the threat of emerging infectious diseases, the CDC launched a national effort to
protect the US public in a plan titled Addressing Emerging Infectious Disease Threats. Based on
the CDC’s plan, major improvements to the US health system have been implemented, including

5-16




SEGTIONFIVE Hazard Analysis

improvements in surveillance, applied research, public health infrastructure, and prevention of
emerging infectious diseases (CDC, October 1998).

Despite these improvements, infectious diseases are the leading cause of death in humans
worldwide and the third leading cause of death in humans in the U.S. (American Society for
Microbiology, June 21, 1999). A recent follow-up report from the Institute of Medicine, titled
Microbial Threats to Health: Emergence, Detection, and Response, notes that the impact of
infectious diseases on the U.S. has only grown in the last ten years and that public health and
medical communities remain inadequately prepared. Further improvements are necessary to
prevent, detect, and control emerging, as well as resurging, microbial threats to health. The
dangers posed by infectious diseases are compounded by other important trends: the continuing
increase in antimicrobial resistance; the diminished capacity of the U.S. to recognize and respond
to microbial threats; and the intentional use of biological agents to do harm (Institute of
Medicine, 2003).

The CDC has established a national list of over 50 nationally reportable diseases. A reportable
disease is one that, by law, must be reported by health providers to report to federal, state or local
public health officials. Reportable discases are those of public interest by reason of their
communicability, severity, or frequency. The long list includes such diseases as the following:
AIDS; anthrax; botulism; cholera; diphtheria; encephalitis; gonotrhea; Hantavirus pulmonary
syndrome; hepatitis (A, B, C); HIV (pediatric); Legionellosis; Lyme disease; malaria; measles;
mumps; plague; polio (paralytic); rabies (animal and human); Rocky Mountain spotted fever;
rubella (also congenital); Salmonellosis; SARS; Streptococcal disease (Group A); Streptococeal
toxic-shock syndrome; Streptococcus pneumoniae (drug resistant); syphilis (also congenital);
tetanus; Toxic-shock syndrome; Trichinosis, tuberculosis, Typhoid fever; and Yellow fever
(Centers for Disease Control and Prevention, May 2, 2003).

Many other hazards, such as floods, earthquakes or droughts, may create conditions that
significantly increase the frequency and severity of diseases. These hazards can affect basic
services (e.g., water supply and quality, wastewater disposal, electricity), the availability and
quality of food, and the public and agricultural health system capacities. As a result, concentrated
areas of diseases may result and, if not mitigated right away, increase, potentially leading to large
losses of life and damage to the economic value of the area’s goods and services.

5252 History

The influenza pandemic of 1918 and 1919, known as the Spanish Flu, had the highest mortality
rate in recent history for an infectious disease. More than 20 million persons were killed
worldwide, some 500,000 of which were in the U.S. alone (Centers for Disease Control and
Prevention, October 1998). More recent incidences of major infectious diseases affecting people
in the U.S. include the following:

* HINI1, an influenza strain that was first recognized in Mexico and entered the US in
Southern California in April 2009. HIN1 was recognized as a world wide pandemic by
the World Health Organization in May 2009. The CDC graph below illustrates the
number of office visits due to the flu and demonstrates how easily the US medical system
can be overwhelmed by a pandemic.

5-17




SECTIONFIVE ' Hazard Analysis

Figure 5-5: Percentage of Visits for Influenza-like Illness (ILT)

% of Visits fariLt

A2 446455052 1 3 5 7 6 ¥ 131517 19 21 25 25 27 2531 33 35 37 3%
Waek

[—#— 200607" ——2007-05° ~a=n2008-09 ~o-~2005-10 = ~ ~Nationsi Basshine |

“Tharg was e week 53 durdng the 200807 or 200708 influenza seasons, therslors the week 53 data point for those seasons is an average of weeks 52 and 1.

Source: U.8. Outpatient Influenza-like liiness Surveillance Network (ILINet), National Summary 2008-2009 and
Previous Two Seasons (Posted October 16, 2009, 7:30 PM ET, for Week Ending October 10, 2009)

HIN1 varies from other influenzas in that it doesn’t seem to affect populations born after
1950 due to that group’s immunity to a similar strain. The CDC has taken an aggressive
approach to this highly contagious strain and is in the process of inoculating the US
public through vaccinations. Although HIN1 has a less than 1% mortality rate due to the
high contagion rate this could lead to a significantly higher than normal number of deaths
for the 2009-2010 flu season. (Centers for Disease Control and Prevention, October
2009)

* West Nile Virus (WNYV), a seasonal infection transmitted by mosquitoes, caused an
epidemic which grew from an initial U.S. outbreak of 62 disease cases in 1999 to 4,156
reported cases, including 284 deaths, in 2002. However due to communities® aggressive
approach to mosquito control the number of cases dropped to 1356 with 44 deaths in
2008 (Centers for Disease Control and Prevention, October 2009).

" Severe acute respiratory syndrome (SARS), which is estimated to have killed 774 and
infected 8,098 worldwide. In the U.S., there were 175 suspect cases and 8 confirmed
cases all who traveled to other parts of the world, although no reported deaths (Centers
for Disease Control and Prevention, October 2009).

* Norovirus - CDC estimates that 23 million cases of acute gastroenteritis are due to
norovirus infection, and it is now thought that at least 50% of all food borne outbreaks of

gastroenteritis can be attributed to noroviruses (Centers for Disease Control and
Prevention, October 2009).

5-18




SECTIONFIVE Hazard Analysis

= Escherichia coli (abbreviated as E. coli) are a large and diverse group of bacteria. Although
most strains of E. coli are harmless, others can make you sick. Some kinds of £. cofi can
cause diarrhea, while others cause urinary tract infections, respiratory iliness and
pneumonia, and other illnesses. Experts think that there may be about 70,000 infections
with E. coli O157 each year in the United States. (Centers for Disease Control and
Prevention, October 2009).

Figure 5-6: States Where Persons Infected with the Outbreak Strain of E. coli 0157:H7,
Live United States, by State March 1, 2009 to June 22, 2009

\\,}

State with 2 1 sase

Centers for Disease Control; http://www.cdc.gov/ecoli/

Table 5-7: Historic Occurrences of Epidemics Registered in Nevada

Februa Cholera outbreak confirmed. At least 26 passengers from Aerclineas Argentinas Flight 386 that brought

1992 | acholera outbreak to Los Angeles traveled on to Las Vegas, where 10 showed symptoms of the
disease. Cholera or cholera-like symptoms developed in 67 passengers of Flight 386.

Sprin Five cases of the measles confirmed. Outbreak identified and confirmed, Clark County Health District

2goog (CCHD) Office of Epidemiology (OOE) worked with the Immunization Clinic and the media to alert the
community about the prevention of the spread of the disease.

October Noravirus cenfirmed at a major public accommodation facility on the Strip. Details regarding the spread

2004 of this disease and the exact number affected are still under investigation and pending at time of print of
this plan.

April 2009 H1N1 virus confirmed by the WHO as a worldwide epidemic. The CDC conducted a vaccination

P program fo contain this virus,

5-19




SEGTIONF1VE Hazard Analysis

5.2.5.3  Extent and Probability of Future Events

The probability and magnitude of disease occurrence, particularly an epidemic, is difficult to
evaluate due to the wide variation in disease characteristics, such as rate of spread, morbidity and
mortality, detection and response time, and the availability of vaccines and other forms of
prevention. A review of the historical record (see above) indicates that disease related disasters
do occur in humans with some regularity and varying degrees of severity. There is growing
concern, however, about emerging infectious diseases as well as the possibility of a bioterrorism
attack.

Epidemics constitute a significant risk to the population of Nevada, particularly as it relates to
the frequency in which the Storey County population interacts with visitors to Virginia City and
the proximity of Las Vegas and Reno’s tourist population. Of highest concern is in the Reno
area, in various entertainment venues, and Reno/Tahoe International Airport. The transient
nature of the Washoe County population, coupled with dense population gatherings increase the
potential for an epidemic as well as for its spread into neighboring counties such as Storey.
However the planning committee considers the probability to be low considering the counties
small population and remote location.

5.2.5.4 Location

An epidemic in the County would affect a regional response requiring coordination among
Walker River Tribal Health Clinic, Hawthorne Army Depot, neighboring counties, state and
federal agencies. Segments of the population at highest risk for contracting an illness from a
foreign pathogen are the very young, the elderly, or individuals who currently experience
respiratory or immune deficiencies. These segments of the population are present within the
County.

5.2.5.5 Warning Time

Due to the wide variation in disease characteristics, the warning time for a disease disaster can
vary from no time to months, depending upon the nature of the disease. No warning time may be
available due to an extremely contagious disease with a short incubation period, particutarly if
combined with a terrorist attack in a crowded environment. However, there are agencies in place
that have capabilities to prevent, detect, and respond to these types of diseases, such as the
Centers for Disease Control (CDC), and the Nevada State Health Division (NSHD). This
provides a positive, balancing influence to the overall outcome of a disease disaster event.

5-20




SECTIONFTVE Hazard Analysis

5.2.6 Flood

5.2.6.1 Nature

Flooding as defined by the National Flood Insurance Program is “A general and temporary
condition of partial or complete inundation of two ot more acres of normally dry land area or of
two or more properties from:

e Overflow of inland or tidal waters;
¢ Unusual and rapid accumulation or runoff of surface waters from any source;

* Mudflow, (a river of liquid and flowing mud on the surfaces of normally dry land areas,
as when earth is carried by a current of water, or

¢ Collapse or subsidence of land along the shore of a lake or similar body of water as a
result of erosion or undermining caused by waves or currents of water exceeding
anticipated cyclical levels that result in a flood as defined above.

Floodplains are lowlands adjacent to water bodies that are subject to recurring floods. Floods are
natural events that are considered hazards only when people and property are affected.

Nationwide, floods result in more deaths than any other natural hazard. Physical damage from
floods includes the following:

» Inundation of structures, causing water damage to structural elements and contents.

* Erosion or scouring of stream banks, roadway embankments, foundations, footings for bridge
piers, and other features.

» [mpact damage to structures, roads, bridges, culverts, and other features from high-velocity
flow and from debris carried by floodwaters. Such debris may also accumulate on bridge
piers and in culverts, increasing loads on these features or causing overtopping or backwater
effects.

* Destruction of crops, erosion of topsoil, and deposition of debris and sediment on croplands.

* Release of sewage and hazardous or toxic materials as wastewater treatment plants are
inundated, storage tanks are damaged, and pipelines are severed.

Floods also cause economic losses through closure of businesses and government facilities;
disrupt communications; disrupt the provision of utilities such as water and sewer service; result
in excessive expenditures for emergency response; and generally disrupt the normal function of a
community.

In Storey, flooding is most commonly associated with unusually heavy rainfall in the State of
Nevada and can be influenced by both frontal systems out of the Northern Pacific Ocean and
tropical storms coming from the South. Due to the aridity of the County, the area is dry except
during and shortly after these storms. When a major storm develops, water collects rapidly in a
short period of time. As a consequence, flows are of the flash-flood type. Flash floods are

5-21




SECTIONFIVE Hazard Analysis

generally understood to involve a rapid rise in water level, high velocity, and large amounts of
debris, which can lead to significant damage that includes the uprooting of trees, undermining of
buildings and bridges, and scouring of new channels. The intensity of flash flooding is a function
of the intensity and duration of rainfall, steepness of the watershed, stream gradients, watershed
vegetation, natural and artificial flood storage areas, and configuration of the streambed and
floodplain.

In areas where alluvial fans are present, the flow paths of flash floods lack definition. Flow
depths with ailuvial fan flooding are generally shallow with damage resulting from inundation,
variable flow paths, localized scour, and the deposition of debris.

Canal and Dam Failures

Dam or canal failures involve unintended releases or surges of impounded water resulting in
downstream flooding. The high-velocity, debris-laden wall of water released from dam failures
results in the potential for human casualties, economic loss, lifeline disruption, and
environmental damage. Failures may involve either the total collapse of a dam, or other
hazardous situations such as damaged spillways, overtopping from prolonged rainfall, or
unintended consequences from normal operations. Severe storms with unusually high amounts of
rainfall within a drainage basin, earthquakes, or landslides may cause or increase the severity of
the failure.

Factors causing failure may include natural or human-caused events, or a combination of both.
Dam failures usually occur when the spillway capacity is inadequate and water overtops the dam.
Piping, when internal erosion through the dam foundation occurs, is another factor in a dam
failure. Structural deficiencies from poor initial design or construction, lack of maintenance or
repair, or gradual weakening from aging are factors that contribute to this hazard.

§.2.6.2 History

Flooding has occurred from November through March as a result of rain on frozen ground or on
snow. According to the 1993 FEMA Flood Insurance Study, severe flooding along the Truckee
River occurred during the following years: January 1874; January 1875; January 1886; April-
May 1890; February 1904; and February 1963. Most recently, the County received a Presidential
Declaration for severe storms and flooding along the Truckee River for the incident period of
December 31, 2005 to January 4, 2006.

Historical flash flooding are shown below.

Table 5-8: Historical Flash Floods

3/10/1995 Rainbow Bend A flash flood down Long Valley Creek in Storey County flooded
subdivision and Six the Rainbow Bend subdivision and washed out three bridges over

Mile Canyon the creck. The water main to the subdivision was also washed

out. The subdivision was evacuated. Also, Six Mile Canyon,

between Virginia City and US Highway 50 was closed due to

flash flooding.
2/3/1996 Lockwood area Lockwood in northern Storey County hardest hit; two bridges
were washed out, siranding several people in their homes.
6/29/2000 Geiger Grade Storey County Sheriff reported boulders washed onto Geijger

5-22




SECTIONFIVE Hazard Analysis

Grade (State Route 341) and lots of hail.

8/2/2002 Virginia City Highlands Heavy downpours caused flash flooding in the Virginia City
Highlands. In 20 minutes, 1.23 inches of rain fell, washing out
roads and delaying the transport of fire equipment.

8/14/2004 Patrick area Heavy rainfall left 6 inches of water covering part of I-80 3 miles
east-northeast of Patrick. The Tracy Clark exit was impassable.
7/19/2006 Between Lockwood Heavy rainfall caused flash flooding along I-80 between
and Patrick Lockwood and Patrick. Minor mudslides left 4 to 5 inches of

debris on roads in the area.

Dam & Canal Failure

There have been no Federal declarations for Storey County as a result of dam, ditch, or retention
basin failure. However, there have been Federal declarations in adjacent Washoe County due to
flooding events associated with the Truckee River Irrigation Ditch which flows approximately 25
miles through Storey County.

5.2.6.3 Location, Extent, and Probability of Future Events

Floods are described in terms of their extent (including the horizontal area affected and the
vertical depth of floodwaters) and the related probability of occurrence. Flood studies often use
historical records, such as stream flow gages, to determine the probability of occurrence for
floods of different magnitudes. The probability of occurrence is expressed as a percentage for the
chance of a flood of a specific extent occurring in any given year.

Factors contributing to the frequency and severity of flooding include the following:
e Rainfall intensity and duration
* Antecedent moisture conditions

» Watershed conditions, including steepness of terrain, soil types, amount and type of
vegetation, and density of development

* The existence of attenuating features in the watershed, including natural features such as
swamps and lakes and human-built features such as dams

* The existence of flood control features, such as levees and flood control channels
e Velocity of flow

¢ Availability of sediment for transport, and the erodibility of the bed and banks of the
watercourse

These factors are evaluated using (1) a hydrologic analysis to determine the probability that a
discharge of a certain size will occur, and (2) a hydraulic analysis to determine the characteristics
and depth of the flood that results from that discharge.

The magnitude of flood used as the standard for floodplain management in the United States is a
floed having a 1 percent probability of occurrence in any given year. This flood is also known as
the 100-year flood or base flood. The most readily available source of information regarding the
100-year flood is the system of Flood Insurance Rate Maps (FIRMs) prepared by FEMA. These

5-23




SECTIONFIVE Hazard Analysis

maps are used to support the National Flood Insurance Program (NFIP). The FIRMs show 100-
year floodplain boundaries for identified flood hazards. These areas are also referred to as
Special Flood Hazard Areas (SFHAs) and are the basis for flood insurance and floodplain
management requirements. The FIRMs also show floodplain boundaries for the 500-year flood,
which is the flood having a 0.2 percent chance of occurrence in any given year. FEMA has
prepared a FIRM for Storey County, dated 2009. The 100-year floodplain was used the flood
map, see Appendix B and which uses the 100-year flood as a basis and provides the areas
susceptible to flood.

As shown in Appendix B, the principal source of flooding in Storey County is the Truckee River.
The Truckee River is located along the northern border between Storey and Washoe Counties.
Although the Truckee River generates a damaging flood roughly every ten years, the damage is
usually in Washoe County. However, on those occasions when the damage flows into Storey
County, residential and business structures near Lockwood are affected. The River runs through
Storey County approximately 25 miles. The Largomarasino Canyon Creek is also a source of
flooding during heavy rain fall. The FIS recommends that development in this area should be
regulated. In 1997 and 2005 Storey County has had a Federal declaration for flooding occurring
in this area. In the southern portion of the County flooding is mapped in the Six Mile Canyon
area.

Flash Flood

Flash floods have generally occurred along the Truckee River, affecting the communities of
Lockwood and Patrick, causing minor mudslides and leaving 4 to 5 inches of debris on roads in
the area as well as washing out several bridges over the years. In the southern portion of the
County, flash floods have occurred down Long Valley Creek affecting the Rainbow Bend
subdivision/Six-Mile Canyon area, washing out bridges and the water main for the subdivision,
which required that the subdivision be evacuated. Flash floods have occurred in the Geiger
Grade (the main road into Virginia City) where boulders were washed onto the road, and in the
Virginia City Highlands area where in 20 minutes, 1.23 inches of rain fell, washing out roads and
delaying the transport of fire equipment. Based on previous occurrences, Storey County can
expect to experience a damaging flash flood every two years.

Dam Failure

The Nevada Division of Water Resources lists 5 dams in Storey County. Of these dams, 1 is
considered “high hazard,” 1 is considered “significant hazard,” and 3 are considered “low
hazard.” A high-hazard designation is assigned to a dam if there is reasonable potential for loss
of life and/or excessive economic loss. A significant designation is given when there is no
reasonable potential for loss of life, but there is potential for appreciable economic loss. Lastly, a
low-hazard designation is assigned when there is no reasonable potential for loss of life and the
economic loss is minor. The ratings provided by the Nevada Division of Water Resources do not
reflect the safety or condition of the dam; the ratings are determined at the time the dam design
plans are reviewed. The hazard rating may be altered when downstream conditions change.

The high-hazard dam is privately owned and not considered to pose a significant threat to life or
property and is owned by the Tahoe Reno Industrial Center located approximately 7 miles east of
the Reno-Sparks area on 1-80.

5-24




SEGTIONFIVE Hazard Analysis

5.2.7.1 Nature

Hazardous materials may include hundreds of substances that pose a significant risk to humans.
These substances may be highly toxic, reactive, corrosive, flammable, radioactive, or infectious.
Hazard materials are regulated by numerous Federal, State, and local agencies including the U.S.
Environmental Protection Agency (EPA), U.S. Department of Transportation (DOT), National
Fire Protection Association, FEMA, U.S. Army, and International Maritime Organization.

Hazardous material releases may occur from any of the following:

» Tixed site facilities (such as refineries, chemical plants, storage facilities, manufacturing,
watehouses, wastewater treatment plants, swimming pools, dry cleaners, automotive
sales/repair, and gas stations)

* Highway and rail transportation (such as tanker trucks, chemical trucks, and railroad tankers)
¢ Air transportation (such as cargo packages)
» Pipeline transportation (liquid petroleum, natural gas, and other chemicals)

Unless exempted, facilities that use, manufacture, or store hazardous materials in the United
States fall under the regulatory requirements of the Emergency Planning and Community Right
to Know Act (EPCRA) of 1986, enacted as Title Il of the Federal Superfund Amendments and
Reauthorization Act (42 USC 11001-11050; 1988). Under EPCRA regulations, hazardous
materials that pose the greatest risk for causing catastrophic emergencies are identified as
Extremely Hazardous Substances (EHSs). These chemicals are identified by the EPA in the List
of Lists — Consolidated List of Chemicals Subject to the Emergency Planning and Community
Right-to-Know Act (EPCRA) and Section 112 of the Clean Air Act. Releases of EHSs can occur
during transport to and from fixed site facilities. Transportation-related releases are generally
more troublesome because they may occur anywhere, including close to human populations,
critical facilities, or sensitive environmental areas. Transportation-related EHS releases are also
more difficult to mitigate due to the variability of locations and distance from response
resources.

In addition to accidental human-caused hazardous material events, natural hazards may cause the
release of hazardous materials and complicate response activities. The impact of earthquakes on
fixed facilities may be particularly serious due to the impairment or failure of the physical
integrity of containment facilities. The threat of any hazardous material event may be magnified
due to restricted access, reduced fire suppression and spill containment, and even complete cut-
off of response personnel and equipment. In addition, the risk of terrorism involving hazardous
materials is considered a major threat due to the location of hazardous material facilities and
transport routes throughout communities and the frequently limited antiterrorism security at
these facilities.

5-25




SECTIONFIVE Hazard Analysis

On behalf of several Federal agencies including the EPA and the DOT, the National Response
Center (NRC) serves as the point of contact for reporting oil, chemical, radiological, biological,
and etiological discharges into the environment within the United States,

5.2.7.2 History

During the past 10 years (July 1999 to July 2009), the following events in Storey County have
been reported to the National Response Center.

¢ Two storage tank spills
o Two fixed facilities

¢ Two mobile releases

o Two pipeline releases

¢ Three railroad non-releases

The Nevada Division of Environmental Protection report-shows the following large oil and
chemical spills have occurred within Storey County from July 2009 to December 2013.

Table 5-9: Hazardous Material Release in County

ocation B stan scriptio
TRI 6/22/2011 Hydrochioric | 100 Gallons from chemical hose with leak.
Acid
TRI 112312013 Pre- 30,000 gallons was released from a building products

Treatment | manufacturer to storm drains and soit from break in pipe
Waler fitting.

Virginia City 8172013 Cyanide 29 cubic yards released to soil of combination of ore and
Solution process solution from the heap leach pad due to
oversaturation. Mining

Virginia city 1072472013 Cyanide 8 cubic yards leached into soil from overtopping. Mining
Solution
TRI 813114 Muriatic Acid | 200 gallon spill at plant.

Source: NV Division of Environmental Protection

5.27.3  Location, Extent, and Probability of Future Events

In Storey County, a hazardous materials event is most likely to occur along the major
transportation corridors, including State Route 341, the Geiger Grade, 1-80, and railroad tracks.
Trucks and rail cars that use these transportation corridors and railroad tracks commonly carry a
variety of hazardous materials, including gasoline and other petroleum products, along with other
chemicals known to cause human health problems. A growing concern for the possibility of
hazardous material releases is from any number of businesses located at the Tahoe-Reno
Industrial Development (TRI) in McCarran just south of I-80. In the early stages of construction
a fire station was built and is currently operational at the TRI complex. The Virginia City area
has seen a rebirth in mining activity which makes the area at risk to mining hazardous materials
releases.

5-26




SECTIONFIVE Hazard Analysis

Comprehensive information on the probability and magnitude of a hazardous material event
along the transportation corridors is not available. Wide variations among the characteristics of
hazardous material sources and among the materials themselves make such an evaluation
difficult. Only one of the two mobile releases and three railroad releases over the past 10 years
involved a hazardous material. As such, based on previous experience, Storey County is
susceptible to a mobile hazardous material event every 10 years.

5-27




SECTIONFIVE Hazard Analysis

5.2.8 Severe Weather

5.2.8.1 Nature

While a considerable percentage of days in the region are characterized by tranquil weather — a
number of high-impact severe weather types can occur. Low-frequency weather hazards can be
particularly problematic from a preparedness standpoint due to complacency and people’s lack of
experience with the phenomenon.

The following starts with impacts from summer thunderstorms, transitioning into snow and wind
from winter storms. Storey County faces additional weather hazards (e.g. dust storms, rare weak
tornadoes) but the following are the most prominent with the highest economic and societal tolls,

Thunderstorms - Hail

Nature: Hail forms on condensation nuclei such as dust or ice crystals, when supercooled water
freezes on contact. In clouds containing large numbers of supercooled water droplets, these ice
nuclei grow quickly at the expense of the liquid droplets. The hail grows increasingly larger.
Once a hailstone becomes too heavy to be supported by the storm’s updraft it falls out of the
cloud. Hail is most common in mid-latitudes during spring and early summer where surface
temperatures are warm enough to promote the instability associated with strong thunderstorms,
but the upper atmosphere is still cool enough to support ice. Hailstones are usually from the size
of a pea to the size of a golf ball. The National Weather Service in Reno issues Severe
Thunderstorm Warnings for thunderstorms capable of producing high winds (above 58 mph)
and/or large hail (above 1 inch diameter).

History: Large hail is relatively rare in Nevada. The NOAA National Climatic Data Center
(NCDC) has records of 1 large hail event in Storey County since 2000. This one event recorded
“slushy” hail up to baseball size, 2.75 inch diameter, in June of 2005. There have not been any
deaths or injuries associated with this recorded hail event or any reportable damages. It should be
noted that often thunderstorms are the most common over high terrain and other remote areas of
Nevada - leading to minimal actual reports of severe weather.

Location, Extent, and Probability of Future Events: Storey County is susceptible to hail events

although it is infrequent. The single report noted above is an extreme event, and Storey County is
more likely to see hail size on the order of % to 1 inch in diameter which typically results in
minimal damage. Based on previous occurrences in nearby counties, Storey County can expect a
large hail event to occur on the order of every 2 to 4 years.

Thunderstorms - High Winds & Lightning

Nature: Thunderstorms are formed from a combination of moisture, rapidly rising warm air, and
a force capable of lifting air, such as warm and cold fronts or a mountain. Thunderstorms may
occur alone, in clusters, or in lines. As a result, it is possible for several thunderstorms to affect
one location in the course of a few hours. A thunderstorm can produce lightning, thunder, and
torrential rainfall and may also lead to the formation of tornados, hail, downbursts, and

5-28




SECTIONFIVE Hazard Analysis

microbursts of wind. Focusing on the wind threat from thunderstorms - downbursts are strong,
straight-line winds created by falling rain and sinking rain that may reach speeds of 125 mph.
Microbursts are more concentrated than downbursts, with speeds reaching up to 150 mph. Both
downbursts and microbursts typically last 5 to 7 minutes. The National Weather Service in Reno
issues Severe Thunderstorm Warnings for thunderstorms capable of producing high winds
(above 58 mph) and/or large hail (above 1 inch diameter).

History: Strong winds from thunderstorms are fairly common in Nevada, producing wind gusts
above 40 mph, with gusts above 60 mph possible. With that being said there are no thunderstorm
high wind or lightning damage reports in Storey County since 2000 in the NCDC database.
Lightning is a commuon factor in new wildfire starts in Nevada, though no specific information is
available for Storey County. As noted before, often thunderstorms are the most common over
high terrain and other remote areas of Nevada - leading to minimal actual reports of severe
weather and lightning.

Location, Extent, and Probability of Future Events: Thunderstorms in Storey County tend to
favor the high terrain, including the Virginia Range. Thunderstorm activity which would produce
high winds and/or significant lightning generally occurs from June through August. During this
timeframe it is not unusual to experience thunderstorm activity on a daily basis for up to a week
at a time. In an average year 2-4 severe thunderstorm warnings for high winds are issued for
portions of Storey County. Severe thunderstorm warnings are not issued solely for significant
amounts of lightning, though the National Weather Service will issue Red Flag Warnings for fire
partners when widespread dry thunderstorms are expected. A map is attached showing areas of
lightening activity within the County in Appendix B.

Thunderstorms - Flash Floods

Nature: Floods are rare but extremely high impact in the Sierra Nevada and Great Basin regions.
Localized flash floods can occur in the summer, the result of intense thunderstorms producing
copious rainfall in short periods of time. Moisture from the Southwest U.S. Monsoon can
enhance the risk of flash flooding. These floods normally last on the order of an hour or two but
can still result in major impacts and damage. The National Weather Service in Reno issues Flash
Flood Warnings when flash flooding is likely based on radar estimates of rainfall or has been
reported from law enforcement or a spotter.

History: Fortunately flash flooding events in Storey County are rare, but when they do happen
they create a high impact. Since 2000 there have been 5 instances of flash flooding in the
summer. Most have taken place in August. The most recent event occurred in August 2010
where thunderstorms producing heavy rainfall resulted in a mudslide that derailed the V&T train
near Gold Hill.

Location, Extent. and Probability of Future Events: Based on past frequencies, flash flooding
from thunderstorms in the summer can occur about every 1-2 years. Narrow canyons and low
lying areas along roads are the most prone to flash flooding. Recently burned areas are especially
prone to flash flooding and debris flows — which can result in significant damage to property.

Winter Storms - Heavy Snow

It is important to note that county-level storm data are not available for this phenomenon,
therefore this analysis uses NWS forecast zone data. Forecast zones are geographic areas of

5-29




SECTIONFIVE Hazard Analysis

similar weather features NWS groups together to produce forecasts. Storey County is within the
zone that covers the immediate lee of the Sierra or “Sierra Front”. For reference, a map of that
zone is provided at the end of the severe weather section.

Nature: Winter snow storms are often large areas of low pressure originating from the Gulf of
Alaska and then moving into the western United States. As the moist air masses push across the
Sierra Nevada and other Great Basin mountains, the air masses cool and the water condenses as
snow. Wind in combination with the snow can cause reduced visibilities and deep snowdrifis. In
addition, heavy snow can cause avalanches in areas along steep terrain. In some instances,
freezing rain occurs, when very cold inland arctic air becomes trapped under warm moist air.
The National Weather Service in Reno issues winter storm watches/warnings/advisories for
heavy snow, and provides briefings to Emergency Managers when winter storms are forecast.

History: Since 2000 there have been 33 days where heavy snow has impacted the Sierra Front
zone, which includes Storey County. On these days, snow amounts of greater than 6-12 inches
occurred, along with other winter storm hazards such as high winds, low visibility, and cold
temperatures. Localized lake effect snows downwind of Pyramid Lake can produce heavy snow
in eastern parts of Storey County including Interstate 80 roughly every 1 to 2 years. FEMA
Federal Disaster Declarations have been issued in the wake of several widespread winter storm
events impacting Storey County, including February 2005 and January 2008.

Location, Extent, and Probability of Future Events: It is not uncommon for Storey County to

experience snow with accumulations of 1-3 inches per winter storm, which can cause travel
inconveniences but little in the way of long lasting impacts. Storms like this normally happen 3-6
times each winter season, especially above 6000 feet elevation. Larger storms, producing 6
inches or more, happen on average 2-3 times each winter season above 6000 feet; less frequently
below that elevation. Snowfall of this magnitude can impact critical transportation corridors
including Interstate 80 near the Tahoe-Reno Industrial Park and State Highway 341 leading to
Virginia City. Every few years, particularly strong storms can produce high winds along with
heavy snow creating life threatening blizzard conditions. Virginia City has an elevation of 6,200
feet; Gold Hill has an elevation of 5,843 feet; and Virginia City Highlands has an elevation of
5,990 feet. Probability is 1% per day or 3 days each year.

Winter Storms - High Winds

It is important to note that county-level storm data are not available for this phenomenon,
therefore this analysis uses NWS forecast zone data. Forecast zones are geographic areas of
similar weather features NWS groups together to produce forecasts. Storey County is within the
zone that covers the immediate lee of the Sierra or “Sierra Front”. For reference, a map of that
zone 1s provided at the end of the severe weather section,

Nature: The same winter storms described previously also produce periods of widespread high
winds in the Sierra Nevada and Great Basin. These winds of 40-60 mph typically precede the
snow portion of a winter storm by a day or so — and are the most common from late fall through
spring. Strong winds are the direct result of large differences in atmospheric pressure from the
storm itself and the surrounding environment. Winds can be further enhanced in localized areas
in the immediate lee of mountain ranges in what is called a downslope wind storm. Virginia City
is located in such a place. Wind gusts in these situations can exceed 80 mph, reaching nearly 100
mph in the most extreme “once-in-a-decade” events. The National Weather Service in Reno

5-30




SECTIONFIVE Hazard Analysis

issues high wind watches/warnings/advisories, and provides briefings to Emergency Managers
when high winds threaten.

History: Since 2000 there have been 59 days where high winds have impacted the Sierra Front
zone, which includes Storey County. 15 of these days had winds above 70 mph. These wind
events have been associated with damage to buildings, knocking over trees and power lines, and
overturning large vehicles.

Location, Extent. and Probability of Future Events: High wind events with gusts above 60 mph
ar¢ not uncommon in Storey County, especially along ridge tops above 6000 feet and in the
vicinity of Virginia City. In the strongest storms winds are likely to gust above 80 mph, which
can produce wind damage to structures and power infrastructure. Strong winds can also channel
through the Truckee River drainage and impact eastern regions of the county around the Tahoe-
Reno Industrial Park. Probability of a high wind day is 2% per day in each given year or 4 wind
days per year on average.

5-31




SECTIONFIVE Hazard Analysis

52.9 Terrorism

5291 Nature

The Department of Justice (DOJ) Federal Bureau of Investigation (FBI) defines terrorism as the
unlawful use of force or violence against persons or property to intimidate or coerce a
government and/or the civilian population in furtherance of political or social objectives.
Weapons of Mass Destruction (WMD) associated with terrorism are defined as nuclear,
biological and chemical in origin. Technological terrorism is defined as the intentional ,
disruption in the nation’s data control systems. Attacks on financial, business, and governmental
computer networks are being considered as technological terrorist-related acts.

The FBI is the primary investigatory agency for domestic terrorism. The Central Intelligence
Agency (CIA) monitors potential security threats from foreign sources. The DOJ through the
FBI will coordinate the domestic preparedness programs and activities of this nation to address
the threat posed by terrorists and the use of weapons of mass destruction.

Acts of terrorism may originate from a single person, special interest groups, or acts sponsored
by a foreign government. Terrorist acts include the use of arson, hostile takeovers, shootings,
biological agents (such as anthrax, plague, botulism and others), chemical agents (such as
hydrogen cyanide, sulfur mustard, sarin and chlorine), and hostage taking. The most popular
method used in recent events in the United States has been terrorism by bombing,

Conventional Explosive Devices

The easiest to obtain and use of all weapons is still a conventional explosive device, or
improvised bomb, which may be used to cause massive local destruction or to disperse chemical,
biological, or radiological agents. The components are readily available, as are detailed
instructions to construct such a device. Improvised explosive devices are categorized as being
explosive or incendiary, employing high or low filler explosive materials to explode and/or cause
fires.

Bombs and firebombs are cheap and easily constructed, involve low technology, and are the
terrorist weapon most likely to be encountered. Large, powerful devices can be outfitted with
timed or remotely triggered detonators and can be designed to be activated by light, pressure,
movement, or radio transmission. The potential exists for single or multiple bombing incidents in
single or multiple municipalities. Historically, less than five percent of actual or attempted
bombings were preceded by a threat. Explosive materials can be employed covertly with little
signature, and are not readily detectable. Secondary devices may be targeted against responders.

Nuclear Weapon/Radiological Agent Use

The difficulty of responding to a nuclear or radiological incident is compounded by the nature of
radiation itself. In an explosion, the fact that radioactive material was involved may or may not be
obvious, depending upon the nature of the explosive device used. Unless confirmed by radiological
detection equipment, the presence of a radiation hazard is difficult to ascertain. Although many
detection devices exist, most are designed to detect specific types and levels of radiation and may not

5-32




SEGTIONFIVE Hazard Analysis

be appropriate for measuring or ruling out the presence of radiological hazards. The table below lists
some indicators of a radiological release.

General indicators of possible nuclear weapon/radiological agent use are as follows.

The scenarios constituting an intentional nuclear/radiological emergency include the following:

1. Use of an Improvised Nuclear Device (IND) includes any explosive device designed to
cause a nuclear yield. Depending on the type of trigger device used, either uranium or
plutonium isotopes can fuel these devices. While “weapons-grade” material increases the
efficiency of a given device, materials of less than weapons grade can still be used.

2. Use of a Radiological Dispersal Device (RDD) includes any explosive device utilized to
spread radioactive material upon detonation. Any improvised explosive device could be used
by placing it in close proximity to radioactive material.

3. Use of a Simple RDD that spreads radiological material without the use of an explosive. Any
nuclear material (including medical isotopes or waste) can be used in this manner.

Biological Agents

An identified terrorist tactic or weapon is the use of toxic biological agents in an attempt to harm
or intimidate the public. Anthrax, Yersinia pestis, and small pox are examples of this type of
threat. Anthrax is found naturally in the soil in some of the old ranch areas in Nevada. UNR and
the Nevada State Agriculture Labs maintain a vigilant watch of these threats.

According to information from the Nevada State Health Division, most biological agents are
naturally occurring in various parts of the world. They can be weaponized to enhance their
virulence in humans and make them resistant to vaccines and antibiotics. Weaponization of
biological agents usually involves using selective reproduction pressure or recombinant
engineering to mutate or modify the genetic composition of the agent. Terrorist may choose to
use biological weapons to achieve their goals because a very small amount can harm many
people. It is reported that many of these agents would be relatively easy to prepare and easy to
hide. The actual or threatened use of bio-weapons can have tremendous psychological impact on
the population.

5-33




SEGTIONFIVE Hazard Analysis

The CIA currently lists 15 animal pathogens as having potential Biological Weapons application
that could potentially be used in a terrorist act:

African swine fever
Avian influenza
Bluetongue

Foot and Mouth Disease
Goat Pox

Monkey Pox
Pseudo-rabies

Hog cholera

Lyssa virus

Newcastle disease

Pest des petits

Swine vesicular discase
Rinderpest

Sheep pox

Porcine enteroviral encephalomyelitis
Vesicular stomatitis

e & & & ¢ & & @

Yersinia pestis is used an aerosol attack can cause cases a pneumonic form of plague. One to six
days after becoming infected with the bacteria, people would develop pneumonic plague. Once
people have the disease, the bacteria can spread to others who have close contact with them.
Because of the delay between being exposed to the bacteria and becoming sick, people could
travel over a large area before becoming contagious and possibly infecting others. Controlling
the disease would then be more difficult. A biological weapon carrying Y. pestis is possible
because the bacterium occurs in nature and could be isolated and grown in quantity in a
laboratory. Even so, manufacturing an effective weapon using Y. pestis would require advanced
knowledge and technology.

Smallpox is caused by the variola virus that emerged in human populations thousands of years
ago. Except for laboratory stockpiles, the variola virus has been eliminated. However, in the
aftermath of the events of September and October, 2001, there is heightened concern that the
variola virus might be used as an agent of bioterrorism. For this reason, the US government is
taking precautions for dealing with a small pox outbreak.

Unless the agent is disseminated in an airborne or other mass contaminate methodology, the
exposures will be limited in nature. Mass distributed biologic agents could require mass
contamination and isolation. Medical responders and facilities would be stressed. Infrastructure
such as drinking water could be affected. Some critical buildings could be closed and sealed
pending decontamination if possible. Economic losses could be incurred due to lack of tourism
or if major gaming establishments were affected.

According to USDA-ARS Arthropod-Borne Animal Diseases Research Laboratory (ABADRL)
att the present time, the most economically important arthropod-borme disease of US livestock is
Bluetongue Disease (BLU). As articulated in the Journal of American Veterinary Medical
Association article, Biological Terrorism and Veterinary Medicine in the United States,

5-34




SECTIONFIVE Hazard Analysis

“Although recent reports have emphasized the need for improving the ability to detect a
biological terrorist attack on human populations, the use of veterinary services in this effort and
the potential for the targeting of livestock (e.g., horses, cattle, sheep, goats, swine, and poultry)
have been addressed only briefly. Improving surveillance for biological terrorist attacks that
target livestock and improving detection and reporting of livestock, pet, and wild animal
morbidity and mortality are important components of preparedness for a covert biological
terrorist attack.”

Chemical Agents

The table below lists those chemical agents that might be used in a terrorist attack and
categorizes them by effect.

Table. 5-10. Hazardous Chemical Agents Potentially Used in Terrorist Act

Dem
Arsine {(SA)
Cyanogen Chloride (CK)
Hydrogen Chloride
Hydrogen Cyanide (AC)

Blood (BlisterNesicants)

Choking/Lung/Puimonary Damaging

Chlorine (CL)
Diphosgene (DP)
Cyanide
Nitrogen Oxide (NO)
Perflurcisobutylene (PHIB)
Phosgene {CG)

Red Phosphorous (RP}

Sulfur Trioxide-Chlorosulfonic Acid (F$)
Teflon and Perflurcisobutylene (PHIB)
Titanium Tetrachloride (FM)

Zinc Oxide (HC)

Incapacitating (Nerve, Riot Control/Tear Gas) Bromobhenzylcyanide (CA)
Chloroacetophenone (CN)
Chloropicrin {PS)

CNB - (CN in Benzene and Carbon
Tetrachloride)
CNS - (CN and Chloropicrin in Chloroform)
CR
Cs

Vomiting

Adamsite (DM)
Diphenylchloroarsine(DA)
Diphenylcyanoarsine (DC)

The State of Nevada is comprised of diverse populations that include members of nation-wide
militia organizations. The Federal government has continually released terrorism warnings since
1998 that state most communities in the United States are vulnerable to terrorist attack, The
State of Nevada Enhanced Multi-Hazard Mitigation Plan 2010, currently lists nine domestic
terrorism groups with representatives and offices in Nevada. Those groups are included in this

5-35



SECTIONFIVE Hazard Analysis

plan to give local governments information of their existence and their geographical location.
See the table below.

Table 5-11: Identified Hate Groups and Patriot Groups, Nevada

Domestic Terrorism Groups
World Church of the Creator Carson City
Hammerskin Nation Las Vegas
Nation of Istam Las Vegas
National Alliance Las Vegas
National Socialist Movement Las Vegas
Aryan Nations{Aryan National Alliance Reno
National Alliance Reno
Aryan Nations/Aryan National Alliance Wellington
Patriot Groups
l Center for Action Sandy Valley

5.29.2 History

There have been no incidents of terrorism in Storey County. According to the FBI, sporting events,
political conventions, and other special events are attractive targets for domestic and foreign terrorists
because they are highly visible and attract celebrities and political leaders. Other targets of
opportunity for terrorism include large public works facilities, utilities, transportation facilities such as
airports, train stations, subways, bridges and ferries, military bases, schools, medical facilities and
other state and federal facilities. Examples of terrorism include the World Trade Center bombing in
New York City, the Murray Federal Building bombing in Oklahoma City, the Olympic Centennial
Park bombing in Atlanta, and the Pan American Flight bombing over Lockerbie, Scotland.

Acts of terrorism may originate from a single person, special interest groups, or acts sponsored by a
foreign government. The most popular method used in recent events in the Unjted States has been
terrorism by bombing. Terrorist acts include the use of arson, hostile takeovers, shootings, biological
agents (such as anthrax, plague, botulism and others); chemical agents (such as hydrogen cyanide,
sulfur mustard, sarin and chlorine), and hostage taking.

8.2.9.3 Location, Extent, Probability of Future Events

In determining the risk areas within a jurisdiction, the vulnerabilities of potential targets should be
identified, and the targets themselves should be prepared to respond to a WMD incident. In-depth
vulnerability assessments are needed for determining a response to such an incident.

Standard models are available for estimating the effects of a nuclear, chemical, or biological relcase,
including the area affected and consequences to population, resources, and infrastructure. Some of
these models include databases on infrastructure that can be useful in preparing the TIA. A good
source of information on available Federal government models is the Directory of dtmospheric
Transport and Diffusion Consequence Assessment Models, published by the Office of the Federal
Coordinator for Meteorology (OFCM).

The overall magnitude, potential severity and frequency of impacts of terrorism and weapons of mass
destruction is considered low in the County. Assessment of probability of firture terrorism events in
the County is gauged primarily on speculation, as no terrorism or events involving weapons of mass
destruction have previously occurred in the planning area. The consensus of the Planning Committee

5-36




SEGTIONFIVE Hazard Analysis

is that probability of future events is low within Storey County. Based on the Homeland Security
Threatened Level System, it is anticipated that terrorism will remain a high threat into the foreseeable
future. Because terrorism events typically are focused on a single high payoff area or facility,
estimated damage is less than one percent damage to facilities in the County.

5-37




SECTIONFIVE ~ Hazard Analysis

5.2.10  Wildland Fire

5.2.10.1 Nature

A wildland fire is a type of fire that spreads through consumption of vegetation. It often begins
unnoticed, spreads quickly, and is usually signaled by dense smoke that may be visible from
miles around. Wildland fires can be caused by human activities (such as arson or campfires) or
by natural events such as lightning. Wildland fires often occur in forests or other areas with
ample vegetation. In addition to wildland fires, wildfires can be classified as urban fires,
interface or intermix fires, and prescribed fires.

The following three factors contribute significantly to wildland fire behavior and can be used to
identify wildland fire hazard areas.

» Topography: As slope increases, the rate of wildland fire spread increases. South-facing
slopes are also subject to more solar radiation, making them drier and thereby
intensifying wildland fire behavior. However, ridge tops can cause fire to spread more
slowly or may even be unable to spread downhill. Narrow canyons, chutes and saddles
can funnel and accelerate winds, causing fire to spread faster,

* Fuel: The type and condition of vegetation plays a significant role in the occurrence and
spread of wildland fires. Certain types of plants are more susceptible to burning or will
burn with greater intensity. Dense or overgrown vegetation increases the amount of
combustible material available to fuel the fire (referred to as the “fuel load™). The ratio of
living to dead plant matter is also important. The risk of fire is increased significantly
during periods of prolonged drought, as the moisture content of both living and dead
plant matter decreases. The fuel’s continuity, both horizontally and vertically, is also an
important factor.

¢ Weather: The most variable factor affecting wildland fire behavior is weather.
Temperature, humidity, wind, and lightning can affect chances for ignition and spread of
fire. Extreme weather, such as high temperatures, low humidity and high winds, can lead
to extreme wildland fire activity. By contrast, cooling and higher humidity often signals
reduced wildland fire occurrence and easier containment.

The frequency and severity of wildland fires also depends upon other hazards, such as lightning,
drought, and infestations. If not promptly controlled, wildland fires may grow into an emergency
or disaster. Even small fires can threaten lives and resources and destroy improved properties. In
addition to affecting people, wildland fires may severely affect livestock and pets. Such events
may require emergency watering/feeding, evacuation, and shelter.

The indirect effects of wildland fires can be catastrophic. In addition to stripping the land of
vegetation and destroying forest resources, large, intense fires can harm the soil, waterways, and
the land itself. Soil exposed to intense heat may lose its capability to absorb moisture and support
life. Exposed soils erode quickly and enhance siltation of rivers and streams, thereby increasing
flood potential, harming aquatic life, and degrading water quality. Lands stripped of vegetation
are also subject to increased debris flow hazards, as described above.

5-38




SECTIONFIVE Hazard Analysis

5.210.2 History

Storey County had 82 wildland fires which burned 8295 acres, of which 38 were less than one
acre, from 2003 to the beginning of 2013 according to NDF. Approximately 95 percent of these
fires were due to lightning, while humans and unknown causes make up the remaining 5 percent
of ignition sources. The figure below, provides a map of the historic fire locations in Storey
County.

Figure 5-7: Storey County Fire History

Firi rizicey ncioces. Arex vithin 5 mies of county bounciay [

Baundary

Source: NV Division of Forestry

In 2013, Storey County Fire Protection District assumed responsibility for wildfire response.
According to the Storey County Fire Protection District (SCFPD), SCFPD responded to 50
reported wildland fires in 2013 all of which never exceeded an acre in size and most were single
tree fires which are extinguished before they spread or false alarms. While large fires are low
frequency, they have a high potential for impacting natural resources, communities and critical
infrastructure.

5.2.10.3 Location, Extent, Probability of Future Events

Communities in Storey County have a varying degree of risk from Wildfire. This risk is varied,
largely due to past fire activity and the type of moisture received during the winter months.
Lengthy rainy seasons tend to increase the production of grasses which can create fast moving

5-39




SEGTIONFTVE Hazard Analysis

fires in the brush and grass areas of the County. Drought seasons tend to decrease the fuel
moisture in the large fuels (trees and large brush) and create high output BTU fires that are
difficult to control and can extend for days.

Depending upon the type and amount of moisture received the risk to a given community in
Storey County can change from season to season. Storey County has developed a Community
Wildfire Protection Plan to help guide the community and its residents on where and how to
focus fuel reduction efforts. The Community Wildfire Protection Plan (CWPP) generally speaks
to protecting the built environment from the threats of wildland fire. The Virginia Highlands
area has extreme rating due to interface fuel hazard and ignition risk. Appendix B, Figures B-11
through B-16, provide maps of each community and the wildland urban interface (WUT) area as
provided in the RCI County Wide Assessment. RCI is currently updating the CWPP.

Table 5- 12: Wildfire Assessment Summary by Commumty

Community -~~~ " THasard Rating

Gold Hill High

Lockwood Moderate

Six Mile Moderate

Virginia City High

Virginia Highlands Extreme

Source: RCI County Wide Assessment Resulfs, hitp.//www.rci-ny.com/reports/storev/section04.him/

Based on historical records, Storey County can anticipate nearly 1.5 wildland fire starts per year,
which will burn more than one acre however a very small percentage of these (less than 1%) will
exceed 100 acres.

5-40




SEGTIONSIX Vulnerability Assessment

A vulnerability analysis predicts the extent of exposure that may result from a hazard event of a
given intensity in a given area. The analysis provides quantitative data that may be used to
identify and prioritize potential mitigation measures by allowing communities to focus attention
on areas with the greatest risk of damage. A vulnerability analysis consists of the following six
steps. assets inventory, methodology, data limitations, exposure analysis, and summary of
impacts. The asset inventory and exposure analysis were updated including Tables 6.1 through
6.5. Land Use and Development Trends is located in Section 3.

6.1 ASSET INVENTORY

Asset inventory is the first step of a vulnerability analysis. Assets within each community that
may be affected by hazard events include population, residential and non residential buildings,
and critical facilities and infrastructure. Assets and insured values throughout the County are
identified and discussed in detail below.

6.1.1 Population and Building Stock

Population data for the County was obtained from the NV State Demographer and verified from
the 2010 U.S. Census and shown in Table 6-1. The Nevada State Demographer’s Office
maintains annual population estimates by county. Estimated numbers and replacement values
for residential and nonresidential buildings, as shown in Table 6-1, were obtained from FEMA
Hazus-MH 2009 run by the Nevada Bureau of Mines and Geology and verified by the County
Assessor’s office .

The residential buildings considered in this analysis include single-family dwellings, mobile
homes, multi-family dwellings, temporary lodgings, institutional dormitory facilities, and
nursing homes. Nonresidential buildings were also analyzed including commercial, industrial,
agricultural, government, educational, and religious centers.

The HAZUS-MH 2009 run for earthquake by the Bureau of Mines & Geology, UNR, was
reviewed. The HAZUS-MH software presents a data limitation by which this software identifies
nonresidential buildings by square footage resulting in some nonresidential buildings not being
counted. The building count was verified by parcel data from the Assessor’s Office. The
buildings’ values were calculated by multiplying the number by the US Census median value for
buildings. Un-reinforced masonry (URM) building information was obtained from Wayne
Carlson and Advanced Data Systems, Inc.

Although the building count or value may not be precise, whether residential or nonresidential,
this analysis will meet the intention of DMA 2000 by providing County residents with an
accurate visual representation of their community’s risk by hazard. This data is the most
complete dataset available at the time and will be updated in future version of the HMP.

6-1




SECTIONSIX Vulnerahility Assessment

Table 6-1. Estimated Population and Building Inventory

*opulatior unt: iliiens) Cour ‘millions)
3,309 3,042 1932 $384,150 109 I $24 857

Source: U.S. Census population data, hitp:/fquickfacts.census. qov/afd/states/32000.html , State of Nevada Demographer, FEMA HAZUS-
MH hitpothwww.nbmg unr.edu/dox/of098/Scenarios/OpentileReport09-8.pdf. Storey County

6.1.2  Critical Facilities and Infrastructure

A critical facility is defined as a public or private facility that provides essential products and
services to the general public, such as preserving the quality of life in the County and fulfilling
important public safety, emergency response, and disaster recovery functions. Similar to critical
facilities, critical infrastructure is defined as infrastructure that is essential to preserve the quality
of life and safety in the County.

The County’s critical facilities are listed in Table 6-2 and shown and were not shown in map
form for security.

Table 6-2. Critical Facilities and Infrastructure

Sheriff Stations, Public Safety, & Juvenile Detention
Center 8 35
Fire Staticns 5
EQC 1 .
Public Primary and Secondary Schools 4 28
Critical Facilties Shelters - Senior Centers 2 15
Hospital w/Emergency Room (in Washoe) 1 11.2
Urgent Care Fagilities {in Washoe) 2 1
Ambulance Facilities 1 Included in Fire Station
Communication Facilities 1 5
State and Federaf Highways (miles) 396 km 1,730.7
Critical Airport Facilities {Washoe) 1 79.6
nfrastructure Bridges (County only) 6 Included in Highway
Utilities (Water, Waste Water, Gas, Electrical) n/a 2458

Source: FEMA HAZUS-MH http://www.nbmg.unr.edu/dox/of098/Scenarios/OpenFileReport(9-8.pdf. Storey County Emergency
Management, NV Division of Emergency Management, NV Dept. of Transportation

The Sheriff station includes the Lockwood sub- station. The Shelters include the Senior Center
in Virginia City and Lockwood.

In addition, the hospital, urgent care facilities and airport in Washoe County, since Storey
County relies on these facilities are listed above but not included in the exposure analysis.




SECTIONSIX Vulnerahility Assessment
6.2 METHODOLOGY

A conservative exposure-level analysis was conducted to assess the risks of the identified
hazards. Hazard areas were determined using information provided by the U.S. Seasonal
Drought Monitor, EPA, HAZUS, Nevada Bureau of Mines and Geology, and NWS. This
analysis is a simplified assessment of the potential effects of the hazard on values at risk without
consideration of probability or level of damage.

Using GIS, the building footprints of critical facilities were compared to locations where hazards
are likely to occur. If any portion of the critical facility fell within a hazard area, it was counted
as impacted. Using census block level information, a spatial proportion was used to determine
the percentage of the population and residential and nonresidential structures located where
hazards are likely to occur. Census blocks that are completely within the boundary of the hazard
area were determined to be vulnerable and were totaled by count. A spatial proportion was also
used to determine the amount of linear assets, such as highways and pipelines, within a hazard
arca. The exposure analysis for linear assets was measured in miles. For drought, population was
the only asset analyzed, as drought mainly affects people and agricultural lands (which were not
considered in this version of the HMP).

Replacement values or insurance coverage were developed for physical assets. These values
were obtained from the County’s Assessor’s Office, Building Department, Nevada Department
of Transportation and HAZUS-MH 2009 run. For facilities that did not have specific values per
building in a multi-building scenario (e.g., schools), the buildings were grouped together and
assigned one value, For each physical asset located within a hazard area, exposure was calculated
by assuming the worst-case scenario (that is, the asset would be completely destroyed and would
have to be replaced). Finally, the aggregate exposure, in terms of replacement value or insurance
coverage, for each category of structure or facility was calculated. A similar analysis was used to
evaluate the proportion of the population at risk. However, the analysis simply represents the
number of people at risk; no estimate of the number of potential injuries or deaths was prepared.

6.3 DATA LIMITATIONS & FUTURE DEVELOPMENT

The vulnerability estimates provided herein use the best data currently available, and the
methodologies applied result in an approximation of risk. These estimates may be used to
understand relative risk from hazards and potential losses. However, uncertainties are inherent in
any loss estimation methodology, arising in part from incomplete scientific knowledge
concerning hazards and their effects on the built environment, as well as approximations and
simplifications that are necessary for a comprehensive analysis.

The resulting analysis was complied to the highest degree possible with the hardware, software
and data availability limitations discovered during plan preparation. HAZUS was able to
determine the population and critical facilities within a given hazard area and from there a
limited assessment was derived. In the situation of Drought & Epidemic, where structures would
not usually be affected the term N/A (not applicable) is used.

It is also important to note that the quantitative vulnerability assessment results are limited to the
exposure of people, buildings, and critical facilities and infrastructure to a hazard. It was beyond
the scope of this HMP to develop a more detailed or comprehensive assessment of risk
(including annualized losses, people injured or killed, shelter requirements, loss of
facility/system function, and economic losses) except for earthquake hazard (HAZUS-MH).
Such impacts may be addressed with future updates of the HMP.

6-3




SEGTIONSIX Vulnerability Assessment

6.3.1 Future Development

Storey County has historically low growth with an average of less than 1% per year for
population. During 2012-2017 the State Demographer estimated an increase in population
growth of 15% from 4,103 in 2012 to 4,772 in 2017. As discussed at the end of Section 3 -
Community Description there is additional land slated for 320 homes for residential use in the
proposed Sunset Acres near the Highlands area (south east of Reno). The County is working on
an update to the County Master Plan to include these homes. This area is at risk to wildland fire.

Additionally, the Reno-Tahoe Industrial park continues to grow which may have significant
daily commuters to Storey County from Reno and Fernley. SR 439 from Highway 80 to
Highway 50 at Silver Springs is slated for completion by 2017. Any additional building growth
will incorporate the 2006 International Building Code which was adopted in 2010 and is not seen
to pose additional risk.

For the purposes of this plan moderate growth over the next five years is expected, growth from
2016 to 2030 1s expected at less than 45%. The numbers and values of the Figures in the Table
6-3 and 6-4 below are viewed as accurate. During the plan maintenance activities this should be
reviewed and during the next plan update process growth can be revisited with the revised
Master Plan detailing where the growth will occur.

hitp:/mvdemography.org/wp-content/uploads/2012/10/2012-Oct-1-Population-Projections.pdf

6.4 EXPOSURE ANALYSIS

The requirements for a risk assessment, as stipulated in the DMA 2000 and its implementing
regulations, are described below.




SECTIONSIX Vulnerahility Assessment

The results of the exposure analysis are summarized in Tables 6-3 and 6-4 and in the discussion
below. The results in this exposure analysis were greatly affected by the hardware, software and
data availability limitations described above. The significant hazards designated as high are
included in the exposure analysis below.

6-5




Juewsbeueyy Aousbiowq Alunod Aaio)s JIT G-60N0USHSIJUSID/SOUBUSIS/gE0)0/X0p/Npe 1Un BUqU MWW HW-SNZYH YINTS :804H0G

000°LX = . anjep,

6% 0 593 l< Z awaIxg

796% i< 6.8'9% 6 952 ybiH

L1488 Z 682°605% 6€L 288’ ajesopopy

¥GE‘9LS L L8 PES €16 £€T'L Mo BIPIIA
0 0 005% L i 199} 0002 < (mous) wiog
2es'ves 0l v0€'95% y08 £46°L 1891 000/ 01 000G | JSWIA BJ9A8S
0 0 0 0 0 1eak-00g

000°¢$ G 81Z'71L% L2 8vs leak-0pL poo|4 SuLBAlY
085'0Z$ 8 y87°2G% 37 108} CIEVEL

02t°G$ Z 0r2'6e$ 89 86G'L Guoang Aiap ayenbyues

HSTY 18 Alojudsu] suIpfng pue uonemdog pajewsy Ajuno)) A2.10)S :¢-9 J[qEL,

WAWSSAsSY AufIqeIaump XISNOILJIS



i1
ASTY SV S2DI[OE] [2INH)) pajeuryysy Apuno)y £210)S 149 A[qe

L £ l ¥ L #-loogag
008% 1da(T “3pId D%
005% doyg sourusuRy S
005'L$ sune) % [ref J§
00S°'L$ (md) ureg D§
_ 000°G% 000°1L% asmoyunod DS
00£°2% 000°L% 000°L$ 9ag's4 » ANEA JAUITIIAOG
L € l 9 FIUIMELIIACGK)
005% 00s$ 005% MT NS Jreysg
005°1$ uoneIs JLsys
000°c$ CL# UOTIRIS 211
00513 005'1% {14 uonyEys oIL]
0058 £L# uonms a1 g
000°L$ 7L# UOTIRIS O]
000°c$ [ L3 UOLIR)S DL ]
00S% 005% 005% 204
» AM[EA
000'%$ 000°Z$ 005V S88'Z$ £08°C$ QUEC Ve Tolc A |
z z 14 zI S HIIRYS/DOT A

JUUISSASSY MIjIqeIaunp

XISNOILIIS




swabaueyy Auabiows Aunoy) Aain)g TOU§-GOHOUB Yol G /R TIRUSDS, 56 50, X0p /ps Ui QAR HN-SNZVH YINTS 804008

000 LX = , anep

METTTYY
000°1$ 000°1$ 1310y AJUnmwio))
8 L # JoJua) Aunwuio))
005°1$ 00.$ 005°'L$ 004% x FNEA JOYUI)) J0[Uag
z L z L #19JU2)) JOIUIG
000'%$ 000'v$ 000'v% M1 Leyaweryg
000°9% 000'9% oA Amuswarg
000°8$ 000'8$ [00Y2S S[PPIN
000°0LS$ 000'01% [ooysg ySip
000°0L% 000'81% 000°v$ 6¥8°92$ 886'L$ » AN[BA [00YIG

JUINSSISSY Njiqesaunp

XISNOLLDAS



JuawaBeueyy fousbirewg Aunosy Aaioyg FEOT-6000

U HN-SNZYH YiN3d #4nog
000'LX = , @Njep

or

= STBA S{[2M

#-S[PM

000°2$

000°61%

005'2%

rAAY

005'€$

ane A ANIE,f JUSUnEsI]
IBIBA DISE A IDTEAL

S

H#—RI[108 ] JUSUNEDL]
INE A, DISBALHOIBM

000°'6%

G/6'1$

0ZE'LS

8FLLLS

*ON[BA 9TRI0IS IDIB A,

9

#-o3rI01§ I9BM

000'8LS

000'6%

000'8L$

+ ONBA suonBIsqng
uone§ SuneIdUSn) Mo

#-SUOTIRISqNG/SUOTIRLS
Sureiouan Inmog

LS

9c$

1%

92%

8.%

x S0[BA 0321015 WNS[ON3J

#—99r101g Wnajona g

615

6L%

6l$

x IN[EA UOUEDIUNUILIO)

H-UOTESIUNKILIO )

F6L'SS

* AM[EBA
Buissosy) peoy [ey2Spug

armpngseIuy AJuno)) 43101 :15-9 3qe ],

#—3UIS5010)
peoy jrey/eBpug

JUIWSSASSY Ajlgesaunp

XISNOLLIIS




SECTIONSIX Vulnerability Assessment

6.4.1 Earthquake

Displayed within the Appendices on Figure C-3 Earthquake Hazard Area, there are two
identified hazard areas, they are: severe shaking and very strong shaking, Within the perceived
severe shaking area the population at risk is 1,801 people with 747 residential buildings valued at
$52.5 million; and 8 nonresidential buildings valued at $20.6 million. Numerous critical facilities
are at risk to perceived severe shaking; they include: 12 first-responder buildings
(Fire/EOC/Sheriff) valued at $2.8 million; 4 gas storage structures valued at $51,000; 9
government buildings valued at $7.8 million; 4 critical facilities within historic district buildings
valued at $700,000; 4 schools valued at $27 million; 2 special-population buildings valued at
$4.1 million; and 1 transportation structure valued at $602,000. Additionally, there are multiple
County infrastructure components located within the perceived severe shaking area; they
include: 1 communication structure valued at $19,000; 4 water storage sites valued at $1.3
million; 2 water/waste water treatment facilities valued at $2.3 million; and 1 County-owned
wells valued at $46,000.

More than one-quarter of the County is located within the perceived very strong shaking area.
These regions are distant from known, active faults and will experience lower levels of shaking
less frequently. In most earthquakes, only weaker masonry buildings would be damaged.
However, very infrequent earthquakes could still cause strong shaking here. This area is
populated along the north and south County boundaries and is moving towards the interior which
is not developed. Within this perceived very strong shaking area, the population at risk is 1,598
people with 684 residential buildings valued at $40 million and 2 non-residential buildings
valued at $5.5 million. Numerous critical facilities are at risk to perceived severe shaking; they
inctude: 5 first-responder buildings (Fire/EOC/Sheriff) valued at $2.8 million; 1 school valued at
$2 million; and 1 Senior Center building valued at $700,000. Additionally, there are multiple
County infrastructure components located within the perceived very strong shaking area; they
include: 6 bridge/rail road crossings valued at $5.7 million; 1 communication structure valued at
$19,000; 2 power generating stations/substations valued at $18 million; 6 water storage sites
valued at $11.1 million; 5 water/waste water treatment facilities valued at $3.5 million; and 1
County-owned wells valued at $46,000.

Storey County has 310 unreinforced masonry buildings. Many of these are of an historic nature
and make up the bulk of the tourist business district. The VC fire station and courthouse are
critical facilities and are URM.,

6.4.2 Fiash Flood

As the flash-flood hazard does not occur within an identified floodplain, there currently is no
way to map this hazard to determine the population and buildings at risk. Therefore, mitigation
projects rely upon historical occurrences to determine the appropriate location for mitigation
actions,




SEGTIONSIX Vulnerability Assessment

6.4.3 Riverine Flood

Displayed within the Appendices on Figure C-4 FEMA Special Flood Hazard Areas, there are
“two identified hazard areas, they are: the 100-year floodplain and the 500-year flood plain.
Within the 100-year floodplain area, the population at risk is 549 people, with 271 residential
buildings valued at $14.2 million. There are numerous critical facilities at risk within the 100-
year floodplain; they include: 1 Lockwood Elementary school valued at $4 million; 1 Sherriff
Sub-station valued at $500 thousand; 1 Lockwood Senior Center valued at $700 thousand and 1
Fire Station #74 valued at $1.5 million. Additionally, there are multiple County infrastructure
components located within the 100-year floodplain; they include: 6 bridge/rail road crossings
valued at $2.6 million; 2 Gas Storage tanks valued at $26 thousand; and 1 power station valued
at $9 million. There are no repetitive loss properties within the 100-year floodplain.

Within the 500-year floodplain there are no residential structures. There are no critical facilities
or infrastructure components located within the 500-year floodplain. There are no repetitive loss
properties within the 500-year floodplain.

6.4.4 Severe Winter Storm

As described in the hazard profile in Section 5.2.12 Severe Winter Storm, there are two
identified elevation ranges of concern, they are: elevations between 5,000-7,000 feet and those
elevations greater than 7,000 feet. Within the 5,000-7,000-foot-elevation area, the population at
risk is 1,973 people, of which 1,771 people reside within the historic district, with 804 residential
buildings valued at $56.3 million, and 10 nonresidential buildings valued at $24.5 million. There
are numerous critical facilities at risk within the 5,000-7,000-foot-elevation range; they include:
12 first-responder buildings (Fire/EOC/Sheriff) valued at $2.8 million; 4 gas storage structures
valued at $51,000; 9 government buildings valued at $7.8 million; 4 additional critical facilities
within historic district buildings valued at $700,000; 4 schools valued at $27 million; 2 special-
population buildings valued at $4.1 million; and 1 transportation structure valued at $602,000.
Additionally, there are two County infrastructure components located within the 5,000~7,000-
foot-elevation area; they include: 4 water storage sites valued at $1.3 million and 2 water/waste
water treatment facilities valued at $2.3 million. Although these facilities may be affected by a
severe storm only the Sheriff’s Sub-station in Lockwood valued at $500 thousand is at risk to
building collapse.

There are significantly fewer people living and working in elevations greater than 7,000 feet.
Within elevations greater than 7,000 feet, the population at risk is 17 people with 7 residential
buildings valued at $500,000 with an additional 12 people residing within the historic district.
The critical facilities at risk are the Storey County Courthouse valued at $5 million; and the
Emergency Operation Center valued at $500 thousand due to the age and construction of the
buildings.

6.4.5 Wildfire

Displayed within the Appendices on Figure C-5 Wildfire Hazard Area, there are four identified
hazard areas, they are: low, moderate, high, and severe. The population at risk to the wildfire
hazard in the low category is approximately 36 percent of the population or 1,233 people with
573 residential buildings valued at $34.4 million, 7 nonresidential buildings valued at $16.4

6-11




SEGTIONSIX Vulnerability Assessment

million, and 375 people residing within the historic district. There are numerous critical facilities
at risk within the low wildfire category; they include: 4 first-responder buildings
(Fire/EOC/Sheriff) valued at $4.5 million; 3 government buildings valued at $7 million; 3
schools valued at $18 million; 2 Senior Centers valued at $1.5 million. Additionally, there are
multiple County infrastructure components located within the low wildfire category; they
include: 3 bridge/rail road crossings valued at $455,000; 1 communication tower valued at $19
thousand; 2 water/waste water treatment facilities valued at $15 million; and 1 County-owned
well valued at $46,000.

More than 55 percent of the County is located within the moderate-risk category of the wildfire
hazard, which is 1,882 people with 739 residential buildings valued at $510 million, 2
nonresidential buildings valued at $8.7 million, and 1,248 people residing within the historic
district. There are numerous critical facilities within the moderate wildfire risk area; they
include: 2 first-responder buildings (Fire/EOC/Sheriff) valued at $2 million; 1 jail &
communication facility valued at $1.5 million; 1 schools valued at $10 million. Additionally,
there are multiple County infrastructure components located within the moderate-risk category of
the wildfire hazard; they include: 3 bridge/rail road crossings valued at $5.2 million; 1
communication structures valued at $19,000; 2 gas storage tanks valued at $26,000; 2 power
stations valued at $18 million; 1 water storage sites valued at $2 million.

There are 256 people, or 7.5 percent of the County population, who are located within the
high-risk category for wildfire hazard; this area includes 94 residential buildings valued at $6.9
million, 1 nonresidential building valued at $964,000 and 153 people residing within the historic
district. There are no critical facilities or infastructure located in the high-risk category.

The severe-risk category contains a distinct data limitation wherein the GIS model created does
not correspond to the 2005 Nevada Community Wildfire Risk/Hazard Assessment Project study.
This study identifies the community of Virginia City Highlands as at an extreme risk which the
Storey County Fire Department and the Nevada Division of Forestry concur. The population of
this community is approximately 1,500 however the GIS model states the County population
located within the extreme-risk category of the wildfire hazard is .06 percent or 2 people with 1
residential building valued at $65,000 with a minimal amount of nonresidential property
containing no buildings valued at $9,000 and 1 person residing in the historic district. The
critical facilities located in the severe wildfire risk area are 2 first responder facilities valued at
$4 million. County infrastructure includes 4 gas storage tanks valued at $51,000; 5 water storage
tanks valued at $9 million; and 1 water/waste water treatment facility valued at $2 million. The
mitigation goal and actions developed for this hazard reflect the known wildfire extreme-risk
ranking and include mitigation actions to reduce the risk to all residential structures.

6.5 REPETITIVE LOSS PROPERTIES

The requirements for a risk assessment, as stipulated in the DMA 2000 and its implementing
regulations, are described below.




SEGTIONSIX Vulnerability Assessment

Storey County has no repetitive loss properties. The current status of repetitive loss properties
should be discussed during the annual review of this plan with the County’s Flood Plain
Manager,

Repetitive Loss & Severe Repetitive Loss

The state is working with a variety of stakeholders to reduce the number of properties considered
to be repetitive loss properties and to prevent severe repetitive loss properties from developing.

FEMA'’s Severe Repetitive Loss (SRL) Program was designed in 2004 to provide funding to
reduce or eliminate the long-term risk of flood damage to SRL structures insured under the
National Flood insurance Program (NFIP).

An SRL property is defined as a residential property that is covered under an NFIP flood
insurance policy and:

(a) That has at [east four NFIP claim payments (including building and contents) over
$5,000 each, and the cumulative amount of such claims payments exceeds $20,000; or

(b) For which at least two separate claims payments (building payments only) have been
made with the cumulative amount of the building portion of such claims exceeding the
market value of the building.

For both (a) and (b) above, at least two of the referenced claims must have occurred within any
ten-year period, and must be greater than 10 days apart. FEMA’s Repetitive Flood Claims
(RFC) grant program was authorized to assist States and communities in reducing flood damages
to insured properties that have had one or more claims to the National Flood Insurance Program
(NFIP). Nevada has no severe repetitive loss properties and Storey County has no repetitive loss
properties.

6-13




SECTIONSEVEN Capability Assessment

While not required by the DMA 2000, an important component of a hazard mitigation plan is a
review of the County’s resources to identify, evaluate, and enhance the capacity of those
resources to mitigate the effects of hazards. This section evaluates the County’s resources in
three areas—Ilegal and regulatory, administrative and technical, and financial—and assesses
capabilities to implement current and future hazard mitigation actions.

7.1 LEGAL AND REGULATORY CAPABILITIES

Legal and regulatory capabilities, as shown in Table 7-1, include applicable Building Codes,
Zoning Ordinance, Subdivision Regulations, Capital Improvement Plan, and other regulatory
development guides that provide specified support to hazard mitigation activities. Other less
prescriptive documents describe the County’s hazard mitigation capabilities to include various
Master Plan elements, an Economic Development Strategy, an Emergency Response Plan, and
Post-Disaster Recovery Plans, among others. This section lists these various tools, recognizes the
local authority of the specific activity, and identifies the interaction of the specific tools with
State and higher level authorities.

In addition to policies and regulations, the County participates in several hazard mitigation
programs including the NFIP and Fire Safe and Living With Fire programs.

Table 7-1: Storey County Legal and Regulatory Capability

5 aes AL ALLEEICES
A. Building code Y N Y Building &
Planning Dept., (2)
State Fire Marshal
for Schools.
B. Zoning ordinance Y N N Building &
Planning Dept .
C. Subdivision ordinance or Y N N Building &
regulations Planning Dept.
D. Special purpose ordinances Y N Y Building &
(floodplain management, Planning Dept.
storm-water management,
hillside or steep slope
ordinances, wildfire
ordinances, hazard setback
reqguirements}
Growth management Building &
ordinances (also called Planning Dept.
“smart growth” or anti-
sprawl programs}
Site plan review Building &
requirements Planning Dept.,

7-1




SECTIONSEVEN

Capability Assessment

Table 7-1: Storey County Legal and Regulatory Capability

Fire Dept.

. General or comprehensive
plan

Master Plan
adopted April 21,
1994

. A capital improvements plan

None

An economic development
plan

Under
development

An emergency response

Yes, updated

plan annually in
January
A post-disaster recovery Under

plan

development

A post-disaster recovery
ordinance

None currently

. Real estate disclosure

requirements

Under
development by
County Assessor

7.2 ADMINISTRATIVE AND TECHNICAL CAPABILITIES

The administrative and technical capability, as shown in Table 7-2, of the County provides an
identification of the staff, personnel, and department resources available to expedite the actions
identified in the Mitigation Strategy. Specific resources reviewed include those involving
technical personnel that can apply GIS and other services needed to facilitate hazard mitigation
actions throughout Storey County.

7-2




SECTIONSEVEN Capabhility Assessment

Table 7-2: Storey County Administrative and Technical Capacity

A. Planner{s) or engineer(s) Y Building & Planning Dept., 1 position,
with knowledge of land Director
development and land
management practices

B. Engineer(s) or Y Building & Planning Dept.; contract engineer
professional{s) trained in as needed. No full time employee.
construction practices related
to buildings and/or
infrastructure

C. Planners or Engineer(s) with Y Building & Planning Dept. 1 position, Director
an understanding of natural
and/or human-caused

hazards
D. Fioodplain manager Y Building and Planning Department1 position,
Director
Surveyors N Contract as needed, no full time position
F. Staff with education or Y Building & Planning Dept., 1 position,
expertise to assess the Director
community's vulnerability to
hazards
G. Personnel skilled in GIS Y GIS Services contracted
andfor HAZUS
H. Scientists familiar with the N Contract as needed, no full time employee
hazards of the community
I.  Emergency manager Y Emergency Management Department: part-
time
J. Grant writers Y Varied department locations, Fire Dept.,

Emergency Mgmt, Building & Planning Dept.

GiS = Geographic Information System
HAZUS = Hazards U.S.

7.3 FINANCIAL CAPABILITIES

Specific financial and budgetary tools, as shown in Table 7-3, available to the County for hazard
mitigation include Federal entitlements, general fund monies, secondary sales and property taxes,
user fees for infrastructure, impact fees applied to new development, and various unique debt
service techniques including bonding indebtedness.

7-3




SECTIONSEVEN

Capability Assessment

> |

Table 7-3: Storey County Fiscal Capability

Community Development Block Grants

Yes
{CDBG)
B. Capital improvements project funding Yes
C. Authority to levy taxes for specific purposes Only by vote of public
D. Fees for water, sewer, gas, or electric service Yes
E. Impact fees for homebuyers or developers for No. Could be established by Commissioners
new developments/homes
F. Incur debt through general obligation bonds Yes. Established by Commissioners

bonds

G. Incur debt through special tax and revenue

Yes. Established by Commissioners

H. Incur debt through private activity bonds

Yes. Established by Commissioners

[ Withhold spending in hazard-prone areas

Yes. Established by Commissioners

J. Other: Fire Department, Plan Review fees Yes
K. Other: Ambulance fees Yes
L. Other: Business license and events fees Yes
7.4 CURRENT MITIGATION CAPABILITIES

Storey County’s current mitigation programs, projects, and plans, as shown in Table 7-4, are
listed as follows.

Table 7-4: Storey County Local Mitigation Capability Assessment

Building & Fiood plain Dean Haymore v v Engineering

Planning Dept. | mgmt, economic | 775-847-0966 and planning
development, support
code
enforcement,
public health
nurse

Public Works Roads, water, Mike Nevin v v Detailed
sewer, capital 775-847-0958 knowledge of
projects, building infrastructure
maintenance, - souree for
County shop skilled

7-4




SECTIONSEVEN

Capability Assessment

Table 7-4: Storey County Local Mitigation Capability Assessment

fes

manpower

(vehicle repairs),
parks, pools
Fire Public education, | Gary Hames Coordinates
Department plan review, code | 775-847-0954 regularly with
enforcement other fire
agencies;
familiar with
grants
Emergency Mitigation grants, | Joe Curtis Works well
Management | develop and 775-847-0986 with all area
maintain agencies;
mitigation plan conduit to
local and
Federal
grants
School District | Identify and Rob Slaby Intricately
implement 775-847-0983 tamiliar with
mitigation actions school
for school district
property infrastructure
and hazard
risks

Storey County is a close-knit community where many of those responsible for managing the
various departments have multi-generational ties to the community or are long-time residents.
This mutual bond creates a cohesiveness that is visualized on Table 7-4. Each agency’s mission,
mitigation programs, plans, policies, funding, and practices complement one another while
working together to develop and effectively protect Storey County residents, visitors, and

property.




SECTIONSEVEN Capability Assessment

The programs, plan, policies and regulations listed above provide a basic framework for
mitigation projects. These programs cover the County’s infrastructure and program needs and
are effective. However, the funding for mitigation projects may not always be available.

The County being small in population has individuals wearing multiple hats and therefore
doesn’t have strong legal, administrative and financial capabilities in relation to larger counties
within Nevada. However, the County is able to enforce the International Building Code &
International Fire Code, Building Code Title 12.09 and 15.05 which restrict building within a
floodway, and is a member of the NFIP, in addition to programs for public safety, health and
human services, public works and the school district. These programs are run by trained County
staff, who are provided the resources to implement and promote the programs. Future
implementation may be constrained by budget reduction in the next few years due to the
recession.

7.4.1 National Flood Insurance Program

The County has identified special flood-hazard areas. They entered the NFIP in 1994. The
County participates in the Community Rating System (CRS) and is currently rated as an 8. The
CRS is a voluntary program for the NFIP-participating communities. The goals of the CRS are
to reduce flood losses, to facilitate accurate insurance rating, and to promote the awareness of
flood insurance. The County outlined mitigation actions listed under goals 5 and 6 detailed
below in Table 8-2, Mitigation Goals and Potential Actions. There are no repetitive loss or
severe repetitive loss properties (as defined by the NFIP) within the County. County Building
Code restricts future building within a floodway.

7-6




SECTIONEIGHT Mitigation Strategy

The following provides an overview of the four-step process for preparing a mitigation strategy:
developing mitigation goals and objectives, identifying and analyzing potential actions,
prioritizing mitigation actions, and implementing an action plan.

8.1 MITIGATION GOALS AND OBJECTIVES

The requirements for the local hazard mitigation goals, as stipulated in the DMA 2000 and its
implementing regulations, are described below.

The Planning Commiittee reviewed the hazard profiles in Section 5 as a basis for developing
mitigation goals. Mitigation goals are defined as general guidelines that explain what a
community wants to achieve in terms of hazard and loss prevention. Goal statements are
typically long-range, policy-oriented statements representing community-wide visions. The
Planning Team developed 7 goals to reduce or avoid long-term vulnerabilities to the identified
hazards (Table 8-1). Avalanche, Drought, Epidemic, Mine Caving, and Terrorism hazards all
rated as low or moderate hazards are addressed in Goals One and Two.

Table 8-1: Mitigation Goals

SC

Promote increased and ongoing County involvement in hazard-mitigation planning and
projects.

Build and support local capacity to enable the public to prepare for, respond to, and recover
from disasters

]

Reduce the possibility of damage and losses due to earthquakes

Reduce the possibility of damage and losses due to floods

Reduce the possibility'of damage and losses due to severe weather

Reduce the possibility of damage and losses due to wildland fires

NS | o | |

Reduce the possibility of damage and losses due to hazardous material releases

8-1




SECTIONEIGHT Mitigation Strategy

8.2 IDENTIFYING MITIGATION ACTIONS

The requirements for the identification and analysis of mitigation actions, as stipulated in the
DMA 2000 and its implementing regulations, are described below.

Mitigation actions are usually grouped into six broad categories: prevention, property protection,
public education and awareness, natural resource protection, emergency services, and structural
projects. As such, Table 8-3 lists the goals and potential actions selected for this HMP by the
Planning Committee. The Planning Committee determined that Actions listed under Goals One
and Two address the low rated Avalanche, Infestation, Landslide and Volcano hazards,




SECTIONEIGHT

Mitigation Strategy

 Action | Existin

Goal 1:

Promofe increased
and ongoing
involvement in
hazard-mitigation
planning and projects

1A

Update the Master Pian to be consistent with the hazard area maps

and implementation strategies developed in the HMP every 10 years.
Review & update ordinances & code every 3 years.

1B

N/E

Continue GIS data sharing agreements with Douglas County.

Goal 2:

Build and support
local capacity fo
enable the public to
prepare for, respond
fo, and recover from
disasters

2A

N/E

Continue and expand Risk Watch outreach program that coordinates
with the school disfrict to teach children about the hazards in their
community and what they can do fo mitigate, prevent, and prepare for
these hazard events. Additionally, the safety tips will be posted on the
County Web site.

2B

Develop and sustain a public outreach programs that encourages
consistent hazard mitigation content including all hazards addressed in
this mitigation plan.

2C

N/E

Develop outreach program that will teach adults how to anchar
parapets, signs, glass, machinery, shelving, fixtures, and other
nonstructural elements or architectural detailing that might cause injury
if items were to fall or break during an earthquake.

2D

NIE

Use seasonal firefighters to conduct an outreach program to inform
homeowners about the threat of wildfires; to explain how homeowners
can reduce the wildfire hazards around their homes; to encourage
homeowners to take the necessary action to improve the chance of
their home surviving a wildfire; encourage homeowners to become
involved with the Living With Fire program; and encourage attendance
of existing Fire Safe Chapter members to the annual Wildfire Urban
Inferface Fire Summit.

2E

NE

Expand Highlands Fire Safe Council to include additional communities
to inform Fire Safe councils, homeowner associations, and property
owners about best management practices for Pifion-Juniper
woodlands.

2F

N/E

Initiate an outreach program to inform and instruct building contractors,
County and State road maintenance agencies, and Storey County
schools in best management practices for vegetation management in
developments, around existing and new construction, and aglong road
right-of-ways.

2.6

NfE

Within and immediately surrounding the area of the Virginia Highlands,
the local chapter of the Nevada Fire Safe Council continue outreach
efforts to emphasize the importance of internal fuel breaks to property
owners in the community as a necessary prerequisite to enhancing fire
protection.

Goal 3:

3A

Develop a voluntary building inspection program in which
homes, businesses, schools, and critical faciliies and
infrastructure are inspected by a building official for

8-3




SECTIONEIGHT Mitigation Strategy
Table 8-2 — Mitigation Goals and Actions
~ | ‘Action - Existing - - --Deseription . -. -
| | Bldgs, e ST O,
B nonstructural elements that might break during an
Reduce the earthquake. In conjunction with this action, develop a
possibility of damage nonstructural retrofitting program fo correct identified
and losses due to problems. _
earthquakes Recommend retrofit for private business, homes, and government,
3.B E with higher priority to critical facilities, infrastructure, and government
agencies located within identified historical buildings.
Initiate program to provide funding for structural engineers to inspect
3C E County-owned criticaf facilities and infrastructure within identified high-
shaking areas and historical buildings.
Retrofit all critical assets within strong shaking areas that do not mest
1D E the most current IBC requirements for safety; with higher priority given
' to critical facilities, infrastructure, and govemment agencies located
within identified historicat buildings.
Work with ufility companies to evaluate the seismic risk to their
3E N/E transmission pipelines and impfement mitigation measures, such as
automatic shut-off valves,
install on all private and public buildings propane earthquake
3F N/E .
disconnect values.
3.6 E Continue seismic retrofit on facades on 8 & C Streets.
Review and update flood pians that would include coordination with
Goal 4: 4.A N/E adjacent counties, cities, and special districts supporting a regional
approach to flood control
Reduce the Install new flood facilities including upgrade of the existing storm drain
ibility of d 4B E system fo current standards including culverts and channel
pt;s’:; ’; ’st]s,eos d:;nfoge improvements throughout Storey Co.
fi flash flood Protect and enhar_apge existing watfer conveyance structures, storage,
ood and flash f 4C . and treatment facilities to reduce impact from flood {i.e. Lockwood, VC)
Goal 5:
Reduce the In areas at risk to severe weather, retrofit public buildings to withstand
possibility of damage 9.A E snow loads and sever winds to prevent roof collapse/damage (Sheriff
and losses due fo Sub-station, EQC, Courthouse)
Severe Weather
Goal 6:
Reduce the BA E Develop partnerships for a community based vegetation management
possibility of damage ’ pragram including chipping programs
and losses due fo
wildland fires




SECTIONEIGHT

Mitigation Strategy

Table 8-2 — Mitigation Goals and Actions

IR b Newor LT e e T
. Goals .| Action | Existing |- -
P e e L
6B E Within the VH create manageable, shaded fuel breaks thru entire
: subdivision including VC Highlands and Highland Ranches
Continue program using seasonal firefighters and community service
6.C N/E groups to provide veg. mgmt. services to elderly, disable, or low-
inceme persons to remove flammable veg. around homes
6D NJE Create a veg. mgmt. program to replace cheat grass w/perennial
’ grasses around communities to slow wildfire spread
Perform study to determine appropriate method to retrofit buildings
6.E E located VC urban fire hazard zone. {i.e. critical facilities, commercial
business district, historic district and infrastructure)
6F NIE Implement fuels-reduction treatment along all boundaries of Six Mile
' Canyon to protect residences and community infastructure
Goal 7:
Reduce the possibility | - , N/E Enforce zoning ordinances to reduce public health risks from
of damage and losses ' hazardous mateifals releases
due to hazardous
materials release

8-5




SECTIONEIGHT Mitigation Strategy

8.3 EVALUATING AND PRIORITIZING MITIGATION ACTION

The requirements for the evaluation and implementation of mitigation actions, as stipulated in
DMA 2000 and its implementing regulations, are described below.

The mitigation actions were finalized during the Planning Committee meeting on October 13,
2011. At this time the Planning Committee evaluated and prioritized each of the actions. To
complete this task, the Planning Committee completed the STAPLE+E evaluation criteria using
rankings of one for lowest and three for highest priority, acceptance, feasibility etc. The
rankings for each action were totaled and the actions with the highest number of points were
evaluated by the committee. See Table 8-4 for the evaluation criteria.

Table 8-3: STAPLE+E Evaluation Criteria for Mitigation Actions

Discussio
ateg p 1sid

Social The public Support for the overall mitigation
strategy and specific mitigation actions affects population

Technical If the mitigation action is technically feasible | Technical feasibility; Long-term solutions;
and if it is the whole or partial solution Secondary impacts

Administrative If the community has the personnel and Staffing: Funding allocation;
administrative capabilities necessary to Maintenance/operations

implement the action or whether outside
help will be necessary

Political What the community and its members feel Political support; Local champion; Public
about issues related to the environment, support
economic development, safety, and
emergency management

Legal Whether the community has the legal Local, State, and Federal authority;

authority to implement the action, or whether | Potential legal challenge
the community must pass new regulations

8-6




SECTIONEIGHT

Mitigation Strategy

Economic

If the action can be funded with current or
future internal and external sources, if the
costs seem reasonable for the size of the
project, and if enough information is
available to complete a FEMA Benefit Cost
Analysis

Benefit/cost of action; Contributes to
other economic goals; Quiside funding
required; FEMA Benefit Cost Analysis

Environmental

The impact on the environment because of
public desire for a sustainable and
environmentally healthy community

Effect on local flora and fauna;
Consistent with community
environmental goals; Consistent with
focal, State and Federal laws

Upon review by the Planning Committee, mitigation actions were selected for the County that
best fulfill the goals of the HMP and were appropriate and feasible to implement during the 5-
year lifespan of this version of the HMP. In reviewing the actions the Planning Committee

considered the following;

¢ Actions that strengthen, elevate, relocate, or otherwise improve buildings, infrastructure,
or other facilities to enhance their ability to withstand the damaging impacts of future

disasters

 Actions in which the benefits (which are the reduction in expected future damages and
losses) are greater than the costs considered as necessary to implement the specific action

* Actions that either address multi-hazard scenarios or address a hazard that present the
greatest risk to the jurisdiction

The high priority actions are shown in Table 8-5.

8.4 IMPLEMENTING A MITIGATION ACTION PLAN

A Mitigation Action Plan Matrix was prepared for the County detailing the mitigation actions
and their priority level, how the overall benefit-cost were taken into consideration, and how each
mitigation action will be implemented and administered. This matrix is Table 8-4.

8-7




88

"SSlll|IDB) {22 PUE ‘SImangseul

ybiH '$9855UISNG ‘SALLIOY JO U0NOS)0I4

Buobup

pun4 "uag
{8207 “ydag 814 ' 4ON
‘DY ‘Wad ‘dOWH

1dag] )14
1B Aousblawy

1012314} 3U3 JN0GR SISUMOaLLIoY
uioi ) ureaboid yoragno ue
Jonpuoo o sisjybiyally [euosess asn

aec

M7 | Buuueid-aud 03 anp saAy 40 UoIYSI0I4

SO Z-81

afireyn soimsg
AN “UNDAN
‘d3AN 'vd3sn
043S 'od3

1deq au4

1B ueid poor4
— SYIOM 9llang

“axenbylies ue BUKNp yealq 1o ) o)
eam swiay y Anfut asned 1B jey)
Butreyep |eamasyiyale Jo sjusLlSe
{EINIONASUOL JOUYIO PUB ‘SaInixy
‘Buinieys “Kauiyoew ‘sseib ‘subls
‘siadeJed Joyoue 0) Moy S}npe Loes)
I jeu weiboud yoeanno dojarag

‘Bujuued-sid
Mo | oyenp Apadold pue seaj| Jo Uooe)oly

Buiobup

pung

ueg) (2907 YNOAN
‘d3AN 'Yd3sN
‘0M3S ‘Ddi3

Jdaq aid
By AousBisiug

“ueyd uonebpiw siu

Ul passaippe spiezey |jg Buipnour
Jusjuco uonebiiw piezey Jus)sisuog
sbeinooua yoym sweiboud
toeanno ognd wielsns pue dojersq

ae

‘SBIIoB) |2ON4D PUB ‘Sinjonygseil)
ubiH 'SHSSUISN] ‘SALIOL JO UORDS)014

burobup

pun4 uag |eao

1090 WieaH
Pusiq jooyog
‘Hlueyg “daq aad
“Wuby fousBiauig

"a)is gopn Ajunon

3y} uo pa)sod aq ||w sdij Asjes ay)
‘Alfeuonippy "SjUsAD plezey asay)
1o} aiedasd pue Yuasaid ‘ayebnw
0} op ugo A3y} Jeym pue AIunuwoes
I8y} ur sprezey i Jnoge usipiyd
UIea) 0} JOLISID [00UJS B4} Ujim
s8]eupIoc jey) weiboid yseono
UoleAA Y81y pUedxs pue anuguon

Ve

Buiuued-ard

WNIPBINL | o) anp Apadoid pue sanl jo uoosioly

Buiebup

pUR4 "usg) (2907

Buuuerd funon

)
sejfnog /m sjuswaalbe Buleys ejep
SI9 AUno:) au) Ul SYSI U] SSaSSE 0)
Aingedes Buddew pue gio anunuo)

a4

‘Bunuueid-asd o) snp saay jo uonoalolg

Syiuow 9g-g

anH
‘pun4 "uso) 290

Buiuuerd Aunon

EIEETS

£ Ai2na saoueUIpIQ ajepdn “sieak
01 A19n8 dNH oW Ul padojansp
s9ibsens uonejusws|dun pue

sdew eale plezey ay) yIMm US)SISUOD
8q 0] Ue|ld I3sEN B} slepdn

oe2IISNEIUoL0D

XN weld WONOY -8 S[qE,

AG3jens uonehniw

LHDIHNOLLIIS




ybiH

"SAIIOB) [ED[I0 PUE “BINIoNISEU]
‘59882UISNY ‘SAWOY JO UONISI0Id

BuioBug

pund "ueg 2o "4aN

Juawabeuepy
Aouablawg

“1daq au4

& se AJUNWWCO 34} Ul SISUMO
fuadoud 0} syesiq (any jeusiu jo
souepodwi sy sziseydsa ¢ suops
4I234N0 SNUIUAD [IDUND7) BjeS

i1 epenap au jo Jajdeys [eao) sy
‘spueiybiy ebap ay) jo eaie sy}
Buipunodsins AjSYRIpaLULl PUB LILIAA

27

MO

‘SRMjioe] [EOILID pUE ‘BINIONASEHL|
's8888UISN] 'SALIOY JO Uoasj0Id

BuioBug

anH ‘Y34
‘pun4 "uan |2a07

Jdaq Bpig
“Jwbly Aousbiswig

‘shem-jo-B1

peoJ Buoje pue ‘uonaNASUoD Mau
pue Bupsixe punole ‘sjuswdojaasp
juswabeuew uone)aban Joj saonoeld
Juswabeuews 188G W S[00UDs AJuno)
21013 pue ‘saiousbe sousuaUeWw
pecs B)elS puB AUNo? ‘sI0joelUnd
Buipiing 1oruysul pue wWioju

0} weiBoxd yoeagno ue sfey|

Mo

"SBII[IOR} (B PUE ‘BINMINIISEI
‘S95$3UISNG ‘SALUOY JO UOIOB)0Id

Buobugy

pun4 "ues €307 ‘4N

1deq su4
“Jwbpy KouaBiswig

"spuejpoom sadiunp

-uould 104 saooesd Juswebeuew
152q Jnoge siaumo Ajadold

pUE ‘SUOHBID0SSE JOUMORIOY
'S|IDUNGY 9jeg 814 wIo

0] $8JJUNWILLGY [EUCRIPPE BpMYILE 0}
[lounoy ses aul4 spug|ybiy puedxs

EX4

‘Huwng sii4

S0BLISIU| UBQIN SIYPIM FENLUE 8] O
slaquisw Jaydey) seg a4 Sunsixe
10 9ouepuane sbeinoous pug
‘weaBoud o114 yuaa Buia au ypm
PSA|CAUL SLLICISY 0} SJALMOSUIOY
ebeinoous ‘anpim e Bulalng alloy
Jialy) Jo a2uBY 3L sAoldw o} uonoe
AIBs$808U 8L 9YE) 0} SIBUMOBLLIOY
sbe.nooua 0} 'saloy J1sy) punole
SpIBZey aJ|P|IM S} SoNpal Ueo
SISUMOBLIOY MOY UIRidXS O} ‘SaPiIM

XLORIA UR]J UOTDY :p-§ QL]

KG31ENS nonesw

LHOIANOILIIS




01-8

Mo

“S3AKIORY [EILD pUe ‘Sinjonseyu NAd 'dONH YW

‘89558LISNq 'SALIOY JO UONIB)0I Buiobug ‘pun4 'us9) |BanT

luswabeuepy
fousbirelug

“ideq Bpig

"swiago.d paiuepr 198100

o} welfio.d Bumyole. eanonIsuoU B
dojersp ‘uonoe siy) LM uoRaunfuco
uj ayenbyyes ue Buunp yesiq

Wb ey sjustua)s {nonISUoU

Joy jgioyo Buip|ing e Ag peroadsul
8de 2JMINJSeLU PUB SSI|IDE)
[Ba3149 pUB ‘S|00YDS ‘sassaLISNg
'sawoy yorym ur weJBboud uogoadsu
Burp|ing Arepunjoa e dojerag]

YE

‘uonosjoid auy
Buroueyua o) aysinbarerd Aesssosu

XLOEA] Ue]d UOHIV :p-g J[qe]

AB3ens uonesmy

LHOIHNOILJIS



i1-8

SRIII9E) [BORLI0 PUB ‘SINJONISELU]

'd30N 'Yasn 04y

UM UOELIRI00S apnioL pInom

WNpap | ‘SISSAUISNY 'SALLIOL ‘SBAI JO LONOSI0I SUIUOW @447 YN ‘dOWH ‘Wad SHIOM Olgnd | 1w sue|d pooy ajepdn pue mainey vy
pung SYIOM, ]
SNiOB) [EONUD PUE "aInjoniselu| "U9) 8307 °ANH | dHand % Buiuuelg Sj92ig 5 g g uo
YOI | ‘sassauisng 'SaUIOY 'Sam) Jo UOROSIO] | SUIOW G-y SN WOd ‘'dONH | ‘Gupyng Auno | SOPEORS UOWORAIOISIES anULog ¢
pung JuswaBeusy "SN|BA }99UUCISID
SORI[IoB} [EOID PUE ‘BIMINISEYU) Us9 (8207 'aNH AousBiaurg ayenbupes suedosd sbuippng
WMPBIN | ‘sassauisng ‘sewoy ‘sony Jo Lopoalolq | SLIUOW 8-+ SN 'Wad 'dDnH “jdeq ‘Bpig oyand pue sjeaid [l uo |iejsuy 1€
"SSA[BA JO-INYS SHELOINE S8
4ons ‘sainseau uogebniw juswsdu)
pund uslisBeuely pug ssuijadid uoissiusuen
5911108} [ea)LID PUe 'SINIoNASELL . U89 |B90T'aNKH | AdusBializ ‘syiom 12U} 0} ¥sik olsias i) ajenieas
WNIPSIN | "sassouisng ‘sowoy ‘seny o uonosjoly | SUILOW 8p-4Z SN 'Wad ‘dOWH | duand “1daq Bpig 0} saiUeduuiod AN Lt oM ¢
"sBupiing jeaucisy
PaluUBPI UM payeao) sslousbe
JuswiLIBAOS pue “ainanaselul
‘sal}lj o8] [2aNlo 0} uanib Alond
19yBIy ynm Ayajes Joy syusiuainbal
pung Juswabeuep Il JUBANG JSOL B J5W
SSLI[I0R) (20110 PUE ‘SIMonAselul 'usg) 12207 ‘anH | AousBiaws o 1ou op jey) seale Buneys Buoss
YoiH 'S9859LISN] ‘SSLIOY ‘SAAI {0 UORIS)0I4 SUjuoW g¥-yg SN 'WQd dOWH | auand "ideq Bpig LI Sjosse [EORHD e 10Ny ae
sBuiping
[eaLolsly pue seale Bupyeys
-4Biy payiuBpI UM BjINLSEYUI
puny Wwawsbeuepy PUE S3)I|108} [2IRLD POUMO-AILNG:)
SOlIoR) [2DQLO PUB ‘aInjonAseul Us9 18907 ‘aNH | AousBliswz ‘syiom Joadsul o} sjeauIBus [enjonss 1o
WNIPSINL | ‘sassausng 'sawioy ‘senlf jo Logoslold | SUIIOW 8p-p2 SN 'Wad 'dOWH | 2lland “daq Bpig | Buipuny apinoxd o weibosd sjeniy ¢
"sbupiing [eouojsiy payguep]
ulyim pajeoo| sajauebe JuswiuisAch
PUB ‘2UNjonISEIUl ‘Saii|ioe) [eanuo
pun4 Juswabeuepy o} Ajuoud JeyBiy upm qualuuisaob
Sall|loey |EONLO PUE ‘BiNjonLselul "uso 18207 ‘anH J:mmhmsm_ pug ‘sswioy ‘sseuisng ajeald
“1daq Bpig

'SBSSBUISNG ‘SSLUOY ‘SOAI JO LIORORI0I4

SUUoU -2

SN 'Wad 'dOWH

10) 1J018) PUBWILLIODA! P YDBSANG

oie 2iioUeds

240

XLIEIA W[ UODIV :p-8 Qe ],

RGeS uonehmp

LHOIHNOILJIS




Cl-8

ybiH

S3Y[9BY (230110 pUE ‘Bimjaniselul
'$8883U/SNQ ‘SBUIOY ‘SIAY) JO LON0SJ0I

sypuow gz

d '1eoo]

'SOMAN ‘Yd3sNn
‘d3AN ‘¥asn 04y
‘Y4 'dOWH ‘Wad

(@snoyynoy

‘003 ‘uopels-ang yuays)
abewepyasdeoo Joor wsnsud

0] SpUIM J9ADS puB SPEO| MOUS
puelsyyim o} sBuipiing aijqnd yo.je
‘IB\IeoM 919A3S 0) YSU 1B sease U

Wwnipayy

Sai}l|108) [EONL3 PUR ‘BIMSNUSEIUI
'59889UISN] ‘SALUOY ‘S| JO UONIR)0I

SujuoW gp-g

Md ‘18907

‘SOMAN ‘Ydasn
'd30N 'Yasn 04y
YN ‘dOWH ‘Wad

{OA 'POOMYD0T "&°1) POOY) WOl
Joedul anpai 0} SeRN0R) JUSWESY,
pue ‘afielc)s ‘saimoniis aouedanuod
Iejem Bunsixs soueyus pue Jasj01d

%

wnips|y

S31(1984 {EIRLIO pUB ‘Binjongsesul
'$95SIUISNG ‘SSIOY ‘SBAI| JO UO8)0IY

SyiuaL gy-tg

Md 8007

‘SOMAN ‘Yd33N
'd30N 'Yasn ‘04
YW ‘dOWH ‘Wad

"0y A21015 noyBnoy)

SjusLUBA0IdLI [BULBLD pue SUSAIND
Buipnjou spiepue)s JusLN o) Wajsks
UHedp unols Buysixe suy Jo apesBdn
Buipniour sanyioey poojy mal |jBjsu]

ar

Md ‘8907

[0JjUo3 pooy o) yoeoidde
leuoifiai e Burpoddns sjousip

‘SOMON 'Yd3sn
S5INGS

XLYEJA ueld UondY :p-g oIqe],

[e10ads pue ‘ssii ‘saljunod Jusaelpe
: ST

R631ens uonesmw

LHDIHNOILIIS



€18

Jooi Jusnaud seseajal sjelisjew

‘safioe) pun4 "ugg SNOPJIEZEY WOY SYSI Yljeay algnd
MO | [RONUS pUB ‘SINJONUSELL JO UoKoS0ld SUUoW 4171 (2207 "JSWH "Wod jdag Buiping | sonpal o) seoueupio Buiuoz a2iopug v/
Md '[B007
‘(10y 1918 UBBID)
sesd (YB1Le ‘YW 2InjanSeIUl AIUNWILOD
‘SOMN ‘Yd3sn pue ssouspisal 1as10.d 0] uohuen
"Sal[108} [2ORO UL ‘BINjanLseLu ‘430N ‘vasn SN XIS Jo ssuepunog e Buoie
ybiy '$38S3UISNY 'SBWOY JO UoNdalold | SUILOW ge-pg 044 ‘dOWH ‘Wad Wdegand | yusunea uoonpal-sjeny uswaiduw 19

(aimanaselul pue JaLsIp
SLOISIY 'IOLSIP SSBUISNY [BIBWLLOD

Md 820 ‘safl|e) [BofU0 @'} 'suoz plezey
'SOHAN ‘¥d3asn 3.l UBGN DA PaKRIot sburpng
"SSHI[108) |2ANUD pUB ‘SINjanIISEUl ‘d3AaN ‘Yasn Jonei 0} poyiaul ajeldoidde
wnipsiy 'S85S3UISN] 'SSWOY JO LOIISI0I SYuow 9e-yz ‘044 ‘dOWH ‘Wad jdeq autq aujwB}ap 0} ApNYS LLoMS 39
"LONBUIPJOCD Md ‘Teso7 'Wg peaids a.ipim
[euoiBal BuiuayiBusns ajym 'SOYAN ‘Yd3sn MOIS 0) SBILNWILIOD PUnoJE sasselB
Sall|IoBy [E2010 pUB 'BINjangsSeU ‘434N ‘Yasn feluuaiadim sseif yeaus aoeday
Mo '$8888UISN] ‘SHWOY JO UORII0I4 SUIUoW 9E-tg 04y 'dOIWH ‘Wad Jdag any 0} wetbold “Jwbuw Bon e ajesin as

Saloy punoie Ban ajgeluwe)
anoLal 0) suosiad awoaul

Md ‘207 ‘Wd ~M0| 10 ‘ojqesip ‘Apapio 0] $80IMlaS
‘SOHAN '¥d3sn b Bon apinord o) sdnosb
Sal[10B) (29N PUE ‘INONNSRIL 'dAAN ‘vasn 991A8S AYuUnLWod pue sisybys
ybIH '$3853UISN] 'SALUOY JO UOKOBjOId SLpuOW 9¢-vg 044 ‘dOWH ‘Wad Jdag eug leuoseas Buisn weibosd anuguor 39
Md ‘18207 ‘Wg sayouey pue|yBiy pue
‘SOYAN Yd3sn spuejubiH oA Buipnjour uoisinipgns
SSIJDL} [20NHO PUB '2UNIONASELUL ‘dIAN ‘vasn aIQuS NIY} $¥esIq [an) pepeys
YbIH '59883ISNq ‘SaWI0Y JO U0NIBJ0I Syjuow 9g-y¢ “044 'dOWH ‘Wad Ideg o114 ‘siqeabeuew 818310 HA 8y} UIGIAL a9
Md 8207 "W swesboid Busddiyo
‘SOHAN ‘YdIsn Buipniou weiboid Juswabeusw
SONyIoe) [BONLID PUE "aInjoniseiul ‘dIAN ‘Yasn uonejsfon paseq Aunwiwos
ubIH '$a553UISNg 'saLLOY JO UORIBJ0I] SUyjuow 9e-vg ‘044 'dOWH ‘Wad 1daq eul4

e 10} sdiyssauped dojaasg
AT TTeTiR) :

=)

TUONEILNSN[ DIIOUD

XLOEJA] Ul UONDY :p-§ 3L ]

AG3jens uopesnimg LHOITHNOILIIS




vi-8

uoneR3NIN 1eIsesiI-21d = W4

S20IAIIG
Aaamg [ea1301090 S0 = SOSN UONBAIISUOY) 20IN0S3Y 1dd(] BPRAN =S IAN 2DURISISSY JUSUSSeURA] POOTI=VINI

AVIALG ALY “S () = SASN Ansarog yo yusuneda(T epeaan = JAN juRID

Aouady U0N29)01 [BIUSWIUONAUY ‘§') = VIS HonoajoIg SOUBLLIOHD J THaWAGeuy AoudBIows] = DJNT
amynoudy yo wetmmueda(t "S = VASA [EIUSWIIOIIAUY JO UOISIAL(] BPRARN = JTCIN Anaag puepoy 1o 1daq =SHA
uorssfunuoy) esuodsay AsuaBrswy o1v)g = INAS wswdoraaa( urqin) 2 SWSNoH=CNH SYIO A\ JI[qQnd = Md
uonelodio a0uLnI] SMNOSIY=D 1Y WEeIFoL eI ToNeSHI prezel] - JOWH JuSWIRFRUBY pueT Jo neaing = 1g

abewwep/asde|os
IBEUOND

XIE\ UBl] HONIY -8 9[qR].

Afiarens uonesnm LHOIINOILIIS




SECTIONNINE Plan Maintenance

This section describes a formal plan maintenance process to ensure that the HMP remains an
active and applicable document. It includes an explanation of how the County and the Planning
Committee intend to organize its efforts to ensure that improvements and revisions to the HMP
occur in a well-managed, efficient, and coordinated manner.

The following three process steps are addressed in detail below:
¢ Monitoring, evaluating, and updating the HMP
¢ Implementation through existing planning mechanisms

e Continued public involvement

9.1 MONITORING, EVALUATING, AND UPDATING THE HMP

The requirements for monitoring, evaluating, and updating the HMP, as stipulated in the DMA
2000 and its implementing regulations, are described below.

The County Emergency Manager recognizes the need for plan maintenance and wanted to
include tools into the plan for maintenance. The HMP was prepared as a collaborative effort
between the County Emergency Management, and the Local Emergency Management
Committee (LEPC) and the Nevada Division of Emergency Management. To maintain
momentum and build upon this hazard mitigation planning effort, the LEPC will monitor,
evaluate, and update the HMP. The LEPC will be responsible for implementing the Mitigation
Action Plan. The County Emergency Manager will serve as the primary points of contact and
will coordinate all local efforts to monitor, evaluate, and revise the HMP.

The LEPC will conduct an annual review of the progress in implementing the HMP, particularly
the Mitigation Action Plan. As shown in Appendix E, the Annual Review Questionnaire and
Mitigation Action Progress Report will provide the basis for possible changes in the overall
Mitigation Action Plan by refocusing on new or more threatening hazards, adjusting to changes
to or increases in resource allocations, and engaging additional support for the HMP
implementation. The County Emergency Manager will initiate the annual review one month
prior to the date of adoption. The findings from this review will be presented annually to the
County Manager. The review will include an evaluation of the following;

9-1




SECTIONNINE Plan Maintenance

* Participation of County agencies and others in the HMP implementation.
* Notable changes in the County’s risk of natural or human-caused hazards.
* Impacts of land development activities and related programs on hazard mitigation.

* Progress made timplementing the Mitigation Action Plan (identify problems and suggest
improvements as necessary).

» The adequacy of resources for implementation of the HMP.

The process of reviewing the progress on achieving the mitigation goals and implementing the
Mitigation Action Plan activities and projects will also be accomplished during the annual
review process. During each annual review, a Mitigation Action Progress Report will be
submitted to the Planning Committee and provide a brief overview of miti gation projects
completed or in progress since the last review. As shown in Appendix E, the report will include
the current status of the mitigation project, including any changes made to the project, the
identification of implementation problems and appropriate strategies to overcome them, and
whether or not the project has helped achieve the appropriate goals identified in the plan.

In addition to the annual review, the LEPC will update the HMP every five years. To ensure that
this occurs, in the third year following adoption of the HMP, the LEPC will undertake the
following activities:

¢ Thoroughly analyze and update the County’s risk of natural and man-made hazards,

¢ Provide a new annual review (as noted above), plus a review of the three previous annual
reports.

* Provide a detailed review and revision of the mitigation strategy.
* Prepare a new action plan with prioritized actions, responsible parties, and resources.
* Prepare a new draft HMP and submit it to the County for adoption.

* Submit an updated HMP to the Nevada State Hazard Mitigation Officer and FEMA for
approval.

9.2 IMPLEMENTATION THROUGH EXISTING PLANNING MECHANISMS

The requirements for implementation through existing planning mechanisms, as stipulated in the
DMA 2000 and its implementing regulations, are described below.




SECTIONNINE Plan Maintenance

After the adoption of the HMP, the LEPC will continue to ensure that the HMP, in particular the
Mitigation Action Plan, is incorporated into existing planning mechanisms. Each member of the
LEPC will achieve this incorporation by undertaking the following activities.

e Conduct a review of the community-specific regulatory tools to assess the integration of the
mitigation strategy. These regulatory tools are identified in Table 7-1.

e Work with pertinent divisions and departments to increase awareness of the HMP and
provide assistance in integrating the mitigation strategy (including the action plan) into
relevant planning mechanisms. Implementation of these requirements may require updating
or amending specific planning mechanisms.

Since the first Storey County HMP 2010 was adopted Storey County has developed a Storey
County Comprehensive Flood Control Plan 2011 which includes mitigation actions to reduce
flood and Storey County Flood Zone Plan 2012 which provides restricted building in mapped
flood zones.

9.3 CONTINUED PUBLIC INVOLVEMENT

The requirements for continued public involvement, as stipulated in the DMA 2000 and its
implementing regulations, are described below.

The County is dedicated to involving the public directly in the continual reshaping and updating
of the HMP. Hard copies of the HMP will be provided to each department. In addition, a
downloadable copy of the plan and any proposed changes will be posted on the County’s Web
site. This site will also contain an e-mail address and phone number to which interested parties
may direct their comments or concerns.

The LEPC will also identify opportunities to raise community awareness about the HMP and the
County’s hazards. This could include attendance and provision of materials at sponsored events.
Any public comments received regarding the HMP will be collected by the County Emergency
Manager, included in the annual report to the County Manager, and considered during future
HMP updates. A press release and public notice by the County will be issued each year before
the annual maintenance meeting inviting the public to participate.

9-3




SECTIONTEN References

The following websites or documents were accessed between October 2010 and March 2011.

dePolo, C., G. Johnson, J. Price and J Mauldin 2009. Quatenary Faults in Nevada.
http:/iwww. nbmg.unr. edu/dox/of099.pdf .

Hess R. and C. dePolo 2006. Loss-Esimtation Modeling of Earthquake Scenarios Jor Each Co. in
Nevada Using HAZUS-MH. http:/fwww.nbmg.unr.edu/dox/of061/0f061 pdf.

Price J, G. Johnson, C. Ballard, H. Armeno, L Seeley, L. Goar, C. dePolo, J. Hastings. Estimated
Losses from Earthquakes near Nevada Communities.
http://www.nbmg.unr.edu/dox/0f098/Scenarios/OpenF ileReport09-8.pdf .

FEMA. 2009. Flood Insurance Study: Storey County, Nevada.

FEMA. 2008. How-To Guide: To Mitigate Potential Terrorist Attacks Against Buildings. U.S.
Department of Homeland Security, Federal Emergency Management Agency. FEMA
452. http://www.fema.gov/library/viewRecord.do?id=1938 .

FEMA. 2002a. 44 CFR Parts 201 and 206, RIN 3067-AD22, Hazard Mitigation Planning and
Hazard Mitigation Grant Program, Interim Final Rule. In Federal Register 67, No. 38.
U.S. Department of Homeland Security, Federal Emergency Management Agency.
http://www.fema.gov/pdf/fima/fr02_4321.pdf.

FEMA. 2002b. State and Local Plan Interim Criteria Under the Disaster Mitigation Act of
2000 — Final Draft. U.S. Department of Homeland Security, Federal Emergency

Management Agency. http://www.fema. gov/fima/planning_toc4.shtm |

FEMA. 2002¢. How-To Guide #1: Getting Started: Building Support For Mitigation Planning.
U.S. Department of Homeland Security, Federal Emergency Management Agency.
FEMA 386-1. hitp://www.fema.gov/fima/planning_toc5.shtm . September.

FEMA. 2002d. How-To Guide #7: Integrating Human-Caused Hazards Into Mitigation
Planning. U.S. Department of Homeland Security, Federal Emergency Management
Agency. FEMA 386-7.

FEMA. 2002e. 44 CFR Parts 201 and 206, RIN 3067-AD22, Hazard Mitigation Planning and
Hazard Mitigation Grant Program, Interim Final Rule. In Federal Register 67, no. 190.
U.S. Department of Homeland Security, Federal Emergency Management Agency.

http://www.fema.gov/pdf/fima/fr02 24998 .pdf .

FEMA. 2003a. How-To Guide #3: Developing The Mitigation Plan; Identifying Mitigation
Actions And Implementing Strategies. U.S. Department of Homeland Security, Federal
Emergency Management Agency. FEMA 386-3.

FEMA. 2003b. How-To Guide #4: Bringing the Plan to Life: Implementing the Hazard
Mitigation Plan. U.S. Department of Homeland Security, Federal Emergency
Management Agency. FEMA 386-4.

Nevada Bureau of Mines and Geology. 2000. Living With Earthquakes: A Nevadan's Guide to
Preparing for, Surviving, and Recovering from an Earthquake. Special Publication.

Nevada Bureau of Mines and Geology. 2009. Estimated Losses Jrom Earthquakes near Nevada
Communities. http://'www nbmg.unr.edu/dox/0f098/Scenarios/County Scenarios/

10-1




SECTIONTEN References

Nevada Bureaun of Mines and Geology. Map. Earthquakes in Nevada 1852-2008
www.nbmg.unr.edu/dox/m119.pdf

Nevada Division of Emergency Management. State of Nevada Enhanced Multi-Hazard
Mitigation Plan 2013,

Nevada State Demographer. 2012. Population Projections for Nevada Counties.
http://nvdemography.org/wp-content/uploads/2012/10/2012-Oct-1-Population-

Projections.pdf

Resource Concepts, Inc. 2005. Nevada Community Wildfire Risk/Hazard Assessment Project:

Storey County. http://www.rci-nv.com/reports/storey
Umnited States Census Bureau. 2010. American Fact Finder Fact Sheet.

http://factfinder.census. gov , http://quickfacts.census.gov/qfd/states/32/32021 html.

United States Drought Monitor. 2014. http://www.drought.unl.edu/dm/monitor.html

Western Regional Climate Center. 2005. Historical Climate Information.
http://www.wree.dri.edu/CLIMATEDATA html .

10-2




J




Appendix A
Adoption Resolution

Sample

Appendix B
Adoption Resolution
Resolution #09-294

WHEREAS Storey County has historically experienced severe damage from natural and human-
caused hazards such as flooding, wildfire, drought, thunderstorms/high winds, and hazardous

-tmaterials incidents on many.occasions.in the-past century, resulting in.loss of property-and life, .. ...
economic hardship, and threats to public health and safety;

WHEREAS the Storey County Hazard Mitigation Plan (the Plan) has been developed after more
than one year of research and work by the County’s Office of Emergency Management in
association and cooperation with the County Planning Team for the reduction of hazard risk to

the community;

WHEREAS the Plan specifically addresses hazard mitigation su'ategieé and plan maintenance
procedures for Storey County,

WHEREAS the Plan recommends several hazard mitigation actions/projects that will provide
mitigation for specific natural and human caused hazards that impact Storey County with the
effect of protecting people and property from loss associated with those hazards;

WHEREAS a public notice was posted for the Plan for comment and review as required by law;

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED
by the County Commission, that:

1. The Plan is hereby Adopted as an official plan of Storey County

2. The respective officials identified in the mitigation strategy of the Plan are hereby directed to
pursue implementation of the recommended sctions assigned to them.

3. Future revisions and Plan maintenance required by the Disaster Mitigation Act of 2000 and
FEMA, are hereby adopted as a part of this resolution for a period of five (5) years from the
date of this resolution.

4. An annual report on the progress of the implementation elements of the Plan shall be
presented to the, Courty Commission by October 31* of each calendar year,




Appendix A
Adoption Resolution

S

Proposed on the 15" day of December, 2009 by the Storey County Commission.
Passed on the 15" day of December, 2009,

VOTE: .

Ayes: Kwi'\a,w-‘ ; -ﬂj""n' ? e

Nays: ~toni

Absent: “ - 0 ND-

This ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after the 15% day af December 2009.

~olosent-

Greg Hess, Chairman
Storey County Commission

Storey County Clerk
— QbsenT— \A15-09
Commission Chair, Greg Hess Date
W (i
Commissioner, Bob Kershaw Date

Commissioner, John Flanagan ~ Date







Apnendix B
Figures

|

Y
o RaF

Storey County, NV

- Populated Areas -

Map Elements

Populated Araas

The 202 confained e Ran bean ACUNS MN0US compled in
. e Ty G151 by Daglah, ooty e e u1h
0 175 35 7 Miles i Sove oot eptyinn vty Getrasiin
. . And shindd rel Be 00RKAES 33 1 DI 122 T sctodalve
asurze, el mapk S lesonoys, o0 Ko Faofip b aniumed 2y
i f ] 1 | 1 1 ] | ;umé g o Goughas ey €0 11 2 Bk 3udaindy of seueiy
s -

B-1




Appendix B
Figures

s
E
e

=

Zoning FEO Mark Toain Seiales {1, 232 551040
B T Ac Estates, VO Blighlads 35 Hobile Home Fark

5 16 Ac Tsiales, VT Highionds B Hutipls Residenual

i 40 Ac Estales, VO Hightands 1552 Natoral Respurces

P Agricuiture 22 Planned U Developrient
£ CommencinidRezidential HEE Publl;

T Foresty % Residenat

U Beavy ndustial T Grecial Ingusukal

8% Ught Ingusinia)l #ERSpesial Pionning Revew

Storey County, NV

- Zoning/Land Use -

Toa dira sontaied batels bis bais oy wndor compfed in @
PecERRE Sraden 4wz 5151 by Dougtks County v e uLe
of Slorey Cousty. T6a dak does na! tepredbnd srvey delineatin
and SnOEE R be Soiied 23 3 plaTnd for She avhodates
Haarve, Gat AR, Conds, tesenays, i, lio Labily B atkcties by
Serey Coundy o Dovishs Soasty o o by WASHTSY o dccacy

B-2




Appendix B
Figures

Map Elements
Flond Hazards

— Hydrology Fealures
Local Roads
Jj County Boundary

AE Floodway Zone
AQ Zone
X Zore Staded

World Shaded Refiet

Storey County, NV

- FEMA Flood Zones -

3 G 12 Miles

Lt 1 ¢t 3 .1

Tre daa contined bareln Fas bean nousad s somptes
GesgrpR inasmaon Sy (CI5] by Desglas Sedny ¢ Sk ute
of oy Doidp Tra it doss not v ey denaion
4 Piead it e comboed 118 Mscezet r e 3chodbiie
L, Gewdt, ressneys ain. Ra Eibhiy b 2a1umad By
s!‘-;chzyu:omucc iy 490 5 G Ry ey
o

Tl

B-3




Anpendix B
Figures

WaSH

>

ockwood

Wap Elements
Lighting Risk

Lower Risk

Local Roads

unty Boundary

Storey County, NV

- Dry Lightning/Wildiand Fire Risk -

hseriays, et b batiky b ausuned By

o Doyt Cornty ras 3 o A aitony o dtuany

gt

B-4




(-] % SSEEEE
e & PEES AL
—_— = wim..
— = fyraes
= B ik
[-LJg v HEEE
= il
= L
n memM
3838,
EPEEE
o
pras Ll
ummnm.‘x
S $134
252
L
5
> 8
a
= =
-~ ! © =
> 5
g7
= 3
- - Q _,dr 7
it : Q5 -
3 g - 2
L5 i o= .
e S =
& ! uwr
w5 W u.osl 1 —
el n
" o
m.
=
-
M 3
0
= £
g
33
a
=
H @
o 2
§8:3
s 5 =
= ™
§ il
= @

B-5



Appendix B
Figures

f e -

A LEETES
WASHOE CO .
g‘% o g™
§
&
2, % oo,
‘,g;}e Wé 2

%

#
Vi

el %5« ,x(é" b

7

%,

A

Storey County, NV

Map Elements - Wildland Flre HlStO{y -

§7% Historie Fire Stacs
LocatReads

6 Mi
| (S T S JUON AV N N S

Caunly Boundacy

e dia emhnid Faeakr sus bean howie ander orpded a3
FRAPTR DRI Kytlet (55 by Doaglas Lounzy 24 fra u3e
o h:rrfJ ; The 63 CoRs 00 ALUIIETL VAAY COTTn
W‘ canstried a% 3 HEIiCRAT
Sech. ewvays, wie Ha b 3504 By
n-:cmtw‘?vawlcmel Mﬂﬁn.ﬂ‘mo«.rqa.w-q







Appendix €
Public Information




Appendix C
Puhlic Infermation

Press Release

STOREY COUNTY
EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT PRESS RELEASE

January 2013

In recent years nature has been restless in Nevada; there has been a swarm of earthquakes
rattling the western portion of the State immediately adjacent to Storey County as well as the
levee breech in Fernley not to mention the ravishing wildland fires surrounding the Reno area
as well as throughout the State. All of these emergency events have demonstrated to us all
that Storey County can be vulnerabie to disasters, including earthquakes, floods, and wildland
fires. The risks posed by these hazards will continue to increase as the County’s population
continues to grow.

Storey County and Nevada have launched a planning effort, known as the Hazard Mitigation
Plan, to assess risks posed by natural disasters and identify ways to reduce those risks. This plan
is required under the Federal Disaster Mitigation Act of 2000 as a pre-requisite for receiving
certain forms of Federal disaster assistance.

Storey County began this planning process in January 2013 and is making a questionnaire
available for public input. The County anticipates submittal of the draft plan to the Board of
County Commissioners for adoption during 2015.

Public comments and participation is welcomed. For additional information, request to
participate, or to submit comments, please contact Cheri Nevin, Storey County at {775) 847-
0986, cnevin@storeycounty.org.




Anpendix C
Public Information

Questionnaire

This questionnaire is designed to help the County Hazard Mitigation Planning Committee identify the
community’s concerns about natural and human-caused hazards. The questionnaire should be completed
by an adult, preferably the homeowner or the head of the household and returned to the address at the
bottom of the page. All individual responses are strictly confidential and for research purposes only.

Questions call (775)847-0986.

1. RESIDENT (Y/N)? # YEARS IN County? 0-1 2-5 6-10 11 or more

2. Have you experienced any of the natural hazards listed below?

Floods Avalanche Hazardous Mate;i
Wild Fire | Health Alert/Mass Disease
Earthquake Severe Windstorm
Severe Weather Expansive Soils
Drought Landsubsidence/Ground
Failure

3. What is the most effective way for you to receive information about how to make your home safer
from natural disasters? (Check all that apply)

O Newspaper o Internet o Radio o Public Meetings

0 Television o Utility Bill o Mail O Billboard

4. In the following list, please check those activities that apply.

Attended meetings or received written information on natural disasters or
emergency preparedness?

Talked with family members about what to do in case of a disaster or emergency?

Developed a “Household/Family Emergency Plan” in order to decide what everyone
would do in the event of a disaster?

Prepared a “Disaster Supply Kit” (extra food, water, medications, batteries, first aid
items and other emergency supplies)?

In the last year, has anyone in your household been trained in First Aid or Cardio-




Appendix ¢
Pulilic Information

Pulmonary Resuscitation {CPR)?

insurance?

5. Is your property located in or near a FEMA designated floodplain? Do you carry flood

6. What modifications for earthquakes and/or floods have you made to your home? (Check all that
apply)

Anchor bookcases, cabinets to wall

Secure home to foundation

Secure water heater to wall

Brace inside of cripple wall
with sheathing

Install latches on drawers/cabinets

Brace unreinforced chimney

Fit gas appliances with flexibie connections

Brace unreinforced masonry & concrete
walls and foundations

Flood proof

Elevate home

Other

7. Do you support policies to restrict or prohibit development in designated hazard zones?

Development should be prohibited in these zones

Development should be restricted in these zones.

Development should be restricted only where “severe risk” exists

Development should NOT be restricted in hazard zones

| don't know,

8. Please rank how prepared you feel you and your household are for the probable impacts of natural
hazard events. Rank on a scale of 1to 5 with 5 being the most prepared.

9. Other Comments:




Appendix D
Meeting Rgendas & Handouts




Appendix D
Meeting Agendas & Handouts

Meeting 1 Agenda

AGENDA
Storey County Mitigation Planning Subcommittee
Wednesday, January 9, 2013- 1:00 p.m.
Wal-Mart Distribution Center #7048
2155 USA Pkwy
McCarran, Nevada 89434

1. PUBLIC COMMENT (NO ACTION) No action may be taken on a matter raised under this item on the
agenda until the matter itself has been specifically included on an agenda as an item upon which action will
be taken. Time limits on Public Comment will be at the direction of the Chairman of the Committee.

2. DISCUSSION (NO ACTION): WELCOME & INTRODUCTIONS
Karen Johnson & Elizabeth Ashby, Division of Emergency Management

3.  DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: PLANNING PROCESS OVERVIEW
Karen Johnson

a. General Information - Purpose of the plan
b. Storey Co. Planning/LEPC’s Role
c. Douglas County GIS Group Role — Erik Schmidt, Douglas County
d. My Plan- Gary Johnson, UNR
e State Fioodplain Management - Luke Opperman, Division of Water Resources’
f. Public Participation
g. Contact by emaii and phone
4, DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: INCORPORATION OF EXISTING PLANS
Karen Johnson

5, DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: TABLE 8-2 & 8-3 MITIGATION GOALS AND
ACTIONS REVIEW - Karen Johnson

6. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: HAZARD IDENTIFICATION TABLE & HAZARD
RANKING — Karen Johnson '

7. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: ANNOUNCEMENT OF FUTURE MEETINGS

8. ADJOURNMENT

NOTICE:

Anyone interested may request personal notice of the meetings,

Agenda items must be received in writing by 12:00 noon on the Tuesday of the week preceding the regular
meeting, For information call (775) 847-0986.

Items may not necessarily be heard in the order that they appear.

Public Comment will be allowed at the beginning of each meeting (this comment should be limited to
matters not on the agenda). Public Comment will also be allowed after each item on the agenda (this
comment should be limited to the item on the agenda). Time limits on Public Comment will be at the
discretion of the Chairman. Please limit your comments to three minutes.

Storey County recognizes the needs and civil rights of all persons regardless of race, color, religion, gender,
disability, family status, or nation origin.




Appendix D
Meeting Agendas & Handouts

Meeting No. 1 - Sign In Sheet

Stpeay Sounty Hezard Iitigation Planming Commifae
. Hame Agancy . Koy hput - Fhone

LB eh 1H

Frd T e

e cBr T hAM

LSS TP Ny Sy
L dlumlen R, SRR

: e 7 FEEEY R

Phaadadvt Ve donr

7

ity Hieard Witigation Flansing Sominlbes

Blsimes Koy lnpit _ Phene pimaib ‘
ity




Appendix D
Meeting Agendas & Handouts

Meeting # 1 - Handouts

T Plan/Study

Storey County Master Plan
(20 )

Building Code

IBC

FEMA Flood Insurance Study,

This study addresses all flood plain issues

Storey Co. Nevada (FEMA
20 ):
, The state MHMP is updated every three years by the
j‘;c.::.e o?;Ne}f;da Multi-Hazard SHMO and includes all hazards to be addressed in
Haation Fran this. HMP.
Regional To develop strategies for floodplain management that

Floodplain Management Plan

can be applied regionally as well as locally.

Hazardous Materials
Emergency Response Plan
20

Community Wildfire Protection
Plan, RCI (January 2005)

This document includes findings and recommendations for
mitigating the threat to property from wildland fires.

Emergency Operations Plan (
)

This document is the main reference source for managing
disasters and large scale emergencies in Storey County.

Storey County Fire Code 7???

D-4




Appendix D
Meeting Agendas & Handouts

State of NV Categorization of Hazards
o VeryHighRisk-| Risk - .| e :MediumRisk | » - Low Risk w.: Very:LowRisk
+ Earthguake Flood s Epidemic *  Drought *  Avalanche
e Severewinter | ¢«  Hazardous
»  Terrorism/WMD Wildfire storm materials event | »  Expansive soils
s Severe
. . windsform s Exireme heat
» land
subsidence and
. . * Tsunami/seiche ground failure
¢ Hail and
. . . thunderstorm
. . . e |nfestation
. . . ¢+ Tomado
. . . e Volcano

D-5




awaviisuoLay

e

i

e
e
i

EEN«._._

o._%__g

OUBJIOA

SUDIBS/ILLBUNS |

Opeulo ]

WIOISPUIL 219A3S

WIOYg 12jUIN 219A3G

ain|le} punoib % a5UBpsIgNs pue

SUONEISSI]

uuoysispuny @ |ieH

{sepyspnw
pue s3Yo)pfleued ‘Pooy] Ysey)
‘adnjie} wep sapnjau|} pooly

Jesy aliaixg

§|j0g aAjsuedxa

Slwapids

sayenhyue]

Wybneoug

asdefjon
ydeys auly} punoizy Buiaen

SYDUEERY

i
S

, 52 i mm»ww i

T 1SbI = € wm%é =1 .ousha

19aysyiop Buryoad prezey

Sinopuey s sepudhy Aunaapw
@ Xipuadiiy



Appendix D
Meeting Agendas and Handouts

These criteria will be used to categorize the identified hazards into high, medium and low risk hazards.

Criterion One: Magnitude

Magnitude refers to the physical and economic impact of the event. Magnitude factors are represented
by:

1. Size of event
2. Life threatening nature of the event
3. Economic impact of the event
4. Threat to property
a. Public Sector
b. Private Sector
¢. Business and Manufacturing
d. Tourism
e. Agriculture
Value:
1. Verylow Handled by community
2. Llow Handled at city/town level
3. Medium Handled at county level
4. High State must be involved
5. VeryHigh Federal declaration needed

Criterion Two: Duration

Duration refers to the length of time the disaster affects the State and its citizens. Some disaster incidents
have far-reaching impact beyond the actual event occurrence such as the September 11, 2001 event.
Duration factors include the following:

1. Length of physical duration during emergency phase

2. Length of threat to life and property

3. Length of physical duration during recovery phase

4. Length of time affecting individual citizens and community recovery

5. Length of time affecting economic recovery, tax base, business and manufacturing recovery, tourism,
threat to tax base and threat to employment

Value
1 Verylow Critical facilities and/or services lost for 1 to 3 days
2 Llow Critical facilities and/or services lost for 4 to 7 days
3  Medium Critical facilities and/or services lost for 8 to 14 days
4 High Critical facilities and/or services lost for 15 to 20 days
5  VeryHigh Critical facilities and/or services lost for more than 20 days

Criterion Three: Economic Impuact

Distribution of the event refers to the depth of the effects among all sectors of the community and State,
including both the geographic area affected as well as distribution of damage and recovery of the economy,
health and welfare, and the State/community infrastructure. Distribution factors include the following:

I. How widespread across the state are the effects of the disaster?

D-20




Appendix D
Meeting Agendas and Handouts

2. Are all sectors of the community affected equally or disproportionately?
3. How will the distribution of the effects prolong recovery from the disaster event?

Value:
I Verylow Community —Only the immediate community or part of a town/city is affected
2 Llow City/Town — entire town/city is affected
3  Medium County — effects are felt at the county level
4 High State —the entire state will be affected by the event
5 VeryHigh Federal effects are felt nationwide (e.g. Hurricane Katrina-sized)

Criterion Four: Area Affected

Area affected refers to how much area is physically threatened and potentially impaired by a disaster risk.
Area affected factors include of the following:

1. Geographic area affected by primary event
2. Geographic, physical, and economic areas affected by primary risk and potential secondary effects.

Value:
1 Verylow Community
2 low City/Town
3 Medium County
4 High State
5 VeryHigh Federal

Criterion Five: Frequency

The frequency of the risk refers to the historic and predicted rate of recurrence of a hazardous event
(generally expressed in years, such as the 100 year flood).

Value:
1 Verylow QOccurs less than once in 1,000 years
2 low Occurs less than once in 100 to once in 1,000 years
3 Medium Occurs less than once in 10 to once in 100 years
4 High Occurs less than once in 5 to once in 10 years
5 VeryHigh Occurs more frequently than once in 5 years

Criterion Six: Degree of Vulnerability

The degree of vulnerability refers to how susceptible the population, community infrastructure and state
resources are to the effects of the risk. Vulnerability factors include the following:

1. History of the impact of similar events
2. Mitigation steps taken to lessen impact
3. Community and State preparedness to respond to and recover from the event

Value:
1 Verylow 1 to 5% of property in affected area severely damaged
2 Low 6 to 10% of property in affected area severely damaged
3 Medium 11 to 25% of property in affected area severely damaged
4 High 26 to 35% of property in affected area severely damaged

D-21




Anpendix D
Meeting Agendas and Handouts

5

Very High 36 to 50% of property in affected area severely damaged

Criterion Seven: State and Community Priorities

State and community priorities refer to the importance placed on a particular risk by the citizens and their
elected officials. Priorities factors consist of the following:

S i

Long term economic impact on portions of the State or community

Willingness of the State or community to prepare for and respond to a particular risk
More widespread concerns over one particular risk than other risks

Cultural significance of the threat associated with a risk.

Potential for long terrn community or cultural disruption presented by the hazard
Matrix Prioritization of Hazards Resuits

Very Low Advisory

Low Considered for further planning in the future
Medium Prompt action necessary

High Immediate action necessary

Very High Utmost immediacy

Vulnerability Ratings

High Risk Hazard: Event has most likely occurred in the past and/or is likely to occur in the future. Of
substantial magnitude, with loss and financial impact to the State considered beyond the State’s
available resources and ability to respond.

Moderate Risk Hazard: Event has most likely occurred in the past and/or is likely to occur in the
future. Of moderate magnitude, may be considered beyond the State’s available resources and ability
to respond.

Low Risk Hazard: Event has a very low occurrence rating and not likely to cause major damage to
property or loss of lives in the future. Not likely to exceed the State’s available resources or ability to
respond. '

No Substantial Risk Category: Event would be considered a State/local emergency incident within
the jurisdiction’s response capability and needing no additional resources to respond.

Special Risk Category: A hazard with an identified mitigation plan or lead agency that provides the
expertise to provide mitigation strategies.

D-22




Meeting Agendas and Handouts

3. Taa%RL * v it Eaiecy

'lo:alli'C:U'TBmE i agrul: ified on
Firod Far ;w,_p ﬂé'nu.m
\gn ati iz ol Semal

ATERIRG THLILLN S :...;*wmw: i

2 Tharasddepeisl vrscruse seast ot tha, Saaition of
Mizsiic Simshars i 43 CEFR G ST,

4 Critical fxciicay oniy,

Hazard Mitigation
Assistance (HMA)

HMA wnder FEMA s Mitigation
Ehirectorate umiffes the pre-disaster
grant programs to befter suppest the
overell gopl of redusing the Jos of Hfs
aud properiy dut o gaturad hazards,

T BMA programs: Pre-Erisaster Mifizatios (DA,
Fleod Mitigation Assiviavee FMLA), Repatidvs Pload
Clabms (PFC), and Sevaze Regatitve Loss (3FL) provids
rdbigation gramts mnmnady on & slocasies azl
competitive bosis 10 Stozz, Tamiwory, Trkal, avd focal
autidas. The cew wmifiad process schiovss scononuies of
scale and pordolio managarment for Faderal, State, 2nd
Iwc2] officials by alizoieg program reguivernentsin a
nifted HAYLA sidance documuent The mzz.:t of thiiz
sigrenent is 1o subomza the qualiny aed
ML IwANS.

in adHdon, vadsr the vnifed process, Eee)
sriapalicarans sibagied aw et fiodsd uder & specifc
At progom: may alsn Se cousddese Faether
EdtEaom v progranh.

Sicte: Contaels

HMNEGE & PDNE

Elizabeth Ashby
{778 6ST-03FL

aashbaii stat

FALA, RFC, & SR
Kim Groenewald
{FTI) 4842884
ST eNeW W Y g o

Deaadtines

Mewkon of Iutarest die to
Drivizion of Emerzency
IfanzgementTyvision of
TWater Rasonrces

Tme 34, 2409

Axrgusc 12, 2008 Srope of Work dus e
Diivsstoxt of Emmergemcy
Manar=nsertDévivien of
TWnrer Rapsces

Asspuat 2§, 2005 WNEDPCTs Quarter]y
Ifeating

S wiver: T, 2E00 Baunsdir Corr Aaalvais aod.
Raciap documentatbon due
fo Division of Emergency
AlamazenzartTévision of
TWater Ragonsres

Qcropar 21, 2008 Full Applicanon Package
e to Division of
Exerpauscy
Mo genanr Divinian of
Niiazer Reonurces

AT, TNGE
. ym etz
Feuribers. Nevodi)

oweynbe
KEIFWVEP Frioch
Gf Bevlirero Nwvuda; &

Posi-Disaster Hazard Mitigation

&sam Prograrn (HMGE)

The Hazed Midgation Gt Frogram (HMEP)
pravidas gt t Steses and loce] govemments o
iebement Yonp-tem: fazard witigatiou measies sfer a
wmnfnr diszater declamnsion. Avihorized 1der Sectiva
04 of dhe SiatToed Actand adminiztered by TEME,
FVGRwas created 1o vedice the lozs of Life and
pregirety due e natorel Beastars, The rrogem ensiles
foitiEAtaD mekures o Yeimplemanted divins the
mmzadinge Terovary from & StasieEr

ety Saang sov/sovemmery arantime

Pre-Dhsaster Mitigation (PDAD
Program

The FDN progmmm provides funds o Staves, Terrinorias,
Federslly recogoized Indian Tribe] govanaments, sad
coamnzemities for Bazand mitizztion pleaing aed the
ingplemantnien of midsaiion projeets poio fo 5 Ssastar
event, T gozl oftha DM Progreas is 1o tedues
ovarall tighs to the papufvdion 208 shuchirs:, white ades

recting rafinmoe on Anding fom acaut disaser
derdirition:.

Flood Mitisaticn Asgsistance
{FMAY Program

The FMA zant prozrom provides fandlay 4o States,
fdezzaly racoznined Todian Tribed sovernrents, zad
commumittas 50 hat cost-efFective massires czn he
wae to rediye or elindoate the loms-zaren ok of Sood
Gruge to buildess, wamehiened bowss, aud other
stcAes ygrad undsr the Watfonst Fieod lusuarse
Frogram GIFE Th long-seen 2o of A £ 2o
teduce of elinzinate claimyunds the NFR thusugh

Repetitive Flood Clans (RFT)
Program

TeaRFC sy progran; was created with fhe 2ead of
rediing :’b:»a& Geatagzes 1o fndividunl properties for
whicl: 22 o7 wors 2l Fayienrs S losses have been
wadeimder Sood inrancecovarage and thay wilk
ezl i e evane 10 £ NFIR Fufonal
Floag fesamnce Fund) i & Sﬁb?é&‘mtﬁﬁfﬂm

TEsREC Frogm B S“iji“[ totls2 avadability of
epuoprintien fumdmg  REC ronts will b ewarded oun
wation] asis wit mr r=._ra|:>:£ o Sente Blocations,
guotes, of wher Forenifz-bazed aliecations of fimds.

The fupding seurce for e RFY sract progrom s e

NFIE.

Ty Ry sovdeavemnentrmant i Ande siom

Severs Regefitive Loss (SR

Program
The BRT proga providas fandize to reducs or
Hisiset e righ of fleod daraxge o sevens

Tapeitive residan ruckires fslzed vader the NEIB.
Tea defivizion ot oaTapetidve Joss az applied to s
programis x forsiad propery vered ndar
2p VPR flopd insmeants policy, zad:

{25 Thatbes af Jeost fovr NFIP-cloina paymants
soctuing building and coussmns} mver 55000 aach,
2nd T crmdative st of such chims
taynanls enceeds 30,000 o2

For which at least g sepate Cinine payments
fratdiag paments ozlyt have besnmands with the
cumpdneye e of the Witz pontior of such
claiys axizeding the mather valug of the budlding.

i

B

For both {2) a0 (b} above, 2t Jesst fwo 0F i reforenred
<lmig nmst have ac:cv'“ed WG 2y -year periad,
#8 owst b redner tann B days apaen The lenpereon
2o of the 537, SToSrEmt 15 v redhice o elm:um
et amder the WEIR dwecigh proiecs actuities thet
will reseit fucthe grentazt savines to the WFIF snthe
shorest perod of s

wewer.famg. sonEovermar mongia bin 5

D-23




Anpendix D
Meeting Agendas and Handouts

the
hazard
mitigation
planning
process

Hazard mitigation piznning i e
pracess of getermiring how o re-
duce or efiminate e oss of life and
propefty damsgs resulting from
raturakand human-cassed hazards.
Fourhasic phases are described for
ihe hazard mifigation planring pro-
cess a5 shown in this diagram.

For ilustration purposes, this dia-
gram porrays a process that ap-
pearsto proceed sequeniiath How-
ever, the mitigation planning process
is rarely a linear process, i is not
unusust et ideas developed while
assessing risks shouid nead revw-
sion and addifonal information while
teveloping the mitigation plan, or
that implementing the plan may re-
sulf in new goals or additional risk
assessment.

D-24




Appendix D
Meeting Agendas and Handouls

Meeting No. 2 - Agenda

AGENDA
Storey County Local Emergency Planning Committee (LEPC)

Wednesday, Aprl 10, 2013- 10:80 am.
Storey County Emergency Operations Center
141 North C Street
Virginia City, Nevada 89440

Al ifems Include discussion and possible action fo approve, modify, deny, or continue unless marfed otherwise
i. CALL TOORDER

2. PUBLIC COMMENT {(HO ACTION) Mo aclion may be taken on 3 matter raissd under this #em on the
agenda unll the matter iscll has been specifically ncudad on an agends a5 an item upen which action will
be taken. Time timits on Public Comment will be at the direction of the Chatrman of the Committes.

3. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Minwtes from Jannary §, 2613
4, DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Minutes from March ¥, 2013

5. DISCUSSIONPOSSIDEE ACTION: Approval of Fisoal Year 2044 Stole of Nevada Emergency
Response Commission (3ERCY United We Sfond Grant Application for submital to the State of
Nevads Emergency Response Commission
This ittem will seek approvel of the Stargy County LEPC FY 2014 Linited We Stand Grant.

{Cheria Nevin, Granls & Emsrgency Management Coordinator}

8. DISCUSSION (NG ACTION): Review of Grants Recefved by Storey County Local Emergency Planning
Commitiee
This femywili provide an cverview of open grants recaeived by the Slorey County LERC,
[Chods Novin, Frards & Ememency Management Coordinstar)

7. DISCUSSION (MO ACTION): Emergency Managemsnt Directors Repork
This lem i & general discussion of aclivilies refaled fo the Starsy County Ofice of Ememgency Management
rejated o emergeney preparedness, planning and response.
{done Curtiz- Direstor of Emergangy Management}

& DISCUSSION @0 ACTION): Coopersting Local Emergency Plasning Commitiee Members Report on
Activitizs This Hem iz general discussion of activilies of our prvate industry and counly LEPC Members.

9. DISCUSSION (HO ACTION): Review any Hozardous Materals Incidents that have occumed since the
Last Mesting of {his Commities- This fem is a review of any Hazmat related Incidants that have cccumed
since-our last LEPC Mesting in January 2013, (loe Curfie- Direotor of Emergensy Mansqenent)

16, ADJOURNMENT

NOTICE:
= Anyone interested nay request persona! notice of the meetings.
+  Agenda Henes must be received in witing by 1200 noon on the Tuesday of the wesk preceding the repdar mesling. For
informnatian oo (775 54700858,
«  Bems may oot nesessadly be heard i the order that they appear. :
= Pulblic Comment » be allowed at fhe beginning of sach mesting (s comment shoold be Bmiled to maters set on the agendal.
Public Comment will also be dicwed after agch Hem on the g;ﬂa {this cormment should Be Bmiied fo the e 8o the agenda).
Tane lroits onPublie Gormrrent wall be-af the shserstion of the Chaimman. Pleass limit yeur camments to firce mumdes.
+  Slorey Courfy recognizes the needs and oivi rights of a1 persons regardless of mes, cofor, religion, gender, disability, family
siztus, or mation crigin.
Kutics to persons with disabilities: Mambars of the public who are dsabied ond reguin spaoiyl assistancs or acoomrsodations o fhe
resfing are requested tonolify the Sorey County Office-of Emergency Managerent in wiithhg 2t PO Sox 7, Virginis City, Nevads B340,
Iy aczordencs with Federal tlaw @nd 1.8 Depariment of agricultuee policy, $his instution i smbibied fom dscimimmting on the bags of
mace, ooler, nations! ergin, sex, religion, age, disablizy {MNot 39 prokitded bases apply to.all programs) To file 3 coonplaint of discimination:

1

D-25




Appendix D
Meeting Agendas and Handouts

Meeting No. 2 - Sign In Sheet

STOREY COUNTY LOCAL EMERGENCY PLANNING COMMITTEE
REGULAR MEETING

APRIL 10, 2013 10:00 AM.
Storey Coundy Emergency Operations Center
141 Nerth © Street- Virginia Clty, Nevada

{5 gt SEE S, ot

& . y
) T b T
DA el
S Py

L a A

HE IR T (I s Y

LB al Ttk e S MY,
e -

P B

o R
H gﬁ,;,ﬂ_z'f'“'

STOREY COUNTY LOCAL EMERGENCY PLANNING COMMITTEE
REGULAR MEETING

APRIL 10, 2013 10:00 A.M.
Storey County Emergency Operations Derrter
141 North € Street- Yirginia City, Nevadz

D-26




Apnpendix D
Meeting Agendas and Handouts

Meeting # 2 - Handouts

Results Storey County

Hazard Profiling Worksheet

TR

Wildfire 247 31

Flood (Includes dam
failure, canal failure, and

mudslides) 179 ‘ 26
Severe Winter Storm 133 22
Severe Windstorm 123 21
Earthquakes 97 19
Land subisdence & ground
failure 69 17
Drought 83 14
Epidemic 81 14
Hail & thunderstorm 70 12
Avalanche 66 11
0

Hazmat 83 21

Terrorism/WMD 89 22

D-27




Appendix 0
Meeting Agendas and Handouts

Meeting #3 - Agenda

AGENDA _
Storey County Local Emergency Planning Committee (LEPC)

Wednesday, July 10, 2013~ 10:00 a.m.
Faod Bank of Northem: Nevada
550 Haly Drive
McCarran, Nevada 89434

Al lems tnctude discussion and possibie sction o approve, modify, deay, or contlpue unjess marked otherwise,
1. CALLTOORDER '
Z. PUBLIC COMMENT {NO ACTION} Mo action may be iaken on a matier m-iséd under this item an the

agenda untif the matter itself has been specifically included on ar agends as an ftem upoh which aclion wil
be teken, Time Hmits on Public Comment will be at the direction of the Chidrinan of the Committes,

By C.uunh! Hazarg Mitigeitlan Plan,

{Karen Jolmson, Nevada Division of Emargenscy Managemant]
6. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION Approval of Flscal Yesr 3013 Stete of Nevads Emergency
Rezponse Commission Hazardous Matorials Emergoney Planning Grant Application for subnitiad to
the State of Nevads Emargency Response Commilgsion
This item will seek approval of he Slorey Counly LEPC FY2013 HMER Grapt for FlreShoas Reno
afiendance. : : : oo _
{Charte Nevin, Griris Coordinalor)

T. DIBCUSBIONIPUSSIBLE ACTION Approval of Flscal Year 2014 State of Mevads Emergency
Response Commisslon Hazirdous Materisls Emergency Planning Grant Applivation for submitial to
thia Stute of Nevada Emergency Response Sommission
“Fhis item will seck approval of the Storey County LEPD EY2094 HMEP Grant.

{Cveiss Newlrs, Gramis Coordinglor)

8. g‘scuissmﬁ (NG ACHON): Review of Grants Received by Storey County Local Emergeney Blanning
Gammittas
This Hem wilf provide an cverview of open granis recebved by the Storey County LEBG.
{Chania Novin, Assistant Dirsctor of Emergency Maragement

2. DISCUSSICN/POSRIBLE ACTION: Tar I Infermation Requesty
This ftem wiil seek the LEFC's position and inpul regading whather oe niet Tier # faciity reparts should he
wonhdential under Nevada homeland secuslly laws,
(lon Curtis- Dirawtor of Erpinrgency Mansgamong

10. DISCUSSION (MO ACTION): Emeargancy Managemant Directors Report
Thisitem fs & general discussion of activities related io the Starey County Office of Emergency Manggement
related to erstgtnicy preparedness, planring and response.
{dos Curtls- Eiractor of Emergency Managermang

1% gmfslﬂﬂ (N0 RCTHON): Cooparating Local Emergsncy Planning Committes Members Report on
This ttem Is general discussion: of activities of cur private industry arg counly LEPC Members,

D-28




Appendix D
Meeting Agendas and Handouts

Meeting # 3 - Sign In Sheet -

STOREY COUNTY LOCAL EMERGENCY PLANNING COMMITTEE
SPECIAL MEETING

JULY 10, 2013 10:00 AM,
Food Sank of Northern Nevada
550 italy Drive~ McCarran, Nevada

R e, { SR s e b e
; e
3 £or P o L
F NS s e g A .
g“ G SRR i A b A T £
&
" P
PV R [T A % s o, i N
Fimuers honzsBasd vilgle et o A gk £ g F e . .
gm";’.:c»’ Tuie 2 aie ok o P : 2 s .3 . <
. Aamsie Aoas iy Cade . EALE . Do ol Doled T e e o B e .
s o
;@f‘»‘sﬁj—gj VB RS . G g & e g T
g g o

it e Bt S

na . b ] 5 5 .
Heiet oy dollen s, Poraess - ;
; .. . . ;
" £
IRIES ST A oo 5 o
N {.w;fg;{if SRR iy L PR A
. . & - - ‘
Rl S B A sl § Tos b 3 : ;
e b ey i b o e iR AT g T :
e — £ ol : 4
E hoa ™ i
"l{'wf?}\j{“ ) A fp i o s e 3 i
B = By [EE R B r N RO N H
Ay et
e S
S A
T
N w," [

Meeting # 3 - Handouts

Hazard Profiles and Earthquake

D-29




Appendix D
Meeting Agendas and Handouts

Meeting #4 — Agenda

AGENDA
Storey County Local Emergency Planning Committee (LEPC)

Wednesday, April 8, 2014- 10:00 a.m.
Comstock History Center
20 North E Street
Virginia City, Nevada 89440

All items include discussion and possible action fo approve, modify, deny, or continue unless marked otherwise,
1. CALL TO ORDER

2. PUBLIC COMMENT {NO ACTION} No action may be taken on a matter raised under this item on the
agenda unfil the matter itself has been spacifically included on an agenda as an item upon which action will
be taken. Time limits on Public Comment will be at the direction of the Chairman of the Committee.

3. DISCUSSION/PQSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Minutes from January 8, 2014
4, DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Minutes from March 4, 2014

3. DISCUSSION (NQ ACTION}: Hazard Mitigation Plan Update
This item will provide an overview of the updates to the Storey County Hazard Mitigation Plan.
(Karen Johnson)

§. DISCUSSION (NO ACTION): Future of interoperable Communications in the State of Nevada
This item will provide an overview of the future of interoperable communications in the state of Nevada and
will be presented by the Statewide Interoperability Coordinator George Melnar.

7. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Fiscal Year 2015 State of Nevada Emergency Response
Commission United We Stand Grant Requests fram LEPC Members
This item will provide a time for LEPC Members fe provide input on #tems that they would [ike to see
submitied under the FY2015 SERC UWS Grant

8. DISCUSSION (NO ACTION): Review of Grants Received by Storey County Local Emergency Planning
: Committee
This item will provide an overview of apen grants received by the Storey County LEPC.
(Cherie Nevinj

8. DISCUSSION (NO ACTION}: Emetrgency Management Directors Report :
This tetn is & general discussion of activities related to the Storey County Office of Emergency Management

refated tc emergency preparedness, planning and response.
{Joe Cinlis- Director of Emergency tanagement)

10. DISCUSSION (NQ ACTION): Cooperating Local Emergency Planning Committee Members Report on
Activities
This item is general discussion of activities of our private industry and county LEPC Members.

11. DISCUSSION (NO ACTION): Review any Hazardous Materizls Incidents that have Occurred Since the
l.ast Meeting of this Committee- This item is a review of any Hazmat related incidents that have oceurred
since our tast LEPC Meeting in January 2014, (Joe Gurtis- Director of Emergency Management)

12, ADJCURNMENT

D-30




AppendixD
Meeting Agendas and Handouts

Meeting #4 ~ Sign In Sheet

STOREY COUNTY LOCAL EMERGENCY PLANNING COMMITTEE
REGULAR MEETING

APRIL 9,

Coms

2014 16:00 AWM.
tock History Center

20 North E Street Virginia City, Nevada

Crenie_revin |St Q¥ CeCoiannin Gty mﬁ&?cwt%mm%:m Mo U ]
BN Sevanaey [Gloten (p C!mmmm@%mgim C/ﬁ/

@,t 3” /Wa/i}ﬂn/ wg‘;”f {1/"0/;:/‘/ @ﬂéx.h[«‘-”,ﬂ s /b

Saach Weedwid VOGN oot @i st odeus Ty (ednands

*f\-\s "v.,\lc P

AR

cie, St e e Elnaga e

pﬁﬂ;fk ey

AM«HC.AA !ee,f Ckpss

pd Pek . s mad B Fod cboss

.Gf“jf

ﬁic’ ii yﬁm;ﬁ‘zi i Al ad e s B e %/f .
T
émt’.c L ofEs i Sl Eeor:  Lofes Grulimeri. gom A
e a ; toal e 1 L
L RLKE L&f&dg}?;m»:;z;} g1 s ) ooy Lengaboeds @ unlonmb, | i -
¢t "y ; o
Leisig Mori LM SRS 5&3{.0b$$£ Lodt At reind Lo fai "

Ef’f”—w- CSCWWJT

aﬁuﬁmﬂb G (;- fs

ch.Lw Jf{@ Lo CC?«L;‘MU:

Meeting # 4 — Handouts
Wildland Fire profile and Fire History map, Flood profile

Meeting #5 — Agenda

D-31




Appendix D
Meeting Agendas and Handouts

Meeting #5 — Sign In Sheet

STOREY COUNTY LOCAL EMERGENCY PLANNING COMMITTEE
REGULAR MEETING

JULY 9, 2014 10:00 AM.
Northern Nevada Food Bank
550 ltaly Drive McCarran, Nevada

ldenron®na tnaxr

<o ey
dre dnd T f‘rf A
£ -'-"f’("ﬁ/‘r"é/r’ﬁ iy { {,jj 5#1 ifvx" o At
T »r‘-:?,.::’—!— - i
,j<.= [ Ere o i:“,zt“_,f?.s SRE T ek ;(” *-u-,(

5 4 L [P e
e b s Gl Y et -
P

$+0VEM C‘aum*x Creviggmstorcoun cﬂ& {; - 1/\314/«_9 A %Lu-
‘."/. ;A/’M LM’?ib{'jiu‘H!\ [ﬁ *”"u{;s" "ﬁ' ;

I
o b €7 Biny {i?!?.\‘,g‘; :'h:x,a,: gu.;.{.- “ g

) /5 s 4 ,'A ;. 4 s H
r?f ST ﬁ‘{fl J‘é"‘f'{i A ’!a Y [ J{;fﬂ t’f’ Gare et st ¢
Y Ah e M /j A’ £ i
[ Afhei G Mevicoy Kot Chose ! Faltick #rnean@ bead cosis
e - i Y7
40 f "_gf_ R A V o : o%

I e T

1(‘.”

Tt Cuvir's Sfara} C‘oomra ’éM chnsesmcbcoc,;@ . ead

Meeting #5 —~ Handouts
All maps, Staple E and Mitigation Actions List

Meeting #6 — Sign In Sheet

Meeting #6 — Handouts

D-32




Appendix D
Meeting Rgendas and Handouts

D-33




Anpendix E
Plan Maintenance Documents




Appendix E
Plan Maintenance

Sample Press Release for
Annual Maintenance Meeting

Storey County, Nevada is meeting to review and maintain its Hazard Mitigation Plan to
assess risks posed by natural and manmade disasters and identify ways to reduce
those risks. This plan is required under the Federal Disaster Mitigation Act of 2000 as a
prerequisite for receiving certain forms of Federal disaster assistance. The plan can be
found on the County’s website at www.storeycounty.org .

Public comments and participation are welcomed. For additional information or to
request to participate, or to submit comments, please contact Joe Curtis, Storey County
Emergency Management, at (775) 691-5333 or jcurtis@storeycounty.orq .

E-1




Appendix
Plan Maintenance

Annual Review Questionnaire




Appendix E

Plan Maintenance
Mitigation Action Progress Report
Page 1 0f 3
Progress Report Period: o
{date) {date)
Project Title: Project ID#
Responsible Agency:
Address:
City:
Contact Person;
Phone # (s): email address:
List Supporting Agencies and Contacts:
Total Project Cost:
Anticipated Cost Overrun/Underrun:
Date of Project Approval: Start date of the project:

Anticipated completion date:

Description of the Project (include a description of each phase, i applicable, and the time frame for
completing each phase):

E-3




AppendixE
Plan Maintenance

Page 20f 3
Plan Goal(s} Addrass
Goat:

Indicator of Succass:

Project Status Project Cost Status
[ Project on scheduls O Cast unchanged
[J Project completed O Cost overrun®
(0 Project delayed® *expiain

*axplain

] Cost underrun®

O Project Cancellad *explain

Summary of progress on project for this report:

A what was accomplished during this reporting pericd?

B. What obstacles, problems, or delays did you encounter, # any?

C. How was sach problem resolved?




Appendix E
Plan Maintenance

Page 30of 3

Next Steps: What are the next step(s) to be accompiished over the next reporting period?

Other Comments:

E-5




souepusyie abeinodue pue TweiBoid ally yjik BUIA BUF GiM PSA(CAUI SLUGDS] O siaumoalloy abeinoous
-aJp|im e BulnAIng BLIOY 11aY} 1O S3UBLD BY) SA0IdWI O} LOYOR AIBSS38U BU) SYE) 0} SISUMOBWOY

{aur4 yum BuA) HND ab2In0sus o} ‘sewoy 13y PUNCIE SPIEZEY SIYP|IM SU} S9NP3I UBD SIBUMOSWOL MOL UIE[dXS 0) ‘salypum d¢
pug 40N ypm 1dag an4 Suobiup 10 Jeay) 341 Jnoge siaumoawoy ulojul o) weiboud yoeanno ue jonpues o} sisjybiall) jeuoseas as
"suonipuco Bulusyeaiu-ay Afenusiod sz o] SuSiE Jsueam .
87 Ynm pauiquued ‘Bubug | Jejum Buunp sye) ueo Aay) SInseal JNOGE SIOSIA PUE SJUBPISS ejeonpa o] Weiboud Aunwwoo ysigeisa ¢
'SULOJS (MOUS pue “1apunuy) ey ‘puim) . sJasesip
&2 UM pauiguioa ‘Buiobup 8I8A8S WO SaLoy Jiay) Joajord 0} moy uo ongnd ay) swojut Jew ubiedwes yoeasno oignd e dojanag az 1042 redald
lgnd ‘syenbupiea ue Bulnp yealq Jo e pue ajebijw
0] 9|qB|leAR SPBLI UoNRULIoMUI 0} @1am sWayl J1 Ainful ssnea yBiul ey Buljielap [eanioe)yde 10 SjUBWIE}e [2N}INASLOU JSYIO PUB ‘SINXIY 9z 03 Jgnd
aut yym Buiary BuioBug | Buinjeys ‘Aiauiyoew ‘'sseib ‘subis ‘sadesed Joyoue o) moy synpe Yoes) i jey) weiSoud yoeesno dojpaag Ewum_amﬁ
0} fyoeden
‘87 Uogoy 3jepdn o} pauiquiod "Jusju0o uoneBiiw prezey jusisistoo sabemosus jely wesbord yoeanno oignd uigsns pue dojeas 2 | Teerpoddns
T2 7" g7 Buobuo JuBjU0d uoReBijI plezey juals! 1ot wesboud yoeaino oland wersns pue dojareq | gz | oung
"YoEBIND SSAUBIEMY Z[eon
SIIPHAA PUB YNM JO UoReUIRI000
Ulm sanupuod dsp a4
welbold ynem pooyioqybiau pue ]
§SBUISNG B $90P S0IJ0 SHU8YS Ve
alis gap AunoD aug uo pajsod aq (I sdiy Kjases aig ‘A jeuonippy SjusAa piezey asau}
HTNEM ST S80Q IsI Tooyog 10) suedaid pue ‘Jusnesd ‘sjebiu o} op LB AL Jeym pue Arunumos Jiay) Ul SpIeZey 8} INCYE Uap|IyYo
Buicbug pue pajaidwog [joes} 0} Jolistp [0042s U] Yiim sajeulpiood jewy wesboud yoranno UojeAd YSiy puedxs pue anujuon
“(KsaBewu s309oud
‘dnosb ‘sdew “211} uopisinboe ejep pue ‘uoeonps ‘Buluies ‘alemyos ‘slempiey sjgeaydde spnjoul o) UOJELLIOH| . pue Butuueid
S[9 & Joj UokT % uosieg ‘se|Bnog Jasse pue piezey S|9 meu pue Suisixs jo Buzygn/Buiieys su) o) moje jeu) seousbe sjeaud pue ol uonebiyiw
Uim pasaulied pajeiduion leyuauuisnob [euolBaysjels pue sepuabe sjels ajeudosdde ywm sjuasaibe Buleys-elep gio dojanag plezey
Ul JUSWSAJOALY
Qmua:.:_ Papnjout ‘(sanunoy fessuly pue ‘Bulysiad ‘iyoinys ‘aoysep ‘UokT ‘sejBnog . Aunog
Jou anbeh uogoy “Ueld pooj ‘A0 tosieD) suonatpsun( | uoiBay DYININ Ple [Eninu sjels yym JyBnos aq [ sjosloid uopebiw euoibey g ButoBuo
1B 990Nl yum pajejdulion : e ' ) ’ ' ' o ' pue paseatou)
'} uoioe "paysiidwwoase aq o} suogoe Ajolid Buiysiqelsa-i yym BUCIE JWHT BU} 10 MOIASI [BNUE LB ) sSjowold
ajepdn "Jeak yp U pauliopad | 9)a(duI0D PUR JNPUOD 1M PUB SARDE LIRS [Iw sejiwwoey) Buiaalg uely uonebyp prezeH Aunos Aaio)g v L leon
uonsYy Jo sniels uonduosag | uonoy

JdJAH 800C WoJy suondV [EnUd)0] pue sjeo) WonedniA :7-8 dqe

SUONJIY Snoirald ] o snels

1 Xipuaddy




‘sBuipjing jesuiojsty paygusp!

Bale Ulem] e pajeidwion

'S10UNG0 Bjeg B4l WOjUI O} SSRUAUILCD [BUOHIPPE SPNIDUI O [ISUN0Y Bjes ail4 spuefyBiH puedxg

NLING 8114 BOBLSIU| UG BIUPIIA feNUUE By} o) Sisquuaw Jojdeys) syes a4 Buisixs Jo

UnLgim patedo| sajouabe jusluuianol pue ‘sinjoniselul ‘sapioe; leonio o) uanb Kuoud seybiy i ‘Aioses ae
‘ajepdn ul papnjou; | fof SjuswaANbal Og| JUaUNY JSOW By} Jes JoU op 1ey) sease Bupjeys Buoss Wyum siasse feanua |8 Jyonay
‘paloadsy] oyenbigues
SSNOH 11N03) 0407 Ul PoULIOL d sBuipling [eauoisiy pue sesue Buiteys-yBiy PauRUsp! UM SIOngSeAul e o)enp
: pue ssoe) BN paumo-Aiunog j0adsul o) sisauibua feinjonys oy Buipuny spinosd o) wesboxd sjenul alnjonisesuL
Voday Alajes pajaiduiog :
pue sBuip|ing
"S1S00/M Bunsixe pue
g)s1sse Aunoy 'ainjonds Umop i sBuipiing MU UO S85SO0|
10 SUCREPUNO) Opal Of SHUBPISAIM [ [EOLOISIY POUUSPI UILIM Pajeoo| sajousbe Jusuwiuianab pue ‘ainjoni)selur ‘sani)ioe) |eonLo o) Auovd Jsubiy g¢ | pueasbewep
sydom Jdaq Buiping “pajejdwos Lt “S3IMonas Jyose) o Jusiuursaol pue ‘seuwoy ‘ssaursng ajeaud Joj seoinos Buipuny UIglqo pue Amuapy Jo Alligissod
Apmg aunjonig oucisiy As101g Ay sonpay
gjepdn "swajqoid ‘£ [e0D
ur papnfau| -Buebug "yainyn payliuap! 1031100 0} welfioid Bupiones [eanjansuou e dosasp ‘UoNoe SIyl yum uogouniuod u| "ayenbuypes .
aljope) sy} pue sjooyos ajppy Ue Bupnp yea.q 4B 1ey) sjualuale [ernjEN4SLOU 10} i Buiping e Aq pojosdsul e SININISEAUI pUB Ve
pue Jewwelsy uo pajowion Safioey [ERLO PUe *S|o0yds ‘sassalIsny ‘sawioy yoiym ul weiboid uojoadsul Buipiing Aejunjon e dojanag
$19)SBSIp
Jloj asedaad
‘Bulues DOF panupuod pue ‘sspiue pue ajeBnw
sjenud pue aljqnd Jewio yum sjuswssiBe oju Buusua 'stejd Aleacoar-pue-asuiodsal 0 BoURUBIEW pue re 0} 9lignd
‘uolieBiw joN Juswdojansp epnjous 0) spoys ssaupasedad [euoiBal anuRUOD Jm sausbe ssuodsal Aousbiaws Aunos ay} ajqeus
"gjepdn uf papnjoul JoN “Aiaa008y 0} Ayoedes
pue asuodsay - Buobug (B30 m._o&:m
ajepdn u| papnjou ‘uogosjoud auy Buioueyus o} sysinbasesd Alesssasu € SB AYUNWLIOS SY) U SIBUMO Pue pjing
10y payipoly ‘subredwen eipaw | Ausdord o) syeauq [sn} jeussiut jo eoueliodw) syt sziseydius o} SJO{ YoBSANO SNURUOD ISNLU [lounoy) ajeg I'z ('pauoa)
Senuued ai14 upm Buirt BuioBug | and epesN sy Jo Jerdey jeoo) sy ‘spuejyBid elibii sy jo ease sy Buipunouing £jsjeipstulul pue uigAA Z |20
'shem~§o-14Bu peo. Buoje pue ‘uonanisuco mau pue Buisxe punoie ‘sjustidojsrsp
urjuswiabevew uoyelaban oy seonorid JusuleBeusw }saq Ui s|00y9s Ajunog Aal0)g pue ‘sopLsbe HzZ
ajepdn ur papnjout ‘BupbugQ | esueusjuEW peOI B)lS puE Aunoy) ‘siojaeiuca Bulping JoneUi pue uuojui o} weiBoid yorasno ue sjeqy|
‘Buiobuo sposload "SPUB|pOOM
SUGJoNPad §{dh} pue papnjoul Jadiunp-uolig Joj seogoeid JuswaBeuew Jsaq Jnoge sisumo Aedoid pue ‘suopeiocsse Jaumoswoy oz

JIH 8007 W01} SHOPIY [eNU3I0g PU S[E0D UoPeSHIN 17-§ A[qel,

SHOIJY SNoinaid J o smels

4 Xipuadiy




{mous)
SWLIOJS JAJLMm
219A8S 0} onp
ainjonyseul
. pue sBuip|ing
'USHISSASSE BI0L 10} SUE(d ON , _ Pl pue Speo) yg | Bupsie pue
MOUS pue 821 puesylim o) ssbeiel pue ‘spodieo ‘sjoou Ajjior-eanLd Jo ANIGRIS [INjonns oy sulwie)a] MU UO 59880
pue abiewep
'Z10g Ul 8snoyuno) jo Kyneissod
uec jyonal pue uswdinbs ay) ashpay
[BAOLLSA MOUS 10} PALIS MOUS MBN G [eOD)
‘0L0¢ 8auBUIDIG 'SBaIR 92INOSSI [EINJEU PUB ‘UOHESID8) JODPING ,
Buiuoz mau yum pajajduwion ‘sanynolibe ‘o3 payiul| Jou 3ng Buipnjoul ‘Buipooy) [BuUOISES20 JO JURIS{0} 850Y) O) SABMPOO]} Ul S9SN JiLUI 0% | pooy ysey pue
pooj; 0}
‘aepdn . . . anp saoinosal
UION “UON2B Oupeds € JoN susoped abemoy [eanjeut jo uondnusip sy iqiyosd pue sAem abeuelp [eInjeu 10 8sn wnwixew sy} ainbay a3y A
ednjonljseaul
{'siueid Juswieal) Jojemaisem Busius Wwoy siajem Yo-uns WIS pue sBuip|ng
pue pooy Jusrald pue 'saul| Jojem PowIeida) PUe Jamas ajqeleuina Josjoid ‘saonoeld juswebeueus 1saq m::m_xm. urm
SZIflN PUB J01jU0J UOISOIS ‘SBANJONIS UOISISAID-MOY) ‘SPOYSISIe (EWIS Ul SUISE] UOHUSIaI JOJeM WIOIS/poo)) g7 | mou o.u sasso|
1o suugsp Buneass 'sebplq pue suenno Buysixe Bue|dal ‘syueq weays Buiziiges “6's) Bupooy pue aBewep
“ajepdn ul papnjoy| yse| o} anp abewep sonpas pinom JeYl—|eso| pue |euoifial yog—sioaloid Juslsbeuew-pooy ansing 10 Apgissod
‘BaJR pajordill Yoea J0) SUCHEPURLILIOIS) 8y aanpay
1sapmled Aq uonebiiw apnfoul | siskjeuy “Ajunog A2.0ig JnoyBnoiy) SLGBP U JSjem JO JUSLISAOUL SSELL PUE vy iy [eon)
Apmg pool4 010z ui pajaidwion Buipooy ysey o) suoid 1s0W seale Ajusp] 0 JusLUSSaSSE YSU (Iny & epnjaul o) ‘sishleue ABojoipAy sleqiu|
"gale A0 Rl .
0102 pejeldwiog | ey up sBuptiom suiw punoiBispun ay) uo exenbyles 1aa9s & Jo Joedun Aguap: o) Apnjs [e21Bojosb yanpuos) ¢
‘ajepdn uj "uopoaip Buuueid-Aousbiaws .
papnjou Joy “Ajunan) Ul sjjam O aujus)ap o} swalsAs |jam oy} uo axenbyles aiaAas e Jo Joedu Ajjuspl o) Apms jeoiBojosbolpAy Janpuos 3¢
gjepdn u| papnjou| "SjooLs
Joy pawipoly "weiboyd Yoeauino “SSAJ2A [JO-INYS ONBLUIOINE SB Yons ‘sainsesiy uonebiw -

auedoid anujuon -sjued Jamod
9 yed [elisnpu u peje|dueon

Jusweidw pue seuyadid LOISSILISURY J1aY) O} YSU JIWSISS AU} SJeN[eAd 0} saluedwod AN yim yiop

JINH 8007 WO} SEONIY [EUS10J PUE S[E6D) UoneINIAl 17-8 qEL

SUGHIY SHOIN3I4 ] 0 SMRIS




1wedwo) soueisissy Juswabeuepy AsuaBiaws epessp = JWININ
ueld uoneBpw plezeH [eoo] = JWHT

8poD Bujping |euoiewaiu| = Og|

wa)sAs uonewuo olydeiboan) = g9

[0AUCD paam snoXoN ‘els|dwon

aunjonyse Ul AUnuIwoo pue sasuapissl 199)0.d 0} BSIE [|IH PiOS) Bl Ul JuSWIEs) LoRonpal-sjan] jusLus|di

‘panuLoy .
. ; ainjonseyut AUnLuwWoD pue )
¥SU paonpal uoisuedxe Jepnous ) ; 9
PEO! U JULISIEGE PBM SNOXON $30UBpIsal Joajoud 0] Eale uokue) IN-XIS 8y} Jo saliepunog e Buofe Juawlesi} UoKoNpaL-sian) Juswa|dul|
‘AHiBN 18)ep uoiieq pue 1sIq S114 Aunoy uokT [enus) YausId a4 Aunog Aslng 'Anselod 10 UoISIAG
BpeAsN ‘Aunog uoAT yiim uoieuIPIe0d [euciBial apnjoul M YoIyM ‘saliepunog (e Buoje sinjannseul 9
"panuuon - Buicbug Ajunwwios pue saouapisai 198)0.d 0f BaKE UIRM | e BY) Ul JUBLUIBS) LONINPaL-Sian) Juatwaidu|
JoLIsIp duojsiy paynuapl ay) um sBuipping AInjuso-yg) UM
P81EI0] SINJONLSELUI PUE ‘JOUISID SSBLISNY [048WLIO0D ‘SANIOR) [BOL ] 1M SNO0) [BIUf "BU0Z plezey Ho
"PANURUOD “S|qelieAR SPUNjON | auy ueqin A BIUIBIIA SU} uium paledo| sBulp|ing Jyoxa) o) poyjew sjeudoidde suwelep o) Apns woyad
“funog Aai01g Jo esse fIH ploD/ANY ewibia
‘sjepdn | oy ul uoleseush yeay Jo/pue semod oy weiBoid uojezimn ssewolq 290} e apinoad [Im jeL) SJURIE Burueyqo 59
uljoN "peap jo2foid ueyd ssewoig jo Aunoeasep ay pue sdiyajysels/poom Jo Ajige|ieAe a)qepuadap suy} UIBLISISE 0) SASAINS JINPUY
"SIUNJONIE SBYILA J| IO SIUPIIM B MOIS 0} d|BY plnom Jey) syealq [an] 8jeasd o) SSIILNLUILIoD )
"PBNURLOY) "S|GE(IBAR SPUN) ON punose sasseld |eluusiad ym ssesb yeayo aoejdal o) wesboud Juswsbeuew uoneeBan e ajesl) 49
"saluoy N1ay} punole uoyejebon sjgewwe)
8A0WIS] 0} §301N088 SU} YOB| Oym SUOSISd SLIOOUI-MO| JO ‘PajgesIp ‘Altap|e 0} S89IAas JusWiabeuew 39
panuuey ssaubosd ) uogetaban apinord 0} ‘sdnoub sainies Alunwwos pue sisjyBiyely jeuosess Buisn ‘wesboid e sjesin
's3youy puejybiH pue spuelybiy A0 elubin :
"panupuoy) "sseibord u| 8pnjoul 0 UoIsiaipgns aljue yBnoly) syealq [any papeys ‘sigesbieuew sjears spueyBiH eILBIA SU) UM as
"$3EpUNOY YInos pue yuou ay) Bunjids Ag seale ajqesbeuew: sjeas o] salepUNOY jses .
urejuiew o) peaN “pajajdwog | pue jsam ay) Buoje Jusunesy) [erows) uonelaban sy Buipusixe Aq yealq an) sjeaio eate A0 LB ol y| 9%
BuicBuoy g uonoy ajepdn uj ‘Aiepunoq diysumo) wisjsem au} Buole wswiess uojonpal-sjan) Jusiwasidw) eale A1 emiBiig ou uj g9
‘010Z Ut uononpaJ-siany .
PEIONPUOO W1 " 1107 Ul pararduios Aiepunog diysumo) uigisam sy Buoje v

salljplim
aydoilselen 0y
anp sa0Inosal
{2anjeu pue
‘ainyannseyul
pue Auadod
Bunsixa
pue mau
‘ajif 03 Jealy}
ayy aonpay

g leon

dINH 8007 W0y SUONIY [eRU30J pue S[eoD) HONEIHIA 1Z-§ A[qe L

SU0NJY SNOIN3I4 ] 0 SHIelS




SUoNJY snojraid J o smels
4 Xipuaddy



Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 5/5/15 Estimate of time required:

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [x] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Robert & Nicole Wilkinson, Three GGG Inc., Liquor/General License, Gold Hill Hotel

2. Recommended motion: Approve application of Liquor/General License.

3. Prepared by: Brandy Gavenda, Admin. Asst.
Department: SCSO Telephone: 775-847-0959
4. Staff summary: Background complete. There are no disqualifiers found.

5. Supporting materials:

6. Fiscal impact: None

Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller

7. Legal review required:

District Attorney

8. Reviewed by:
_X__ Department Head Department Name: Sheriff, Gerald Antinoro

—
My Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved
[] Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued

e L]
—_—

Agenda Item No.




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 5/5/15 Estimate of time required:

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [x] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Vincent Malfitano, Liquor/General/Gaming License, Bonanza

2. Recommended motion: Approve application of Liquor/General/Gaming License.

3. Prepared by: Brandy Gavenda, Admin. Asst.
Deparitment: SCSO Telephone: 775-847-0959
4. Staff summary: Background complete. There are no disqualifiers found.

5. Supporting materials:

6. Fiscal impact: None

Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller

7. Legal review required:

District Attorney

8. Reviewed by:

_X__ Department Head Departim/N?me: Sheriff, Gerald Antinoro
(G
@Mnty Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[1 Approved
[1] Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued

——
[

Agenda Item No.




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 5/5/15 Estimate of time required:

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [x] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Vincent Malfitano, Liquor/General/Gaming License, Delta

2. Recommended motion: Approve application of Liquor/General/Gaming License.

3. Prepared by: Brandy Gavenda, Admin. Asst.
Department: SCSO Telephone: 775-847-0959

4, Staff summary: Background complete. There are no disqualifiers found.

5. Supporting materials:

6. Fiscal impact: None

Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller

7. Legal review required:

District Attorney

8. Reviewed by:
_X__ Department Head Department Name: Sheriff, Gerald Antinoro

;s

@JMH‘W Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved
[1 Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued

P ey
—_

Agenda Item No.




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 5/5/15 Estimate of time required:

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [x] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Virginia City Brewery & Taphouse, Business/Liquor License

2. Recommended motion: Approve application of Liquor/General License. Please also sign
their request for Application of Manufacturer’s License.

3. Prepared by: Brandy Gavenda, Admin. Asst.
Department: SCSO Telephone: 775-847-0959

4. Staff summary: Background complete. There are no disqualifiers found.

5. Supporting materials: Application for Manufacturer’s License.

6. Fiscal impact: None
Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller

7. Legal review required:

District Attorney

8. Reviewed by:
_X__ Department Head Department Name: Sheriff, Gerald Antinoro

A —

&M\A)mty Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[1 Approved [
[] Denied [

Approved with Modifications
Continued

(S -

Agenda Item No.




Original To Board of County Commissioners Form LTD 6 66-13
Copy to Mevada Department of Taxation, Carson City

APPLICATION FOR MANUFACTURER’S LICENSE

Honorable Board of County Commissioners:

(City or Town)
In accordance with the provisions of NRS, Chapter 369, as amended, the undersigned hereby applies for a license for

Brewpub_

(Type of license(s) — see page 2
In the State of Nevada, for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2015 a remittance covering the license fees from the 1* day of

{Physical Address)
Phose (775)847-7064
Mailing addressP.Q. Box 1176, Virginia City, NV.8%440 "~
E-mail addressvebandth@gmaileom .
(3) The applicant is:

(a) A corporation? Yes[ ] No [X} Organized under the laws of what state?_ When? 20
Qualified to do business in Nevada? YesDANo | When? 20

Names and addresses of following officers (attach list if additiona! space required):
President: Kurt Holt 31 Jeanette, Carson City, NV.89706 .
Vice President: Jason Hawkins . .~~~ ) 1845
Bougainvillea Dr., Miden, NV 39423
Secretary: NIA e
B O
Manager(s) Kurt ¥folt . 31 Jeanette, Carson City. NV8Y7Q6

Jason, Hawkins 1845 Bougainvitlea Dr., Miden, NV 89423

Resident Ageni: Linda De Carlo P.Q. Box 808, Virginia City, NvV.89440 .
(b) A partnership? Yes[<] No [] Is agreement recorded? Yes[Xf No []
Where? State of Nevada,

Where?
Names, addresses and official positions, if any, of all persons interested in the business:
(attach list if additional space is required)

KutBolt 51 Jeanette, Carson City, NV 89706 Owner
Jason Hawking 1845 Bougainvillea Dr.. Miden, NV 89423 Owner .

(d) An individual? Yes[ | No
(¢) Has any individual who is interested, financially or otherwise, in the applicant’s business, ever been convicted of a
violation of Federal or any state liquor laws? Yes[ ] No [X]

{1]




If so, furnish (attach list if additional space is required):

Name Address Where convicted When

() Is any person listed on this manufacturer’s application engaged in the business of importing, wholesaling or
retailing alcoholic beverages? (See attached copy of NRS 597.210)Yes[ | No X
If so, what percent, name and location of business %
(3) References:
Name Address
Joe Bingham oero.310. Sunshine Lane, Reno. NV 89502

The application of......

"is hereby (approved) (disapproved) tiis........... day of . 20°

Board of County Commissioners:

IMEIIDBET . ...ciereeessrsreme ettt es e e et st s seesssasssassasa s sssesseseesessen

Member

Member

Member.......ccmnnne

ATTEST:
, County Clerk
Type of Licenses
SCHEDULE OF LICENSE FEES
Brewpub $75.00
Winemaker: 75.00
Brewer 75.00
Instructionat Wine Making Facility 75.00
Crait Distillery 75.00
Rectifier: 550.00

NRS 369,310 License fees: Due dates; payment of proportionate part

1. Alllicense fees are due and payable on July 1 of each year. If not paid by July 15 of each year the license shall be
canceled.

[2]




2. Ifany license is issued at any time during the year other than by July 15, the fee shall be for that proportionate part of
the year that the licenser will be in effect, which in any event shall be for not less than one quarter of 2 year.
3. Noficense shall be dated ather than on the first day of the month in which it is granted.

(31




Vanessa Stephens

From: Pat Whitten

Sent: Thursday, April 30, 2015 5:05 PM
To: Vanessa Stephens

Subject: Fwd: Work Card Appeal
Attachments: image001.gif

Please add this to the packet. | told Donny it was too late to remove it since we had published but | will ask for no action
on Tuesday. Thanks...

Sent from my iPhone
Begin forwarded message:

From: Katie <katie@worldfamousbrothel.com>

Date: April 30, 2015 at 4:28:29 PM PDT

To: <pwhitten@storeycounty.org>

Cc: 'Donald Gilman' <dgilmannv@gmail.com>, 'Lance Gilman' <lance@lancegilman.com>, 'Kris
Thompson' <kpthompson2011@vyahoo.com>

Subject: Work Card Appeal

Mr. Whitten,

We would like to remove our request to include Katrina Tyson’s work card appeal on next Tuesday’s
County Commissioner/Licensing Board agenda as the matter has resolved itself. Please take no action on
this matter.

Thanks.
Katie

Katie Van Lier
Mustang Ranch Resort
(775) 219-4322

katie@worldfamousbrothel.com
E B




Vanessa Stephens

From: Pat Whitten

Sent: Wednesday, April 29, 2015 2:51 PM

To: Vanessa Stephens

Cc: katie@worldfamousbrothel.com; Donny Gilman; Gerald Antinoro
Subject: Ffwd: Work Card Appeal

Attachments: image001.gif

V-

Since we held the agenda posting while we finalized other matters, I'm good with adding this to the agenda in order to
expedite a decision. Please place the following on the May 5th Commission agenda:

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Appeal of brothel work card denial of Katrina Tyson by the Storey Cou nty Sheriff's
Office, pursuant to Storey County Code 5.16.220 {G)

Please place a copy of this email in the agenda packet. Thank you...
Pat
Sent from my iPad

Begin forwarded message:

From: Katie <katie @worldfamousbrothel.com>

Date: April 29, 2015 at 2:32:11 PM PDT

To: <pwhitten@storeycounty.org>

Cc: 'Donald Gilman’ <dgilmannv@gmail.com>, 'Lance Gilman’' <lance@lancegilman.com>,
<cforster@gundersonlaw.com>

Subject: Work Card Appeal

Mr. Whitten,

Don Gilman asked me to forward an urgent request to include the following appeal on next Tuesday’s
County Commissioner/Licensing Board agenda:

Appeal of Katrina Tyson of a work card denial by Sheriff Antinoro.

We are contacting Courtney Forster of the Gunderson Law Firm to notify her of this hearing date on this
appeal.

Thanks.
Katie

Katie Van Lier

Mustang Ranch Resort

(775) 219-4322
katie@worldfamousbrothel.com




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

0505715~
Meeting date: B6/87, Estimate of time required: 5 min.

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [x] Public hearing required [x]

1. Title: {Continued from 04/07/15 meeting) Discussion/Possible Action: Application No. 2014-
020 by the Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center, LLC to amend the text of Storey County Code
Title 17 (Zoning Ordinance) by adding Chapter 17.39 1-C Industrial-Commercial Zone.
The intent of the proposed I-C Zone is to provide for certain mixed-use industrial and
commercial uses where found appropriate by the board with recommendation by the
planning commission. Additional information including, but not limited to, reports and
the draft zone text may be obtained from the Planning Department at 775.847.1144 or
planning@storeycounty.org.

2. Recommended motion: (Continue item until June 1, 2015, board meeting.) Based on findings of
fact shown in Subsection 4.1 and the conditions of approval shown in Section 5 of this
report, and conformance with federal, state, and county regulations, and the master plan,
and the recommendation for approval by staff and the planning commission, 1
(Commissioner) motion to approve Storey County Zone Text Amendment Application
No. 2014-020 to include “Chapter 17.39 I-C Industrial Commercial Zone” to Storey
County Code, Title 17 Storey County Zoning Ordinance.

3. Prepared by: Austin Osbome
Department: Planning Telephone: 847-1144

4. Staff summary: Text amendment of Storey County Code Title 17 (Zoning Ordinance) as
explained and recommmended in Staff Report No. 2014-020.

5. Supporting materials: Staff Report No. 2014-020 and exhibits provided at the 12/02/14 board
meeting and packet are available at the Planning Department at 775.847.1144.

6. Fiscal impact: None on local government.

Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller
7. Legal review required:
District Attorney
8. Reviewed b¥:
epartment Head Department Name:
County Manager Other agency review:

9, _Board action_:
A LR I ~—Approved

N [ Approved with Modifications
[] Denied [

Continued

Agenda Item No.




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

05/05/15
Meeting date: DérQl/ikS Estimate of time required: 5 min.

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [x] Public hearing required {x]

1. Title: (Continued from 04/07/15 meeting) (Agenda Language included in Enclosure A)

2. Recommended motion: (Continue item until June 1, 2015 board meeting). Based on findings of
fact shown in Subsection 4.1 and the conditions of approval shown in Section 5 of this
report, and conformance with federal, state, and county regulations, and the
recommendation for approval by staff and the planning commission, I (Commissioner)
motion to approve Storey County Zone Map Amendment Application No. 2014-021
modifying the official zoning map of Storey County to include the Forestry, Natural
Resources, Public, and Industrial-Commercial zones as presented by staff in this report.

3. Prepared by: Austin Osborme
Department: Planning Telephone: 847-1144

4. Staff summary: Amendment of the Official Storey County Zoning Map as explained and
recommended in Staff Report No. 2014-021.

5. Supporting materials: Staff Report No. 2014-021 and exhibits provided at the 12/02/14 board
meeting and packet are available at the Planning Department at 775.847.1144.

6. Fiscal impact: None on local government.

Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller
7. Legal review required:
District Attomey
8. Reviewe :
partment Head Department Name:
County Manager Other agency review:

oard action:
[]  Approved [
[] Denied [

Approved with Modifications
Continued

Agenda [tem No. u




Enclosure A: Agenda Language for Application No. 2014-021

(Continued from 03/03/15 board meeting) Discussion/Possible Action: Application No.
2014-021 by the Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center, LLC., and Storey County on behalf of The Nature
Conservancy, LL.C and the Union Pacific Railroad Company to amend the Official Storey County
Zoning Map. The amendments will apply regulatory zones to approximately 600 acres of land
located in McCarran, Nevada (River District near the Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center) which was in
July of 2014 transferred from Washoe County to Storey County by means of boundary line
adjustment. The subject arca is described approximately as portions of: Section 31 and 32,
Township 20 North, Range 22 East; Section 6, Township 19 North, Range 22 East; Section 36,
Township 20 North, Range 21 East; Sections 2 and 11, Township 19 North, Range 21 East; and
Section 1, Township 19 North, Range 21 East, all in the Mount Diablo Baseline and Meridian
(MDB&M). The specific zones and subject properties will be as follows: (a) F Forestry zoning will
be applied to land located at Assessor’s Parcel Numbers (APN) 004.161.98, 004.161.99,
004.162.01, and 004.162.02; (b) N-R Natural-Resources zoning will be applied to land located at
APNs 004.161.85, 004.161.86, 004.161.88, and 004.161.96; (¢) I-C Industrial-Commercial zoning
will be applied to tand located at APNs 005.121.01, 005.121.02, 005.121.03, 005.121.04, and
005.121.05; and (d) P Public will be applied to land located at 004.161.87, 004,161.89,
004.161.90, 004.161.91, 004.161.92, 004.161.93, 004.161.94, 004.161.95, and 004.161.97, all
within the approximate subject area described above. The purpose of the zone map amendment is
to apply zoning to newly acquired land in Storey County that is consistent with surrounding uses
and the Storey County Master Plan. Prior to their transfer into Storey County, the properties were
zoned in Washoe County as Agriculture, Medium Density Rural, Industrial, and Public
Infrastructure. Additional information including, but not limited to, reports and maps may be
obtained from the Planning Department at 775.847.1144 or planning@storeycounty.org.




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: < ] [ i |5 Estimate of time required: 0 - 5

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [x] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Business License Second Readings -- Approval

2. Recommended motion; Approval

3. Prepared by: Stacey Bucchianeri
Department: Community Development Telephone: 847-0966
4. Staff summary: Second readings of submitted business license applications are normally
approved unless, for various reasons, requested to be continued to the next meeting. A
follow-up letter noting those to be continued or approved will be submitted prior to

Commuission Meeting. The business licenses are then printed and mailed to the new
business license holder.

5. Supporting materials: See attached Agenda Letter

6. Fiscal impact: None
Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller

7. Legal review required: None
District Attorney

8. Reviewed by:
x_ Dep Department Name: Community Development
M

ounty Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved
[1 Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued

—em—
—y

Agenda Item No.




Buginess Licenging

P O Box 526 - Virginia City NV 89440 « (775) 847-0266 « Fax (775) 847-0935 + buslic@storeycounty.org

To: Vanessa Stephens, Clerk’s Office April 27,2015

Pat Whitten, County Manager Via email

Please add the following item(s) to the May 5, 2015, COMMISSIONERS Agenda:

Storey County Building Department has inspected and found that the following businesses meet code
requirements necessary to operate in the county:

LICENSING BOARD
SECOND READINGS

~FEOEES AW

cC:

SIGNS ON SIGNS — Contractor / 960 Matley #22 ~ Reno (sign installation)

KONE, INC. - Contractor / 3727 Bradview Drive #200 ~ Sacramento (elevator contractor)

SHORE MANAGEMENT & DEV NV, INC. — General / 222 East Sydney Ste. B (const. mgmt.)TRI
ELECTRO SPECTRA, INC. — Contractor / 5490 Wildwood Drive ~ Reno (low voltage contractor)
GREAT WEST ASPHALT PAVING - Confractor / 133 East Warm Springs ~ L.as Vegas (paving cont.)
HARRIS & HART, INC. — Contractor / 1759 West 1200 South ~ Ogden, UT (hvac contractor)
ALLIED SANITATION SERVICES - Contractor / 830 West Bridge St. ~ Yerington (vacuum truck)
TIONIX, LL.C — General / 3033 Waltham Way, Unit S (metal fabrication) location change TRI
RICH DOSS, INC. — General / 201 Wild Horse Canyon Drive (transportation) MCC

Inspection Required

Chris Hood, Building Dept. Gary Hames, Fire Dept. Sheriff”s Office
Austin Osborne, Planning Dept. ‘Patty Blakely, Fire Dept.
Dean Haymore, Economic Dev., Assessor’s Office




